

GENESYS[®]

This PDF is generated from authoritative online content, and is provided for convenience only. This PDF cannot be used for legal purposes. For authoritative understanding of what is and is not supported, always use the online content. To copy code samples, always use the online content.

Workspace Desktop Edition User's Guide

Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.1

3/17/2023

Table of Contents

Workspace 8.5 User's Guide	4
Getting Started	6
Workspace Concepts	7
Workspace Windows and Views	8
Team Communicator Overview	22
Finding Contacts, Internal Targets, and Interactions	24
Role-Based Access Definition	28
Role Privilege Definition	29
Basic Use-Case Summary	30
Log In	33
Main Window Basics	41
Manage Your Status	44
Forward Your Calls	48
Find A Contact Or An Internal Target	50
Handling Interactions	59
Using the Interaction Bar	63
Handle A Voice Call	67
Handle A Voice Consultation	81
Transfer A Voice Call	87
Conference A Voice Call	94
Record Interactions	105
Handle Callback Interactions	107
Handle Web Callback Interactions	114
Handle Outbound-Campaign Voice Interactions	119
Handle Internal Instant Messaging	144
Handle A Chat Interaction	153
Handle A Chat Consultation	170
Transfer A Chat Interaction	175
Conference A Chat Interaction	181
Handle an Altocloud Chat Interaction	190
Handle An Email Interaction	192
Handle An SMS or MMS Interaction	221
Transfer An SMS or MMS Interaction	234
Handle A Facebook Interaction	239
Handle A Twitter Interaction	249

Handle An RSS Interaction	260
Handle A Workitem Interaction	266
Handle an Apple Messages for Business Interaction	271
Handle a WhatsApp Interaction	276
Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation	281
Edit Case Information And Record Information	297
Using The Standard Response Library	302
Apply Disposition Codes	313
Contact and Interaction Management	321
Manage Contact History	322
Manage Your History	334
Manage Contacts and Contact Information	339
Find Interactions	351
Using Workbins	357
Team Lead Functionality	364
Monitor Coach And Barge-in Interactions	365
Workbin and Queue Management	382
Change agent state and log off agents	388
Contact Center Tasks	392
View KPIs And Statistics	393
Receive Business And System Messages	398
Connect to your Voicemail Messages	401
Personalize Your Workspace	403
What's New in Workspace?	408

Workspace 8.5 User's Guide

User's Guide for **Genesys Workspace Desktop Edition** (Workspace). For less detailed information about the topics covered in this User's Guide, see the *Workspace Desktop Edition Help*.

Getting Started Find information about Workspace and learn how to log in and start using the application.	Handling Interactions Find information about handling interactions, such as voice (and voice with video), Internal IM, E-mail, Chat, and SMS.
Getting Started	Handling Interactions
Workspace Concepts	Outbound Campaigns
Log In	Finding Interactions
Manana Vaun Chakun	
Handling Social Media	Contact Management
Find information about handling Social Media interactions.	Find information about viewing and managing previous interactions with a contact.
Twitter Facebook RSS	Finding Interactions Managing Contact History Managing Your History
	Managing Captacta and Captact
Using Workbins	Team Lead Functionality
Find detailed information about accessing interactions that are stored in a workbin.	Find information about how a Team Supervisor can monitor, coach, and barge-in on agents who are handling voice and chat interactions.

Using Workbins

Using Workbins to Access Stored Interactions

Team Lead Functionality

Monitor, Coach, and Barge-in Interactions

Contact Center Tasks

Find information about how to view KPIs and statistics, receive business and system messages, and personalize your workspace.

Contact Center Tasks

View KPIs And Statistics

Receive Business And System Messages

Document Change History

A list of topics that are new or that have changed since the previous release.

Change History

For information about releases 8.1.2 and earlier, see the PDF version of the Interaction Workspace 8.1.3 User's Guide

Getting Started

These lessons introduce you to Workspace, the next-generation Genesys agent desktop interface, and show you how to get started accepting interactions.

This topic contains the following sub-topics (click a link below or use the TOC on the left to navigate this section):

- Workspace Concepts
- Log In
- Main Window Basics
- Manage Your Status
- Forward Your Calls
- Find A Contact Or An Internal Target

Videos

There are some videos on the Workspace Help landing page that you might find useful. Even more videos are available for the latest Cloud version of Workspace. The user interface is a little different, but you might find these videos instructive.

Workspace Concepts

This lesson introduces you to Workspace, the next-generation Genesys agent desktop interface. Privilege- and role-driven capabilities, as well as features that focus on the needs of the user, make Workspace a total agent solution. The Workspace agent interface enables users to invoke interactions that are related to existing interactions--ensuring a consistent customer experience. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Introduction
- Workspace Windows and Views
- Team Communicator Overview
- Finding Contacts, Internal Targets, and Interactions
- Definition--Role-Based
- Definition--Role Privilege
- Basic Use-Case Summary

Introduction

Workspace is the customer-interaction user interface for the Genesys 8 suite.

The Workspace application enables you to manage, from your workstation desktop, both Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN)-based and Internet-based contact interactions.

Workspace enables you to handle customer interactions, manage your status, and interact with others in your contact center.

Privileges are assigned to you, based on your role. You might be a junior agent who has only a limited set of media and controls, you might be an expert agent who has access to all of the privileges that are available through Workspace, or you might have a specialized role created for you by your administrator that enables you to handle specific types of interactions.

Workspace Windows and Views

Workspace displays on your workstation desktop a set of Views and Windows, that contain the components, features, and controls that enable you to perform the tasks that are assigned to you, based on your privileges. The Views and Windows enable you to perform multiple functions, such as previewing and accepting interactions; or managing your status, settings, and contacts. Atomic views typically enable you to perform a single function, such as viewing case information or specifying a disposition code.

Some views, such as the Case Information view, are displayed in separate windows. Other views are part of a window, such as the Voice Interaction window; these are displayed in one window along with other components, features, and controls .

Refer to the *Workspace Desktop Edition Help* for details on the functionality in each window and view.

Views, Windows, Components, Features, and Control Overview

The Workspace Views and Windows enable you to perform multi-step tasks and provide you with many functional options. The following Windows are included in Workspace; however, through customization, many more can be created:

• Login Window--The first view that you see (see Log In). It enables you to identify yourself and, if required, enter additional login data, based on your role or on the technical environment.

Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.000.32	
User Name	
Password	
O More	
Log in	Cancel
© 2009-2014 Genesys Telecommu	nications Laboratories, Inc.

Workspace Login Window

• Main Window--Enables you to manage your status, contacts, and settings; view your Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) and system messages; and launch new interactions.

yer-unit i Nufficience dy Workspace Big Channels Mg Campaigne Mg History Mg Hadrides Context Hubinities Bandie Batter Proved Information Output mensaging O Hadry (2011) O Ander Mensaging (2011)	iii Genesys 🔹	Workspace					0.4440	- 64	ŧ٠	۰ ه	- 0 1
My Workspace Wy Norkspace Wy Standardise Statement Wy Statement Wy Statement Statem	Type name or number	- 4									≡
Big Campaigner Big History Big History Dig History <thdig history<="" th=""> Dig History <thdig history<="" th=""> <thdig history<="" th=""></thdig></thdig></thdig>	My Workspace										×
Number Datest Personal Internation Image: Control of Marcing (Control of Marcing (Contro) of Marcing (Contro) of Mar	My Channels	My Campaigns	My History	Ny Statis	tica	Centaut Center Statistics					
Note On banky (\$1157) N: In Star Format On start messages O hanky (\$2158) O dat O hanky (\$2158) O mail O hanky (\$2158)	Noda	Status		forward		a mattern					
On Index Tempory D Temp D001180 O rate D Temp D Temp	0	O ****	0011215	to tobe Fore	-						
O (not O (mady (0) (140) Ø mady (0) (140) (0) (140) Ø (00) Ø (140) (0) (140)	O instant mes	naging @ Ready	(947159)								
Ø stud Ø fauly (0.110) Ø 345 Ø faul fauly (0.110)	O chat	O feely	(00/14/56)								
Set Other State Set State	Q enal	O featy	(001450)								
	0 111	😌 Nut Rea	aly (001456)								
Sectoralizada 😑 Not Ready (00.14.56)	Q anticalitati	a 😐 Nod Rea	aly (001456)								

Workspace Main Window

• **Statistics Gadget**--Enables you to view your KPIs and Contact Center Statistics in a permanent view. Statistics can be viewed in a ticker and/or in a static view.



Workspace Statistics Gadget

• **Interaction Preview**--Displays an interactive notification of a new inbound interaction. The preview includes case information to enable you to decide whether to accept, reject, or redirect the interaction (see Handling Voice Interactions).

🗩 Ravi Pache - Workspace							
Case Information	^						
Origin: Inbound chat							
Account update							
Accept	Reject						

Workspace Interaction Preview

- Voice Interaction Window--Enables you to view all of the information that is necessary to handle a
 voice interaction with a contact. This window also contains information about contacts and the Team
 Communicator.
- Web Callback--Enables you to view all of the information that is necessary to handle a Web Callback voice interaction with a contact.
- **Outbound Campaign**--Enables you to view all of the information that is necessary to handle an Outbound Campaign voice interaction with a contact.
- **Consultation**--Enables you to initiate a call to an internal expert or support person. It is part of the Team Communicator functionality.
- E-Mail--Enables you to view all of the information that is necessary to handle an email interaction with

a contact.

- **Chat**--Enables you to view all of the information that is necessary to handle a chat interaction with a contact.
- **SMS**--Enables you to view all of the information that is necessary to handle an SMS Page interaction or an SMS Session interaction with a contact.
- **Workitems**--Documents that might be directed to you for handling. They include numerous noninteractive media types, such as faxes, that you might have to view while you are handling interactions of another type, such as email.
- Internal IM--Enables you to initiate an Instant Messaging (IM) session with an internal expert or support person. It is part of the Team Communicator functionality.
- **History**--Enables you to view case data (business context of the case). Compiles the attached data that is associated with the main interaction of the case into a Case History (see Manage Contacts). It is part of Workspace functionality for processing voice interactions as well as other media types.

Informa	tion	Hist	ory				
lựch. All	im iw	1P Fi	ilter 🖣	Quick s	earch		۹ 🕻
8 8							۲ 🗆
	Statu	s	Subje	ct		St	art Date 🤟
×~	Done		Re: Ac	count upd	ate	2/	26/2014 1
22	Done		Accou	int update		2/	26/2014 1
N 💭	Done		Syste	m support		2/	26/2014 1
l∢ ∢ l Detail	Page 1	Note	Ca	se Data	1 - 3 of 3	10 .	 per page
Accour From: To:	n t updat RP@ma web@m	te ail.dom hcr.dev			2/2	5/2014	1:45:09 PM
Can y	ou plea:	se send	to me	my accoun	t update info	ormatio	n?

Workspace Contact History

Components, Features, and Controls

The Workspace Components, Features, and Controls are mapped to privileges. They enable you to perform single-step tasks, provide you with one or two functional options, and provide you with information that supports your current task. Components, Features, and Controls are usually contained within a View, but they might also be displayed in stand-alone windows or panels. Components, Features, and Controls behave like mini-applications. You can hide or show them and expand them or collapse them by clicking buttons in the View or Window in which they are contained. Refer to the *Workspace 8.5 Help* for details on the functionality in each window and view.

The following Components, Features, and Controls are included in Workspace; however, through customization, many more can be created:

- **Case Information**--Provides you with critical information about the active interaction. The information that is provided is configured by your system administrator.
- **Contact Summary**--Provides you with critical information about the contact who is involved in the active interaction.
- Voice Media--Enables you to control the active voice interaction or start a new interaction.
- **Voice Internal**--Enables you to control the active internal voice interaction or start a new internal interaction.
- Case Toolbar--Enables you to hold, connect, and end current interactions.
- **Dispositions**--Enables you to assign one or more codes to an ongoing or terminated interaction to qualify or characterize the outcome of the interaction, and a call result for outbound campaign interactions.
- Note View--Enables you to record information about the current interaction.
- History List--Enables you to view the history of interactions with the selected contact.
- **History Interaction Details**--Enables you to view the details of previous interactions with the selected contact.
- Contact Record--Enables you to view information about contacts that has been collected by your contact center.
- **Responses**--Enables you to access a database of pre-written standard responses for your interactions. You can insert these responses as replies into any email or chat message, or you can read them to the contact during a phone interaction. You might be configured to use suggested responses that are rated according to their relevancy to the content of the inbound interaction.
- **Team Communicator**--Enables you to call an internal target or contact, start a conference, or transfer the current interaction.
- **Child Interaction Navigator**--Enables you to view and select any "child" interactions that you have initiated that relate to the current customer interaction (the parent interaction), such as an internal consultation call or a chat with another agent.
- IM Media--Enables you to initiate or receive Instant Messaging (IM) interactions.
- My Status--Enables you to monitor the status of your media channels.
- **My Messages**--Provides you with up-to-date information about the status of your contact center, changes that are related to your activities, and business messages that your leads send to you.
- **Workbins**--Enables you to store email and other interactions that are to be handled later. Interactions that are stored in a workbin can be accessed in any order. Items that are stored in a workbin are owned by the owner of the workbin.
- Preferences--Enables you to control the appearance of various Workspace interface components.
- Recent Items--Enables you to select a recent contact from a drop-down list.
- **My Campaigns**--Provides you with a list of all of your active Outbound Campaigns. If you are part of a pull-preview campaign, you can get a new campaign record.
- My History--Enables you to view a record of your recent activity.
- My Statistics--Enables you to view your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

- Contact Center Statistics -- Enables you to view the statistics of your contact center.
- Schedule a Callback--Enables you to set a later date and/or time to callback a contact from a campaign list.

Workspace Main Window

Senesys • Workspace			🚺 John Davis → 👤 → 🛛 → 🗕 🗆 ×
🛞 🗧 Ravi Pache 🔘 00:01:27 🌄 🦊 🧏 - 🖊 🔽 -			=
Case Information +	+ ^	0	Information History
Origin: Inbound chat		8	Arch. All 1M 1W 1D
✓ Ravi Pache O Connected	(6)	NTACT	
[9:49:55 AM] New party 'Ravi Pache' has joined the session [9:49:58 AM] Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (through Chat Server			Status Subject Start Date – Et
ChatServer) [9:50:12 AM] New party 'John Davis' has joined the session	- 1		■ In Progress Account update 3/5/2014 9:49:55 AM
	- 1		🖪 🔀 🛛 In Progress Re: Product update 2/27/2014 11:06:22 AM
			I < <
	=	RE	Details Note Case Data
Se	end	SPONSES	Re: Product update From: "Web Contact Center" <web@mcr.dev> 2/27/2014 11:06:22 AM To: RaviP@mail.dom In a queue</web@mcr.dev>
Dispositions Note	1		On 2/26/2014 4:56 PM, Ravi Pache wrote: > Has a new product update been released?
Sav	e		

Link to video

The Workspace Main Window (see the Workspace Main Window figure) is a module that enables you to manage your channels, status, KPIs, contacts, workbins, and campaigns. It can be used to initiate interactions, either directly or through a search of the contact database and interaction history. The Main Window supports simultaneous interactions on one or more channels and provides the interaction Preview interactive notification. You can use the Main Menu to set preferences, launch Help, display the Statistics Gadget, and exit the application. For more information about the functions that are available in the Main Window, see the following lessons:

- Docking, Undocking, and Auto-hiding--Main Window Basics
- Go Ready--Manage Your Status
- Set a Forwarding Number--Forward Your Calls
- Find an Internal Target or a Contact--Find A Contact Or An Internal Target
- Call an Internal Target or a Contact--Handle Voice Interactions
- IM an Internal Target--Handle Internal Instant Messaging

- E-Mail a Contact--Handle An E-Mail Interaction
- Manage Workbins--Using Workbins
- Manage Contacts--Manage Contacts
- View Statistics--View KPIs And Statistics
- Receive Messages--Receive Business And System Messages
- Change the Appearance of Interface--Personalize Your Workspace

Link to video

Voice Interaction Window

Senesys • Workspace			📀 SIP 5321 👻 👤 👻	ଡ • _ □ ×
🛞 🛛 Ravi Pache 🕓 00:00:24 🕊 😍 😋 🖤	<u>لا</u> - ا	▋ ● - ╚ - 🙎-		≡
Case Information + A	0	Information History		
Origin: Inbound call to 4001 Queue: 4001	CONTA	Arch. All 1M 1W 1D Filter - Quick sear	rch	۹ 🖯
Ravi Pache ♥ Connected Ravi Pache ♥ Connected (1)	CI	Status Subject	Start Data - End Data	S D
Dispositions Note		In Progress	3/5/2014 9:57:09 AM	SIP 5321
		Done Account update	3/5/2014 9:49:55 AM 3/5/2014 9:55:02 AM	/ John Davi:
		in Progress Re: Product update	2/21/2014 11:06:22 AM	John Davi:
		✓ Page 1 of 1+ ►	1 - 10 of 10+ 1	0 🔻 per page
	RESPO	Details Note Case Data		
	ONSES	Select a	an interaction to view details.	
Save				

The Voice Interaction window (see the Workspace Voice Interaction window figure) and the Web Callback Interaction window enable you to view all of the information that is required to handle a voice interaction with a contact or an internal target.

You can view call status, history, and case data. You can control the call, conference or transfer the call, enter notes about the call, and send DTMF.

For more information about the functions that are available in the Voice Interaction window, see the

following lessons:

- Find an Internal Target or a Contact--Find A Contact Or An Internal Target
- Call an Internal Target or a Contact--Handle Voice Interactions
- Start a Voice or IM Consultation--Handle A Voice Consultation
- Transfer to an Internal Target or a Contact--Transfer A Voice Call
- Conference with an Internal Target or a Contact--Conference A Voice Call
- Transition an IM Consultation to a Voice Consultation--Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation
- Record a Call--Record Interactions
- Set a Disposition Code--Apply Disposition Codes
- Manage Contacts, Contact Case History, and Set a Note--Manage Contacts
- Use Standard Responses--Using The Standard Response Library

Web Callback Interaction Window

Senesys • Workspace	🥑 John Davis 👻 🤦	•	•	_ =	×
🛞 🖌 Ravi Pache 🕓 00:00:04 🕊 🤩 🤩 - 📞 - 🗰 📅 🖳 -					≡
Case Information			+	^	CON
Origin: Outbound call to Ravi Pache					ITACI
✓ Ravi Pache			c (8)	L (2)	-
Callback Information				^	
Subject: Internet service down					
Phone Number: 111200198					
Type: ASAP					
Scheduled Date: 3/24/2014					RE
Time (Contact): from 3:08 PM till 3:23 PM					SPO
Dispositions Note					NSES
			Sa	ive	

The Web Callback Interaction window enables you to view all of the information that is required to handle a web callback interaction with a contact (see the Workspace Voice Interaction window figure).

You can view call status, history, and case data. You can control the call, conference or transfer the call, enter notes about the call, and send DTMF.

For more information about the functions that are available in the Voice Interaction window, see the following lessons:

- Find an Internal Target or a Contact--Find A Contact Or An Internal Target
- Call an Internal Target or a Contact--Handle Voice Interactions
- Handle a Web Callback interaction--Handle Web Callback Interactions
- Start a Voice or IM Consultation--Handle A Voice Consultation
- Transfer to an Internal Target or a Contact--Transfer A Voice Call
- Conference with an Internal Target or a Contact--Conference A Voice Call
- Transition an IM Consultation to a Voice Consultation--Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation
- Record a Call--Record Interactions
- Set a Disposition Code--Apply Disposition Codes
- Manage Contacts, Contact Case History, and Set a Note--Manage Contacts
- Use Standard Responses--Using The Standard Response Library

Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction Window

Senesys •	Workspace		🕕 Kate Lewis 👻 👻 🗸 😧 👻 🗕 🗖	×
0411400	O:00:54 ℃ ℃ ℃ ℃ · Ⅲ 苊 &-		:	≣
Case Information Origin: Outbound Queue: 122 Call Type: Support Priority: High	+ 🔨	CONTACT	Any Keyword Search Search Q View: All Responses Response	•
Reason: Broken T Segment: Gold	nnected		Bill Pay Bill Pay Business and Personal Accounts Cash Advance	E
Record Information Phone Type:	A Home Phone	77	Change Contact Info Check Card or ATM	
Call From: Call Until:	00:00 23:59	ESPON	What is Bill Pay	_
CardNumber: DateHeure: Character: Name:	651651 Monday, November 13, 2006 5:54:00 PM 5 valeurpardefautdfvfd	SES	Dear <\$ Contact.FullName \$>- Bill Pay is a free feature of PFS Online Banking that allows you to view and pay your bills online. In addition, with Bill Pay, you can elect to receive e- Bills - electronic versions of your paper bills - from your Premier Financial Services credit card to a variety of companies. You can also manually enter Payees which are not already in our system.	Ξ
Price: GSW_CUSTOMER_ID	10.31 I: 1		To use Bill Pay, you need a PFS checkng account or personal credit card. You also need internet access and a supported browswer. Sincerelv-	

The Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window (see the Workspace Outbound Campaign Voice

Interaction window figure) enables you to view all of the information that is required to handle an Outbound Campaign voice interaction with a contact.

You can view call status, history, case data, and record information. You can control the call, conference or transfer the call, enter notes about the call, and send DTMF.

For more information about the functions that are available in the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window, see the following lessons:

- Find an Internal Target or a Contact--Find A Contact Or An Internal Target
- Call an Internal Target or a Contact--Handle Voice Interactions
- Transfer to an Internal Target or a Contact--Transfer A Voice Call
- Conference with an Internal Target or a Contact--Conference A Voice Call
- Handle an Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction (including Rescheduling a call)--Handle Outbound-Campaign Voice Interactions
- Record a Call--Record Interactions
- Set a Disposition Code--Apply Disposition Codes
- Manage Contacts and Contact Case History--Manage Contacts
- Use Standard Responses--Using The Standard Response Library

Email Interaction Window

Senesys • Workspace		⊘ Kate Lewis 🗸 👤 🖌 😧 🗸 🗖 🗸
🛞 🛛 Ravi Pache 😋 00:00:18 🚬 🎬 🔀 - 🍕 🛃	<u> 9</u> -	=
Case Information	0	Information History
Ravi Pache S Inbound Inb	8	Arch. All 1M 1W 1D cite
My account is frozen From: RaviP@mail.dom 3/5/2014 10:18 AM To: web@mcr.dev	NTACT	
I am unable to access my account. I get a message that my account is		Status Subject Start Date 👻 End Date
DD		■ In Progress My account is frozen 3/5/2014 10:18:42 A
nr.		x Done 3/5/2014 9:57:09 AM 3/5/2014 9:58:2
		111
		I < Page 1 of 1+ ► 1 - 10 of 10+ 10 ▼ per page
Dispositions Note	RES	Details Note Case Data
Disposition Code None Accepted Rejected Transferred	PONSES	Select an interaction to view details.

The Email Interaction window (see the Workspace E-Mail Interaction window figure) enables you to view all of the information that is required to handle an email interaction with a contact.

You can view information about the email, history, and case data. You can reply to the interaction, save to a workbin, transfer the interaction, start a conference, and enter notes about the interaction.

For more information about the functions that are available in the E-Mail Interaction window, see the following lessons:

- Find an Internal Target or a Contact--Find A Contact Or An Internal Target
- Call an Internal Target or a Contact--Handle Voice Interactions
- Start a Voice or IM Consultation--Handle A Voice Consultation
- Transfer to an Internal Target or a Contact--Transfer A Voice Call
- Transition an IM Consultation to a Voice Consultation--Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation
- Set a Disposition Code--Apply Disposition Codes
- Manage Contacts and Contact Case History--Manage Contacts
- Use Standard Responses--Using The Standard Response Library

Chat Interaction Window

Senesys • Workspace	🧭 Kate Lewis 👻 👤 👻	8 -	_ 🗆 ×
🛞 🔽 Ravi Pache 🔘 00:00:26 🐺 🛒 🍢 🛃			≡
Case Information		+	<u>^ 8</u>
Origin: Inbound chat			NTAC
Ravi Pache O Connected		C (7)	(3)
[10:22:11 AM] New party 'Ravi Pache' has joined the session [10:22:13 AM] Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (through Chat Server ChatServer) [10:22:18 AM] New party 'Kate Lewis' has joined the session Hello, how can I help you today? I		Ser	nd e

The Chat Interaction window (see the Workspace Chat Interaction window figure) enables you to view all of the information that is required to handle a chat interaction with a contact.

You can view chat status, history, and case data. You can control the interaction, start a conference, transfer the interaction, and enter notes about the interaction.

For more information about the functions that are available in the Chat Interaction window, see the following lessons:

- Find an Internal Target or a Contact--Find A Contact Or An Internal Target
- Call an Internal Target or a Contact--Handle Voice Interactions
- Start a Voice or IM Consultation--Handle A Voice Consultation
- Transfer to an Internal Target or a Contact--Transfer A Voice Call
- Conference with an Internal Target or a Contact--Conference A Voice Call
- Transition an IM Consultation to a Voice Consultation--Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation
- Set a Disposition Code--Apply Disposition Codes
- Manage Contacts and Contact Case History--Manage Contacts
- Use Standard Responses--Using The Standard Response Library

SMS Interaction Window

Senesys • Workspace		Ø	John Davis 👻 👱	- 0	•	_ 🗆 ×
🛞 🛛 Bill Edwards 🔋 00:02:18 📑 - 🔽 🛃 -						≡
Case Information + ^	0	Information History				
Origin: Inbound SMS Page Mode	8	🖾 Pasat 🖣				
	TAC	General				
[15:28:54] Bill Edwards: Here is my account number	17	Title (None)	•			
		First Name * Bill		×		
		Last Name Edwards		×		
		Phone Number				
		+3329814345644	(None) -	×		
Characters Remaining: 150		Add Phone Number 👻				
Thank you.	RESP	E-mail Address				
Send	SNO	Enter E-mail Address	(None) •			
	ES	Add E-mail Address 👻				
Dispositions Note						
Save						
Jure						

The SMS Interaction window (see the Workspace SMS Interaction window figure) enables you to view all of the information that is required to handle an SMS Page interaction or an SMS Session interaction with a contact.

You can view SMS status, history, and case data. You can control the interaction, transfer the interaction, and enter notes about the interaction.

For more information about the functions that are available in the SMS Interaction window, see the following lessons:

- Find an Internal Target or a Contact--Find A Contact Or An Internal Target
- Call an Internal Target or a Contact--Handle Voice Interactions
- Handle An SMS Interaction--Handle An SMS Interaction
- Transfer to an Internal Target or a Contact--Transfer An SMS Interaction
- Set a Disposition Code--Apply Disposition Codes
- Manage Contacts and Contact Case History--Manage Contacts
- Use Standard Responses--Using The Standard Response Library

IM Interaction Window

Senesys • Workspace	🧭 Kate Lewis 👻	<u>•</u>	0.	_ 🗆 ×
🛞 🚺 Jim Miller 💿 00:00:48 🙊				≡
Case Information			+	^ RE
Origin: Instant messaging from Jim Miller				SPON
✓ Jim Miller				SES
[11:03:28 AM] Jim Miller initiated an Instant Messaging invitation. [11:03:29 AM] Jim Miller: Hello, Kate, I need some help with my ACW. [11:03:31 AM] Kate Lewis accepted the Instant Messaging invitation. [11:03:53 AM] Kate Lewis: Sure, Jim, how can I help you?				
			4	Send

The Instant Messaging (IM) Interaction window (see the Workspace Instant Messaging (IM) Interaction window figure) enables you to view all of the information that is required to handle an IM interaction with an internal target.

You can send an IM to another agent (internal target) or receive an IM from an internal target. If you start the IM from an active Interaction, you can share contact information with the IM target. You can also transition from an IM consultation session to a voice consultation.

For more information about the functions that are available in the IM Interaction window, see the following lessons:

- IM an Internal Target--Handle Internal Instant Messaging
- Transition an IM Consultation to a Voice Consultation--Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation

Statistics Gadget

My Statistic	
KPI 🔒	e
Current Ready duration 00:00:35	
↔ ► ₩	0

Statistics can be viewed either in the Main Window by selecting the My Statistics tab or the Contact Center Statistics tab in your Workspace, or by using the Statistics Gadget (see the Statistics Gadget displaying Contact Center Statistics figure).

The Statistics Gadget displays statistics in two ways:

- A statistics ticker
- A tagged-statistic view

The advantage of the Statistics Gadget is that you can view your KPIs and Contact Center Statistics continuously without having to open your Workspace and clicking back and forth between tabs.

For more information about the functions that are available in the Statistics Gadget, see the following lesson:

• View Statistics--View KPIs And Statistics

Team Communicator Overview

The Team Communicator feature is a universal lookup tool and dialer that searches all of the directories to which you are connected. Use the Team Communicator to find an internal target, such as a team member, Routing Point, agent group, skill, or interaction queue; or, if you are connected to the contact database, you can use it to find a contact.

The Team Communicator can filter the results of your search or group the results into categories to help you to quickly find the internal target or contact for whom you are searching.

Enter a name, telephone number, or email address to find an internal target or contact, and then select the action that you want to perform, such as:

- Calling (dialing) a contact
- Calling (dialing) an internal target
- Sending an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target
- · Adding a contact to your list of favorites
- Conferencing an interaction
- Transferring an interaction
- Starting a consultation
- Sending an email message to a contact

් Workspace		📀 SIP 5323 👻 👱 🔹	• - • ×
Wang X All Types -	Team Communicator		≡ ×
📞 🞍 Frank Wang	stics Contact Center Statistics		
📞 🚽 Vanessa Wang	8		
📞 🕳 Wen Wang	E		4 ©
ار به Xin Wang	B		
A Matching Internal Target/a)	36 PM		
4 Matching Contact(s)	PM		
1) () 1017 0.40.101 III	1) 4) 2019 0.49.09 PM		
■ Done 1/14/2019 9:38:36 AM	1/14/2019 9:48:34 AM		
■ S Done 1/3/2014 9:53:37 AM	1/3/2014 9:53:48 AM		
* Done 1/2/2014 3:20:13 PM	1/3/2014 9:53:34 AM		
■ Done 1/2/2014 3:19:09 PM	1/2/2014 3:19:35 PM		
▶ € Done 1/2/2014 2:58:11 PM	1/2/2014 3:17:05 PM		
I ≤ Page 1 of 1+ ►		1 - 10 of 10+ 1	10 👻 per page
Details Note Case Data			
	Select an interaction to view details.		

Related Information

• Team Communicator help

Finding Contacts, Internal Targets, and Interactions

[Modified: 8.5.136.07]

Two different types of search routines are employed by Workspace to enable you to search for contacts and internal targets:

- Grid view in newer environments
- · Grid view in older environments
- List view in older environments

Tip

In some contact centers only one of the two views might be available. In this case, the **List** () and **Grid** () buttons are not displayed. (**Modified:** 8.5.105.12) In new environments, only Grid view is available.

Grid View in newer environments

[Modified: 8.5.136.07]

The Grid view in newer environments displays a sortable list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.

The search is a 'keyword' or 'phrase' search that searches each field of the contact database (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) for the word or words that you provide in the search field. The search engine tries to match *any* word of each field specified in the search criteria (that are allowed by your administrator for Quick Search or that you manually specified for Advanced Search) of the database by using the selected matching mode 'starts with' in quick search, and 'starts with', 'is', or 'contains' in advanced search to search for the keyword(s) that you provide.

Contact Directory									
mail.dom						Х	\odot		
2 + ,	A More Ac	tions 👻							•
	Last 🔺	First Name	Phor	ne Nu	umber	E-m	ail Address		
•	Avram	Mark	٩		+1.555.654.78	\geq	MarkAv@mail.dom		
•	Doe	John				\sim	john.doe@mail.dom		
-	Mai	Avril	e,		5555555	\geq	A_Mai@mail.dom		
•	Pache	Ravi	e,		+91.11.20000	\geq	RaviP@mail.dom		
•	Wang	Vanessa	و		+852.5432.98	Σ	AVWang@mail.dom		
14 4	Page 1 of 1	Þ					1 - 5 of 5 10 🔻 p	er pa	ge

The following views employ the Grid View-mode search:

- Contact History view/My History view See:
 - Lesson: Managing Contact History.

Grid View in older environments

Grid view performs a "starts-with" search that searches each field of the contact database for the phrase (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) that you provide in the search field.

Results are returned in tabular form and are sorted according to the default search field, such as Last Name.

The following views employ the Grid View-mode search:

- Contact History view/My History view See:
 - Lesson: Managing Contact History.

For more details on search results and the functionality in each window and view, see the *Workspace* 8.5 *Help*.

List view in older environments

List view performs a "keyword" search that searches each field of the contact database for the word or words (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) that you provide in the search field. Each field of the database is searched by using a "starts-with" search for the keyword(s) that you provide.

In most cases, you can refine the search results by using the filtering features of the list view. For example, you can filter your search results so that only contacts or favorites are displayed.

Refer to the Contact Directory topic in the *Workspace Desktop Edition Help* for more information about search results.

The following views employ the List View-mode search:

- Main Window See:
 - Team Communicator Overview.
 - Finding an Internal Target or a Contact.
 - Sending and Receiving Internal Instant Messages.
- Voice Interaction Window See:
 - Starting a Voice Conference.
 - Transferring a Voice Call.
 - Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
- E-Mail Interaction Window See:
 - Starting a Voice Conference.
 - Transferring a Voice Call.
 - Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
- Chat Interaction Window See:
 - Starting a Voice Conference.
 - Transferring a Voice Call.
 - Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
- Workitem Interaction Window See:
 - Starting a Voice Conference.
 - Transferring a Voice Call.
 - Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
- Contact History view/My History view See:
 - Manage Contacts.

Related Information

- Contact History help
- Contact Search help
- Interaction History help
- Interaction Search help
- Team Communicator help

Role-Based Access Definition

The Genesys 8 suite of products implements role-based access to functionality (role privileges). Users are categorized by their role. The role that is assigned to you determines which role privileges (see Definition — Role Privilege) you are enabled to perform based on privileges assigned to your role.

Workspace comprises a set of Graphical User Interface (GUI) elements called views. The role that is assigned to you determines which Workspace views are enabled for you to use. The views enable you to complete your assigned tasks. For example, you might be configured for voice and chat but not email; you might be configured to transfer interactions and consult with other agents, but not to initiate new outbound interactions.

Examples of roles that might be enabled for some or all of the Workspace functionality include the following:

- Junior Agent
- Senior Agent
- Team Lead
- Supervisor
- Expert Agent

Related Information

- Team Leads and Supervisors
- Team Lead and Supervisor help

Role Privilege Definition

The Genesys 8 suite of products implement role-based access to functionality (role privileges). Users are categorized by their role. The role that is assigned to you determines which tasks you are enabled to perform. A role privilege is a single functionality or set of functionalities that are required to complete a Use Case (see Basic Use-Case Summary).

Workspace contains role privileges that are used to handle customer interactions, manage your status, view your KPIs, set personal preferences, and consult with team members.

Role privileges are made available through Views and Windows. Views contain the user-interface elements, such as buttons, menus, and text fields, that enable you to interact with Workspace. Views typically perform single functions, such as setting preferences, viewing KPIs, or viewing the history of an interaction. Windows contain views that are grouped into a single composite interface.

Basic Use-Case Summary

The purpose of this user's guide is to enable you to learn the *basic* functionality of Workspace. See the *Workspace 8.5 Help* for more details about each user-interface component. To access the context-sensitive Help from any window in the Workspace interface, open the Help menu, or press the F1 key on your keyboard.

This section summarizes the *high-level* steps that you might follow to handle a voice interaction.

Warning

During your use of Workspace, you might be locked out of Workspace and have your status set to Not Ready if you do not use your keyboard or mouse for an inactivity period that is defined by your administrator. If you are locked out of Workspace, you must reauthenticate and reset your status to Ready to receive new interactions. For more information, see the Inactivity Timeout topic in the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.

Prerequisites

To begin these role privileges your system must meet the following requirements:

- The Workspace ClickOnce application is installed on your local web server.
- The Workspace ClickOnce application is installed on your workstation.
- You are configured as an agent.
- Your workstation operating system is Windows Vista, Windows 7 or Windows 8.

Starting the Application and Handling an Inbound Interaction

Use a Microsoft Internet Explorer 8 or higher web browser to launch the Workspace bootstrap application. This bootstrap application enables you to login to your system and download the Workspace application.

1. Before you launch Workspace, if you are using a softphone (a headset connected to your workstation), make sure that your headset is plugged in.





- 3. Log in to the system (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- 4. Enter your additional authentication information.
- 5. Enter a media channel, or select one from the list.
- 6. In the Main Window set your status to Ready (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- 7. Accept inbound interactions that are routed to you. See:
 - Lesson: Handling an inbound voice interaction
 - Lesson: Handling a web callback interaction
 - Lesson: Receiving an Instant Messaging session
 - Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction
 - Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction
 - Lesson: Handling an inbound SMS interaction
 - Lesson: Handling an inbound workitem interaction
 - Lesson: Handling a predictive or progressive Outbound-Campaign voice interaction
 - Or, retrieve an interaction from a workbin. See:
 - Lesson: Accessing and handling interactions that are stored in a workbin
- 8. Handle each inbound interaction. This step can include any or all of the following functions:
 - Start a voice, IM or chat consultation (see Lesson: Starting a voice conference or Lesson: Starting a chat consultation).
 - Transfer the call (see Lesson: Starting a voice transfer).
 - Conference the call (see Lesson: Starting a voice conference).
 - Update the Contact History (see Managing Contact History).
 - Update the Note (see Managing Contact History).
 - Send or receive an internal Instant Message (IM) (see Instant Messaging Overview).
 - Employ a Standard Response (see Inserting a Standard Response into an E-Mail Interaction).
- 9. Complete the interaction.
- 10. If required, enter a disposition code (see Assigning Disposition Codes).
- 11. Click Mark Done.
- 12. Complete any required aftercall work.
- 13. Click the close box to close the corresponding Interaction window.
- 14. Set your status to Ready (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

- 15. View your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) or the KPI status of your group (see Lesson: View KPIs And Statistics).
- 16. After you have completed all of your tasks for the day, select Log Out from the Main Menu.

Related Information

- Workspace Functionality Overview help
- Launching Workspace help
- Workspace Components, Features, and Controls help

Log In

[Modified: 8.5.114.08, 8.5.112.08, 8.5.108.11, 8.5.138.04]

In this lesson, you will learn how to launch the Workspace application from your workstation, provide authentication information, and log in to your system.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Getting Started
- Changing Your Password
- Remote and Virtual Desktop Environments

Getting Started

To begin accepting interactions, you first must be authenticated on your network, and then you must log in to your system. The following procedure describes how to start Workspace and authenticate yourself on the system.

Lesson: Logging in to Workspace

Purpose: To authenticate yourself on the system and choose your channels.

Prerequisites

- Your workstation is running a supported operating system.
- Your workstation has a supported browser application installed.
- Your account is configured as an agent.
- Workspace is installed on your workstation.

Start

1. (SIP only) Plug in your USB headset.

Warning

Depending on the configuration of your environment, your volume settings from your previous session might be retained when you log out, and they are used when you log in.

Important

When you log in to Workspace, the application is enabled for any headsets that are plugged into your workstation. If you want to use a different headset, exit Workspace, plug in the new headset, then relaunch Workspace.

- 2. Start the Workspace application by doing one of the following steps:
 - Double-click the Workspace icon on your workstation desktop.



- Open the Start menu and choose Workspace from the Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories program group.
- Select the Workspace ClickOnce web link that was provided to you by your system administrator.



When you launch Workspace, the application might automatically update. Depending on how your system is configured, you might have the opportunity to reject the update. If you do not accept the update, it will be offered to you again the next time that you login.

3. In the Login view, enter your user name and password (see the Initial login view figure). If you do not know what information to enter in the login screen or if you have multiple accounts, each for a different purpose, contact your supervisor or administrator to determine what login information to use.



Initial login view

Important

If you are working in a Single-Sign On Environment, you will not have to login to Workspace. In a Single Sign-On environment, after you launch Workspace and the splash screen is displayed, the Advanced Login Parameters view or the main window is displayed. Skip to step 5 or step 7.

In some cases, you might be required to enter additional information about the application that you want to use and about the host and port from which the application is being served. For more information, see your system administrator and the *Workspace 8.5 Help.*

Warning

Depending on the configuration of your environment, if you login to a SIP Voice channel without having your configured USB headset plugged in, you might be logged in to Workspace, but not to the SIP Voice channel. To complete logging in to the SIP Voice channel, plug in your USB headset.

- 4. Check or keep checked Log in using recent place if the Place name that is displayed in the Login view is the same as the Place (phone set and workstation) where you currently sit; it will be displayed in the Login view if you typed it in the last time you logged in from this same Place). Uncheck this selection if you do not always use the same phone set and workstation and the displayed Place name does not match the Place name where you are sitting. In this case, you must enter extra information in the second log in view to make sure that when calls are directed to you, they ring on the phone where you are working instead of on a phone that you previously logged in to.
- 5. Click Log In to log in, or click Cancel to stop logging in; this closes the Login view.
- 6. After you have successfully authenticated, a new view opens in which you can specify additional information, based on the tasks that you want to perform. The contents of the view are defined by your

administrator; they are specific to your role. Additional information that you might have to specify includes your Place, your queue, your agent login, your agent password, your phone number, and the media (such as Voice, Instant Messaging, or workitems, such as faxes) that you want to use. The "Example of the System Parameters login view" figure shows an example of a secondary login view. The view that is displayed on your screen might be different.

Senesys						
Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.000.32						
Welcome						
Place						
√ voice						
Queue:	SIP Voice Queue 👻					
🖌 instant messaging	1					
Change login account						
ок	Cancel					
© 2009-2014 Genesys 1 Genesys suite applicatio Patents.	elecommunications Laboratories, Inc. Ins are covered by U.S. and Foreign					

Example of the System Parameters login view. Your view might be different.

- If you do not always sit at the same Place (phone set and workstation), or if you did not check Log in using recent place in the first login view, you should verify that you enter the correct Place in the Place field. If the Place is incorrect, calls might be directed to a different phone set at a different workstation.
- In some environments, agents have more than one Place to choose from when specifying their Place during log in. For example, they might log in from their workstation in the office one day and from their home phone or mobile the next. If this is the set up in your environment, your administrator or supervisor will give you different Place names to use depending on what phone you are using to login to Workspace. Enter the Place in the Place field of the second login window. [Added: 8.5.138.04]
- Your contact center might use Place Groups as well as Places for login. Refer to Logging in to a Place Group for more information. [Added: 8.5.114.08]
- Your account might be configured to check and uncheck eServices media channels, such as chat, SMS, email, social media (for example, Facebook and Twitter), and workitems (such as fax). Upon login, unchecking media channels for which your account is configured means that you will not be logged into those channels when Workspace starts.


If you will not use a specific channel, you can uncheck it in the login window (if your account is configured for this capability)

You will have to login to those channels manually from the Workspace view in the Main Window. Note: If you are logging in to participate in an Outbound Campaign, you must unselect the Instant Messaging channel.

🗑 Genesys	 Workspace 				🗑 Genesys	 Workspace 	
Type name or numb	- Q				Type name or num	Q)
My Workspac	e			1	My Workspan	De	/
My Channels	My Campaigns	My History	My Statisti	1	My Channels	My Campaigns	My History
Media	Status		Forward	í –	Media	Status	À
O voice	O Ready	(00:00:17)	to Active Forwar	۹.	O voice	O Beach	(00.00.20) No.
O instant met	Not Real	ty (00.00.21)		1	Sind	Flaging O Not Rea	dy (0010-13)
O chat	10-10	Beach	_		O chat	(3)	ay (20.00.0)
O email	- Not 0	Not Ready			- mail	O Not Rea	4 000 00
O SMS	0 Not 0	Not Ready - Br	-		e sas	100 100	ely (00.00.43)
@ webcalload	k O Not O	Not Ready - Lo	nch	1	Ø vetcalba	sk 😑 Not Rea	dy (00.00.43)
	0	Not Ready - To	prints	1			$\langle \rangle$
	•	Do Not Disturb		/			
	2	LogOn		Ĺ			
	9	Log-Off	-90	1			
	-	~		\			

To log on a channel, right-click it and select Log On from the menu

Important

If you are logging in to participate in an Outbound Campaign, you **must** *un*select the Instant Messaging channel.

• If your company is using a SIP Server, your account might be configured to log in by using a remote phone number at which you can be reached if you are not logged in from a phone that is on the internal phone system of your company (see the Remote phone number field in the System Parameters login view figure).

If you are logging in remotely, enter the remote phone number to which your calls will be routed in the Phone Number box in the System Parameters Login view.

✓ voice		
<u>Q</u> ueue:	SIP Voice Queue	*
Phone <u>N</u> umber:		

Remote phone number field in the System Parameters login view

- 7. Click OK to submit your information. Click Cancel to stop logging in; this closes the Login view.
- 8. If authentication is successful, the Main Window view is displayed. If your status is configured to be set to Ready by default, you are ready to receive interactions that are routed to you. Your system administrator specifies what your status is for each channel when you login. If your account is configured to be Not Ready for one or more channels, your system administrator might specify a Not Ready Reason for the channel. To start receiving interactions on a Not Ready channel, you must change the status to Ready.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Changing Your Password

There are a number of reasons why you might have to or want to change your Workspace login password. For reasons that are related to the security of your company, your account might be configured so that your password expires automatically after a specified number of days. For your personal security, your account might be configured with a temporary password when the account is assigned to you, and you might be required by your system administrator to change your temporary password before you can login to Workspace for the first time. You might also want to change your Workspace login password for other reasons -- for example, your company might not have a specific policy about how often your password should be changed or you might have accidentally revealed your password to an unauthorized person.

In all of these scenarios, you use the Workspace Change Password dialog box to change your password. Consult with your system administrator about the specific password security policy that your company implements.

Lesson: Changing your Workspace password

Purpose: To change your Workspace system login password.

Prerequisites

- Your workstation is running a supported operating system.
- Your workstation has a supported browser application installed.
- Your account is configured as an agent.
- Workspace is installed on your workstation.

Start

- 1. To manually change your password, from the Main Menu, select Change Password. The Change Password dialog box is displayed. Perform the following steps:
 - a. Enter your current password in the Old Password field.
 - b. Enter your new password in the New Password field.
 - c. Enter your new password again in the Confirm Password field.
 - d. Click 0K to change your password or click Cancel to close the dialog box without changing your password. If you made any errors, after you click 0K you will be asked to re-enter the information. If you entered all of the information correctly, your password is changed to the new password that you specified.
- 2. If you are required to change your password by your administrator, the Change Password dialog box is displayed automatically. Perform the following steps:
 - a. Enter your new password in the New Password field.
 - b. Enter your new password again in the Confirm Password field.
 - c. Click OK to change your password or click Exit to close the dialog box and quit Workspace without changing your password. If you made any errors, after you click OK you will be asked to re-enter the information. If you entered all of the information correctly, your password is changed to the new password that you specified.

Remote and Virtual Desktop Environments

[Added: 8.5.109.16]

You might work in an environment that uses Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI) to run Workspace. This means that when you start Workspace, it is displayed on your screen, but it is not actually running on your workstation, it is running on a remote machine.

In VDI environments, your administrator installed the Workspace Standalone SIP Endpoint on your workstation before you logged in, or, you were instructed to install it by clicking on an installation hyperlink in an email or other document.

When you start your workstation, the Workspace Standalone SIP Endpoint automatically launches and

the Workspace SIP Endpoint icon () is displayed in your system tray. Until you log in to Workspace, this icon is grey.

After you launch Workspace, the Workspace SIP Endpoint icon turns red (22) to indicate that it is active.

Troubleshooting Workspace SIP Endpoint

In the event that your Workspace environment loses connection to the Workspace SIP Endpoint, a message might be displayed asking you to start the Workspace SIP Endpoint application. You can start the Workspace SIP Endpoint by selecting the Workspace SIP Endpoint application in the **Start** menu of your workstation.

Log In

If you are instructed to do so, you can stop the Workspace SIP Endpoint by right-clicking on the icon in the system tray and then selecting **Exit** from the pop-up menu.

Related Information

• Login help

Main Window Basics

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Main Window docking and auto-hide features.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Docking the Main Window
- Auto-hiding the Main Window

Main Window Overview

Link to video

Main Window Tips & Tricks

Link to video

Resizing the Main Window

Link to video

Docking the Main Window

If your administrator has enabled these features, you can dock the Workspace Main Window toolbar at the top of your desktop (monitor display) so that it is always accessible at the top of your display. If you turn on the auto-hide feature, the Main Window toolbar "rolls up" to reveal your entire desktop area.

Lesson: Docking the Main Window

Purpose: To dock the Workspace Main Window at the top of your desktop.

Prerequisites

- Your workstation is running a supported operating system.
- Your workstation has a supported browser application installed.
- You are configured as an agent.
- Workspace is installed on your workstation.
- You are logged in to Workspace.

Start

1. Click and hold on the Workspace Main Window title bar.

2. Drag the title bar to the top of your display, double-click the title bar, or click Maximize. The Main Window will automatically become docked to the top of your desktop display area. When the Main Window is docked, your effective desktop area is reduced by the width of the Main Window. Any open windows, including maximized windows, on your desktop are moved down to accommodate the Workspace Main Window. When the Main Window is docked, the Minimize and Maximize buttons are disabled.

Tip

To move the Main Window to the top of your display without docking, hold the **Ctrl** key while dragging the title bar.

3. To undock the Main Window, click and drag it away from the top of your display. Your desktop area returns to full size and the Workspace Main Window returns to the size it was before you docked it.

Auto-hiding the Main Window

Lesson: Auto-hiding the Main Window

Purpose: To hide the Workspace Main Window when it is docked to increase the size of the desktop work area.

Important

If another toolbar that is docked at the top of the screen is already in auto-hide mode, you cannot enable the Workspace Main Window auto-hide mode. If you try to enable the auto-hide mode, the following message is displayed: "You cannot auto-hide the Main Window here. Another window is already in auto-hide mode on this edge of your display."

Prerequisites

- Your workstation is running a supported operating system.
- Your workstation has a supported browser application installed.
- You are configured as an agent.
- Workspace is installed on your workstation.
- You are logged in to Workspace.
- You have docked your Main Window.

Start

1. When the Workspace Main Window is docked, you can choose to enable the auto-hide feature. Select

Auto-Hide the Main Window from the **Main Menu** or from the Workspace menu in the System Tray. In Auto-Hide Mode, the Workspace Main Window is hidden at the top of the display and the desktop area returns to full size when Workspace is not the active application.

- 2. To hide the Workspace Main Window, click your desktop or in another application window.
- 3. To display the Workspace Main Window when it is hidden, do one of the following actions:
 - Click the Workspace Task Button in the Task Bar
 - · Move your mouse pointer to the top of your desktop display area
- 4. To disable the auto-hide feature, de-select **Auto-Hide the Main Window** from the **Main Menu** or from the Workspace menu in the System Tray.

Related Information

• Main Window help: This article includes detailed information about all the options for customizing the appearance and behavior of the Main Window, including what to do if Workspace always covers other windows.

Manage Your Status

[Modified: 8.5.108.11, 8.5.139.06]

In this lesson, you will learn how to manage your status in the Main Window. This lesson contains the following section:

• Going Ready

Link to video

Warning

- **Inactivity Timeout**: You might be locked out of Workspace and have your status set to Not Ready if you do not use your keyboard or mouse for an inactivity period that is defined by your administrator. If you are locked out of Workspace, you must reauthenticate and reset your status to Ready to receive new interaction. For more information, see the Inactivity Timeout topic in the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.
- Locking your workstation: If you lock your workstation with or without first setting your status to Not Ready, your administrator might have set up your account to automatically change to Not Ready, with or without a Not Ready Reason. When you unlock your workstation, your status will remain in the Not Ready state until you set it to Ready. [Added: 8.5.139.06]

Going Ready

To begin accepting interactions, you must set your status to Ready. The following procedure describes how to set your status to Ready, so that you can receive interactions.

Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window

Purpose: To set your status to Ready, so that you can receive interactions.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- (SIP only) Plug in your USB headset. If you login to a SIP Voice channel, Workspace checks to determine whether the USB headset that you are configured to use is plugged in. If it is not, you will be logged in to Workspace but not to the SIP Voice channel. Ensure that you plug in your USB Headset to use the SIP Voice channel.

Workspace detects when your USB headset is plugged in or unplugged and will set your status

accordingly. If your USB headset is not plugged in a message will be displayed.

Tip

Some environments are configured to change your status automatically. For example, your status might change from After Call Work to Ready when you mark an interaction as Done.

Start

- 1. If your status is configured to be set to Ready by default, you receive interactions that are routed to you as soon as you log in.
- 2. Otherwise, click the Status icon to change your status to Ready (see the Example of a Status menu figure), so that inbound interactions can be routed to you.



You can also choose to set your status to a different Not Ready Reason, such as:

- Not Ready
- Not Ready Lunch
- Not Ready Break
- After Call Work

The Not Ready Reasons that are displayed in your Global Status menu depend on how this menu has been configured by your system administrator. In most cases, if you have set your status to one of the Not Ready states, inbound interactions cannot be routed to you.

Warning

When you are handling an interaction, the system interrupts the display of the amount of time that you are in

the current state. Warning: If, while you are handling an interaction for a given channel, you set your status to either Not Ready, Not Ready - <reason>, or After Call Work (ACW), the system does not display the amount of time that you are in that state until the interaction is complete. This feature enables your break or ACW time to be displayed according to recorded statistics.

3. You can check your ready status by placing your mouse pointer over the Status icon (see the Status Summary ToolTip figure).

● SIP 5321 Conditionally Ready (00: Logged in since 10:50 Al Using Place_5321 Last user connection on	:00:27) M 2/14/2014 12:12:32 PM
C voice:	l Not Ready (00:00:59)
instant messaging:	Ready (00:00:27)
O chat:	Ready (00:00:24)
🕒 email:	Ready (00:00:22)
SMS:	l> Not Ready (00:00:58)
webcallback:	Not Ready (00:00:58)

Status Summary ToolTip

The status summary includes your login name, Place, channels, and channel status.

If you are logged in to more than one channel, detailed status for each channel is displayed; otherwise, only your ready status is displayed. You can use the **Global Status** menu to log on to all channels that are logged off, or to log off from all channels without logging out.

If you are participating in an Outbound Campaign and are waiting for authorization to logout, you can check the status of your request in the Status Summary ToolTip.

- 4. If you are logged in to more than one channel, you can manage the ready status of each channel individually by using the My Channels tab in the Workspace of the Main Window.
 - a. In the Main Window, click the Access and use Workspace supporting views button (=) to display the Supporting Views menu, then select My Channels.
 - b. You can use the My Channels tab to log on and log off individual channels (Note: This feature might not be available in your environment). Right-click the channel that you want to update, and set your status by using the Status menu for that channel, similar to what you did in Step 2.

To see what channels are logged on or off, either open the My Channels tab or hover your mouse pointer over the Global Status icon.



You can use the My Channels tab or the Global Status icon to

determine which channels are logged on or off

End

Related Information

Manage Status help

Forward Your Calls

In this lesson, you will learn how to forward your call by using the My Channels tab in the Main Window. This lesson contains the following section:

• Forwarding Calls

Tip

Your administrator might not enable the Forward column in your environment.

Forwarding Calls

You can forward your calls to a different destination.

Lesson: Forwarding your calls to a different destination

Purpose: To specify a different destination to which your calls are directed temporarily and to cancel a forward.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

- 1. To forward calls to a different destination, in the Main Window, Click the Access and use Workspace supporting views button (=) to display the Supporting Views menu, then select My Channels to display the My Channelstab.
- 2. On the media channel that you want to forward, right-click in the Forward column, and select Forward (see the Main Window Workspace My Channels Forward menu figure).

My Channels	My Campaigns	My History	My S	tatistics	Conta
Media	Status		Forward	1	nformation
🕲 voice	🕒 Not Rea	dy (00:30:11)	No Active I	orward	
O instant messa	ging 🕜 Ready	(00:30:09)		Forward	
O chat	Not Rec	dy (00:30:16)		Cancel For	ward

Main Window Workspace My Channels Forward menu

The Forward dialog box is displayed.

- 3. Enter the phone number to which you want to forward your calls.
- 4. Click Apply to set the forward. Click Cancel to return to the My Channels tab without forwarding your calls.

Canceling Your Call Forward

- 5. If you have an active forward set and you want to disable it, in the My Channels tab, right-click in the Forward column and select Cancel Forward. The Cancel Forward dialog box is displayed.
- 6. Click Apply to cancel the forward. To keep the forward active, click Cancel; this action removes the active forward and changes the Forward status to No Active Forward.

End

Related Information

• Forwarding calls help

Find A Contact Or An Internal Target

[Modified: 8.5.118.10]

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to find a contact or an internal target in your contact database or company directory. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Finding an Internal Target or a Contact
- Using Favorites

Finding an Internal Target or a Contact

If you want to find an internal target in your company directory, or if you want to find a contact in the contact database, use the Team Communicator feature of the Workspace Main Window.

The Team Communicator feature enables you to find an internal target or a contact by entering basic information about that contact, such as name, phone number, or email address. Use the filtering and sorting functions to quickly find the person that you want to contact. Save the contact as a favorite to find the contact even more quickly the next time that you want to contact them.

The procedures in this lesson demonstrate using the Team Communicator to start a voice interaction; however, the lessons are applicable to any media that an agent is configured to use. These lessons focus on initiating voice interactions; however, you can use these same techniques to create a new email, send an IM, or transfer any type of interaction.

Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target

[Modified: 8.5.118.10]

Purpose: To find an internal target in the corporate directory.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

Start

1. In the Main Window, click in the Team Communicator Quick Search field (see the Main Window Team Communicator control and Quick Search field figure).



The Quick Search field is a universal lookup tool. It might be configured to provide lookup in the Universal Contact Server or simply internal target lookup.

The Team Communicator is available in other windows, such as the Voice Interaction window and the E-Mail Interaction window, in which it can be used to find conference and transfer targets. The actions that are available to you depend upon which window you are using, which role you are assigned, and what information is available about the target.

- Enter the name, telephone number, or other information about the team member or other internal target whom you want to find. As you enter text, Workspace searches the internal and contact database and lists potential matches. A pop-up view lists potential contacts and indicates the status of each internal target. Click the X to clear the search field. Below the Quick Search field are the following five controls (see the Main Window Team Communicator control and Quick Search field figure), from left to right:
 - Search All—Click to select from all matching internal targets and contacts.
 - Show and Search My Favorites—Click to show in the list only contacts/internal targets that either you or your system administrator has flagged as favorites.
 - Show and Search My Recents—Click to select from the last 1 to 10 contacts/internal targets whom you have contacted directly. Workspace might be configured by your administrator to store and display recent calls, including missed calls, in the Team Communicator view. When this feature is specified, recent voice interactions are displayed in the Team Communicator with a specific visual indicator (in/out/missed), and the tooltip for each record display additional information about the corresponding call event (for example: call type, call timestamp, and missed status, if applicable).
 - Filter by Type—Click to search by type, including Agent, Agent Group, Contact, Queue, Routing Point, and Skill (see Step 3).
 - Sort Results by Type/Categories—Click to arrange the search results by type/category.
- 3. Do one of the following to find an internal target:
 - Use the Filter Type drop-down list to filter the internal targets by type.



Example of Team Communicator search results with Agent filtering

The filters that you see might include the following:

- All Types—Show all contacts and internal targets that contain the specified search criteria.
- Contact—Show contacts that contain the specified search criteria.
- Agent—Show only agents that contain the specified search criteria.
- Skill—Show only skills that contain the specified search criteria.
- Agent Group—Show only agent groups that contain the specified search criteria.
- Queue—Show only queues that contain the specified search criteria.
- Interaction Queue—Show only interaction queues that contain the specified search criteria.

- Routing Point—Show only Routing Points that contain the specified search criteria.
- Toggle sorting by type/category on or off by clicking the Sort Results by Type/Categories folder icon:
- 4. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the icon of the internal target for whom you are searching (see the Internal target Action menu figure).



Internal target Action menu

To perform an action, do one of the following:

- Select the type of internal interaction that you want to launch:
 - Voice interaction (see Calling an internal target)
 - Voicemail call you might be able to call the voicemail box of an agent or agent group by selecting the Voicemail icon (^{OO}). [Added: 8.5.118.10]
 - Instant Messaging (IM) interaction (see Handle Internal Instant Messaging)
- Select Add to Favorites to add the contact to your list of favorite contacts.
- Place your mouse pointer over the contact icon to view additional contact information.

End

Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact

Purpose: To find a contact in the contact database.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have a connection to the contact database.
- You are configured for outbound communication.

Start

1. In the Main Window, click the Team Communicator Quick Search field (see the Main Window Team Communicator control and Quick Search field figure).



Main Window Team Communicator control and Quick Search field

The Quick Search field is a universal lookup tool. You must be configured for outbound communication to use the Team Communicator for lookup in Universal Contact Server.

 Enter the name, telephone number, or other information about the contact with whom you want to communicate. As you enter text, Workspace searches the internal and contact database and lists potential matches. A pop-up view lists potential contacts and indicates the status of each internal target.

Below the Quick Search field are the following five controls (see the Main Window Team Communicator control and Quick Search field figure), from left to right:

- Search All—Click to select from all matching internal targets and contacts.
- Show and Search My Favorites—Click to show in the list only contacts/internal targets that are flagged as favorites by either you or your system administrator.
- Show and Search My Recents—Click to select from the last 1 to 10 contacts/internal targets whom you have contacted directly. Workspace might be configured to display recently missed calls; if so, calls that were directed to you that you did not answer are also displayed.
- Filter by Type—Click to search by type, including Agent, Agent Group, Contact, Queue, Routing Point, and Skill (see Step 3).
- Sort Results by Type/Categories—Click to arrange the search results by type/category.

3. Do one of the following to find the contact:

• Use the Filter Type drop-down list to view only contacts by selecting Contact.



Example of Team Communicator search results with Contact filtering

The filters that you see might include the following:

- All Types—Show all contacts and internal targets that contain the specified search criteria.
- Contact—Show contacts that contain the specified search criteria.

- Agent—Show only agents that contain the specified search criteria.
- Skill—Show only skills that contain the specified search criteria.
- Agent Group—Show only agent groups that contain the specified search criteria.
- Queue—Show only queues that contain the specified search criteria.
- Interaction Queue—Show only interaction queues that contain the specified search criteria.
- Routing Point—Show only Routing Points that contain the specified search criteria.
- Toggle sorting by type on or off by clicking the Sort by Types/Categories folder icon: 🐣
- View only contacts by clicking the Matching Contacts link:

1 Matching Internal Target(s) 31 Matching Contact(s)

4. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is next to the contact for whom you are searching (see the Contact Action menu figure).



Contact Action menu

To perform an action, do one of the following:

- Select the telephone number to launch a Voice interaction (see Lesson: Calling a contact).
- Select the email address to launch a new email interaction (see Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact).
- Select the SMS number to launch an SMS interaction (see Lesson: Creating an outbound SMS interaction).
- Select Add to Favorites to add the contact to your list of favorite contacts.
- Place your mouse pointer over the contact icon to view additional contact information.

End

Using Favorites

You can designate internal targets and contacts as "favorites" by using the Action Menu of the Team Communicator. A *favorite* is an internal target or contact whom you call frequently, or whom you want to be able to find quickly.

When you designate an internal target or contact as a favorite, you might be configured to assign that contact to a favorite category. Favorite categories might be pre-defined by your administrator, or you might be configured to create your own categories. Corporate favorites are read-only.

If you are using the Team Communicator in an interaction window, the corporate favorites that you see might be different from the corporate favorites that are displayed in the Team Communicator in the Main Window. Your administrator might configure your system to display corporate favorites that are related to the interaction.

Lesson: Creating and using favorites in the Team Communicator

Purpose: To designate as a favorite a contact or an internal target whom you call frequently, or whom you want to be able to find quickly.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. Find an internal target or contact (refer to the Finding a contact by using Team Communicator figure) by using the Team Communicator (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact).



Finding a contact by using Team Communicator

2. Open the internal target or contact Action Menu and select Add to Favorites (refer to the Contact Action Menu Add to Favorites option figure).

5	Genesys • Workspace		
mail.	dom ×		
1	★ 🕒 Contact	*	*
فر	🗕 Avril Mai		2=
<u>ر</u>	Call (5555555)		1
<u>ب</u>	Call (3616)	=	
≃	New E-mail (AMai@mail.dom)		<u>*</u>
≃	New E-mail (mail@mail.dom)	*	2=
	New SMS (5555555)		
	New SMS (3616)		<u> </u>
*	Add to Favorites		

Contact Action Menu Add to Favorites option

The New Favorite dialog box is displayed (refer to the New Favorite dialog box figure).

Edit Favorite		×
Category:		-
First Name:	Avril	
Last Name:	Mai	
Phone Number:	3616	
	5555555	
E-mail Address:	A_Mai@mail.dom mail@mail.dom	
	ок	Cancel

New Favorite dialog box

- 3. (Optional) The New Favorite dialog box enables you to specify a category for your new favorite. Do one of the following:
 - Select a pre-defined category from the Category drop-down list (refer to the Specifying a category in the New Favorite dialog box figure). Pre-defined categories might be defined by your administrator, or you might have created one previously.
 - Create a new favorite category. In the Category drop-down list (refer to the Specifying a category in the New Favorite dialog box figure), enter a new category name.

Category:	Gold	Ν	*
First Name:	Avril	4	
Last Name:	Mai		
Phone Number:	3616		
	5555555		
E-mail Address:	A_Mai@mail.dom		
	mail@mail.dom		

Specifying a category in the New Favorite dialog box

4. Click OK to create a new favorite. Click Cancel to close the New Favorite dialog box without creating a new favorite. If you created a new favorite, she or he will be displayed with a star next to the name of the internal target or contact (refer to the Contact designated as a favorite in the Team Communicator figure).



Contact designated as a favorite in the Team Communicator

5. In the Team Communicator, to view only favorites whom you have specified (🔀) or who have been

specified by your administrator () click the Favorites filter button () in the Team Communicator control panel (refer to the Favorite filtering in the Team Communicator figure).

Senesys [.]	• Works	space	
mail.dom	×		
1 🗙 🗉	Contact	-	2
📞 🚽 Avril Mai	k	*	2
📞 🚽 Ravi Pac	he	*	1

Favorite filtering in the Team Communicator

6. To view your favorites by category, click both the Favorites filter button and the Categories button (

(refer to the Favorites are sorted into the categories that either you or your administrator has defined (refer to the Favorites sorted by category in the Team Communicator figure).

Senesys • Workspace	1
mail.dom ×	
ᆂ ★ 🗉 Contact	- 1
Gold	Sorting by type
📞 👻 Avril Mai	* 🖽
Silver	~
📞 🚽 Ravi Pache	* 🖽

Favorites sorted by category in the Team Communicator

Favorites () from the Action Menu. Notes:

- You cannot edit or remove Corporate Favorites. These favorites are controlled by your administrator.
- If you added a target as a Personal Favorite and then your administrator adds this same target as a corporate favorite, that target will be designated as a Corporate Favorite in the flat view, and as both a Personal Favorite and Corporate Favorite in the categorized view.

End

Related Information

Team Communicator help

Handling Interactions

[Modified: 8.5.146.06]

These lessons show you how to handle interactions of various types. Some types, such as Voice and Chat, enable you to transfer, conference, or consult with another target in your contact center. The **Common Interaction Management** tasks enable you to use functionality that is common to many of the interaction types.

This topic contains the following sub-topics:

- Voice Interactions
 - Handle Voice and Voice with Video Interactions
 - Handle A Voice Consultation
 - Transfer A Voice Call
 - Conference A Voice Call
 - Record Interactions
- Callback
 - Handle Genesys Callback Interactions
 - Handle Web Callback Interactions
- Outbound Campaigns
 - Handle Outbound-Campaign Voice Interactions
- IM Interactions
 - Handle Internal Instant Messaging
- Chat Interactions
 - Handle A Chat Interaction
 - Handle A Chat Consultation
 - Transfer A Chat Interaction
 - Conference A Chat Interaction
 - Handle an Altocloud Chat Interaction
- E-mail Interactions
 - Handle An E-Mail Interaction
- SMS Interactions
 - Handle An SMS Interaction

- Transfer An SMS Interaction
- Social Media Interactions
 - Handle A Twitter Interaction
 - Handle A Facebook Interaction
 - Handle An RSS Interaction
- Workitems
 - Handle A Workitem Interaction
- Advanced Media Blending
 - Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation
- Common Interaction Management
 - Edit Case Information And Record Information
 - Using The Standard Response Library
 - Apply Disposition Codes
 - Using The Interaction Bar

This video shows you how to manage the display of the interaction, the contact information and history, and the standard responses in the Interaction Window.

Link to video

Tip

Minimizing and Restoring the Disposition Code and Note views. If you need more space in the Interaction view you can minimize or restore the Disposition tab and Note tab area by clicking the chevron. [Added: 8.5.146.06]

		G 1011122	\sim		© ≌≵ 6	a 🛎 🛛	Vanessa Wan	.0	0.18.58					=
Case Info	rmation							+ •	0	Any Ke	word Search •	Search		۹ 🖸
Origin:	Outbound	email							8	View A	Il Responses			
* Avri		Outbound							NTN	R 1	E .			≡ □
		Candard	in days						4	Respon	se			Shortcut
To.	A MailOn	center «maniga	ici devi					444.00		12	Dald Code			
tubiect:	-Consider	nan born,						ADD CC 4	-	12	Financial service			1 al
										1.7	Errors in tran	sactions		- 1
HTML	• Ti	shoma =	9 -	Bi	<u>u</u> = =	= 0 0 F					First cont	lact		#Welcome
Dear Aut	rl Mai.										E Wrong an	nount		- 1
Man should														
corporat	that the t	transaction is con stead of the local	ect. The retailer	confusion	here is due to transaction (o the fact that the i description . We th	merchant used	its			Unidentified	ransaction		
corporat transacti instead of	that the t e name in on is come of the local	transaction is con stead of the local act. The confusio I retailer name in	ect. The retailer here is the trac	e confusion name in th due to the staction der	here is due to transaction of fact that the cription	o the fact that the description . We th merchant used its	merchant used tink that the corporate nam	its e		- 1		transaction		-1
we trink corporate transactionstead of We think corporate	that the t e name in on is come of the local t that the t e name in	transaction is con stead of the local ect. The confusio I retailer name in transaction is con stead of the local	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the saction des confusion name in th	here is due to a transaction (fact that the cription . here is due to a transaction (o the fact that the i description . We th merchant used its to the fact that the i description .	merchant used hink that the corporate nam merchant used	e IS			Unidentified	transaction		
we think corporat transacti instead o We think corporat	that the transme in on is corre of the local that the t e name in	transaction is con stead of the local sct. The confusio I retailer name in transaction is con stead of the local	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the saction des confusion name in th	here is due to a transaction of fact that the cription , here is due to a transaction of	o the fact that the description . We the merchant used its to the fact that the description .	merchant used iink that the corporate nam merchant used	e IS	RESP		Unidentified	ransaction e merchant name lact satment	•	-
vertrink corporati transacti instead o We think corporati	that the t e name in on is corre of the local t that the t e name in citions	transaction is con stead of the local et. The confusion I retailer name in transaction is con stead of the local Note	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in the i due to the rsaction des e confusion name in th	here is due to e transaction (fact that the cription , here is due to e transaction (a the fact that the description . We th merchant used its a the fact that the description .	merchant used link that the corporate nam merchant used	е в 13 Га	RESPONS	-	Unidentified (transaction ensection frame lact satment		
ver trins corporati transacti instead o We think corporati Dispo Dispo	that the t e name in on is corre of the local t that the t e name in eitions sition Cod	transaction is con stead of the local ct. The confusion i retailer name in transaction is con stead of the local Note	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the reaction der confusion name in th	here is due to a transaction fact that the cription . here is due to a transaction of	o the fact that the description . We th merchant used its o the fact that the description .	merchant used link that the corporate nam merchant used	e B R	RESPONSES	-	Unidentified (Memoir First cont ForkutomatedTim Forwarding HTML	transaction enverchant name tact satment		
vie trifa corporat transacti instead o We think corporat Dispo Dispo Sele	that the t e name int on is corre of the local that the t e name int eitions sition Cod ected: Rea	transaction is con stead of the local ct. The confusion i retailer name in transaction is con stead of the local Note le d X	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the reaction des e confusion name in th	here is due to bransaction fact that the cription . here is due to a transaction of transaction of tran	o the fact that the description . We th merchant used its o the fact that the description .	merchant used link that the corporate nam merchant used	e its R	RESPONSES		Unidentified I	transaction er merchant name lact eatment		
vie corporat transacti instead o We think corporat Dispo Dispo Sele	k that the t e name int on is corry of the local k that the t e name int sitions sition Cod scted: Rea ck Search	transaction is con staad of the local ct. The confusio i retailer name in transaction is con staad of the local Note le d X	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the rsaction der rsaction der e confusion name in th	here is due to a transaction of fact that the oription . here is due to a transaction of	o the fact that the description. We the merchant used its to the fact that the description .	merchant used link that the corporate nam merchant used	its e its [5] Q	RESPONSES	Alternati	Unidentified I First cont First cont Forwarding HTML we merchant na	ransaction e merchand name lact satment		
vie trina corporat transacti linstead o We think corporat Dispo Dispo Sele	that the t e name into on is corre- of the local c that the t e name into eltions eltions eltions contect: Rea- ck Search image into the top into the top is the top into the top is the top is the top is the top is the top is the top is the eltions is the top is the top is the top is the eltions is the top is the top is the top is the top is the eltions is the top is the	transaction is con staad of the local ct. The confusio I retailer name in transaction is con staad of the local Note le d ×	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the saction der confusion name in th	here is due to a transaction of fact that the cription . here is due to a transaction of	o the fact that the description . We the merchant used its o the fact that the description .	merchant used link that the corporate nam merchant used	its e its Q	RESPONSES	Alternati	Unidentified 1 First cont Forwarding with the the transition is Contact the transit is that the transit	ransaction encoded deared act satment same* "+Conta sattion is correc	ct LastNam t The certi	e S., stion here is
ve this corporat transacti instead o We think corporat Dispo Sele Oui	k that the t e name in ion is correct of the local k that the t e name in elitions elitions elition Cod ected: Rea ck Search Email Forw	transaction is constand of the local stand of the local installer name is on stansaction is on stand of the local Note le d X	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the saction der confusion name in th	here is due to transaction - fact that the crypton - here is due to transaction -	b the fact that the description . We the merchant used its othe fact that the description .	merchant used hink that the corporate nam merchant used	its e its Q	RESPONSES	Alternational due to insteam	Unidentified 1 Atendor First cont Forwarding HTML we merchant na \$ Contact Firsth & that the trans- the fact that the is the contact for the because the fact that the because the fact that the because the fact that the forward forward the fact that the because the fact that the fact that the forward forward the fact that the fact that the forward the fact that the fact that the fact that the forward forward the fact that the fact that the fact that the forward fact that the fact that the fact that the fact that the forward fact that the fact the fact that the fact that the fact that the fact the fact that the fact that the fact that the fact t	ransaction lact satment ame dame** "+Conta action is correc e merchant use taker name is	ct LastNam t. The confidence of the second	e S». sision here is te name
vve tilfa corporati transacti instead o We think corporati Dispo Sele Qui	t that the t e name in on is correct of the local that the t e name in elitions elitions elition Cod ected: Rea ck Search Forw Read	transaction is constand of the local stand of the local installer name is no stand of the local Note le d ×	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th due to the soction dee sochusion name in th	here is due to transaction of fact that the cryption . here is due to transaction of	b the fact that the description. We the merchant used its othe fact that the description .	merchant used sink that the corporate nam merchant used		RESPONSES	Alternati Dear < We this due to instead descrip	Unidentified (Attenue) First cont ForAutomatedTin Forwarding HTML we merchant na 6 Contact FirstN what the transt the fact that the of the local retition .	ransaction terment tex	ct LastNam t. The confu its corpora e transactio	e S». ssion here is te name in
ve titla corporati instead o We think corporat Dispo Dispo Sele Out	k that the t e name in ion is corm of the loca t that the t e name in eitions sition Cod sition Cod	transaction is constand of the local stand of the local installer name is on stand of the local Note le di x l and to AS and	ect. The retailer here is the tran ect. The retailer	e confusion name in th staction des social extension e confusion name in th	here is due to transaction of fact that the cryption . here is due to transaction of	b the fact that the description . We the merchant used its othe fact that the description .	merchant used inix that the corporate nam merchant used	its e its Q	RESPONSES	Alternation of the second seco	Undentified 1 Attenue First confort	ransaction In nerobaci face act atment ame same	ct LastNam t. The confu lifs corpora e transactio	e Sa. szion here is tie name n

Related Information

- Voice Tasks Overview help
- Callback interaction help
- Chat Tasks Overview help
- Email Tasks Overview help
- SMS and MMS Interactions help
- Workitems help
- Using Workspace Plugin for Skype for Business help
- Facebook Interaction help
- Twitter Interaction help
- RSS Interaction help

- Internal IM help
- Outbound Campaigns Overview help
- Workspace Components, Features, and Controls help

Using the Interaction Bar

[**Modified:** 8.5.116.10]

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Interaction Bar in the Main Window to manage one or more interactions.

This lesson contains the following section:

Managing Interactions

Managing Interactions

The Interaction Bar enables you to use a simplified control set to handle one or more interactions without having to make the interaction window active. It also enables you to restore, or bring to the front, any active interaction window.

The Interaction Bar is displayed at the bottom of the Main Window whenever you have one or more active interactions. Each interaction is represented by a control bar. If you are engaged with a contact in more than one simultaneous interaction, such as simultaneous Chat and Voice interactions, both interactions are represented by the same control bar. You can use the control bar to perform basic actions that are specific to the interaction type, such as ending a call.

liii Genesys + Workspace	O Kaletowik v	£٠	• •	- 1	a ×
◎< ==== 0 === 0 0 0 === 0 === 2				\geq	≡
Care information			•	•	ŝ
Digin Colourd of to Ari Ma					5
 Aveling & Conversed 			80.0	B (1)	
Separations Note					
					ų,
					Siravo
			54		

Main Window displaying the Interaction Bar for a voice interaction

Working on Multiple Interactions at the Same Time

[Added: 8.5.116.10]

You might be allowed to work on more than one interaction at the same time. Your administrator might set up your system so that new interactions interrupt the current interaction that you are working on, or your administrator might set up Workspace so that when you accept a new interaction while you are working on another interaction, the new interaction opens in the background and your current interaction keeps the focus.

This behavior might be set up differently for each of your media channels. For example, a newly accepted email interaction might appear in the background and newly accepted voice interactions

might receive the focus.

Tip

- Newly created outbound/outgoing interactions always receive the focus.
- When interactions are accepted, but are displayed in the background, your reporting/ focus time calculations might not begin until you select the interaction window and give it the focus.

Lesson: Managing multiple interactions by using the Interaction Bar

Purpose:

• To manage interaction windows and interaction functionality from the Main Window.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You are handling one or more interactions.
- You are using the Main Window view.

Start

1. Active interactions are displayed in the Interaction Bar at the bottom of the Main Window (see the Main Window displaying the Interaction Bar at the bottom figure). Interactions are "docked" in the Interaction Bar. The interactions appear as boxes that are identified by a name, number, or other contact information, as well as an icon that represents the interaction type (for example: voice, chat, or email).

🛞 🖥 Kanifundus 🔘 100000 🖳 🛒 🐐 - 🟦 -	Racifulte 🔕 2020.07	Kabelawa 🕲 020210
Main Window displaying the	Interaction E	Bar at the bottom

Main window displaying the interaction bar at the bottom

Click the control bar for an interaction to give it the focus. All other open interactions are collapsed to the Interaction Bar. If you place your mouse pointer over an interaction in the Interaction Bar, two things occur:

- A tooltip is displayed that summarizes the content or the attached data for the interaction. The tooltip also includes a summary of all the interactions that are involved in this thread, as well as any consultation interactions that are related to the interaction.
- The media icon in the interaction is a button that activates when you place your mouse pointer near it. If you click the media icon, Workspace switches to that interaction without opening the interaction view.

Senesys + Worksonde	0.intile - 🗶 -	۰ 0	- 0 ×
◎ 🔤 🔂 🔂 🛃 🕹 🗠 🕒 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉			≡
3617 Connected 00:04.13			

Use the switch media button to switch media without opening the interaction view.

Entries in the Interaction Bar flash (or blink) when specific events occur that might require your immediate attention. Chat, SMS Session, and IM interactions flash when a new message is received.

Tip

Your system might be configured so that all interaction control bars are automatically collapsed in the Interaction Bar. This might be done to enable you to see a third party application or other content in the Main Window before or during the handling of an interaction. To display an interaction view for a collapsed interaction, click the control bar. **Added:** 8.5.106.19

2. If you click another interaction box, it becomes active and changes color, and controls are displayed (see the Main Window, displaying an active email interaction in the Interaction Bar figure).

Ravi Pache O 00.03.29	Ravi Pache 🖨 000257 🖼 🚰 🔀 - 💐 🖨 🗾 🔽 - 🚺
Case Information Origin: Inbound email Call Type: Support	Pari Pache Pari Pache Pari Pache Pari Pache Pari Pache Pari Pari Pari Pari Pari Pari Pari Pari
Priority: 0 Reason: Broken TV Segment: Gold	Te: webgines are When I ham on my TV there is no picture. How do I return it for a replacement? RP

Main Window, displaying an active email interaction in the Interaction Bar

- 3. To control the interaction from the Interaction Bar, click the interaction box, and then use the controls. Different controls are available for different interaction types (see the Interaction Bar interaction boxes by type table). Refer to the interaction-specific chapters of the *Workspace User's Guide* and the *Workspace 8.5 Help* for information about the functionality of each control.
- 4. Each interaction can be displayed in any of the following three modes:
 - 1. Collapsed to the Interaction Bar
 - 2. Pinned
 - 3. Floating

Important Your administrator has the option to specify which modes are available for each channel. For example, if you are an email-only agent, you might be enabled to use only the pinned mode; if you are a voice-only agent, you might be enabled to use only the floating mode.

Click the small colored bar on the left of the interaction control to toggle between pinned mode and floating mode. Each interaction can be set to pinned or floating mode independently.

• **Pinned mode** — the interaction view is displayed in the Main View below the Interaction Bar, and all other views, such as My Channels, are hidden. Contact view and Response view are accessible.

fel Genesys + Workspace	O Afeitais +	£٠	• •	- 6	з×
⊗ 🔤					≣
Case Information			•	-	8
- Julius & Constel				b (1)	R.
-					
				-	

Main Window Interaction Bar with a pinned interaction

Link to video

• **Floating mode** — the interaction view is displayed as a small view that is attached to the bottom of the Interaction Bar. If other interactions are currently open in pinned mode or if one the workspace views, such as My Channels is currently displayed, they will appear dimmed behind the floating interaction view.



Main Window Interaction Bar with a floating interaction

Link to video

Interaction Bar interaction boxes by type

Interaction Type	Interface
Chat	Ravi Pache 🔘 00:03:48 🌄 چ र 두 🤽 र
E-Mail	Ravi Pache 😂 00:03:20 🎦 🚰 🔀 - 🏹 - 🖶 🔽 🚣 -
Instant Message	Kate Lewis 🗩 00:00:27 🙊
SMS	Ravi Pache 🕕 00:01:32 📑 🗸 🖌
Voice	Ravi Pache 🕑 00:00:20 🕊 🥲 🤩 - 🌿 - 🛄 🌻 - 😢 - 🤽 -

End

Related Information

• Interaction Bar help

Handle A Voice Call

In this lesson, you will learn how to accept an inbound voice interaction by using Workspace. Also, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to call a contact or an internal target.

The Team Communicator enables you to find a contact or an internal target, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call a contact or an internal target, email a contact, initiate a conference call, or transfer a call.



Tip

Workspace might be configured by your administrator to store and display recent calls, including missed calls, in the Team Communicator view. When this feature is specified, recent voice interactions are displayed in the Team Communicator with a specific visual indicator (in/out/missed), and the tooltip for each record displays additional information about the corresponding call event (for example: call type, call timestamp, and missed status, if applicable) and calls that were directed to you that you did not answer are displayed in the Team Communicator when you click **Show and Search Recent**.

This chapter contains the following sections:

- Receiving a Voice Interaction
- Making a Voice Call
- Handling a Voice Call with Video

Tip

Refer to Handle Outbound-Campaign Voice Interactions, to use the Voice interaction view to handle Outbound Campaign calls.

Receiving a Voice Interaction

If you are the selected internal target for an inbound interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it (answer it), the interaction window is displayed. The interaction window contains information about the call and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Lesson: Handling an inbound voice interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- Your status is Ready for the voice-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the inbound interaction.

Start

1. Your hard phone or soft phone rings, and a preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view (see the Voice Interaction Preview interactive notification figure).

🕓 Avril Mai - Workspace	
Case Information	^
Origin: Inbound call to 4001 Queue: 4001	
Accept	Reject

Voice Interaction Preview interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call information, including contact information and call metrics. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data regarding the call.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the call is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12] Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to answer the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time-out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the call is answered in your hard phone or soft phone, and the Voice Interaction window is displayed (see the Voice Interaction window figure).

Senesys • Workspace			Ø SIP 5321 •	• £ • 0 •	
⊗ 🚺 Arri Mai 🕒 00:00:28 ೮ ೮ ೮ - ೮- ⅲ 募	- હ	* <u>#</u> *			Ξ
Case Information + 🔸	0	Information Histor	y .		
Origin: Inbound call to 4001 Querve: 4001 • Avril Mai 🕫 Connected 関 (6)	CONTACT	G 💿 Reset 🎝			
		Title	(None) *		- 1
Dispositions Note		First Name •	Antil	×	- 1
Disposition Code		Last Name •	Mai	×	
None Accentral		Phone Number			
Rejected		5555555	(None) -	X Primary	- 1
 Transferred 	Æ	3616	Mobile •	× 🔿	
	SPONSES	Add Phone Number	•		
		A_Mai@mail.dom	Personal -	X Primary	
		mail@mail.dom	Work address 👻	× O	
		client2@cust.dev	(None) -	× O	- 1
		Add E-mail Address	•		

Voice Interaction window

- 4. You can use the Voice Interaction window to do the following:
 - View contact records. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
 - View contact history. See Managing Contact History.
 - Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
 - Launch the Team Communicator. See Starting a Voice Conference, Transferring a Voice Call, and Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
 - Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.
 - Use the Note to add information about the interaction to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
 - View and edit the case information for the interaction. See Managing Contact History.
 - Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.

5. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress for the current contact figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress for the current contact

6. You might be configured to be notified if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.

	3)	
3 Rec	ent Interactions in last day	y:
2 C.	2/21/2014 4:08:46 PM	
¥ 🗹	2/21/2014 12:55:59 PM	Open new account
¥ 🗭	2/20/2014 7:26:22 PM	Account login failed

Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day $% \int_{\Omega_{a}}^{\Omega_{a}} \left(\int_{\Omega_{a}}^{\Omega_{a}} \int_{\Omega_$

Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.

- 7. If you connect with the contact successfully, you can do any of the following:
 - Terminate the call (see Step 6).
 - Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
 - Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
 - Start a voice or IM consultation.
 - Conference the call (see Starting a Voice Conference).
 - Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).
 - View and read standard responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
 - For SIP enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Lesson: Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call.
 - Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes.

Tip

- For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.
- For a demonstration of the various call timers, including Total Duration, Hold Duration, and Post Call (After Call Work) Duration that might be available for you to use, see the Call Timers section in the *Workspace 8.5 Help*. [Added: 8.5.111.21]
- 8. When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button.
- 9. If required by your configuration, specify a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction by selecting an outcome from the disposition code drop-down list or radio button list in the Disposition Code view (see Assigning Disposition Codes).
- 10. Click Mark Done.
- 11. If the Voice Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Voice Interaction window after you have clicked Mark Done for each of the active interactions.
- 12. Complete your after-call work.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Lesson: Dealing with a stuck interaction

Purpose: To close the Interaction window if the interaction has become stuck in the system.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- You are unable to close the Interaction window because the interaction has become stuck in the system.

Start

1. If you are unable to close the Interaction window because the interaction has become stuck in the system, right-click the tab in the Interaction window that represents the interaction (see the Force Close This Case menu figure).

	0.01	10 • X	•0	♦→	<u>هر</u>
0	JU:L	Force	Close	this Ca	se

Force Close This Case menu

Select Force Close This Case from the pop-up menu.

2. In the Close Case dialog box, confirm that you want to force-close the interaction (see the Close Case dialog box figure):



Close Case dialog box

- Click Yes to force-close the case. The Interaction window closes. The status of the interaction remains as In Progress in the history until you mark it as Done.
- Click No to cancel the action and return to the Interaction window.
- 3. Complete your after-call work.

End

Making a Voice Call

Workspace enables you to call either an internal target or a contact after you find the target/contact in your company directory by using the Team Communicator feature of the Workspace Main Window.

Tip

Refer to Handle Outbound-Campaign Voice Interactions to use the Voice interaction view to handle Outbound Campaign calls.

This section contains the following lessons:

- Lesson: Calling an internal target
- Lesson: Calling a contact
- Lesson: Directly dialing a contact

Lesson: Calling an internal target

Purpose: To make a voice interaction with an internal target. The Voice Interaction window enables you to view all the information that is necessary to handle a voice interaction with an internal agent. The window contains tabs that enable you to handle more than one interaction simultaneously.

The information that is displayed to you in this view depends on your assigned role and the case information that is available about the internal target.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have found the internal target and have selected an Internal Voice Interaction (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).
Start

- 1. When you choose to call an internal target (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target), the Voice Interaction window opens. The status is Establishing. Wait for the internal target to accept your invitation.
- If the internal target accepts your invitation, the status in the Interaction window changes to Connected (see the Voice Interaction window displaying status as Connected figure). You are now connected to the internal target.

\odot	Kate Lev	vis 🕓	00:00:17	٤	હ	G .	% -		₽.
Case I	nformation								
Origi	n: Internal ca	ill to Kate	Lewis						
- к	ate Lewis 🔇	Conne	cted						
Voice	Interactio	n windo	w displa	ying s	statu	s as Co	nnecte	d	

If the internal target rejects or fails to accept your invitation, then the call status changes to Ended. To try to call the internal target again or to call a different internal target, repeat Step 1.

Тір

You can click the Team Communicator My Recents button to try to call the internal target again. For more information, see the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.

- 3. If you successfully connect with the internal target you can do one of the following:
 - Terminate the call (see Step 4).
 - Put the call on hold, and then resume the call. The call status changes to 0n Hold when you put the call on hold, and then back to Connected when you resume the call.
 - Use the keypad to send DTMF to the internal target.
 - Start a voice or IM consultation.
 - Conference the call (see Starting a Voice Conference).
 - Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).
 - For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call
 - · Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes

Tip

- For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.
- · For a demonstration of the various call timers, including Total Duration, Hold

Duration, and Post Call (After Call Work) Duration that might be available for you to use, see the Call Timers section in the *Workspace 8.5 Help*. [Added: 8.5.111.21]

4. When you have finished speaking with the internal target you can terminate the call or wait for the internal target to terminate the call.

If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button. The call status changes to Ended, and the call is released (see the Voice Interaction window displaying status as Ended figure).

(<u>;</u>)		Kate L	ewis.	٥	00:00:32	~
Case	Info	rmatior	ı			
Orig	jin: I	nternal	call t	o Kate	Lewis	
•	Kate	Lewis	0	nded		
1/-!	Late			P.	and a state of a	

Voice Interaction window displaying status as Ended

- 5. After a call is released, one or more of the following actions might be available to you, depending on your assigned role or the configuration of your system:
 - Click Mark Done to close the Interaction window.
 - Select a disposition (call outcome).

Tip

Your system might be configured so that you cannot click Mark Done until you have selected a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes for more information about Disposition Codes.

After a call has been released and you have completed any required post-call tasks, the Voice Interaction window closes.

End

Lesson: Calling a contact

Purpose: To make a voice interaction with a contact. When you choose to call a contact, the Voice Interaction window is displayed. It enables you to view all the information that is necessary to handle a voice interaction with a contact.

The information that is contained in this view depends on your assigned role and the case information that is available about the contact.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have found the contact and have selected an External Voice Interaction (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact).

Start

- 1. When you choose to call a contact (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact), the Voice Interaction window is displayed. The Status is Establishing. Wait for the contact to accept your invitation.
- 2. If the contact accepts your invitation, the status in the Voice Interaction window changes to Connected (see the Voice Interaction window displaying status as Connected figure). You can now talk to the contact.

Ravi Pa	ache (9	00:00:13	٤	હ	G .	Ľ -	₽.
Case Info	ormation	n						
Origin:	Outbour	nd ca	ll to Ravi	Pache	•			
▼ Ravi	i Pache	0	Connecte	d				

Voice Interaction window displaying status as Connected

If the contact rejects or fails to accept your invitation, the call status changes to Ended (see Step 1).

- 3. If you connect with the contact successfully, you can do one of the following:
 - Terminate the call (see Step 4).
 - Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
 - Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
 - Start a voice or IM consultation.
 - Conference the call (see Starting a Voice Conference).
 - Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).
 - For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call.
 - Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes.

Tip

- For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.
- For a demonstration of the various call timers, including Total Duration, Hold Duration, and Post Call (After Call Work) Duration that might be available for you to use, see the Call Timers section in the *Workspace 8.5 Help*. [Added: 8.5.111.21]

- 4. When you have finished talking to the contact you can terminate the call or wait for the contact to terminate the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button. The call status changes to Ended, and the call is released.
- 5. After a call is released, one or more of the following actions might be available to you, depending on your assigned role:
 - Click Mark Done to close the Interaction window.
 - Select a disposition (call outcome).

Tip

Your system might be configured so that you cannot click Mark Done until you have selected a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes for more information about Disposition Codes.

After a call has been released and you have completed any required post-call tasks, the Voice Interaction window closes.

End

Lesson: Directly dialing a contact

Purpose: To make a voice interaction with a contact by directly dialing a phone number.

When you choose to call a contact, the Voice Interaction window is displayed. It enables you to view all the information that is necessary to handle a voice interaction with a contact.

The information that is contained in this view depends on your assigned role and the case information that is available about the contact.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have the number of the party that you want to call.
- You have found the contact and have selected an External Voice Interaction (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact).

Start

1. In the Main Window or an interaction window, click in the Team Communicator Quick Search field (see the Main Window Team Communicator control and Quick Search field figure).



Main Window Team Communicator control and Quick Search field

2. Enter the telephone number that you want to directly dial (see the Team Communicator displaying a directly dialed number figure).

😂 Genesys 🔸	Workspace	
5555555	×	
👱 ★ 🕒 Al	ll Types	- 😃
C - 5555555		.
📞 🚽 Avril Mai		2=
0 Matching Interna <u>1 Matching Contac</u>	l Target(s) <u>t(s)</u>	

Team Communicator displaying a directly dialed number

As you enter text, Workspace searches the internal and contact database and lists potential matches (see the Team Communicator displaying an unknown directly dialed number figure).

Senesys • Workspace		
3333 <u>3</u> 33 ×		
👤 ★ 🕒 All Types	•	*
C - 3333333		
0 Matching Internal Target(s) 0 Matching Contact(s)		

3. To dial the number, click the phone icon that is next to the number that you entered in the Action menu. If the party is reached, the Voice Interaction window is displayed (see the Voice Interaction window for a directly dialed call figure).



Voice Interaction window for a directly dialed call

4. Handle and complete your call (see Lesson: Calling a contact).

End

Team Communicator displaying an unknown directly dialed number

Handling a Voice Call with Video

Calls that originate from smart phones, tablets, and computers might also contain a video stream sent from the webcam of the device. If you are the selected internal target for an inbound voice with video interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it (answer it), the interaction window is displayed. The interaction window contains information about the call and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Lesson: Handling an inbound voice interaction with video

Purpose: To handle an inbound voice with video interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- Your status is Ready for the voice-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are enabled to receive voice and video interactions.
- You are the internal target for the inbound interaction.

Start

1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view (see the Voice and Video Interaction Preview interactive notification figure).

🕓 Avril Mai - Workspace								
Case Information	^							
Origin: Inbound call to 4001 Queue: 4001								
Accept	Reject							

Voice and Video Interaction Preview interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call information, including contact information and call metrics. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data regarding the call.

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to answer the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time-out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the Voice Interaction view is displayed in the interaction bar (see the Voice and Video Interaction view figure).

Bir Connerge - Wartenpace Damas & marce 12, 12, 12 - 12 - 11 - 1	n n - La -		0.000	-		
Tage desired at a set Tage desired at a set		-				
A LONG BOLLOW BY	18 for term	Annal .		١,	- H	and the second s
	Accession Access		100			A we the
1	A section of the sect					Sharper V
	Tapparas Taripura		10.000 a	1		

Voice and Video Interaction view

Refer to Receiving a Voice Interaction for more information about handling a voice interaction and using the voice controls.

4. If the video stream that is associated with the call is not configured to open automatically, click Start



The video view is displayed in a separate window. Use the following controls during a voice and video call:

- Click to start or stop your video stream component of a video-enabled voice call. Use this feature to prevent the contact from seeing the video stream from your webcam; you will continue to see the video stream from the contact. This has no effect on the voice call. The video stream sends a message to your contact that says "On Hold". If you put the voice call on hold, the video call is also put on hold.
- Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to 0n Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call. When you put the call on hold, the video stream is also put on hold. You and the contact can no longer see each other's video streams. A "Video on Hold" video message is displayed to the contact.
- Click to show or hide in the Video Interaction window the thumbnail view of your video stream.
- E Click to toggle the view of the Video Interaction window between the inbound video stream and the video stream from your webcam.

You can resize or maximize the Video Interaction window by clicking and dragging the edges of the window. Workspace remembers the size and position of the last Video Interaction window that you used.



Workspace Video window



Click **Stop Video**: to close the Video Interaction window. This does not end the call, it only stops the video stream from being displayed and stops sending your video stream to the contact.

- 5. When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button. When you end the voice call, the video stream will also end and the Video Interaction window is closed.
- 6. If required by your configuration, specify a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction by selecting an outcome from the disposition code drop-down list or radio button list in the Disposition Code view (see Assigning Disposition Codes).
- 7. Click Mark Done.
- 8. If the Voice Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Voice Interaction window after you have clicked Mark Done for each of the active interactions.
- 9. Complete your after-call work.

End

Related Information

- Voice Call help
- Video Call help
- Troubleshooting and Frequently Asked Questions

Handle A Voice Consultation

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue) or a contact and start a voice consultation from an interaction window, such as voice, email, and chat. You can also use the first procedure in this lesson to find a contact and start a voice consultation. The second section demonstrates how to handle a Voice Consultation request.

Tip

For a simplified guide to handling consultations, refer to the *Workspace Agent Help*

The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call an internal target or a contact, initiate a conference or consultation, or transfer a call.

Tip

Workspace might be configured by your administrator to store and display recent calls, including missed calls, in the Team Communicator view. When this feature is specified, recent voice interactions are displayed in the Team Communicator with a specific visual indicator (in/out/missed), and the tooltip for each record displays additional information about the corresponding call event (for example: call type, call timestamp, and missed status, if applicable), and voice consultations that were directed to you that you did not answer are displayed in the Team Communicator when you click **Show and Search Recent**.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Starting a Voice Consultation
- Receiving a Voice Consultation

Starting a Voice Consultation

The Workspace Voice, Email, and Chat Interaction windows enable you to start a voice, chat, or instant messaging consultation with an internal target or a contact about your current interaction (see Lesson: Handle A Voice Call), email interaction (see Lesson: Handle An Email Interaction), or chat interaction (see Lesson: Handle a Chat Interaction).

Workspace also enables you to instantly transfer or conference your call with an internal target or a contact. You can do this with or without first starting a consultation. For instant transfers, the call is

transferred as soon as the other party accepts the interaction. For instant conferences, the conference starts as soon as the other party accepts the interaction.

Lesson: Starting a voice consultation

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue), and then start a voice consultation.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction, Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction, or Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction).

Start

1. In the active interaction window, click the Start Consultation button to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for a voice consultation in the active Voice Interaction window figure for an example of a voice interaction).

Tor an example of a voice in	
Genesys • Workspace	
🛞 🚺 ハーゴ い じ い い こ こ い い い い い い い い い い い い い い	<u>#</u> -
Case Information	Kale X
Care anomation	
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai	Agent • 🖽
Avril Mai 🕲 Connected	C - Katelevis 全
Dissocitions Made	1 Matching Internal Target(s)
Finding an internal target for a voice cor	sultation in the active Voice

- 2. Use the Team Communicator to find the internal target with whom you want to start a consultation (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).
- 3. Click the Action Menu drop-down list is displayed next to the name of the internal target with whom you want to consult, and then select Start Voice Consultation (see the Start Voice Consultation menu option figure). The contact is put on hold. When the internal target accepts the interaction request, you can speak to the internal target agent.

Genesys • Workspace	
🛞 🚺 млімы 🕲 020207 ビビビー 🕂 🏢	<u>#</u> -
Case Information	Kate Lewis X
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai	📃 🗶 🛄 All Types 🔹 🖽
👻 Avril Mai 🙆 Connected	💶 - Kate Lewis 🚊
	📞 Start Voice Consultation
Dispositions Note	 Start Instant Message Consultation
	🖈 Add to Favorites

Start Voice Consultation menu option

If the consultation target does not accept your request, the consultation request is released, but your contact might still be on hold. You must click the Resume Call button to take your contact off hold.

4. When you are connected to your consultation target, the internal target is added to the Workspace Interaction window (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying a consultation call that is connected to the internal target while the contact party is on hold figure).

Finding an internal target for a voice consultation in the active Voice Interaction window

⊜Genesys • Workspace
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🕓 00:03:07 😢 🤩 - 😢 -
Case Information
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai
👻 Avril Mai 🕲 On Hold
Dispositions Note
Consultation: Kate Lewis 🕒 (00:00:24)
✓ Kate Lewis
ند و 🗰 🔤
Voice Interaction window, displaying a consultation call that is

connected to the internal target while the contact party is on hold

- 5. During your consultation, you can alternate between the contact and the consulting party by clicking the Resume Call button. Doing this puts the active party on hold and connects you to the other party. During your consultation, you can start a conference with your consultation target or another target (see Starting a Voice Conference).
- 6. To end your consultation, click End Call. Your consultation target might also end the call.



[Added: 8.5.103.10]

End

Receiving a Voice Consultation

The Workspace Voice, Email, and Chat Interaction windows enable you to receive a voice, chat, or instant messaging consultation with an internal target.

Workspace also enables agents to instantly transfer or conference calls to you. Agents can do this with or without first starting a consultation. For instant transfers, the call is transferred as soon as you accept the interaction. For instant conferences, the conference starts as soon as you accept the interaction.

Lesson: Receiving a voice consultation request

Purpose: Receive an invitation to a consult about a voice interaction from another agent to provide assistance to that agent in completing an active interaction.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the voice-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the voice consultation interaction.

Start

1. Your hard phone or soft phone rings, and a preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive notification window (see the Voice Interaction Consult Preview interactive notification figure).

🕓 John Davis - Workspace	
Case Information	^
Origin: Consultation call from John Davis	
	Accept

Voice Interaction Consult Preview interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information about the call with the contact and the identity of the agent that is requesting consultation. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data regarding the call.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to answer the consultation interaction.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time-out.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the call is answered in your hard phone or soft phone, and the Voice Consultation Interaction window is displayed (see the Voice Consultation Interaction window figure).

lisi Genesys + Workspace			C Rate Louis +	٤٠	• • - • ×
※ 1					=
Case Information and Drights Consultation call from John Sparie	0	Information Middle	17		
Consultation: Julie Servic 🔮 (00:30:36) *	Ř.	0 0 ····· A			
- Jahr Davis 😧 Corrected	-	104	[0110]		
		Pirol Name -	Act		
		Land Name •	Relati		
		Phone Number			
		1000000			 Prenary
	CO134	2016 And Phases Scotlag			
	8	E-mail Address			
		A, Margimal dom			 Prenary
		carefolia and			
		Add L real Address			

Voice Consultation Interaction window

You can use the Voice Consultation Interaction window to do the following:

- View contact records. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- View contact history. See Managing Contact History.
- Launch the Team Communicator. See Starting a Voice Conference, Transferring a Voice Call, and Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
- View the case data for the interaction. See Managing Contact History.
- Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.
- 4. If you connect successfully with the agent that is requesting a consultation, you can do any of the following:
 - Terminate the call (see Step 5).
 - Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
 - Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
 - Start a voice or IM consultation.
 - Conference the call (see Starting a Voice Conference).
 - Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).
 - View and read standard responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
 - For SIP enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call.
 - Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes.
 Note: For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.
- 5. When the interaction is complete, either you or the agent can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button.
- 6. The Voice Interaction window closes automatically. You do not have to click Mark Done or set a

disposition for a consultation call that you have received.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Related Information

• Voice Consultation help

Transfer A Voice Call

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to transfer a voice call to an internal target or to a contact. The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call a contact or an internal target, initiate a conference, or transfer a call. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Transferring a Voice Call
- Transferring an Interaction to an Active Consultation

Transferring a Voice Call

The Workspace Voice Interaction window enables you to transfer your current voice call to another party. In a consultation transfer, the current call is put on hold while you talk to the transfer target. In an instant transfer, the call is transferred as soon as the other party accepts the interaction. This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Starting a voice transfer
- Lesson: Receiving a transferred call
- Lesson: Transfer to an active consultation

Tip

Workspace might be configured by your administrator to store and display recent calls, including missed calls, in the Team Communicator view. When this feature is specified, recent voice interactions are displayed in the Team Communicator with a specific visual indicator (in/out/missed), and the tooltip for each record displays additional information about the corresponding call event (for example: call type, call timestamp, and missed status, if applicable), and calls that were transferred to you that you did not answer are displayed in the Team Communicator when you click **Show and Search Recent**.

Lesson: Starting a voice transfer

Purpose: To transfer your current interaction to an internal target or a contact.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction).

Start

1. In the active voice interaction, click the Instant Voice Transfer button to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for a voice transfer in the active Voice Interaction window figure) to find the internal target to whom you want to transfer the current interaction (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).

Senesys • Workspace		
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🕓 00:01:07 😋 🥲	ଅନ୍ମ 🖽 🛣	
Case Information	Kate Lewis	×
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai	👤 ★ 🕒 All Types 🔹 🗧	•
	ए - Kate Lewis	1
	😌 Instant Call Transfer	
Dispositions Note	★ Add to Favorites	

Finding an internal target for a voice transfer in the active Voice $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Interaction}}$ window

- 2. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target to whom you want to transfer the interaction and select Instant Voice Transfer. The contact is put on hold. When the internal target accepts the interaction request, the interaction is instantly transferred to the transfer target. The interaction window on your desktop closes. If the transfer target does not accept your request, the transfer request is released, but your contact is still on hold. You must click the Resume Call button to take your contact off hold.
- 3. Complete your after-call work.
- 4. Set your status to Ready.

End

Lesson: Receiving a transferred call

Purpose: To receive an invitation to a accept a transferred call from another agent, to provide assistance to that agent in completing an active interaction.

Tip

You might be invited to accept a one-step or two-step transfer.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. If another agent wants to transfer a voice interaction to you, they can choose between an instant transfer and a transfer from a consultation. You are notified of the consultation request by the Workspace Interaction Preview interactive notification (see the Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a transfer request figure).



Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a transfer request

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

Click Accept to accept the transfer or to consult first with the calling agent:

- If the calling agent initiated an instant transfer, the call is immediately transferred to you. Go to Step 3.
- If the calling agent initiated a consultation transfer, the Workspace Voice Interaction window is displayed (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying your status as connected to the calling agent figure). It shows your status as connected to the calling agent.



Voice Interaction window, displaying your status as connected to the calling agent

- 2. If the transferring agent used a consultation transfer, the Workspace Voice Interaction window enables you to perform the following functions while you are speaking to the calling agent, before you accept the transferred call:
 - Speak privately with the calling agent about the call, before the call is transferred to you.
 - End the call--This function ends your participation in the consultation call; the call is not transferred to you.
 - Put the call on hold and retrieve the call.
 - Send DTMF by using the keypad.
 - Conference the call.
 - Transfer the call.
 - For SIP enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Lesson: Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call.

- Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes. For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace* 8.5 Help.
- 3. If the calling agent completes the transfer to you, the Workspace Voice Interaction window is updated to display the status of the party to whom you are talking. The status changes to Connected (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying your status as connected to the transferred contact figure).



The Workspace Voice Interaction window enables you to use all the functionality of an inbound call (see Step 3 of Lesson: Handling an inbound voice interaction).

4. Click End Call to terminate your connection to the call. The Workspace Voice Interaction window is updated to display the status of the call as Ended (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying the status at the end of a conference call figure).

Se Ge	nesys • Workspace
© [Avril Mai 🕓 00:01:30 🖌
Case Info	ormation
Origin:	Outbound call to Avril Mai
Status:	Transferred call to Kate Lewis
▼ Avri	l Mai 🕒 Ended

Voice Interaction window, displaying the status at the end of a conference call $% \left({\left| {{{\rm{s}}} \right|_{{\rm{s}}}} \right)$

If required by your configuration, specify a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction by selecting an outcome from the Disposition Code drop-down list or radio-button list in the Disposition Code view (see Assigning Disposition Codes).

- 5. Click Mark Done.
- 6. Close the Voice Interaction window.
- 7. Complete your after-call work.
- 8. Set your status to Ready.

End

Transferring an Interaction to an Active Consultation

You can transfer your current interaction to your consultation target. You can also transfer a voice interaction to other types of consultation, such as IM, by following the same steps that are presented in the following procedure, beginning at Step 2.

Lesson: Transfer to an active consultation

Purpose: To transfer the current interaction to a party with whom you are already consulting.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction).
- You have an active consultation with another party (see Lesson: Starting a voice consultation).

Start

- 1. During your active consultation (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying a consultation call that is connected to the internal target while the contact party is on hold figure), you can perform any of the following functions by using the Voice Consult toolbar.
 - Alternate (toggle) between the contact and the internal target by clicking the Resume Call button alternately on the toolbar for the respective call. The other party is put on hold until you toggle back or complete the conference.
 - End the call to the internal target and resume the call with the contact.
 - Send DTMF to the internal target.
 - For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call.
 - Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes. For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace* 8.5 Help.

⊜ Genesys • Workspace
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🕓 00:03:07 😢 단 - 산 - 🙎 -
Case Information
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai
🝷 Avril Mai 🕲 On Hold
Dispositions Note
l
Consultation: Kata Lauis 🙃 (00.00.24)
Consultation: Kate Lewis G (00.00.24)
✓ Kate Lewis
د دو III 🛛
Voice Interaction window, displaying a consultation call that is

Voice Interaction window, displaying a consultation call that is connected to the internal target while the contact party is on hold

2. To transfer your active interaction to your consultation target, click the Instant Transfer button. The Team Communicator is displayed showing a list of your active consultations (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying an instant voice transfer from a consultation call figure).

Senesys • Workspace		
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🕓 00:01:25 😢	૯ . હ. <u>શ</u> .	
Case Information	Active Consultations	
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai	Conditionally Ready	<u> </u>
 Avril Mai	😋 Instant Call Transfer	
	\star Add to Favorites	

Voice Interaction window, displaying an instant voice transfer from a consultation call

3. Complete the transfer by clicking the Instant Voice Transfer button that is beside the name of the target to whom you want to transfer the interaction. The contact is transferred to the consulting target. The call status changes to Ended (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying status as Ended figure).

SGe	enesys • Workspace
0	Avril Mai 🕓 00:01:30 🖌
Case In	formation
Origin:	Outbound call to Avril Mai
Status	: Transferred call to Kate Lewis
▼ Avi	ril Mai 🕓 Ended

Voice Interaction window, displaying status as Ended

- 4. After a call is released, one or more of the following actions might be available to you, depending on your assigned role:
 - Click Mark Done to close the Voice Interaction window.
 - Select a disposition (see Assigning Disposition Codes).
 Note: Your system might be configured so that you cannot click Mark Done until you have selected a disposition code.
- 5. Close the Voice Interaction window.
- 6. Complete your after-call work.
- 7. Set your status to Ready.

End

Related Information

• Voice Call help

Conference A Voice Call

[Modified: 8.5.109.16]

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue) or a contact and start a voice conference from an interaction window, such as voice, email, and chat. You can also use the first procedure in this lesson to find a contact and start a voice conference.

The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call an internal target or a contact, initiate a conference or consultation, or transfer a call.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Starting a Voice Conference
- Suspending and Reinstating a Party from a Conference
- Start a Conference with an Active Consultation

Link to video

Starting a Voice Conference

The Workspace Voice, Email, and Chat Interaction windows enable you to conference your current voice, chat, or instant messaging interaction with an internal target or a contact about your current interaction (see Handle A Voice Call), email interaction (see Handle An Email Interaction), or chat interaction (see Handle a Chat Interaction).

Workspace also enables you to instantly transfer or conference your call with an internal target or a contact. You can do this with or without first starting a consultation. For instant conferences, the conference starts as soon as the other party accepts the interaction.

This section contains the following lessons:

- Lesson: Starting a voice conference
- Lesson: Receiving a conference call
- Lesson: Temporarily suspending a party from a voice conference
- Lesson: Starting a conference with an active consultation

Tip

Workspace might be configured by your administrator to store and display recent calls, including missed calls, in the Team Communicator view. When this feature is specified, recent voice interactions are displayed in the Team Communicator with a specific visual indicator (in/out/missed), and the tooltip for each record displays additional information about the corresponding call event (for example: call type, call timestamp, and missed status, if applicable), and conference calls that were directed to you that you did not answer are displayed in the Team Communicator when you click **Show and Search Recent**.

Lesson: Starting a voice conference

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue), and then start and complete a conference call with the internal target and the current contact.

Tip

You can also call a contact to initiate a conference.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction, Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction, or Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction).

Start

1. In the active interaction window, click the Instant Voice Conference button to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for a voice transfer in the active Voice Interaction window figure in Transfer A Voice Call lesson) to find the target to whom you want to conference with the current interaction (see the Initiating a conference from an active interaction figure for an example of a voice interaction).

🛞 🚺 Arril Mai 🔕 00:00-48 ੯੯ ੯੯ ੯੯ -	또 🏢 👱 🗉	
Case Information	Kate Lewis	×
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai	👤 ★ 🗳 All Types	- 🗈
- Avril Mai 🕲 Connected	C - Kate Lewis Ready	2
	C Instant Call Conference	
Dispositions Note	🚖 Add to Favorites	

Initiating a conference from an active interaction

2. Complete the conference by clicking the Instant Voice Conference button beside the name of the target, or open the Action menu and select Instant Voice Conference. The conference begins as soon as the internal target accepts the interaction request. Depending on the configuration of your system, this option might not be available. You, the contact, and the internal target agent are placed into a three-way conference (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying a conference with a contact and a second agent figure).

0	Avril N	lai	0	00:01:40	٤	હ	G -	ς.	<u>\$</u> .
Cas	e Information	1							
Ori	igin: Outbour	nd ca	all to /	Avril Mai					
		-							
*	Avril Mai	O	Conn	ected					
*	Kate Lewis	٥	Conn	ected					

Voice Interaction window, displaying a conference with a contact and a second agent $% \left({{\boldsymbol{x}_{i}}} \right)$

During the conference call you can perform the following actions: Use the Conference Party Action Menu (next to the Party Status) to do one of the following:

- **Delete from Conference**—Terminate the connection to the party. This action ends the call to the party, but continues the call with the other party.
- Suspend From Conference—Disable listening and talking for the selected party.
- Reinstate To Conference—Enable listening and talking for that party.
- End the Call—Both lines are disconnected (go to Step 4).
- Put both parties on hold.
- Instantly transfer the call to another target.
- Instantly conference the call with another target.
- Send DTMF to the internal target.
- For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
- Record the call (see Record Interactions).
- Mute and unmute the call.
- Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes. For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.



Voice Interaction window displaying an ended conference with a contact and a second agent

- 3. The internal target agent can choose to release the call. If this happens, the internal target agent is disconnected, but you remain connected to the contact. You can complete your call with the contact, transfer the contact, or start a new conference call.
- 4. If you have completed your call and the internal target agent is still connected, when you click the End Call button, the call is transferred automatically to the internal target agent. Go to Step 5 of the Lesson: Calling a contact.

If you have completed your call and the internal target agent has already disconnected from the

conference, go to Step 4 of the Lesson: Calling a contact.

5. During your consultation, you can transfer the call to your consultation target, or to another target. You can also start a conference with your consultation target or another target.

End

Lesson: Receiving a conference call

Purpose: Receive an invitation to a conference call from another agent to provide assistance to that agent in completing an active interaction. **Prerequisites**

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the voice media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

Start

1. If another agent wants to conference with you and a contact about their current interaction the agent can initiate a voice conference. If the other agent is handling a voice interaction and initiates a voice conference request, you are notified of the request by the Workspace Interaction Preview interactive notification (see the Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a conference request figure).

🕓 John Davis - Workspace		
Case Information		^
Origin: Consultation call from John Davis		
	Accept	

Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a conference request

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

Click Accept to connect to the conference:

- If the calling agent initiated an instant conference, you are immediately in the conference with the contact. Go to Remaining Connected After the Conferencing Agent Disconnects.
- If the calling agent initiated a voice consultation conference, the Workspace Voice Interaction window is displayed and shows your status as connected to the calling agent (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying your status as Connected to the calling agent figure).



- 2. The Workspace Voice Interaction window enables you to perform the following functions while you are speaking to the calling agent, prior to joining the conference call:
 - Speak privately with the calling agent about the conference prior to joining the conference.
 - End the call—This function ends your participation in the consultation call; you are not joined to the conference.
 - Put the call on hold and resume the call.
 - Send DTMF by using the keypad.
 - Start a conference call.
 - Transfer the call to a different internal target.
 - For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call.
 - Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes.
 For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.
- 3. If the calling agent joins you to the conference, all three parties can hear and speak to one another. The Workspace Voice Interaction window is updated to display the status of the parties to whom you are talking. The status changes to Connected (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying Conferenced status figure).



Voice Interaction window, displaying Conferenced status

When you are in a conference call, you can perform the following functions:

- Use the Conference Party Action Menu (adjacent to the Party Status) to do the following:
 - Delete From Conference—Terminate the connection to the party.
 - Suspend From Conference—Disable listening and talking for the selected party.
 - Reinstate To Conference—Enable listening and talking for that party.
- For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
 - Record the call (see Lesson: Record Interactions).
 - Mute and unmute the call.

- Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes.
 For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the *Workspace* 8.5 Help.
- End the call Terminates your connection to the conference. The calling agent remains connected to the contact.
- Set a disposition code for the call.
- Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.

Remaining Connected After the Conferencing Agent Disconnects

If the calling agent releases the call, the calling agent is disconnected, but you remain connected to the contact (see the Voice Interaction window showing that the calling agent has left the conference, but you remain connected to the contact figure). You can complete your call with the contact, transfer the contact, or start a new conference call.

0	Avril M	• 0	00:00:28	٤	હ	U -	ي.	<u>*</u> -			
Case	Information									÷	^
Orig	in: Outbour	d call t	o Avril Mai								
• /	Avril Mai 🛛 🖉	Conn	ected						B (6)	B	(8)

Voice Interaction window showing that the calling agent has left the conference, but you remain connected to the contact

4. Click End Call to terminate your connection to the call or conference. The Workspace Voice Interaction window is updated to display the status of the conference as Ended (see the Voice Interaction window, displaying the status at the end of a conference call figure).



Voice Interaction window, displaying the status at the end of a conference call

If required by your configuration, specify a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction by selecting an outcome from the Disposition Code drop-down list or radio-button list in the Disposition Code view (see Assigning Disposition Codes).

- 5. Click Mark Done.
- 6. Close the Voice Interaction window.
- 7. Complete your after-call work.
- 8. Set your status to Ready.

End

Suspending and Reinstating a Party from a Conference

[Added: 8.5.109.16]

You can temporarily prevent one party in a conference call from listening to the call or talking in the conference. You might choose to do this so that the suspended party cannot hear confidential information that the party is not permitted to hear. A suspended party hears on hold music until he or she is reinstated to the conference.

Lesson: Temporarily suspending a party from a voice conference

Purpose: To prevent one party in a conference call from listening to the call or talking in the conference.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction, Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction, or Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction).
- You have an active consultation call.

Start

 During a conference call it might be necessary to prevent one of the parties from listening to the call and from talking in the conference. Use the **Party Status** indicator, beside the **Party Action** menu to determine whether a part is currently able to listen and talk in the conference. Any party with the keyword **Connected** beside his or her name can hear the call and can talk in the conference.



Kate Lewis and 3617 are both connected to the conference call.

2. To prevent a party from hearing the call and talking in the conference, click the **Party Action** menu and select **Suspend From Conference**.

Senesys • Workspace
🛞 🧧 3617 🕒 00:23:00 😢 만 단 - 반 - ፤
Case Information
Origin: Inbound call to 5320
3617 Connected
Kate Lewis Connected Start Instant Message Consultation
Delete From Conference
Suspend From Conference
Suspend the party from the conference

Selecting Suspend From Conference in the Party Action menu of Kate Lewis.



When a party is suspended from a conference, the Call Conference icon () changes to the Call Conference Suspended icon (

(C) and the keyword **Suspended** is displayed beside his or her name.



Kate Lewis is suspended from the conference.

3. To allow a suspended party to hear the call and talk in the conference, click the Party Action menu and select Reinstate To Conference.

⊜Genesys • Workspace
🛞 🚺 3617 🚱 00:23:28 仪 안 안 - 안 -
Case Information
Origin: Inbound call to 5320
✓ 3617 Connected
 Kate Lewis Suspended
Start Instant Message Consultation
Delete From Conference
Reinstate To Conference
Reinstate the party to the conference

Selecting Reinstate To Conference in the Party Action menu of Kate Lewis.

All parties can now listen and talk in the conference.

End

Start a Conference with an Active Consultation

You can add your consultation target to your current interaction by starting a conference with the target. The following procedure demonstrates how to start a voice conference with a party that you are in a voice consultation; however, it is also possible to start a voice conference from other types of consultation, such as IM, by following the same steps that are presented in the procedure.

Lesson: Starting a conference with an active consultation

Purpose: Transition your consultation call to a conference call by adding the consultation target to your call.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction, Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction, or Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction).
- You have an active consultation with an internal target (see Lesson: Starting a voice consultation or Lesson: Receiving a voice consultation request).

Start

1. To transition an active consultation to a conference, click the Instant Call Conference button on the main interaction toolbar (see the Interaction window displaying an active interaction and an active voice consultation figure).

Senesys • Workspace
🛞 🥻 Avril Mai 🕓 00:00:49 😢 ピ・ &・ 🔽・
Case Information Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai
 Avril Mai S On Hold
Dispositions Note
Consultation: Kata Lawis 🙃 (00.00.00)
Kate Lewis (Connected
د د ۳ 🖬 🗧

Interaction window displaying an active interaction and an active voice consultation $% \left({{{\mathbf{x}}_{i}}} \right)$

2. The Team Communicator opens and displays your active consultations (see the Team Communicator in the active interaction window, displaying the Active Consultations figure). Click the Instant Call Conference button in the Action menu that is next to the name of the consult party with whom you want to start a conference call.

🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🕓 00.01.29 🕲 😍 -	Sec. 2.1
Case Information	Active Consultations
Origin: Outbound call to Avril Mai	😋 - Kate Lewis 💇
🝷 Avril Mai 🙆 On Hold	👟 Instant Call Conference
	* Add to Favorites

Team Communicator in the active interaction window, displaying the Active Consultations

The consultation interaction is closed and the consultation target is added to the conference call (see the Interaction window displaying a conference call with two parties figure).

\odot	Avril M	ai 🕓	00:01:40	٤	હ	G -	Ľ -	<u>\$</u> .
Case I	nformation							
Origin	n: Outboun	d call to	Avril Mai					
• A	vril Mai	Con	nected					
₹ К	ate Lewis	Con	nected					

Interaction window displaying a conference call with two parties.

3. Complete the conference call by following Lesson: Starting a voice conference.

End

Related Information

• Voice Call help

Record Interactions

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the call recording functionality of Workspace.

This lesson contains the following section:

• Recording a Voice Interaction

Recording a Voice Interaction

The Voice Recording functionality (for VoIP-/SIP-enabled agents only) enables you to record the current voice interaction with a contact or an internal target. You can start a recording, pause a recording, resume a recording, and end a recording.

Your account might also be configured for automatic or system-guided recording. If this is the case, you receive a notification that recording is in progress.

Lesson: Recording a voice interaction

Purpose: To record a voice interaction to be reviewed later by your administrator or supervisor.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are handling a voice interaction (see Handle A Voice Call).

Start

1. To start the current voice interaction with a contact or an internal target, click Record the Call on the

toolbar in the Voice Interaction window or in the Interaction Bar on the Main Window (). When you are recording a call, the color of the call icon in the connected-parties area changes to red:

🔻 Avril Mai 🧕 Connected

- 2. To control the recording of the call, use the call-recording control buttons and drop-down menu:
 - To pause the recording of the call, click Pause Recording the call (
 - To resume the recording of the call after you have paused, click Resume Recording the Call (
- 3. To stop the recording the call, open the call-recording control menu and select Stop (). Call recording stops and the color of the call icon in the Call Status area changes back to blue. The file that

contains the contents of the recording of the session is stored on your system network.

End

Related Information

• Voice Recording help

Handle Callback Interactions

[Added: 8.5.111.21]

In this lesson, you will learn how to accept a callback voice interaction by using Workspace. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving a Callback Interaction
- Scheduling a Callback Interaction

Receiving a Callback Interaction

A callback interaction is initiated when a contact visits your company's web site or calls your company from a mobile phone and submits a request for an agent to telephone the contact at a time that the contact specifies.

If you are the selected internal target for a callback interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it (answer it), the interaction window is displayed. The interaction window contains information about the call and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

The Callback Interaction window is similar to the Voice Interaction window (refer to Receiving a Voice Interaction). It enables you to view all the information that is necessary to handle a callback interaction with a contact who has requested a callback.

Lesson: Handling a callback interaction

Purpose: To handle a callback voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the voice channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the Callback interaction.

Start

1. Your hard phone or soft phone rings, and a preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view (see the Callback Interaction Preview interactive notification figure).

	Pat Thompson - Workspace
Pat Thompson - Workspace More preview More preview More preview More preview More preview	Value: Work 1 Value: Work 2 Value: Work 3 Value: Work 9 Value: Work 9 Value: Work 9
	Arrest

Callback Interaction Preview interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call information, including contact information and call metrics. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data regarding the call. The case data might include information that the contact entered in a form on your company's web page, or on their mobile device, or through an IVR.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview.

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the call is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.

Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to answer the interaction.
 - Click **Reject** to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will timeout and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the Callback interaction window is displayed on your desktop. The window contains Case Information and Callback Information.
- 4. When your are connected to the contact, the Callback Voice Interaction window is displayed on your desktop. The window contains Case Information, call controls, and Callback Information
| 😂 Genesys 🔹 Kristi Sippola - Workspace | |
|---|---------------|
| 🛞 🔓 Pat Therefore 🕑 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 - 20 - 20 - 20 - | - 🗇 😃 - |
| Case Information + + | Information) |
| Origin: Outbound call to Pat Thompson | 8 801/ |
| | General |
| Pat Inompson Connected | Last Name* |
| Caliback Information | Pest Name |
| Type: immediate | Language |
| Phone Number: 5115 | Address |
| Dispetitions Note | City |
| | Zip Code |
| | Country |
| | State |
| | Customer Set |
| | Č Brook |

Callback interaction window. 1-Case Information. 2-Callback Information set up by your administrator.

If you connect with the contact successfully You can do any of the following:

- Terminate the call (see Step 6).
- Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
- Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
- Start a voice or IM consultation.
- Conference the call (see Starting a Voice Conference).
- Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).
- View and read standard responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:
- Record the call (see Record Interactions).
- Mute and unmute the call.
- Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes.
 Note: For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.

You can also use the Callback Interaction window to do the following:

- View contact records. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- View contact history. See Managing Contact History.
- Launch the Team Communicator. See Starting a Voice Conference, Transferring a Voice Call, and Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
- Reschedule a different callback time. See the Lesson: Scheduling a callback interaction.
- Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.
- Use the Note to add information about the interaction to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View and edit the case information for the interaction. See Managing Contact History.

Link to a web page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a
hyperlink to enable you to view a web page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records.
Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place
your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The
hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.

If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress for the current contact figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interactions in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress for the current contact

Your account might be configured to notify you if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day

- When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button. The call status returns to Ready to Call.
- If required by your configuration, specify a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction by selecting an outcome from the disposition code drop-down list or radio button list in the Disposition Code view (see Assigning Disposition Codes).
- Click Done.
- If the Callback Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Callback Interaction window after you have clicked Done for each of the active interactions.
- Complete your after-call work.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Scheduling a Callback Interaction

There are three ways that you can schedule Callback interactions for a contact:

- 1. From an active interaction
- 2. From the Team Communicator
- 3. From the current callback interaction

These three methods open either the **Reschedule Callback** view or the **New Callback** dialog box which enable you to choose a date and time for when the contact will receive a callback interaction from your company.

Lesson: Scheduling a callback interaction

Purpose: To schedule a callback voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have the correct permissions to schedule callback interactions.

Start

- 1. Use one of the following three methods to schedule a callback interaction:
 - From a current interaction of other types, such as voice calls, email, or chat, click Schedule Callback (
 - From Team Communicator, find a contact, then from the Action Menu, choose New Callback to open the New Callback view.
 - From your current callback interaction, in the Interaction Toolbar, click **Reschedule a Callback** (17

to open the **Reschedule Callback** view.

New Callback to Pat Thompson *	12 4-		
talkatinge initianust +	W Annotation Laterate		
in fee	talked liger (initiation a		
Andread Tana Bana (171) 1010 Pacella Tana (1714) Canada(1	er tes		
Revisite 1000101	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
New Yorks & Antonio Cont	Page Station 1011 1		
	The follow interfere		
Const.			

The New Callback and Reschedule Callback windows use the same features to schedule callback interactions

- 2. Depending on how you started the callback interaction:
 - In the **New Callback** dialog box, first make the following selections:
 - a. Choose a **Callback Type** from the drop-down list. If your contact center does not support different callback types, this menu is not displayed.
 - b. Specify the time zone of your contact. This will be selected automatically if this information is available in your contact database.
 - c. Choose a date from the calendar picker.
 - In the **Reschedule Callback** view, first make the following selections:
 - a. Check **Reschedule Callback**.
 - b. Specify the time zone of your contact. This will be selected automatically if this information is available in your contact database.
 - c. Choose a date from the calendar picker.
- 3. After you select a date, the schedule grid becomes active. Use the schedule grid to find a time slot that is shown as available. Available time slots are highlighted in blue when you place your mouse pointer over them. A tooltip indicates the time range and the number of callback appointments that are available in the time slot.



Choosing an available time slot for a callback interaction.

- 4. Select or enter an alternate phone number if necessary.
- 5. Add instructions for the agent who will handle the callback in the **Instructions** field.
- 6. To commit the callback to the system, do one of the following:
 - In the **New Callback** dialog box, click **OK**.
 - In the **Reschedule Callback** view, ensure that the **Reschedule Callback** checkbox is selected, then click anywhere outside of the view.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Related Information

Callback Information help

Handle Web Callback Interactions

In this lesson, you will learn how to accept a web callback voice interaction by using Workspace. This lesson contains the following sections:

• Receiving a Web Callback Interaction

Receiving a Web Callback Interaction

A web callback interaction is initiated when a contact visits your company's web site and submits a request for an agent to telephone the contact at a time that the contact specifies.

If you are the selected internal target for a web callback interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it (answer it), the interaction window is displayed. The interaction window contains information about the call and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

The Web Callback Interaction window is similar to the Voice Interaction window (refer to Receiving a Voice Interaction). It enables you to view all the information that is necessary to handle a web callback interaction with a contact who has requested a callback from your company web page.

Lesson: Handling a web callback interaction

Purpose: To handle a web callback voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the web callback-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the inbound interaction.

Start

1. Your hard phone or soft phone rings, and a preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view (see the Web callback Interaction Preview interactive notification figure).

🕒 Ravi Pache - Workspace	
Case Information	^
Origin: Inbound webcallback	
Internet service down	
Accept	Reject

Web callback Interaction Preview interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call information, including contact information and call metrics. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data regarding the call. The case data might include information that the contact entered in a form on your company's web page.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the call is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to answer the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will timeout and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the Web Callback interaction window is displayed on your desktop. The window contains Case Information and Callback Information. The status of the call is Ready to Call. In this state, you can review the Case Information and the Callback Information before you connect the call to the contact. Callback Information provides you with the subject of the call, the number provided by the contact, and the scheduled date and time for the call.

Click **Call this contact** to call the contact (see the Web Callback interaction window case and callback information figure). The call status changes to Establishing until the contact answers the call. If the call times out because the line is busy or the contact does not answer, the status returns to Ready to Call.

Senesys • Workspace			
🛞 🛛 Ravi Pa	che 🕒 🍾 🔽 📅		
Case Information	Call this contact		
Origin: Inbound webcallback			
Ravi Pache			
Callback Information			
Subject:	Internet service down		
Phone Number:	111200198		
Туре:	ASAP		
Scheduled Date:	3/24/2014		
Time (Contact):	from 3:08 PM till 3:23 PM		

Web Callback interaction window case and callback information.

4. When the contact answers and the Callback Voice Interaction window is displayed on your desktop. The window contains Case Information, call controls, and Callback Information

W Genesys + Workspace	O Afeilais + 🚊 +	••	- 0)
◎ 🗧 ===== ● ==== ビ ピ ピ - ビ - ビ == ● === ●			≡
Cashformitia			- 8
Brigin: Cultored call to RaniPache			140
- Rei Falle 🗿 Convelled		80 B	10
College Information			-
Subject Internet service down			
Place Number: 111220100			
Tepe ADAP			
Scheduled Date: 3/14/0714			2
Time (Dantact) Non-108 PM 18 1222 PM			- 3
Dispetitions Itals			500
		for the	6

Web Callback interaction window.

If you connect with the contact successfully You can do any of the following:

- Terminate the call (see Step 6).
- Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
- Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
- Start a voice or IM consultation.
- Conference the call (see Starting a Voice Conference).
- Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).
- View and read standard responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- For SIP-enabled agents, additional call actions are available:

- Record the call (see Record Interactions).
- Mute and unmute the call.
- Adjust the microphone and speaker volumes.
 Note: For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.

You can also use the Web Callback Interaction window to do the following:

- View contact records. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- View contact history. See Managing Contact History.
- Launch the Team Communicator. See Starting a Voice Conference, Transferring a Voice Call, and Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.
- Reschedule the callback to a different time. See the Lesson: Rescheduling a call as a callback.
- Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.
- Use the Note to add information about the interaction to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View and edit the case information for the interaction. See Managing Contact History.
- Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a
 hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records.
 Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place
 your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The
 hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.

If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress for the current contact figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interactions in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress for the current contact

Your account might be configured to notify you if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day

- When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button. The call status returns to Ready to Call.
- If required by your configuration, specify a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction by selecting an outcome from the disposition code drop-down list or radio button list in the Disposition Code view (see Assigning Disposition Codes).
- Click Done.
- If the Web Callback Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Web Callback Interaction window after you have clicked Done for each of the active interactions.
- Complete your after-call work.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Related Information

• Web Callback help

Handle Outbound-Campaign Voice Interactions

[Modified: 8.5.115.17, 8.5.145.06]

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle an outbound-campaign voice interaction by using Workspace. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Outbound Campaigns
- Handling an Outbound-Campaign Voice Interaction

Outbound Campaigns

As an agent, you might be working on calling campaigns (for example: collections, telemarketing, or fund raising) in which the contact interactions are outbound voice calls that are based on calling a predetermined list of contacts.

Warning

To participate in Outbound Campaigns, you must *not* be logged in to the Instant Messaging Channel.

There are two delivery modes of outbound calls, manual and automatic. Your supervisor determines in which mode you will work.

In manual mode, you make outbound calls by requesting an interaction from a preset calling list. Manual delivery has one dialing mode:

• **Preview**—The system displays contact-related data to you, and then you make the call to the contact.

In automatic mode, outbound calls are directed to your desktop. Automatic delivery has three dialing modes:

- **Push Preview**—The system displays contact-related data to you, and then you make the call to the contact.
- **Progressive**—The system dials customer numbers automatically and transfers a call to you only if the connection was successfully established.
- **Predictive**—The system estimates the number of free agents on the basis of current statistics, and might start to dial before any agents are free.

Starting and Stopping an Outbound Campaign

If your supervisor or someone else at your company loads into Genesys Outbound Contact Manager an Outbound Campaign to which you are assigned, you will receive a warning message that informs you that a specific campaign has begun and that you are assigned to that campaign (see the Outbound Campaign Loaded message box figure).



Outbound Campaign Loaded message box

The message box contains information about the Outbound Campaign. Your administrator determines the content of the message box and the information that is provided to you.

Click 0K to close the message box.

When the Outbound Campaign begins and outbound interactions are going to be directed to your desktop (or made available to you in the case of Preview campaigns), the Campaign Started message is displayed on your desktop (see the Outbound Campaign Started message box figure).

Outbound Campaign			
	Campaign Star	ted	
	Name:	Corporate Campaign	
¶¶?	Delivery Mode:	Automatic	
	Description:	Outbound Campaign for Promotion	r Upgrade
			ОК

Outbound Campaign Started message box

Click 0K to close the message box.

When the Outbound Campaign ends and no more outbound interactions are going to be directed to your desktop, the Campaign Stopped message is displayed on your desktop (see the Outbound Campaign Stopped message box figure).



Outbound Campaign Stopped message box

Click 0K to close the message box.

When your administrator unloads the Outbound Campaign from Genesys Outbound Contact Manager, the Campaign Unloaded message box is displayed (see the Outbound Campaign Unloaded message box figure). You will no longer receive interactions from the unloaded campaign unless it is loaded and started again.

omotion
к

Outbound Campaign Unloaded message box

Click 0K to close the message box.

Handling an Outbound-Campaign Voice Interaction

This section shows you how to handle interactions for the four types of Outbound Campaign that are supported by Workspace. The agent workflow for Predictive and Progressive campaigns are identical; only the timing of the arrival of the interaction on your desktop and the connection to the contact are different.

In Preview interactions (also called pull-preview), you must request the next contact record. In pushpreview interactions you are given the opportunity to view the Outbound Campaign interaction and connect manually to the contact or send the record back to the calling list.

This section contains the following procedures:

- · Lesson: Handling a predictive or progressive Outbound-Campaign voice interaction
- Lesson: Handling an ASM predictive or progressive Outbound-Campaign voice interaction
- Assured Connection calls
- Lesson: Handling a preview Outbound-Campaign voice interaction
- Lesson: Handling a push-preview Outbound-Campaign voice interaction

• Lesson: Rescheduling a call as a callback

Lesson: Handling a predictive or progressive Outbound-Campaign voice interaction

Purpose: To handle a predictive or progressive Outbound Campaign voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- You are not logged in to the Instant Messaging channel.
- Your status is Ready for the voice-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are part of a predictive or progressive Outbound Campaign.
- You have been notified that the campaign is loaded and running (see Starting and Stopping an Outbound Campaign).

Start

1. Your hard phone or soft phone rings, and a preview of the outbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view (see the Outbound Predictive/Progressive Voice Interaction Preview interactive notification figure).

🕓 998746343 - Workspace			
Case Information	^		
Origin: Outbound campaign call to 998746343 Queue: 122			
Accept	Reject		

Outbound Predictive/Progressive Voice Interaction Preview interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call and campaign information. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data related to the call. Contact your system administrator for more information about the contents of this window.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to call the contact.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the call is connected in your hard phone or soft phone, and the Outbound Voice Interaction window is displayed (see the Predictive/Progressive Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window figure).

🗑 Genesys 🛛	Workspace	O Antoliania +	٤٠	••	- O X
O	● *** ひはれ・ウ・田 単 中・				≡
Case Information					- 8
ange Dutres	d companys call to 1987/40343				- B
Barrar 112					5
Call Type: Support					
Printy High					
Report Distant	v				
Segnett Cold					
	Connected				
Notari Islamatian					-
Plane Type:	Hone Phone				
Call from	62.00				
call costs	22.19				
CardNumber.	11111				
Detribute	Easturding, Pedrovary UK, 2011 11 99-02, AM				
thatte					
Rate	Ard Wei				6
Price	90.99				3
60K_D/67DMER	b 4				8
Dispositions	and the second se				
				54	

Predictive/Progressive Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window

You can use the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window to do the following:

- View contact records (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database).
- View contact history (see Managing Contact History).
- Set a call result and a disposition code, or add the contact to the Do Not Call list (see Step 5).
- Use the Note to add information about the interaction to the interaction history (see Managing Contact History).
- View and edit the Case Information—Summary information about the campaign. It might contain the name of the campaign, a description of the campaign, the phone number of the contact, and so on.
- View and edit the Record Information—Specific information about the record. It might contain a range of time for which the contact has indicated availability, the name of the contact, or information about the nature of the call.
- View and read responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- Terminate the call (see Step 4).
- Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
- Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
- Start a voice consultation (see Starting a Voice Consultation).
- Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).



- Reschedule a call as a callback (see Lesson: Rescheduling a call as a callback).
 Note: For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.
- 4. When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button.
- 5. If required by your configuration, specify a call result and/or a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction.
 - a. Click the Dispositions tab to make it active.
 - b. (Optional) In the Call Result drop-down list, select a call result (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result drop-down list figure).

Di	spositions	Note				
Ca	Call Result					
	Unknown					
	Answered		Ν			
D	Answering N	/lachine	15			
	Busy					
	No Answer					
	Wrong Num	ber				
	Unknown					

Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result drop-down list

c. (Optional) Select an outcome from the Disposition Code drop-down list or radio-button list in the Disposition Code view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure and also Assigning Disposition Codes).

Dispositions	Note		
Call Result			
Answered			
Do Not Call			
Disposition Cod	e		
 None 			
Accepted			
 Rejected 			
 Transferre 	ed		
Outbound Campaign Inte	eraction window		

- d. (Optional) If the contact requests to be put on the Do Not Call list, select Do Not Call in the Call Result view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure).
- e. Click Mark Done. This step might be performed for you automatically when you end the call or set a disposition code.
- f. If the Voice Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Voice Interaction window after you have clicked Mark Done for each of the active interactions.
- g. Complete your after-call work.
- h. Set your status on the Voice channel to Ready to receive the next call.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Lesson: Handling an ASM predictive or progressive Outbound-Campaign voice interaction

Purpose: To handle an ASM predictive or progressive Outbound Campaign voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- You are *not* logged in to the Instant Messaging channel.
- Your status is Ready for the voice-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are part of an ASM predictive or progressive Outbound Campaign.

• You have been notified that the campaign is loaded and running (see Starting and Stopping an Outbound Campaign).

Start

1. Your hard phone or soft phone rings, and a preview of the outbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view (see the Outbound ASM mode Predictive/ Progressive Voice Interaction Preview interactive notification figure).

S ASMCPP	
Case Information	^
Origin: Inbound call to 'Unidentified'	
	Accept

Outbound ASM mode $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Predictive}}\xspace/\ensuremath{\mathsf{Progressive}}\xspace$ Voice Interaction $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Preview}}\xspace$ interaction

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call and campaign information. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data related to the call. Contact your system administrator for more information about the contents of this window.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

- 2. You can choose to accept or redirect the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to call the contact.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the Outbound ASM voice-interaction window is displayed (see the Outbound ASM Voice Interaction Window in Establishing state figure). The call is in Establishing state, which means that the call is not yet connected to the contact. However, you are connected to the call and are reserved for the call.

fail Genesys + Workspace	O Alfordaria e	£ •	۰ و	- 6	1
Same ③ mmm 12 12 12・12・11 点・					=
Case Information				-	8
drigin, indexed call to "Undertified"					ŝ
+ ADACHY @ Converted					2
Receil Information				-	
bidibility be cal.					
Experime					
Bigeofficiale Read Read Read Read Read Read Read Re					

Outbound ASM Voice Interaction Window in Establishing state

4. As soon as the contact answers you are connected to the contact. The call is connected in your hard phone or soft phone, and the Outbound Voice Interaction window is displayed (see the Predictive/

Progressive Outbound ASM Campaign Voice Interaction window figure).

liii Genesys + Workspace	O Antoliana +	2٠	• •	- 5	1
(1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)					=
Case Information				-	8
Drigin Informatical to 998746242					1MC
- DELINER @ Converted					
Record Information					
Pane Tger Fare Pore Galfane 1010 Galfaneta 2010 Gadhada 2010 Gadhadar 20101002000 Name Arif Ma					
Separations Note					3
tof too at the attempt of the attemp					1000

Predictive/Progressive Outbound ASM Campaign Voice Interaction window

You can use the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window to do the following:

- View contact records (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database).
- View contact history (see Managing Contact History).
- Set a call result and a disposition code, or add the contact to the Do Not Call list (see Step 5).
- Use the Note to add information about the interaction to the interaction history (see Managing Contact History).
- View and edit the Case Information—Summary information about the campaign. It might contain the name of the campaign, a description of the campaign, the phone number of the contact, and so on.
- View and edit the Record Information—Specific information about the record. It might contain a range of time for which the contact has indicated availability, the name of the contact, or information about the nature of the call.
- View and read responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- Terminate the call (see Step 4).
- Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
- Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
- Start a voice consultation (see Starting a Voice Consultation).
- Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).

Important

- When you transfer an ASM call, the outbound record is also transferred. The ownership of the record might also be transferred to the target agent, depending on how your system is set up.
- You might have to set a call result or disposition before you complete a transfer or a conference to another agent, for example to a back office worker. If you forget, an error message is displayed and you are prevented from transferring the call unless you set the call result. After this action, the Call Result and Record



- Reschedule a call as a callback (see Lesson: Rescheduling a call as a callback).
 Note: For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.
- 5. When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button.
- 6. If required by your configuration, specify a call result and/or a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction.
 - a. Click the Dispositions tab to make it active.
 - b. (Optional) In the Call Result drop-down list, select a call result (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result drop-down list figure).

Di	spositions	Note	
C	all Result		
	Unknown		
	Answered		Ν
D	Answering N	Machine	M
	Busy		
	No Answer		
	Wrong Num	ber	
	Unknown		
Dutbou	und Campaign Inte	raction windov	v Call Result

- drop-down list
- c. (Optional) Select an outcome from the Disposition Code drop-down list or radio-button list in the Disposition Code view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure and also Assigning Disposition Codes).



- d. (Optional) If the contact requests to be put on the Do Not Call list, select Do Not Call in the Call
 Description (see the Call in the Call)
- d. (Optional) If the contact requests to be put on the Do Not Call list, select Do Not Call in the Call Result view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure).
- 7. Click Mark Done. This step might be performed for you automatically when you end the call or set a disposition code.
- 8. If the Voice Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Voice Interaction window after you have clicked Mark Done for each of the active interactions.
- 9. Complete your after-call work.
- 10. Set your status on the Voice channel to Ready to receive the next call.

End

Assured Connection calls

[Added: 8.5.145.06]

Some Progressive and Predictive campaigns use Assured Connection mode to reserve an agent before the call is connected to a contact. Reserving an agent ensures that there is no delay for a contact when he or she answers the call. This mode is typically used for VIP or high-value customers in a calling list.

In Assured Connection mode, you are called by the campaign before the contact is dialed. This is known as the Engaging Phase. When you Accept an Assured Connection call, the interaction is displayed on your desktop and the status is **Connected**. During the Engaging Phase you hear call waiting music to let you know that the call is engaged.

If you are reserved for a call, you are restricted from performing certain tasks, including logging off the Voice channel, starting a new call, and exiting Workspace. If you attempt to perform certain actions during the Engaging phase, you might see a message like this one:



Once you are connected to your contact, you handle the call as a normal Outbound Campaign call.

Lesson: Handling a preview Outbound-Campaign voice interaction

[Modified: 8.5.115.17]

Purpose: To handle a preview Outbound-Campaign voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- You are *not* logged in to the Instant Messaging channel.
- You are part of a preview Outbound Campaign.
- You have been notified that the campaign is loaded and running (see Starting and Stopping an Outbound Campaign).

Start

1. When a Preview Outbound Campaign is started, you are notified by an interactive message (see the Outbound Campaign Started message box for Preview mode campaigns figure).



Outbound Campaign Started message box for Preview mode campaigns

Perform one of the following steps:

- Click Get Record to retrieve and preview the next available campaign record (see Step 6).
- Click OK to close the message box (see Step 2).
- Do nothing. The message box closes after a specified time interval (see Step 2).
- 2. When you are ready to get a contact record, open your Workspace view (refer to the *Workspace 8.5 Help* to learn about how to display your Workspace view from the Main Window).
- 3. Select the My Campaigns view (see the My Campaigns view in the Main Window figure).

iiii Genesys • Workspace	O Jate Data +	± ·	• •	- O ×
Type same at sortion				=
My Workspace				×
Wy Channels My Camparigne My History Wy Statistics Contact Center Statistics				
Biotheod				
Status Name DeliveryMode Data Description				_
Renning Corporate Dampaign: Marcad 2/24/2014 F28-02 PM Collocard Company Tor Opporte Promotion				

My Campaigns view in the Main Window

- 4. Select the Preview campaign to which you are assigned (see the My Campaigns view in the Main Window figure).
- 5. Click Get Record.
- 6. A preview of the outbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop (see the Outbound Preview Voice Interaction Preview window figure).

🗑 Genesys	Workspace	0 Admitania - 🚊 -	• -	o ×
©	🕲 mane Prane 10000 - 🛀 🤩 - 🖽			≣
Case Information	Call this canted			8
Digit Dubourd	campaign call to TTTTTT			2
	Ready To Call			1
Record Information			-	
Phane Type:	None Prove			
Call Fram:	02.40			
Call to Hit	22-68			2
Cardhumber				5
Establiaure	Saturday, February HS, 2011 2:58 (3) PM			8
Character	h			
Name	And Mar			
Price	10.10			
SIN, OUT DAMA	.0.1			

Outbound Preview Voice Interaction Preview window

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call and campaign information. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data related to the call. Contact your system administrator for more information about the contents of this window.

[+] Show: Auto-dial and timed auto-dial

In some contact centers, administrators might have set up preview campaigns that automatically dial the call after you get a record or accept an interaction. In this scenario, you are automatically connected to contacts. Skip the next step.

In some contact centers, adminstrators might have set up preview campaigns that automatically dial the contact in a specific number of seconds after you get or accept a record. In this scenario, the Interaction Preview displays a timer that informs you about how many seconds you have to view the preview before the call is automatically connected.

Case Information	
Origin: Outbound ca	mpaign call to 3333333337
• 33333333333	Calling In 00:16
Record Information	
Phone Type:	Home Phone
Call From:	00:00

A timer is displayed if your account is set up to enable you to view the Interaction Preview before the call is automatically connected.

- 7. If your account is not configured for auto-dial, you can choose to do any of the following:
 - Change the contact phone number—Click the phone number, and select a new one from the dropdown list or choose 0ther Phone Number ([Added: 8.5.115.17]) if this feature is available in your environment to open the New Phone Number dialog box. If you have to change the phone number and the number you want to call is not part of the phone number selection menu, do the following:
 - i. Select Other Phone Number to open the **New Phone Number** dialog box. If your account is configured for timed auto-dial, the timer pauses until you click Call or Cancel.
 - ii. Enter the new phone number.
 - iii. Select a phone number type.
 - iv. Click Call to call the contact or Cancel to close the **New Phone Number** dialog box without dialing a new number.



[Added: 8.5.115.17]

• Call the contact—Click Call to display the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window (see Step 8).

• Decline the call—Click the Decline button and choose either to send the record back into the queue by selecting Call this contact later or to cancel the record by selecting Do not call this contact for this campaign.



Click Done to get the next record from the campaign calling list. Click Done and Stop to stop receiving new records.

8. If you choose to call the contact, the call is connected in your hard phone or soft phone, and the Outbound Voice Interaction window is displayed (see the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window figure).

iiii Genesys + Workspace				0-	An Davis +	٤.	• •	- 0	9 ×
⊗ 1 ····· ⊗ ××× € € €	· • • 🎟 📾	<u>a</u> .							≣
Case belowales		_						-	8
Origin: Dathound samplings call to 1111111									Ē
• 111111 @ Converted									
Record Information								-	
Phone Type: Hume Phone									
Call France 10.11									
Call Looki 2318									
Gadhanber I									
Balakieure: Saturday, Relation y 06, 2011 2	58:21 PM								
Character h									
Name Aritha									
Price: 10.10									
GEN, CUETOWER, ID 1									ş
Dispositions Note									1 I I

Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window

You can use the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window to do the following:

- Set a call result and a disposition code, or add the contact to the Do Not Call list (see Step 10).
- View and edit the Case Information—Summary information about the campaign. It might contain the name of the campaign, a description of the campaign, the phone number of the contact, and so on.
- View and edit the Record Information—Specific information about the record. It might contain a range of time for which the contact has indicated availability, the name of the contact, or information about the nature of the call.
- View and read responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- Terminate the call (see Step 9).
- Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to On Hold, and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
- Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
- Start a voice consultation (see Starting a Voice Consultation).
- Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).



- Reschedule a call as a callback (see Lesson: Rescheduling a call as a callback).
 Note: For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.
- 9. When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button.
- 10. If required by your configuration, specify a call result and/or a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction.
 - a. Click the Dispositions tab to make it active.
 - b. (Optional) In the Call Result drop-down list, select a call result (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result drop-down list figure).

Dis	positions	Note	
Ca	ll Result		
	Answered		
D	Answering N	/lachine	<i>₽</i>
	Busy		
	No Answer		
	Wrong Num	ber	
	Unknown		

Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result drop-down list

c. (Optional) Select an outcome from the Disposition Code drop-down list or radio-button list in the Disposition Code view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure and also Assigning Disposition Codes).

Dispositions	Note
Call Result	
Answered	
Do Not Cal	
Disposition Code	8
None	
Accepted	
 Rejected 	
 Transferre 	d
Outbound Campaign Inte Call Result and Dispositio	raction window n Code views

- d. (Optional) If the contact requests to be put on the Do Not Call list, select Do Not Call in the Call Result view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure).
- 11. Click Mark Done. This step might be performed for you automatically when you end the call or set a disposition code. The Done button contains a drop-down list that you can use to do the following:
 - Click Done to mark the interaction as Done, and to get the next record from the campaign calling list.



- Click Done and Stop to mark the interaction as Done, and not have another record open automatically. To get a new record, see Step 2.
- 12. If the Voice Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Voice Interaction window after you have clicked Mark Done for each of the active interactions.
- 13. Complete your after-call work.

End

Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Lesson: Handling a push-preview Outbound-Campaign voice interaction

Purpose: To handle a push-preview Outbound Campaign voice interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- You are *not* logged in to the Instant Messaging channel.
- Your status is Ready for the voice-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are part of a push-preview Outbound Campaign.
- You have been notified that the campaign is loaded and running (see Starting and Stopping an Outbound Campaign).

Start

1. Your hard phone or soft phone rings, and a preview of the outbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view (see the Outbound Push-Preview Voice Interaction Preview interactive notification figure).

🐼 3333333340 - Workspace	
Case Information	^
Origin: Outbound campaign call to 3333333340	
Accept	Reject

 $\label{eq:outbound} \mbox{ Outbound Push-Preview Voice Interaction Preview interactive notification}$

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call and campaign information. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data related to the call. Contact your system administrator for more information about the contents of this window.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is set up for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the call is answered automatically unless your account is set up to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added**: 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to call the contact.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, a preview of the outbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop (see the Outbound Preview Voice Interaction Push-Preview window figure).

🗑 Genesys 🔸	Workspace	G Admilants +	2٠	••	- 6	1 1
O 1000000	🕲 www.mana aaaaaaa - 🍢 🤩 - 🖽					≣
Case information	California				-	8
Digit Debourd of	mpaign call is 11122111340					8
- 10000000 đ	Ready To Call					
Record Information						
Phone Type	Note Prote					
Call from:	1048					
Call DHR	22.58					
CardNamiler	1					
Exhibition	Monday, May (0), 3911 2:58 29 PM					
Character	h					
Name	And Wei					릇
Price	10.10					3
CON, CLETOMER, B	113					-
-						
				. 54	•	

Outbound Preview Voice Interaction Push-Preview window

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of call and campaign information. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data related to the call. Contact your system administrator for more information about the contents of this window.

[+] Show: Auto-dial and timed auto-dial

In some contact centers, administrators might have set up preview campaigns that automatically dial the call after you get a record or accept an interaction. In this scenario, you are automatically connected to contacts. Skip the next step.

In some contact centers, adminstrators might have set up preview campaigns that automatically dial the contact in a specific number of seconds after you get or accept a record. In this scenario, the Interaction Preview displays a timer that informs you about how many seconds you have to view the preview before the call is automatically connected.

Case Information	
Origin: Outbound	campaign call to 3333333337
• 3333333	Calling In 00:16
Record Informatio	
Phone Type:	Home Phone
Call From:	00:00

A timer is displayed if your account is set up to enable you to view the Interaction Preview before the call is automatically connected.

- 4. You can choose to do any of the following:
 - Change the contact phone number—Click the phone number and select a new one from the dropdown list.
 - Call the contact—Click Call to display the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window (see Step 5).
 - Decline the record—Click the Decline button and choose either to send the record back into the queue by selecting Call this contact later or to cancel the record by selecting Do not call this contact for this campaign.



- 5. Click Done to get the next record from the campaign calling list.
 - View contact records (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database).
 - View contact history (see Managing Contact History).
- If you choose to call the contact, the call is connected in your hard phone or soft phone, and the Outbound Voice Interaction window is displayed (see the Push-Preview Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window figure).

🗑 Genesys 🔸	Workspace	0 AlterDate +	£٠	• •	- 0	8 H
0	・● ==== に に に ・日 目 直・					=
Case Information					-	8
dage Cultouri c	sequeps calles 3111111141					R
- 20000001 4	© Connected					-
Record Information						
Phone Type:	Home Phone					
Call From:	60.00					
Call Unit	25.99					
CardNorber						
DataMeure.	Manday, May 20, 2011 2:58:25 PM					
Character	A					
Rane	Ard Wai					
Picc.	90.99					
GON_CLETCHER,	B 14					
Dispertitions	Note:					N,
Collined						8
Answered					a	а
Do Not Call						
Disposition Cade						
- Note						
Reported						
C Tarolene						

Push-Preview Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window

You can use the Outbound Campaign Voice Interaction window to do the following:

- View contact records (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database).
- View contact history (see Managing Contact History).
- Set a call result and a disposition code, or add the contact to the Do Not Call list (see Step 7).
- Use the Note to add information about the interaction to the interaction history (see Managing Contact History).
- View and edit the Case Information—Summary information about the campaign. It might contain the name of the campaign, a description of the campaign, the phone number of the contact, and so on.
- View and edit the Record Information—Specific information about the record. It might contain a range of time for which the contact has indicated availability, the name of the contact, or information about the nature of the call.
- View and read responses (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- Terminate the call (see Step 6).
- Put the call on hold and retrieve the call. The call status changes to 0n Hold and then back to Connected when you retrieve the call.
- Use the keypad to send DTMF to the contact.
- Start a voice consultation (see Starting a Voice Consultation).
- Transfer the call (see Transferring a Voice Call).

Important

- When you transfer an ASM call, the outbound record is also transferred. The ownership of the record might also be transferred to the target agent, depending on how your system is set up.
- You might have to set a call result or disposition before you complete a transfer or a conference to another agent, for example to a back office worker. If you forget,

an error message is displayed and you are prevented from transferring the call unless you set the call result. After this action, the Call Result and Record Information becomes read-only. [**Added:** 8.5.117.18]

• Conference the call (see Starting a Voice Conference).



- Reschedule a call as a callback (see Lesson: Rescheduling a call as a callback).
 Note: For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.
- 7. When the interaction is complete, either you or the contact can end the call. If you want to terminate the call, click the End Call button.
- 8. If required by your configuration, specify a call result and/or a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction.
 - a. Click the Dispositions tab to make it active.
 - b. (Optional) In the Call Result drop-down list, select a call result (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result drop-down list figure).

Dispositions		Note						
Call Result								
	Unknown							
	Answered							
D	لاس Answering Machine							
	Busy							
	No Answer							
	Wrong Num	ber						
	Unknown							
				-				

Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result drop-down list

c. (Optional) Select an outcome from the Disposition Code drop-down list or radio-button list in the Disposition Code view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure and also Assigning Disposition Codes).



Call Result and Disposition Code views

- d. (Optional) If the contact requests to be put on the Do Not Call list, select Do Not Call in the Call Result view (see the Outbound Campaign Interaction window Call Result and Disposition Code views figure).
- 9. Click Mark Done. This step might be performed for you automatically when you end the call or set a disposition code.
- 10. If the Voice Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Voice Interaction window after you have clicked Mark Done for each of the active interactions.
- 11. Complete your after-call work.
- 12. Set your status on the Voice channel to Ready to receive the next call.

End Next Steps

• Set your status to Ready. See Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window.

Lesson: Rescheduling a call as a callback

Purpose: To reschedule an Outbound-Campaign voice interaction for a different date and/or time and/or phone number.

Tip

Refer to the *Workspace 8.5 Help* for detailed information about all of the features of the Reschedule view.

Prerequisites

 You have an active Outbound Campaign interaction that you want to reschedule for a different date and/ or time.

Start

2 - 2

1. You can reschedule an Outbound-Campaign call (for example, if the contact is too busy to respond now) to a different date and/or time by using the Reschedule a Callback function. In the <u>Outbound</u> Campaign

voice interaction window, in the call-action toolbar, click Reschedule a Callback (). The **Reschedule Callback** view is displayed (see the Reschedule Callback view figure).

Reschedule Callback			×
At: 2/16/2016 04	:19 PM 🌲	Persona	l Callback
		11 12 10 2 2 8 7 6	1 2 3 4 5
To: Home Phone - 99	93615 🔻		

Reschedule Callback view

- 2. Click the Schedule Callback check box to reschedule the call.
- 3. To set a new date, perform one of the following steps:
 - Enter a new date in the date field.
 - Click a new day in the calendar view. Use the left and right arrow buttons to change the month and year.
- 4. To set a new time, perform one of the following steps:
 - Enter a new time in the time field.
 - Click the up and down arrows to change the hours and minutes.
- 5. To reschedule the call from you personally, click Personal Callback. Leave the Personal Callback check box clear to send the interaction back to the calling queue. [**Modified:** 8.5.115.17]
 - In some environments, all rescheduled calls are personal callbacks. In this case, you will not be able to change the selection.
 - In some environments, all rescheduled calls are campaign callbacks (any active agent in the campaign can make the callback). In this case, the **Personal Callback** check box is not displayed.
- 6. To select a new number for the contact, click the Phone drop-down list and choose a different number.
- 7. To add a new number that is to be used for the callback call, click the To drop-down list and select New phone number. The New Phone Number view is displayed (see the New phone number controls in the Reschedule Callback view figure).

🖌 Re	esch	edul	e Cal	llbac	k						×	
At:	2/2	4/20	16	()4 :	19 P	м ‡	~	Per	sona	al Callback	
•	F	ebru	Jary,	201	6	►	Ι,					
Su	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa			11	12	1	
31	ж	2	3	ж	5	.6		10			2	
X	8	9	10	π	12	38		9		~	,	
- 14	15	16	17	18	19	20		8				
21	22	23	24	25	26	27			7		5	
28	29	1	2	3	4	5				6		
6	7	8	9	10	11	12						
To:	Nev	w Ph	one	Num	ber.	•						
Er	nter F	Phor	ne Nu	ımbe	۹ſ	(Non	e)				-	
Fro	om:	12	: 00	AM	¢	Till:	11:5	59 F	PM	÷		

New phone number controls in the Reschedule Callback view

- 8. Enter a new number in the Number field.
- 9. Select a type of number from the Type drop-down list.
- 10. Specify a From time and an Until time in the respective From and Till time displays. These values constrain the time during which the new number is available to accept a callback.
- 11. After you have specified a new date and/or time and, if necessary, a new number, the Reschedule

Callback button changes to the Callback Scheduled button (). Click End Call to disconnect the call.

12. Click Mark Done to reschedule the callback.

End

Related Information

- Outbound Campaign Overview help
- Outbound Preview Calls help
- Outbound Push Preview Calls help
- Outbound Progressive Calls help
- Call Actions for Outbound Calls help

Handle Internal Instant Messaging

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target and receive an IM from an internal target. The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call a contact or an internal target, initiate a conference, or transfer a call. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Instant Messaging Overview
- Sending and Receiving Internal Instant Messages
- Sending and Receiving Consultation Instant Messages

Instant Messaging Overview

Instant Messaging is a type of real-time, text-based communication between two or more participants over a network. IM enables you to convey a text message immediately and receive an immediate text reply without the overhead and time delay that are associated with email and other text-based communication technologies. This feature enables you to send an IM to another agent (internal target) or receive an IM from an internal target. The Workspace IM view provides identification of all connected parties, as well as a timestamp for each message.

Warning

At this time, it is not possible to save the contents of an IM session or record notes in the Note view.

You can conduct an IM session from the following windows/views:

- Main Window (opens in an IM Interaction window)
- Voice Interaction (opens in the Voice Interaction window)
- Email Interaction (opens in the Email Interaction window)
- Chat Interaction (opens in the Chat Interaction window)
- Workitem Interaction (opens in the Workitem Interaction window)

Sending and Receiving Internal Instant Messages

Workspace Instant Messaging (IM) is carried by a SIP switch. To send and receive instant message, your contact center must have a SIP switch, and your role must include the IM task.
Important

Workspace supports only internal IM sessions.

This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session
- Lesson: Receiving an Instant Messaging session

Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, queue), and begin a text-based message-exchange session.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

- 1. Use the Team Communicator in your Main Window view to find the internal target with whom you want to start an IM session (see Find A Contact Or An Internal Target).
- 2. Select Send an Instant Message from the Action Menu drop-down list next to the name of the internal target in the Team Communicator pop-up result-list (see the The Send an Instant Message option of the Team Communicator Action menu figure).



The Send an Instant Message option of the Team Communicator Action menu

The IM interaction window is displayed.

3. Enter a message to your target. The session starts in the Interaction window (see the An Instant Messaging session in the Interaction window figure) when you send your first message. The target is presented with an interactive notification that enables the target to accept or reject your invitation to engage in an IM session. You are notified if the target accepts, rejects, or lets your invitation time-out.

		11
0 anno 0 ann 1		≣
Case Information	-	8
Brigin: Instant messaging to Jim Miller		ŝ.
- Jo Mile O Converted		5
Welcome to instant Messaging. Send a message to start the anxion		
Reference 122-1279	£.	
Jan Miler accepted the Instant Messaging instantion.		
An Miler Solution Solution		
	-	

An Instant Messaging session in the Interaction window

- 4. If your target accepts your invitation, you can conduct an IM session by entering a text message to the internal target in the text field at the bottom of the view.
- 5. Click Send or press the Enter key on your keyboard to send your message to the internal target. The text of your message is displayed in the Transcript field of your interaction window. Messages from you are identified by your login name and a color that is different from the one that is used to identify replies from the internal target. Replies from the internal target are displayed in the Transcript field along with your messages. Messages are displayed in the order in which they are sent and received. Each message is tagged with a timestamp (see the An Instant Messaging session in the Interaction window figure). The Interaction window displays the name of the party to whom you are connected and the status of the connection: Establishing, Connected, or Ended.
- 6. When your session is complete, click the End IM button to end the IM session. The internal target can also do this.
- 7. Click the Done button to close the Interaction window.

End

Lesson: Receiving an Instant Messaging session

Purpose: To receive an invitation to a join a text-based message-exchange session with another agent.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. If another agent selects you as an internal target for an IM session, an interactive notification is displayed that invites you to accept or reject the invitation to join the IM session (see the Instant Messaging interactive notification figure).



Instant Messaging interactive notification

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

- 2. Do one of three things:
 - Click Accept to display the new IM interaction in your Interaction window.
 - Click Reject to refuse the IM interaction.
 - Allow the invitation to time-out. The interactive notification is dismissed.
- 3. If you clicked Accept, the session starts in your Interaction window. The tab that is displayed at the top of the Interaction window indicates the agent logon of the internal caller with whom you are in an IM session. The status of the connection: Not Connected, Connected, or Ended, is displayed near the top of the Interaction window. The large text field contains a transcript of the IM session. Your logon and the logon of the internal caller are displayed above your messages in different colors to help you to identify who is writing. Each entry is marked with a timestamp. Messages are displayed in the order in which they are sent and received (see the Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent figure).

් Workspace	🗧 Kala Lawia 🔻	۰ 🗈	• •	- O X
An ender Q === x •				≣
Case Information				- 5
deight instant messaging hom Jim Miller				2
* Janitite @ Connected				2
Understilled instanted an Instant Messaging instanton				
2 Inthe Internet	3.36.53 PM			
Rate Lines accepted the Instant Theorypeg Endation.				
Tak Li				
and 201				-
L			_	

Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent

- 4. Reply to the calling agent by entering your message in the field that is displayed next to the Send button.
- 5. Click Send or press the Enter key on your keyboard to send your message to the internal caller.
- 6. When your session is complete, click the End IM button to end the IM session. The caller might also do this.
- 7. Click the Done button to close the Interaction window.

End

Sending and Receiving Consultation Instant Messages

Workspace Instant Messaging (IM) enables you to start an IM Consultation from an active interaction, such as voice, email, or chat.

Important

Workspace supports only internal IM sessions.

This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Starting a Consultation IM session from an active interaction
- Lesson: Receiving a Consultation IM session from an active interaction and transitioning to a Voice Consultation

Lesson: Starting a Consultation IM session from an active interaction

Purpose: To start a Consultation IM session from an active interaction.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction, Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction, or Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction).

Start

- 1. On your active Interaction view, click Start Consultation to open the Team Communicator (see the Start Consultation Team Communicator in an active interaction figure) to find the internal target with whom you want to start an IM session.
- 2. Enter the name, email address, or phone number of the internal target (see the Start Consultation Team Communicator in an active interaction figure).
- 3. From the internal target Action menu, select Start Instant Message Consultation (see the Start Consultation Team Communicator in an active interaction figure).



Start Consultation Team Communicator in an active interaction

- 4. A new Internal IM message view is displayed in the active interaction view. The status is Not Connected (see the Internal IM message view in an active interaction window figure).
 - To initiate an Internal IM session, enter a message and click Send.
 - To cancel the IM session, click the Done button.

🛞 🧧 Ravi Pache 🕓 00:02:55 🕊 🥲 🤩 - 📞 - 🏢	હ 🍦
Case Information	+ ^
Origin: Inbound call to 4001	
Queue: 4001	
	(11) 🕒 (1)
Dispositions Note	
	Save
Consultation: John Davis 🔿	Save
Consultation: John Davis O John Davis O Not Connected	Save
Consultation: John Davis O John Davis O Not Connected Done	Save
Consultation: John Davis O John Davis Not Connected Welcome to Instant Messaging. Send a message to start the session	Save
Consultation: John Davis O John Davis O Not Connected Done Welcome to Instant Messaging. Send a message to start the session	Save
Consultation: John Davis O John Davis Not Connected Done Welcome to Instant Messaging. Send a message to start the sessio	Save
Consultation: John Davis O John Davis Not Connected Done Welcome to Instant Messaging. Send a message to start the session	Save
Consultation: John Davis	Save

Internal IM message view in an active interaction window

5. If you sent a message (see the Initial message sent to IM Consultation target figure), the internal target receives an interactive notification of your instant message that includes your initial message (see the Instant Messaging consultation interactive notification figure).



Initial message sent to IM Consultation target

6. If the internal target accepts your invitation, you and the target are engaged in an internal IM session (see the Active IM Consultation session in an active interaction window figure).

Cons	sultation: John Davis 🔿 (00:00:48)		^
• .	John Davis O Connected		
\$	End		
	Welcome to Instant Messaging. Send a message to start the session		٦
	SIP 5322 11:29:04 AM Hello John, can you help me with this call? John Davis accepted the Instant Messaging invitation.	<u> </u>	
£	John Davis 11:29:39 AM Yes		
L			
		Send	

Active IM Consultation session in an active interaction window

All the Case Information about the interaction with the contact is displayed in the IM interaction window of your internal target (see the Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent figure). The Contact Information and Contact History tabs enable your internal target to view information about your contact and to search the contact history database. The Information tab is read-only. You can do the following in the Consultation IM interaction window:

- Enter messages in the message field.
- Click Send to send the message to the internal target.
- Review the message transcript in the message transcript area.
- Click End session to terminate your IM Consultation.

End

Lesson: Receiving a Consultation IM session from an active interaction and transitioning to a Voice Consultation

Purpose: To handle an IM consultation request and handle a request to transition to a Voice Consultation.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the voice-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the IM consultation interaction.

Start

 If another agent, who is handling an interaction, selects you as an internal target for an IM consultation session, an interactive notification is displayed that invites you to accept or reject the invitation to join the IM consultation session (see the Instant Messaging consultation interactive notification figure). The notification displays the invitation message from the agent and the case information for the interaction that the agent is handling.



Instant Messaging consultation interactive notification

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

- 2. Do one of three things:
 - Click Accept to display the new IM interaction in your Interaction window.
 - Click Reject to refuse the IM interaction.
 - Allow the invitation to time-out. The interactive notification is dismissed.
- 3. If you clicked Accept, the session starts in your Interaction window. The tab that is displayed at the top of the Interaction window indicates the agent logon of the internal caller with whom you are in an IM session. The status of the connection: Not Connected, Connected, or Ended, is displayed near the top of the Interaction window. The large text field contains a transcript of the IM session. Your logon and the logon of the internal caller are displayed above your messages in different colors to help you to identify who is writing. Each entry is marked with a timestamp. Messages are displayed in the order in which they are sent and received (see the Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent figure). All the Case Information about the interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent figure). The Contact Information and Contact History tabs enable you to view information about the contact and to search the contact history database. The Information tab is read-only.

성 Workspace	0 Afellañs - 重	• • •	- 0
S = 10° 107 O 3003 P			=
fas Internation			- 8
Ongine Consultation instant messaging from SP 5227			18
Consultation: 50F 5227 🖨 (02-66.21)			•
- 10-1111 () Connected			
This is a consolution instant Warraging about Navi Pacha.			
International Access of the second seco			
adia Gavia Ten		2	£ 8
			8
			and .
and the second			

Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent

- 4. Reply to the calling agent by entering your message in the field that is displayed next to the Send button (see the Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent figure). The IM consultation session can be transitioned to a Voice consultation (see Blending Internal Voice Interactions and Internal IM Interactions).
- 5. Click Send or press the Enter key on your keyboard to send your message to the internal caller (see the Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent figure).

- 6. When your session is complete, click the End IM button to end the IM session. The caller might also do this (see the **Interaction window displaying an Instant Messaging session that was initiated by another agent** figure above).
- 7. Click the Done button to close the Interaction window.

End

Related Information

• Internal Instant Message (IM) help

Handle A Chat Interaction

[Modified: 8.5.115.17, 8.5.113.11, 8.5.128.07, 8.5.142.05]

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle inbound chat interactions, and how to check the spelling of your chat messages before you send them.



Tip

If your chat interaction includes the **Altocloud** tab on the right side, you can learn about Altocloud interactions and journeys here.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction
- Spelling Check
- Handling a chat interaction that includes chat bot Rich Media
- How do I continue a chat interaction?

Tip

Why is the Chat Interaction bar flashing? While your are handling a chat interaction, sometimes you change your focus to another interaction, such as a chat with a different contact, a phone call, or an email, or you might start using another application and its windows block the Workspace windows. [Added: 8.5.113.11]

In these situations you might notice that the Chat Interaction bar in the Interaction Bar begins to flash yellow and that the Workspace icon in the task bar also flashes yellow.

This flashing notifies you that something has changed. Here are some of the reasons that the chat interaction might flash in the Interaction Bar:

- The pending response has reached the warning stage.
- Another agent has joined or left the chat (such as your supervisor or someone involved in a consultation).
- The contact has left the chat.
- The chat session is about to timeout due to inactivity by you and your contact.
- The chat session has timed out due to inactivity by you and your contact.
- The chat session is about to close because the contact has disconnected. Your administrator might specify that chat interactions close automatically after a contact disconnects. They might also specify a timer before the chat closes to let you finish after call work. Once a chat closes, you cannot add a disposition or a note. [Added: 8.5.128.07]

Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction

If you are the selected internal target for an inbound chat interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it, the Chat Interaction window is displayed. The Chat Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction

[Modified: 8.5.115.17, 8.5.121.03]

Purpose: To handle an inbound chat interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the chat-media channel (see Lession: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the inbound interaction.

Start

1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view (see the Chat Interaction interactive notification figure).

🗩 Avril Mai - Workspace	
Case Information	^
Origin: Inbound chat	
Help with on line purchase	
Accept	Reject

Chat Interaction interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and interaction-type. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the chat is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time-out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the inbound Chat Interaction window is displayed (see the Chat Interaction window figure). The Inbound Chat Interaction window provides the following functionality:
 - Read messages from the contact in the transcript area of the Chat Interaction window.
 - Compose a message/response.
 - Check the spelling of your message/response (see Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in a chat message).
 - · Send a message/response.
 - Select, verify, and send a URL (see the *Workspace 8.5 Help*).

The message-transcript area of the Chat Interaction window contains color-coded, time-stamped message lines from your company's system, as well as the messages that are sent by the contact and your replies (see the Chat Interaction window figure). A different color is designated for each message

type. The colors are defined by your system administrator.

S Workspace			0	inis Louis +	1 •	•	
🛞 🚺 Arritha 🔘 10.002 🖷 🛒 - 🛸 - 🔃 🗶 -							=
Case Information + +	0	Information	History				
Bright Housed dud	8	0.04					
- Aut The O Connected 10/7 80 0	1	General					
		100	(Nerve)		-		
formed that Service for other state)		First Name	Autil			ж	
New party ' Antilli' has joined the amount		Lost Name	Max			к	
Agent will be with you shortly (through Out Janver OutGarver)		Plane Namber					
New party Kate Lewis Tax prived the session		10100481		(New)		х я	Primary
		2015		(Ners)		Кζ	
tered to be a set of the set of t		Add Phone Ro	ober +				
062	8	E-mail-fuldeese					
	- ž -	A,Maijimatida		(here)		ж	
Dependions Note		Add E-mail Rd	dem +				
See.							

Chat Interaction window

Tip

Sometimes URLs (links to websites) are sent to you by a contact. URLs in the Chat transcript are always displayed as the actual address. Contacts cannot send you a disguised URL in an attempt to direct you to a malicious website. You will be able to read the URL before clicking on it. If you hover your mouse pointer over the URL, a tooltip is displayed that lets you see the address.

4. To begin interacting with your contact, enter a message in the message area, and then click **Send**. Your message is displayed to the contact in the chat interface that the contact is using to communicate with you. Your message is also added to the transcript area of the Chat Interaction window. You might see a small circle in the bottom right of your message in the transcript. When the circle disappears, you know that your message has been read by the contact.

John Davis Hello, how can I help you?



Your system administrator configures how your name appears to your contacts. It might be your real name, your user name, or a nickname.

When your contact is typing in their chat interface, a small notice appears next to the contact's name in the chat transcript to notify you that they are typing. Your system might be configured to let you see what the contact is entering before they send it (see the following figure). [**Modified:** 8.5.108.11]



Your system might be set up to let you see what a contact is typing before they send it to you

Be careful not to respond to what the contact is typing before they have sent it to you!

Sometimes while you are chatting with a contact, you want to view earlier chat interactions with the contact, particularly if you are working on an ongoing issue with the contact. For example, sometimes a contact might disconnect from a chat interaction because the chat timed out or they lost connection on their device before the session was complete. When they reconnect, it is important to have the earlier session for reference so that you do not ask for information that they have already provided. You can access the entire history of interactions with a contact by clicking the History tab in the Contact view of the interaction window; see: Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact view of the Interaction window.

Your account might be configured so that older chat interactions with the contact are displayed, in chronological order, directly above the current chat interaction. If your account is set up for this feature, in the transcript you will see text above the current chat session indicating where the current chat begins and a message informing you that to see older chat sessions you must scroll up. It might take a few seconds for older chat sessions to load and be displayed in the chat transcript. [Added: 8.5.122.08]



When you scroll up, each older chat session is divided by a day, for example **Yesterday** or **November 29**, to make it easier for you to find a specific session.



Once all the older chat sessions have loaded a notice is displayed informing you from how long ago older chat sessions are available.

 Avril Ma 	er you useru mat unter	E (/) = (
Gu	ment chat (All available chat sessions loaded from the	last 180 days)	
Chi	at System gent will be with you shortly (through Chat Server Chat	12:07:11 PM Server)	Ģ
	New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the sessio	n	
Jim	n Miller ello, how can I help you today?	12:07:39 PM O	£
Avril N My cr	fai redit card was rejected when I tried to make a purchase	12:09:18 PM	

5. Your account might be set up to let you send emojis (emoticons or 'smileys') to your contact as part of the text of a chat interaction. Emojis are little faces and other symbols that you can use to let your contact know how you are feeling or to help them to know when something is good, funny, bad, or sad. Ask your supervisor or administrator about when to use emojis. To send an emoji do the following:

- a. Click the **Choose an emoji** button (\bigcirc) that appears next to the **Send** button to display the menu of emojis that you can send.
- b. Click an emoji to copy it to the message composition area.



c. Click Send.

[Added: 8.5.115.17]

- 6. Messages that are sent by your contact are displayed together with your messages in the message transcript area (see the Chat Interaction window progress bar and message area figure). When you receive a message from the contact, a small progress bar is displayed near the top of the Chat Interaction window, on the Chat icon. The progress bar expands from left to right. It begins as green, changes to yellow, and finally changes to red, to indicate that a response is expected from you. See the *Workspace 8.5 Help* for more information about the behavior of the Chat Interaction window. While you are interacting with your contact, you can use the following functionality in the Chat Interaction window:
 - Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
 - View and edit Case Information for the current interaction.
 - Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.
 - View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History.
 - View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
 - Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
 - View the Standard Response Library if you decide to call the sender instead of replying to the email. See Inserting a Standard Response into an Email Interaction
 - Call the sender by clicking the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the contact name.



Chat Interaction window progress bar and message area

7. Your account might be set up to let you receive files, including PDFs, .doc, images, and other types, from your contact as an attachment to the chat interaction. The received file is displayed as a thumbnail or as an icon that corresponds to the file type in the chat transcript. If there is a problem with the transferred file, you will see the following icon and tooltip. You might have to request that the sender check that they sent the correct file and then ask him or her to resend it.



You might be allowed to save file attachments to your workstation or network:

- · Click the save button on the thumbnail/icon, or,
- Right-click to open the file attachment action menu and select **Save As**. If more than one file has been transferred, you can choose **Save All** to save all the files, including the files that you transferred.

You might be allowed to open file attachments in the appropriate application, for example: Paint.

- Double-click the thumbnail/icon to open the file in the default application, or,
- Right-click to open the file attachment action menu and select **Open**.



[Added: 8.5.115.17]

- 8. Your account might be set up to let you send files, including PDFs, .doc, images, and other types, to your contact as an attachment to the chat interaction. There are two possible modes that might be enabled for this feature: From your workstation or network, and from the Responses tab.
 - To attach a file to a chat from your workstation or network, perform the following steps:
 - a. In the chat text composition field, Click *O* Add Attachments.

Note: You can also drag and drop a file to the message composition area.

- b. In the Open window, navigate to the file that you want to attach and select the file.
- c. Click **Open**. The file name appears below the chat text composition field with a paperclip icon next to it. You can click the file name to open a menu that lets you open and save the attachment.
- d. Click **Send** to transfer the file to your contact. The file appears as a thumbnail or as an icon that corresponds to the file type in the chat transcript, and is sent to your contact.

Note: If there is a problem with the transferred file, you will see the following icon and tooltip. Check that you sent the correct file and then resend it.



- To attach a file to a chat from a standard response, perform the following steps:
 - a. Open the Responses tab and navigate to the file that you want to transfer.



- b. Double-click a response that contains an attachment or click Insert Standard Response Text to add the file as an attachment.
 Before or after you transfer the file, you might have the ability to open, save, save all, delete (remove from the list of files to send), delete all, or print the file. Click the file name to display the drop-down menu.
- c. Click **Send** to transfer the file.

[Added: 8.5.115.17]

9. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix, displaying the number and type of interactions in progress figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



You might be configured to be notified if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.

	3)	
3 Rec	ent Interactions in last day	y:
<u>ي لا</u>	2/21/2014 4:08:46 PM	
¥ ~	2/21/2014 12:55:59 PM	Open new account
¥ 🐖	2/20/2014 7:26:22 PM	Account login failed

- 10. If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant Transfer the chat to another internal target. See Transferring a Chat Interaction.
 - Start a consultation with another party:
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Conference.

- Start a Chat Consultation. See Starting or Receiving a Chat Consultation.
- 11. When you are finished interacting with your contact, click End Chat to stop the current chat interaction. After you or the contact has ended the chat session, you can perform the following functions:
 - Select Mark Done for the current interaction. The transcript is saved in the contact history and the Chat Interaction window is closed.
 - Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.

End

Spelling Check

You might be enabled to use the Spelling Check functionality. The Chat Interaction window has automatic spelling-check capabilities that enable you to correct misspelled words or add words to your personal dictionary.

Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in a chat

message

Purpose: To verify the spelling of the content of an outbound chat message.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active Chat interaction (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound Chat Interaction).

Start

- 1. Begin entering text in the message area of a Chat Interaction window (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction). You can enter text by typing at the insertion point, pasting content from another document, or inserting a standard response (Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- 2. When Spelling Check is on, words in the message area that are not in the specified dictionary are underlined by a red, wavy line. The Chat message composition area, displaying a misspelled word that is underlined in red figure shows a chat message that contains a word that is not in the English (United States) dictionary (the default dictionary for this user). The misspelled word is happening, which is misspelled as happppening.



Chat message composition area, displaying a misspelled word that is underlined in red

- 3. You can correct the spelling by using one of two methods:
 - Edit the word(s) manually.
 - Right-click the word to display the Spelling Check menu.

Okay, what is happp	naina?		_		
	happening	Ռո			
	appending	0			Send
	appertaining		- L	🖸 🖉 🗣	
Discositions	appealing				
Dispositions	appeasing				
	Ignore		-		
	Ignore All				
	Add to My Dictiona	ary			
	Cut	Ctrl+X			
	Сору	Ctrl+C			
	Paste	Ctrl+V			
	Select All	Ctrl+A			
	Check Spelling				
	Languages				
			_		

Chat Interaction window Spelling Check menu

- 4. If you right-clicked the misspelled word to display the Spelling Check menu, you can do one of the following:
 - Select the correct spelling from the list of suggestion (bold text).
 - Ignore--Select to ignore this instance of the word that is not in the specified language dictionary.
 - Ignore All--Select to ignore all instances of the word that is not in the specified language dictionary for this interaction only.
 - Add to My Dictionary--Select to add the spelling to your personal dictionary (not your corporate dictionary).
 - Spell Checking--Select to turn the Spelling Check functionality off or on.
 - Languages--Select to open the list of available language dictionaries. You can select a different language dictionary.
- 5. If you try to send a message that contains misspelled world, your system might be configured to display a warning dialog box that asks you to confirm that you want to send the message without correcting the potential misspelled words. Click **Yes** to send the message anyway, or click **No** to return to the message and correct the misspelled words. [**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

End

Handling a Chat interaction that includes chat bot Rich Media

[Added: 8.5.142.05] In some Genesys Environments chat bots might be used to automatically interact with your organization's contacts. Chat bots are programs that send information to contacts through a chat widget when a contact visits your organization's website. Chat bots often handle the initial exchange with a contact to determine whether or not the chat should be redirected to a live agent as a new Chat interaction. Chat bots might also participate in an active chat session. Chat bots can use Rich Media such as Quick Replies and Offer templates. Offer templates can include images or video organized as a list, a selection list, or a carousel. Offer templates might leverage Mark Down capabilities to enhance the appearance of the chat bot message.

Lesson: Handling a chat interaction that includes chat bot rich media

Purpose: To take over a conversation with a contact from a chat bot.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

- 1. A chat interaction is directed to you from your organization's system. The chat transcript contains one or more messages exchanged between the contact and a chat bot. The transcript might include one of the following Rich Media types:
 - Quick Replies
 - Offer templates
 - Lists
 - Markdown templates

Rich Media might also be available for you to review in the **Responses** tab.

- 2. Review the transcript. If the contact made a selection, such as one of the Quick Reply choices or one of the offers in a contact action Offer template, the selection is displayed to you below the Rich Media. You cannot interact with the Rich Media or make selections yourself. Use the transcript to know what the contact is looking for so that you do not have to repeat the questions that were asked by the chat bot.
- 3. Continue to interaction with the contact according to the practices and requirements of your organization.

End

Quick Replies

Chat bots might present your contact with a set of "quick reply" buttons that let the contact choose a reply rather than typing a reply. The chat transcript will contain the standard question posed by the chat bot and the text of the quick reply button clicked by the contact. Click the thumbnail to see an example of what a quick reply might look like.



The bot presented the contact with three options for ordering tea, **Black**, **Green**, and **Mint**. The contact selected **Black**.

Contact actions

Chat bots can display descriptive text, pictures, videos, selection lists, and selection buttons, such as **Buy now**, to contacts. If your company uses offer/information templates to enable contact actions, such as clicking a button or selecting an item from a list, the chat transcript will contain the content that was presented to the contact along with text telling you what the contact did. For example, if the contact clicked the **Buy now** button, the transcript might say **The contact clicked Buy now**.

When a contact clicks on a button, list item, or other element, a corresponding action is executed. For example, additional information is displayed or an order placement is initiated. Often actions might send text back to the contact. All this information and the actions taken are displayed to you.

Click the thumbnail to see an example of what an offer/information template might look like and how a contact action is displayed.



The bot presented three different travel options with radio buttons to choose one. The contact chose **Thailand**.

If a carousel offer template was displayed to the contact, you will see forward and backward navigation buttons next to the templates that enable you to page back and forth through the displayed templates. This is called a carousel template because clicking the navigation buttons simulates flipping through a carousel of images or videos. Click the thumbnail to see an example of a carousel template.



In this example, the contact navigates through the carousel until they see an offer of interest. The

buttons below the video of Norway enable the contact to either get more details about the offer or book the offer immediately.

Lists

Chat bots might present your contact with a list of items, such as sales offers, that the contact can review. Some lists are for information only, others might have selections set up by your administrator. The transcript will include the list that was displayed to the contact, including any images or other media, and any selections they might have made. Click the thumbnail to see an example of a list of items presented to a contact.



Markdown templates

Rich Media uses text markdown to enable your organization to format bot content. Click the thumbnail to see some of the different ways that text can be formatted for presentation to contacts.



This example shows a display image, headings, bold text, bulleted and numbered lists, hyperlinks, and an embedded image.

Rich Media in the Responses tab

All the different rich media types can also be viewed in the **Responses** tab if your administrator sets them up. You cannot transfer Rich Media from the **Responses** tab into the chat text field. They are view-only. Click the thumbnail to see an example of a carousel template in the **Responses** tab.



How do I continue a chat interaction?

 Some environments have asynchronous chat available. This feature keeps chats open after the last agent leaves the session, and the agent can rejoin the session until the session is marked **Done**. Here's how it works if it is available in your environment: Link to video

Related Information

Chat Interaction help

Handle A Chat Consultation

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to find an internal agent and start a chat consultation. A chat conference enables an internal target to participate in the current chat session with you and your contact. A chat consultation enables an internal target to view the chat transcript between you and your contact, and to chat with you privately in a second chat session in the same Chat Interaction window. The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call an internal target or a contact, initiate a conference, or transfer a call. This lesson contains the following section:

• Starting or Receiving a Chat Consultation

Starting or Receiving a Chat Consultation

The Workspace Chat Interaction window enables you to consult with an internal target about your current chat interaction. Your internal target can see the messages that you exchange with your contact, but the contact does not see the messages that you exchange with your internal target. Chat consultation is only available from an active Chat interaction. A chat consultation between two agents is ended if the chat with the contact is ended. This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Starting a chat consultation
- Lesson: Receiving a chat consultation request

Lesson: Starting a chat consultation

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, agent group, skill, interaction queue, or routing point), and then start and complete a chat consultation with the internal target, without the current contact seeing the messages that you exchange with the internal target.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active Chat interaction with a contact (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction).

Start

 In the active Chat Interaction window, click the Start Consultation button and then use the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for a chat consultation in the active Chat Interaction window figure) to find the internal target with whom you want to start a consultation (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target). To consult with an agent group, a skill, or an interaction queue, choose the name of the skill, group, or queue, and an available agent with that skill or in that group or queue is notified of your consultation request.



Finding an internal target for a chat consultation in the active Chat Interaction window

2. Click the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target with whom you want to consult, and then select Start Chat Consultation. An interaction notification is displayed on the desktop of your target.

When the internal target accepts the consultation request, you can chat with the internal target without the contact reading the messages that you exchange.

If the consultation target does not accept your request, the consultation request is released.

3. When you are connected to your consultation target, the chat interaction with the internal target is added to the Chat Interaction window below the interaction with your contact (see the Chat Interaction window, displaying a consultation chat with an internal target below the chat interaction with the contact figure).

Consu	Itation: Jim Miller 🔿 (00:02:15)		
• Jir	n Miller O Connected		
₩.	nd		
	New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session		
	Jim Miller	3:28:02 PM	Ŷ
	Hello Kate, I'll have a look at the customer's account.	0	-
	Kate Lewis Thank you, Jim.	3:28:20 PM	₽
Jim Mil	ler is typing a message	0	
			Send
		\odot	

Chat Interaction window, displaying a consultation chat with an internal target below the chat interaction with the contact

You can perform any of the following functions by using the Chat Consult toolbar and interface:

- End the consultation.
- Call the internal target by using the Action menu drop-down list next to the party name.
- IM the internal target by using the Action menu drop-down list next to the party name.
- Mark Done the chat consultation.
- The transcript of your interaction with the contact, and any notes you might have recorded, are displayed in the Chat Interaction window on the desktop of your consultation target. However, the consultation target cannot interact with your contact (see the Chat Consultation Interaction window figure).
- The internal target can choose to release the consultation. If this happens, the internal target is disconnected, but you remain connected to the contact.
- If you click the End button and the internal target is still connected, the session is transferred automatically to the internal target. If you have completed your chat interaction and the internal target has already

disconnected from the conference, go to Step 8 of the Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction.

End

Lesson: Receiving a chat consultation request

Purpose: Receive an invitation to a consult about a chat interaction from another agent to provide assistance to that agent in completing an active interaction.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Interaction (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the chat media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

Start

1. If another agent wants to consult with you about a chat interaction, they will initiate a chat consultation. You are notified of the consultation request by the Workspace Interaction Preview (see the Consultation Interaction Notification that is displayed on your desktop figure).

O Avril Mai - Workspace					
Case Information	^				
Origin: Consultation chat					
Help with on line purchase					
Accept	Reject				

Consultation Interaction Notification that is displayed on your desktop

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the contents of the window to you. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

Click Accept to connect to the chat interaction.

- The Workspace Chat Consultation Interaction window (see the Chat Consultation Interaction window figure) enables you to perform the following functions while you are chatting with the agent who initiated the consultation:
 - View the transcript of the chat session between the contact and the agent who initiated the consultation.
 - Send messages to the agent who initiated the consultation.
 - Receive messages from the agent who initiated the consultation.
 - End the consultation.

- Call the agent who initiated the consultation.
- Mark Done the chat consultation.

rigin: Consul	Itation chat		
	Helio, how can I help you today?	0.23/401188	X
Avril Mai Hello, I a been fro	8.24.07 PM am having trouble making an on line purchase. Has my card izen?		
	Kate Lewis One moment and I will check for you.	8:24:23 PM	£
Note			
onsultation.	Kate Lewis 🧿 (00-03-20)		
onsultation	Kate Lewis 💿 (00:03:20)		^
onsultation: Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis 💿 (00-03.20) s 💿 Connected		^
Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis 💿 (00:03:20) s 💽 Connected		~
Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis 💿 (00:03:20) s 💽 Connected m Miller' has joined the session		^
Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis (00.03.20) Connected m Miller' has joined the session Jim Miller	8-28-02 PM	^
Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis (00003.20) Connected m Miller has joined the session Jim Miller	8-28-02 PM	۰ ۲
Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis (0000320) Connected m Miller has joined the session Jim Miller Hello Kate, Fil have a look at the customer's account.	8-28-02 PM	۔ ٩
ensuitation Kate Lewis R End	Kate Lewis (0000320) Kate Lewis (0000320) Miller Hello Kate, Fil have a look at the customer's account. Kate Lewis	8-28-02 PM 8-28-20 PM	• • •
onsultation Kate Lewis K End	Kate Lewis (00.03.20) Connected m Miller' has joined the session Jim Miller Hello Kate, I'll have a look at the customer's account. Kate Lewis Thank you, Jim.	8-28-02 PM 8-28-20 PM	• • •
ensultation Kate Lewis K End lew party 'Jir	Kate Lewis (0000320) Miller has joined the session Jim Miller Helio Kate, fil have a look at the customer's account. Kate Lewis Thank you, Jim.	8 28:02 PM 8 28:20 PM	• • •
Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis (0000320) Miller has joined the session Jim Miller Hello Kate, Fil have a look at the customer's account. Kate Lewis Thank you, Jim.	8-28-02 PM 8-28-20 PM	• • •
ensuitation Kate Lewis C End New party "Jir	Kate Lewis (00:03:20) Connected m Miller' has joined the session Jim Miller Hello Kate, Fil have a look at the customer's account. Kate Lewis Thank you, Jim.	8-28-02 PM 8-28-20 PM	• • •
• Kate Lewis	Kate Lewis (00.03.20) Connected m Miller' has joined the session Jim Miller Hello Kate, Fil have a look at the customer's account. Kate Lewis Thank you, Jim.	8 28 02 PM 8 28 20 PM	۰ ۲ Send

Chat Consultation Interaction window

Tip

The consultation part of a chat interaction is not consider as a standalone interaction in your activity history. It is owned by the original contact interaction, not your history. The consultation part of the transcript of a contact interaction does not show up in the Contact History nor the My History.

My History reports the contact-related interactions where the logged in agent engaged with the contact. Agents who are consulted are not considered as engaged with the contact and as a consequence are not marked as 'interaction owner'; therefore, this interaction does not show up in the My History of this agent.

For example: contact engaged with Agent1 - Agent1 consults Agent2, you will have:

- 1 New entry in My History of Agent1 does not contain consultation transcript with Agent2
- No entry in My History of Agent2

End

Related Information

Chat Consultation help

Transfer A Chat Interaction

In this lesson, you will learn how to transfer chat interactions to an internal target. This lesson contains the following section:

- Transferring a Chat Interaction
- Starting a Chat Transfer to an Active Consultation

Transferring a Chat Interaction

The Workspace Chat Interaction window enables you to transfer your current chat interaction to another party. In this section, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to transfer a chat interaction to an internal target. The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call a contact or an internal target, initiate a chat conference, or transfer chat interaction. This section contains the following procedure:

- Lesson: Starting an instant chat transfer
- Lesson: Receiving a transferred chat
- Lesson: Starting a chat transfer to an active consultation

Lesson: Starting an instant chat transfer

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue), and then transfer the chat to the internal target.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction).

Start

1. In the active Chat Interaction window, click Transfer to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for a chat transfer in the active Chat Interaction window figure) to find the internal target to whom you want to transfer the current interaction (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).



2. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target to whom you want to transfer the interaction and then select Instant Chat Transfer. An invitation is sent to the target to accept the chat transfer. If the target accepts the interaction transfer request, the interaction window closes on your desktop and opens on the desktop of the transfer target (see the Transferred Chat Interaction window displayed on the desktop to the transfer target figure).

🛞 🚺 AvrilM 🔘 00:00:42 🐺 چ - 🏣 - 🛅 🖄 -				
Case Information			+	^
Origin: Inbound chat				
- AvrilM O Connected				
Agent will be with you shortly (through Chat Server ChatServer) New party 'Kate Lewis' has joined the session				
Kate Lewis Hello, how can I help you today?	4:59:	02 PM	Q	I
AvrilM 4:59:11 PM Hello, I am having an issue making an on line purchase. There might be an issue with my credit card.	1			I
Kate Lewis Let me transfer you to Jim. Party 'Kate Lewis' has left the session	4:59:	26 PM	£	=
New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session				L
Jim Miller	5:00:	58 PM	Ω	L
Hello, I see that you are having a credit card issue.			_	I
				1
- -		æ	Sen	d
		*+		

If the target does not accept the interaction transfer request, the Chat Interaction window remains displayed on your desktop and an error is displayed both at the top of the window and in the Workspace My Messages interactive notification.

End

Lesson: Receiving a transferred chat

Purpose: To receive a transferred chat interaction from another agent.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the chat media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

Start

1. If another agent wants to transfer a chat interaction to you, they can choose between an instant transfer and a transfer from a consultation. You are notified of the consultation request by the Workspace Interaction Preview interactive notification (see the Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a transfer request figure).

🔿 Avril Mai - Workspace						
Case Information	^					
Origin: Inbound chat						
Help with on line purchase						
Accept	Reject					

Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a transfer request

Тір

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

Click Accept to accept the transfer or to consult first with the calling agent:

- If the calling agent initiated an instant transfer, the call is immediately transferred to you. Go to Step 3 of the Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction.
- If the calling agent initiated a consultation transfer, the Workspace Chat Interaction window is displayed. It shows your status as connected to the calling agent.

\odot	AvrilM 🔘 00:00:42 屎 چ 📭 🗸 🛅 🖄 🗸	
Case In	formation +	^
Origin	: Inbound chat	
→ A	vrilM O Connected	
Agen New	t will be with you shortly (through Chat Server ChatServer) party 'Kate Lewis' has joined the session	I
	Kate Lewis4:59:02 PMHello, how can I help you today?	ł
	AvrilM 4:59:11 PM Hello, I am having an issue making an on line purchase. There might be an issue with my credit card.	I
Party	Kate Lewis 4:59:26 PM Let me transfer you to Jim. 'Kate Lewis' has left the session	Ξ
New	party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session	
	Jim Miller 5:00:58 PM 💽	
	Hello, I see that you are having a credit card issue.	
I		
	ः	nd

2. You are now the owner of the chat interaction. Refer to Step 3 of Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction, for information about handling a chat interaction.

End

Starting a Chat Transfer to an Active Consultation

The following procedure demonstrates how to transfer a chat interaction to a party with whom you are in a chat consultation; however, it is also possible to transfer from other types of consultations, such as voice, by following the same steps that are presented in the procedure.

Lesson: Starting a chat transfer to an active consultation

Purpose: To transfer the chat to an internal target with whom you are currently engaged in an active consultation.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction).
- You have an active consultation with an internal target (see Lesson: Starting a chat consultation).

Start

1. In the active Chat Interaction window, click Instant Chat Transfer to open the Team Communicator (see the Team communicator displaying current consultation party as default for Instant Transfer figure). The Team Communicator is displayed showing a list of your active consultations.



2. Complete the transfer by clicking the Instant Chat Transfer button that is beside the name of the target to whom you want to transfer the interaction. The interaction is transferred to the target. The interaction window closes.

End

Related Information

Chat Interaction help
Conference A Chat Interaction

In this lesson, you will learn how to transfer chat interactions. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Starting a Chat Conference
- Starting a Chat Conference with an Active Consultation

Starting a Chat Conference

The Workspace Chat Interaction window enables you to instant-conference your current chat interaction with an internal target. In an instant conference, the conference starts as soon as the other party accepts the interaction. This section contains the following procedure:

- Lesson: Starting an instant chat conference
- Lesson: Receiving a chat conference
- Lesson: Starting a chat conference with an active consultation

Lesson: Starting an instant chat conference

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue), and then start and complete a chat conference with the internal target and the current contact.

Start

 In the active Chat Interaction window, click the Instant Conference button to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for a chat conference in the active Chat Interaction window figure).



Finding an internal target for a chat conference in the active $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Chat}}$ Interaction window

2. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target with whom you want to conference, and then select Instant Chat Conference. When the internal target accepts the interaction request, a Chat Interaction window opens on the desktop of the conference target. The Chat Interaction window displays the entire transcript of the chat session between you and the contact (see the Chat Interaction window on the desktop of your conference target displaying the chat transcript and connection status figure).



Chat Interaction window on the desktop of your conference target displaying the chat transcript and connection status

The internal target is added to the chat session in your Chat Interaction window. You, the contact, and the internal target can each see what is sent by the others (see the Chat Interaction window displaying the chat transcript and connection status of your conference figure).



Chat Interaction window displaying the chat transcript and connection status of your conference

If the conference target does not accept your request, the conference request is released.

3. If you click the End button and the internal target agent is still connected, the session is transferred automatically to the internal target agent.

If you have completed your chat interaction and the internal target agent has already disconnected from the conference, go to Step 8 of the Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction.

End

Lesson: Receiving a chat conference

Purpose: To receive and join a conference chat interaction with another agent and their active chat interaction party.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the chat media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

Start

1. If another agent wants to chat conference with you and a contact about their current interaction, the agent can start a chat conference.

If the other agent is handling a chat interaction and initiates a chat conference request, you are notified of the request by the Workspace Interaction Preview interactive notification (see the Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a conference request figure).

🕞 Avril Mai - Workspace	
Case Information	^
Origin: Inbound chat	
Help with on line purchase	
Accept Reject	

Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a conference request

Тір

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

Click Accept to connect to the conference. The Chat Interaction window is displayed (see the Chat Interaction window, displaying your status as Connected to the conferencing agent figure).

🛞 🚺 Auril Mai 🖸 00:07:07 🐺 🛼 - 🃭 🛍 🖄 -	
Case Information	+ *
Origin: Inbound chat	
Avril Mai O Connected	1 (7) 1 (8)
- Kate Lewis O Connected	
Agent will be with you shortly (through Chat Server ChatServer)	
New party 'Kate Lewis' has joined the session	
Kate Lewis 6	i:29:28 PM
Hello, how can I help you today?	
Avril Mai 6:29:35 PM Hello, I am having an issue making an on line purchase. There might be an issue with my credit card.	
Kate Lewis 6 Let me contact my associate about that.	i:29:53 PM 🔦 📄
New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session	
Jim Miller 6	:31:38 PM 💮
Hello, how can I help you today?	_
Kate Lewis Ms. Mai is having an issue with her credit card.	i:36:56 PM 💇
OK, I can take care of that	_
	Send
0	@ @

Chat Interaction window, displaying your status as $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Connected}}$ to the conferencing agent

- 2. The Workspace Chat Interaction window enables you to perform the following functions while you are chatting with the conferencing agent and the contact:
 - End the connection"This function ends your participation in the consultation call; you are not added to the conference.
 - Start a conference.
 - Transfer the chat to a different internal target.

For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.

When you join the conference, all three parties will see any text that you enter into the Chat Interaction window. Your status is Connected (see the Chat Interaction window, displaying your status as Connected to the conferencing agent figure).

When you are in a chat conference, you can perform the following functions:

- Use the Conference Party Action Menu (adjacent to the Party Status—see the Conference Party Action Menu figure) to do the following:
 - **Call**—Start a voice call to the party.
 - Start Instant Message Consultation—Start an IM consultation with the party.
 - New E-mail—Terminate the connection to the party.
 - Delete From Conference—Terminate the connection to the party.

For information about how to use the functionality in the interaction window, see the Workspace 8.5 Help.

- 3. End the chat—Terminates your connection to the conference. The conferencing agent remains connected to the contact.
- 4. Set a Disposition Code for the chat.



Remaining Connected After the Conferencing Agent Disconnects

If the conferencing agent releases the chat, the conferencing agent is disconnected, but you remain connected to the contact (see the Voice Interaction window showing that the calling agent has left the conference, but you remain connected to the contact figure). You can complete your interaction with the contact, transfer the contact, or start a new conference.



Voice Interaction window showing that the calling agent has left the conference, but you remain connected to the contact

5. Click End the Chat to terminate your connection to the conference.

The Workspace Chat Interaction window is updated to display the status of the conference as Ended. If required by your configuration, specify a disposition code that qualifies the outcome of the interaction by selecting an outcome from the Disposition Code drop-down list or radio-button list in the Disposition Code view (see Assigning Disposition Codes).

- 6. Click Done.
- 7. Close the Chat Interaction window.
- 8. Complete your after-call work.

9. Set your status to Ready.

End

Starting a Chat Conference with an Active Consultation

The following procedure demonstrates how to conference a chat interaction to a party with whom you are in a chat consultation; however, it is also possible to conference from other types of consultations, such as voice, by following the same steps that are presented in the procedure.

Lesson: Starting a chat conference with an active consultation

Purpose: To conference the chat with an internal target with whom you are currently engaged in an active consultation.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction).

Start

1. In the active Chat Interaction window, click the Start Consultation button and then use the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for a chat consultation in the active Chat Interaction window figure) to find the internal target with whom you want to start a consultation (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).



Finding an internal target for a chat consultation in the active \mbox{Chat} Interaction window

2. Click the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target with whom you want to consult, and then select Start Chat Consultation (see the Team Communicator displaying a list of available consultation media figure). An interaction notification is displayed on the desktop of your target.

🛞 🧧 Anel Mai 🔘 2022.05 📭 🛒 - 🐾 - 🔛	<u>#</u> +	
And the second se	Jen	
Case Information	A CONTRACT OF A CONTRACT.	
Origin: Interand chat	A Contraction of the second se	-
and a second second	, jen Miler	
 Artible O Conserved 	C · O Ready	
- Annual Q connected	Start Voice Consultation	
Assent will be with you shortly (Benach Chat Server Chat5)		
New marks Wate Louis' has initial the newsion	Start Instant Message Consultation	
Here party sale create has pried on another	Start Chat Consultation 0.	
Kate Lewis	2 ¹ m	
Hero, now can integrate today?	🗙 Add to Favorites	
E Auto Maria 2		

Team Communicator displaying a list of available consultation media

The chat consultation interaction is added to your active chat interaction window (see the Chat Interaction window displaying an active chat interaction and a chat consultation figure).

Case Information + Origin: Inbound chat Avril Mai O Connected (7)
Origin: Inbound chat • Avril Mai O Connected
Avril Mai O Connected
Hello, how can I help you today?
Kate Lewis 1:36:56 PM .
Jim Miler 1.39:15 PM
OK, I can take care of that. Let me confirm that we have the correct credit card number on record for you.
Se
· @ @
Dissections that
Dispositions
Sav
Sau Consultation: Jim Miller O (00.02:17)
Consultation: Jim Miller • (00:02:17) Jim Miller • Connected
Sav Consultation: Jim Miller © (00.02:17) • Jim Miller © Connected Fix End
San Consultation: Jim Miller (00.02:17) Jim Miller End Jim Miller 2:41:59 PM 2:41:59 PM
Consultation: Jim Miller • (00:02:17) Jim Miller • Connected
Sav Consultation: Jim Miller © (00.02.17) Jim Miller © Connected
Sav Consultation: Jim Miller () (00:02:17) Jim Miller () Connected
Consultation: Jim Miller (00:02:17) Jim Miller Connected Kate Lewis
Sav Consultation: Jim Miller () (00.02-17) Jim Miller () Connected Jim Miller () Connected
Sav Consultation: Jim Miller () (00:02:17) Jim Miller () Connected The End Jim Miller () Connected Sum Miller () Connected Mello Kate, how can I help? Kate Lewis () Connected

Chat Interaction window displaying an active chat interaction and a chat consultation $% \left({{{\rm{A}}_{{\rm{B}}}} \right)$

3. To transition your active chat consultation to a chat conference, click the Instant Chat Conference button on the main interaction toolbar (see the Team Communicator displaying the list of active consultations figure). The Team Communicator opens and displays your active consultations (see the Team Communicator displaying the list of active consultations figure).

🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🔘 00.06.16 🐺 🛒 -	■・ 🕄 生・	
Case Information	Type name or number	٩
Origin: Inbound chat	Agent -	
· Audithi O Connected	Active Consultations	
· Annual O contected	👟 - Jen Miller 📐	2
Hello, how can I help you today?		

Team Communicator displaying the list of active consultations

4. Click the Instant Chat Conference button in the Action menu that is next to the name of the consult party with whom you want to conference with your chat interaction (see the Team Communicator displaying the Instant Chat Conference option figure).



Team Communicator displaying the Instant Chat Conference option

An invitation to join the chat is sent to your conference target. If the target accepts the invitation, the consultation chat ends (see the Status of the chat consultation interaction after the consultation party has been conferenced to a chat interaction figure) and the target is conferenced with you and your contact (seethe Status of the chat consultation interaction after the consultation party has been conferenced to a chat interaction figure).

Consultation: Jim Miller 🔿 (00:03:46)	•
✓ Jim Miller ○ Ended	
Done	
New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session	
Jim Miller 2:41:50 Ph Hello Kate, how can I help?	2
Kate Lewis 2-42.38 PM Hey Jim, Ms. Mai is having a credit card issue. Can you help me () with this call?	2
Jim Miller 2:42:51 Ph Sure, conference me in!	2
Party 'Jim Miller' has left the session	

Status of the chat consultation interaction after the consultation party has been conferenced to a chat interaction



a conferenced party that was transitioned from a chat consultation.

5. Complete your chat conference (see Lesson: Starting an instant chat conference).

End

Related Information

Chat Interaction help

Handle an Altocloud Chat Interaction

If you are set up to use the Genesys Altocloud plugin you will see the **Altocloud** tab on the right side of the Chat interaction window.

Important

Altocloud Journey might look different in your environment.

영 Lorraine S. Vincent «AM» - Workspace	⊖ Landreit Wenet Alds + ± + Ø + .	•
이 **** 한 환· 번 보·		=
Tean Internation · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Visiter deals	1
Paulty 51 Tanàna Tananjalan Injuh	Kere Bilds Collector	
Anastisjeure Connected	Ind an	
Jame 19 Maria and you are in the second with the second of a second with the second with the second with the second seco	Ved Acada Ved Scott 200 1200 V with Academic A concess Ved Access Not Acces	
	Communication (CV) Units - Control Units - Con	
0 # 4	Branches performed Hide a	1
Disperitions Note	Tegnetis analysed Oxform scores	1
	Engine Statut (1) Engine Statut Concerning Statut	ļ
-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-

The *Genesys Altocloud Agent's Guide* contains all the information that you, as an agent, need to understand and use the contents of the **Altocloud** tab.

Purpose: To view the details of a contact's visit to your company website before and after they initiated a web chat interaction. This usually happens when your contact clicks a web chat widget, requests a quote, or requests more information.

Get Started

- Get started
- A visitor's experience
- Engage About journey analytics in Genesys Engage (Workspace)

Using the Altocloud tab

- Visitor details
- Visit details
- Customer journey map
- Segments assigned
- Outcome scores

For information about how to handle a chat interaction, go here.

Handle An Email Interaction

[Modified: 8.5.113.11, 8.5.127.06]

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle inbound email interactions and launch outbound email interactions. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction
- Creating and Handling a New or Reply Email Interaction
- Transferring or Forwarding an Email Interaction
- Resending a Previously Sent E-mail Interaction
- Spelling Check
- Printing and Print Preview
- Email Quality Assurance (QA) Review

Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction

If you are the selected internal target for an inbound email interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it, the Interaction window is displayed. The Email Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.



Important

Your account might be set up to have your outbound email interactions sent to your team lead or supervisor for a Quality Assurance (QA) review prior to sending the email interaction to your contact. Refer to Email Quality Assurance (QA) Review.

Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound email interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the email-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the inbound interaction.

Start

1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view (see the Email Interaction interactive notification figure).

😂 Mark Avram - Workspace	
Case Information	^
Origin: Inbound email	
New account information	
Accept	Reject

Email Interaction interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and interaction type. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be set up to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not set up to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is set up for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the email interaction is opened automatically unless your account is set up to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is autoanswered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is autoanswered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]



- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.

- Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
- Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the inbound Email Interaction window is displayed (see the Inbound Email Interaction window figure).

The Inbound Email Interaction window provides the following functionality:

- Reply or Reply All to the sender of the email message and other recipients. See Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction.
- Save the email in the In Progress workbin and close the Email Interaction window. See Managing Contact History.
- Transfer the email message to another internal target or forward it to an external resource. See Transferring or Forwarding an Email Interaction.
- View and save attached image files (for text and HTML formatted email interactions) and in-line images (for HTML formatted email interactions).

If your contact inserted the image into the body of the email interaction, you will see it displayed along with the other email content. You can save the image to a local or network drive by right-clicking on it and selecting **Save image as** from the context menu.

If the image is sent as an attachment, you will see it displayed beside a paperclip icon above the body of the email interaction.

```
Computer issue

From: client2@cust.dev 4/27/2016 11:49 AM

To: main@mcr.dev

@ mother-board-581597_640.jpg (29KB)

I am having an issue installing memory in my computer. Here is a

picture of the board.
```

The paperclip icon indicates the email interaction has an attachment

Right-click the name of the attached file to perform the following functions:

- **Open** Opens the file in the default application for the file type.
- Save As Save the file to a local or network drive.
- Print Print the contents of the file to a printer that you specify.
- Save All Save all attachments to a local or network drive.
- Select Mark Done for the current interaction, save the email message in the contact history and close the Email Interaction window; the processing of the corresponding email thread with the contact is complete.
- Consult with an internal target or with a contact. See Starting a Voice Conference or Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
- Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.
- Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View and edit Case Information for the current interaction. Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.

- Call the sender by clicking the Action menu that is displayed next to the contact name. See Making a Voice Call.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History.
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- View the Standard Response Library if you decide to call the sender instead of replying to the email. See Inserting a Standard Response into an Email Interaction.
- Print the email message. See Printing and Print Preview.

Contraction of the second seco							-
Casa Information v	0	Information High	-y				
 Islack Access @ Islaced New accessed information Statistical proof does Science Server Science Server 	COMPACT	C Orea A					
Please send the information about opening a rest account, 30 Januari		Find Name-	klush Arum			×	
		Plane Runder 11 555-554 7840 1017 Add Plane Runder		offer Male	•	× ≢hanay × ⊖	
Dispositions Builts	S10MO4534	E-mail Address Markin-ginal Jon Add E-mail Address		Work address	-	×	

Inbound Email Interaction window

Tip

Sometimes URLs (links to websites) are sent to you by a contact. URLs in the inbound email interaction view might be plain text or they might be HTML. You will be able to read the URL before clicking it by hovering your mouse pointer over the URL to display a tooltip that lets you see the address.

Warning

To avoid opening malicious web links, view hyperlinks using the tooltip before you click them.

4. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of

interactions in progress

Your account might be set up for you to be notified if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day

End

Creating and Handling a New or Reply Email Interaction

You can create new email interactions in two ways by replying to an inbound email interaction (see Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction) and by using the Team Communicator (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact) or Contact Directory (see Lesson: Finding and viewing your interactions in the contact database) to find a contact and select the contact as the target of a new outbound email interaction.

Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction

[Modified: 8.5.113.11, 8.5.118.10, 8.5.127.06]

Purpose: To send a reply to email interactions that have been directed to you.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have accepted the inbound or transferred email interaction.
- You have clicked Reply or Reply All in the inbound Email Interaction window (see Lesson: Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction).

Start

 If you clicked Reply or Reply All in the inbound Email Interaction window, the outbound Email Interaction window is displayed (see the Outbound Email Interaction window, displaying text content type figure).

Important

Your account might be set up to have signatures inserted automatically into new or reply email interactions based on the sender that you select. The signature will be placed automatically below the text insertion point and above any text that is quoted from the email message to which you are replying. Your account might be set up to have the contents of the original email included in the body of the reply email.

iii Genesys • Workspace		• 1 + milant (• • ×
8 waa waa O 2021 2 - 8 📽 (6	e⊖ ⊈-	=
Interdention V * Statute Access & Understell Verdentell Anne. Verdentell (restrict restrict) restrict (restriction data) Balgistict. Na Verdentell data Test + Test Test prioritic (restriction) Original (restriction) Market + Original (restriction) Original (restriction) * Harter and exclorable (SUM) queuegis assessmented + * Verdentell * Marketen.	O CONTACT	Manufalini History N-0 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 3 Her + Gank secon State - Gank Selject Bark Select - Del Dale - 4 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2	C C Processed by John Grant John Grant
	STRACKED IN	= + Page 1 of 1 =	N x prop
Paperline Into		Solicit an interaction to view details	

Outbound Email Interaction window, displaying text content type

The outbound Email Interaction window provides the following functionality:

- **Send**—Sends your response to the sender and other recipients, and saves a copy in the Contact History. The corresponding inbound interaction is marked done automatically.
- **Send Interim**—Sends your response, closes the outbound Email Interaction window. The inbound email interaction is reopened in the same window. You can create a second reply email message, or you can consult about the reply with another party. If you close the inbound Email Window, you can re-open it from the In-Progress workbin (see Using Workbins to Access Stored Interactions).
- Save—Store what you have written so far.
- **Save in Draft Workbin**—Store what you have written in the Draft workbin (see Using Workbins to Access Stored Interactions) and close the outbound Email Interaction window.
- Add Attachments—Navigate to a file that is to be sent with the outbound email. Note: Workspace might be set up to restrict the types of files that you attach. If you select a restricted file-type, an error message is displayed to inform you that your company does not permit the attachment of that file type (for example, .exe, .bat, .jar, .js, and others).
- Insert Images—Insert images into the body of HTML formatted email interactions by copying and pasting an image at the insertion point, or by clicking Insert Image (¹) and choosing an image file to insert. [Added: 8.5.113.11]
 - After you have inserted an image, you can resize it by dragging on the corners or edges.
 - Dragging on the corners maintains the relative width and height of the image. Dragging on the edges distorts the image.
 - If you make an image smaller, the size of the image file that you send is reduced. This is useful if the image that you want to send is greater than the size you are allowed to send.
 - If you make an image larger, the quality of the image will not be as good and the size of the file increases.
- Delete—Discard the outbound reply without saving a copy in the Contact History or the In-Progress

workbin. The inbound Email Interaction window is displayed again on your desktop. The interaction is not marked done.

- **Consultation (Voice/IM)**—Launches a consultation session with another party. Use the Team Communicator to start a voice or IM session with another party (see Starting a Voice Conference or Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session). The consultation interaction is displayed at the bottom of the outbound Email Interaction window.
- **Print**—Print the email message. See Printing and Print Preview.
- 2. You can edit any of the outbound email parameters before you send the email.
 - To change the name of the sender, click the From drop-down menu and select an alternate sender.
 - To change the target of the outbound email, click the To button. The Contact Search dialog box is displayed (see the Contact Search dialog box figure).

puick search				٩ (
	No ite	ema		
I I I Page	0 of 0 >	0 - 0 of 0	10 -	per pag
I I Page	0 of 0 ⊳ MarkAv⊚mail.dom	0 - 0 of 0	10 -	per page
i⊲ ⊲ Page 0 To Cc	0 of 0 > MarkAv@mail.dom	0 - 0 of 0	10 -	per page

Contact Search dialog box

- i. Enter the name, phone number, or email address of a target and then click the magnifying glass.
- ii. Select the target in the results table. For more information about contact search, see Lesson: Finding and viewing your interactions in the contact database.
- iii. Click To, Cc, or Bcc to specify that the target is the primary recipient, a copied recipient, or a blind copied recipient.
- iv. When you have finished adding recipients, click OK. Click Cancel to return to the outbound Email Interaction window without changing the recipient(s).
- You can also add carbon copy (Cc) and blind copy (Bcc) recipients by clicking the Add Cc drop-down menu and selecting Add Cc or Add Bcc respectively.
 A new Cc or Bcc field is added in the recipient area. Click in the text field to open the Team Communicator and select a recipient, or click Cc or Bcc to open the Contact Search dialog box (see the Contact Search dialog box figure in the Creating and Handling a New or Reply Email Interaction section). You can remove Cc and Bcc fields by clicking the X that is displayed next to the field.
 You can edit the To, Cc, and Bcc fields by typing directly into the fields. The Team Communicator is displayed to enable you to select a recipient from the contact database.
- You can edit the default subject of the email. By default, the subject of the inbound email is used.
- 3. You can add content to the email in four ways:
 - Enter your text at the insertion point.

- Beginning with version 8.5.113.11, Workspace enables you to enter TABs in the email composition area of outgoing email interactions by pressing the **TAB** key. Now, to use the **TAB** key to step to the next control or field, you must first press **Ctrl-TAB** to step out of the text composition area. This feature might be disabled in environments set up for accessibility; if so, you will not be able to enter TABs in the email composition area, but you can use the **TAB** key to move to the next control in the tab order.
- Paste text into the text field from another document. Beginning with version 8.5.150.06, Workspace enables you to paste formatted text as plain text in HTML emails. This option discards source formatting and applies the destination style to the copied text. Right-click the context menu and click Paste Text Only to apply this style. You can also use the keyboard shortcut CTRL+ALT+V to paste text only.
- Insert a standard response (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).
- 4. Some agents might have to write emails in more than one language. Some languages use left-to-right reading script and some use right-to-left reading script. If this feature is enabled for you, click in or select the text that you want to reverse the direction of, then click one of the following buttons in the text edit toolbar to change the reading direction of the text:
 - ¶ Set text to right-to-left reading direction.
 - Im Set text to left-to-right reading direction.

Watch this video on changing text direction. Link to video

[Added: 8.5.127.06]

- 5. You can check the spelling of the content of your reply by using the Spelling Check functionality (see Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in an outbound email message).
- 6. You can choose to send your reply as plain text or as HTML-formatted text. To change between plain text and HTML, in the email content area, select either Text or HTML in the format toolbar. If you switch from HTML to text, all formatting"including paragraph alignment (left, right, centered, indented, numbered, and bulleted), fonts, faces (bold, italic, and underlined), font size, and font color—is lost.
- 7. If you are using HTML formatting, you can specify the following parameters:
 - Font—Select one of your installed fonts from the Font drop-down list.
 - Font size—Select the point size of your text. Available font size depends on the font that is selected.
 - Face—Click the Bold, Italic, and Underlined buttons to select and un-select any combination of these faces.
 - Color—Click the color box to open the color picker, and select a color.
 - Paragraph type—Click the numbered or bulleted button to change paragraphs to a numbered list or a bulleted list, respectively. Click the button again to revert to standard paragraphs.
 - Paragraph alignment—Click the paragraph alignment buttons to align paragraphs left, right, centered, or justified.

Formatting is applied to either selected text, or any text that you enter or paste at the insertion point after you have set formatting parameters.

- 8. The outbound email interaction view enables you to create and manage hyperlinks (links to websites). [Added: 8.5.118.10]
 - a. URLs are detected automatically when you type them into your email interaction and press Space or Enter (Return) on your keyboard. If the URL that you enter is not valid, a hyperlink is not created. The format for URLs is defined by your administrator; if you are trying to type a URL and it is not converted to a hyperlink, consult with your administrator about the format they have defined.

- b. If your email interaction is HTML formated, Workspace provides two other ways to create hyperlinks by using the **Insert Hyperlink** dialog box. Open this dialog box by doing one of the following actions:
 - 1. Right-click at the insertion point and select **Insert Hyperlink** from the contextual menu.
 - 2. Click the **Hyperlink** button (¹).

Insert Hyperlink		×
Text to Dislpay		
Genesys		
Address		
https://www.genesys.com		
	ок	Cancel

Insert Hyperlink Dialog Box

The **Insert Hyperlink** dialog box has two fields:

- **Text to Display** Enter text in this field if you want display text rather than the URL to be displayed as a hyperlink. For example, if you want to add a hyperlink for your company website, you can add the name of your company to this field, then the name of your company will be a clickable link in the outgoing email. This is particularly useful when you are creating a hyperlink with a very long URL and you do not want the whole URL to display in the email message. If you leave this field blank, the URL is displayed for the hyperlink text.
- Address Enter the fully qualified URL, including http:// or https://.
- c. After you have inserted a hyperlink into your email interaction, you can manage it by right-clicking it and selecting one of the following options from the contextual menu:
 - Edit hyperlink Opens the Edit Hyperlink dialog box.
 - **Open hyperlink** Opens the target of the hyperlink in a new browser window or tab. This enables you to verify the URL before you send it to your contact.
 - Remove hyperlink Converts the hyperlink to text. Note: if the hyperlink did not have display text and if you press Space or Enter (Return) immediately after you convert the URL to text, it will be converted to a URL again.
- d. Hyperlinks can be managed both manually and through the **Edit Hyperlink** dialog box.

ext to Disipay	
Genesys	
ddress	
https://www.genesys.com/	

Edit Hyperlink Dialog Box

- To manually edit a hyperlink URL, delete the last character and the hyperlink is removed. Edit the text, and then press Space or Enter (Return).
- Open the **Edit Hyperlink** dialog box by placing the insertion point on the display text or URL and clicking the **Hyperlink** button (^(D)) in the toolbar.

- To edit the display text of a hyperlink, place the insertion point in the display text and edit the text as you would edit normal text.
- To verify the hyperlink, Ctrl-Click the hyperlink to open the URL in a new browser window or tab.
- 9. You can call (see Making a Voice Call) or send a new email (see Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact) to the sender by clicking the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the contact name.
- 10. You can set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.
- 11. You can use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- 12. When you have completed composing, formatting (optional), and checking the spelling of your response, click the Send drop-down menu and select Send or Send Interim to send the reply email message to the recipient(s).

End

Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact

Purpose: To create a new email interaction and send it to a selected recipient or recipients.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your role enables you to send new email.

Start

- 1. There are multiple ways to create a new email interaction:
 - From the Team Communicator, find a contact (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact), and select New Email from the Action menu.
 - From an open interaction (voice, email, chat, or workitem), select New Email from the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the contact name (see the New Email option in the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to an active contact name figure).



New Email option in the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to an active contact name

• From the Contact Directory, find a contact, and select New Email from the Email Action menu or from the More Actions menu.

A new Email Interaction window is displayed on your desktop (see the New Email Interaction window figure). The name of the contact is specified in the To field, and your default sender address

that is displayed in the From drop-down list.

Important

Your account might be set up to have signatures inserted automatically into new or reply email interactions based on the sender that you select. The signature will be placed automatically below the text insertion point and above any text that is quoted from the email message to which you are replying.

The new Email Interaction window has the same functionality as the reply Email Interaction window (see Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction), except that the Note tab is not available.

liii Genesys + Workspace	O AferDais + 🗶 +	• •	- 0 ×
◎ ■ ==== ● === ■ 目音の見るの == = 0 == = 0 == = 0	<u>±</u> -		=
Own Information			- 8
Origin, Cyllourd call to Mark Arcan			5
· ItakAram @ Creeced @ Indoued		150 B	100
Rum: "Striket Unite"-manifest des-			
Te. Wekkephal don; Belief,		ABIO	
			NUMBER
		1 an	

Procedure: Replying to a inbound email interaction

2. When you have completed composing, formatting (optional), inserting images and/or attaching files (optional), and checking the spelling (see Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in an outbound email message) of your new email, click the Send button to send the new email to the recipient(s).

End

Transferring or Forwarding an Email Interaction

The Workspace Email Interaction window enables you to transfer or forward your current email message interaction to another party. In this section, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to transfer an email interaction to an internal target or to a contact or to forward an email to an external resource that is set up in your corporate directory. The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call a contact or an internal target, initiate a conference, or transfer a call.

How do you know whether to transfer or forward? Here are some possible use cases:

- 1. **Transfer** Pass the ownership and handling of the email interaction to another agent or transfer target within your contact center system.
- Forward Send a copy of an email to someone outside the contact center system, such as a person in your back office, and ask a question about it, then you use the answer that you receive to complete your response to your contact.

3. **Forward as an Attachment** — Send a copy of an email to someone outside of the contact center system, such as a person in your back office, that you want to write the response to the email for you.

This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Initiating an email transfer
- Lesson: Initiating an email forward [Added: 8.5.113.11]
- Lesson: Initiating an email forward as an attachment [Modified: 8.5.113.11] (formerly Forward an Email to an External Resource)

Tip

In some environments, you might have to set a disposition code before you transfer or forward an email interaction.

Lesson: Initiating an email transfer

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue) and then transfer the email message to the target.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction).

Start

1. To transfer the email message, in the active Email Interaction window, click Transfer to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for an email transfer in the active Email Interaction window figure) to find the internal target to whom you want to transfer the current interaction (see Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).



Finding an internal target for an email transfer in the active Email Interaction window

2. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target to whom you want to transfer the interaction, and then select Email Transfer. An invitation is sent to the target to accept the email transfer. If the target accepts the interaction transfer request, the interaction window closes on your desktop and opens on the desktop of the transfer target. If the target does not accept the interaction transfer request, the Email Interaction window remains displayed on your desktop and an error is displayed both at the top of the window (see the Workspace Email Interaction window displaying a message that the transfer target rejected the transfer request figure) and in the

Workspace My Messages interactive notification.



Workspace Email Interaction window displaying a message that the transfer target rejected the transfer request

End

Lesson: Initiating an email forward

[Added: 8.5.113.11]

Purpose: To find an external resource, and then forward the email message as an in-line quoted message to the target — The typical use case is that you forward an email and ask a question about it, then you use the answer that you receive to complete your response to your contact.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction).

Start

To forward the email message as an in-line quoted message to an external resource, click Forward (
) on the active inbound email window toolbar.

Note: If Forwarding as an Attachment is also enabled for you, a menu is displayed; choose **Forward**, not **Forward as an Attachment.** The Forward Email view opens as a new **Outbound** email interaction, and the original inbound email is placed in your **In-Progress** workbin.



The Forward Email interaction view

This view contains a copy of the original email from your contact at the bottom of the email body area. A notice above the email

indicates who wrote it and the date and time it was sent.

The Subject field of the email contains the subject of the original email with a prefix in front of it, such as **Fwd:**. The Forward Email interaction view enables you to perform the following actions:

- Add one or more targets by clicking **To** or by typing in the **To** field
- Add "carbon copy" targets by clicking **Add Cc** and then clicking **Cc** or by typing in the **Cc** field
- Add instructions for the target by typing in the email body area, above the in-line forwarded email content
- Add an interaction note in the Note tab
- · Save the email in your Draft workbin
- · Attach one or more files to the forwarded email
- Cancel the Forward action
- · Print the email before forwarding it
- · Consult with other people about the email
- Complete the Forward action
- 2. To add a target to the **To** address field, do one of two things:
 - Use Team Communicator to find and add a target or targets:
 - a. Start typing a name or other contact information in the **To** address field. The Team Communicator opens and enables you to choose a target.
 - b. Click Add Email Address to enter the email address of the target in the address field.
 - Use the Contact Search dialog box to find and add a target or targets:
 - a. Click the **To...** button beside the **To** address field. The Contact Search dialog box is displayed.

Duick search			۹
	No items		
I< ≤ Page 0 of 0 >		0 - 0 of 0	10 👻 per page
То			
Cc			
		ок	Cancel
		ок	Cancel

Contact Search dialog box

You can use this view to perform a search of the Contact Directory for targets. The Contact Search dialog box can also be used to add **Cc** targets.

The Contact Search dialog box enables you to find contacts by using one of two modes: Quick Search and Advanced Search.

b. To perform a quick search, type the name, phone number, or email address of a contact in the Quick Search field. Quick search is a *begins with* search.

Quick search	۹. 💿	
Contact Quick Search		
Tip		
Genesys does not support <i>wildcard</i> characters i	in Contact Database searches	

c. Click the magnifying glass to search for the value that you have entered. The contact database is searched based on your criteria and the search results are displayed in the Contact Directory (see step h).

Click the **X** to clear the Quick Search field.

d. To perform an advanced search, click Advanced Search (🕑) to open the Advanced Search view.

Last Name 🛛 👻	Contains	*	×
Phone Number 👻	Contains	•	×
Phone Number 👻	Contains	*	×
E-mail Address 👻	Contains	*	×
			Search

Contact Advanced Search

- e. Click the **Add Condition** link to add more search criteria. Remove criteria from consideration by clicking the **X** next to the option.
- f. Click the magnifying glass to search for the value(s) that you have entered. The contact database is searched based on your criteria and the search results are displayed in the Contact Directory (see step h).

Click the **X** to clear all search field.

g. Search results are displayed in a list or in a tabular grid.

mail.dom								× (
 Mark Avram 	٩	•	\sim	•		•		
 Vanessa Wang 	¢	*	2	*	۵	*		
 Avril Mai 	٩	*	\geq	*	۵	*		
 Ravi Pache 	¢	*	2	•	۵	٠		
≪ ≪ Page 1 of 1 ⊳				1 - 4 of	4	10	-	per pag

Use the **Show Contacts** View (

mai	Ldom							×
	Last Name 🔶	First Name	Phor	e Nu	mber	E-m	ail Addre	
*	Avram	Mark	e,		+1.555.654.7890	\sim	MarkAv	@mail.
*	Mai	Avril	e,		5555555	M	A_Mai@	mail.de
*	Pache	Ravi	e.		+91.11.200001	\sim	RaviP©	mail.dc
÷	Pache	R				2	RPi@ma	iil.dom
4	< Page 1 of 1	Þ			1 - 5 of	5 1	0 - p	ver pag
	То							
	Cc							

Search Results grid view

- h. If multiple pages are returned in the search results, page through the list of search results by doing any of the following:
 - Click the **Go to the Next Page** button (**b**) to view the next page
 - Click the **Go to the Previous Page** button (**4**) to view the previous page
 - Click the **Go to First Page** button (**|**) to return to the start of the list of search results
 - Click the **Go to Last Page** button (**b**) to return to the start of the list of search results
 - Specify the number of items that are displayed on each page by using the **per page** dropdown list
- The List view displays an unsorted list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.

The search is a "keyword" search that searches each field of the contact database for the word or words (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) that you provide in the search field. Each field of the database is searched by using a "starts-with" search for the keyword(s) that you provide.

Refer to the Contact Directory topic in the Workspace Desktop Edition Help for more information about search results.

Contact Search	, -							×
mail.dom							>	< ⊙
▼ Mark Avram	¢	*	M	•	٥			
▼ Vanessa Wang	٩,	*	M	*	٥	*		
▼ Avril Mai	e,	*	×	*		*		
▼ Ravi Pache	¢	٠	M	٠	٥	٠		
is a Rep 1 of 1 b						10		
Contact Directory in List View				1 - 1	4 01 4	10	 per 	page
contact Directory III LISt VIEW								

Use the page controls, as described in step h.

j. To display the Contact Directory Grid view, click the **Show Contacts in Grid View** button (**II**). Grid mode performs a *begins-with* search that searches each field of the contact database for the phrase (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) that you provide in the search field.

Results are returned in tabular form and sorted according to the default search field, such as Last Name.

The Grid view can be used to help to refine your search by sorting the results.

Click a column head in the Grid view to sort the list based on that criterion. Click a column head a second time to switch between ascending and descending sort order.

	Use the	page	controls,	as	described	in	step	h.
--	---------	------	-----------	----	-----------	----	------	----

								<u></u>
	Last Name 🔺	First Name	Phor	e Nu	mber	E-m	ail Addr	:
•	Avram	Mark	e,		+1.555.654.7890	\geq	MarikA	v⊜mail
*	Mai	Avril	¢		5555555	\mathbb{Z}	A_Mai	@mail.o
*	Pache	Ravi	e,		+91.11.200001	\sim	RaviP	@mail.d
÷	Pache	R	_			-	RPiBr	hail.don
4	< Page 1 of 1	Þ			1 - 5 of	5 10) •	per pa
	То							_
	Cc							

Contact Directory in Grid View

- k. To add a target from the search results to either the **To** field or the **Cc** field, select the target in either the list or grid view, then click either **To** or **Cc**.
- I. Click **OK** when you have finished selecting targets. The Contact Search dialog box closes and you are returned to the Forward Email interaction view. The targets that you selected are displayed in the **To** field and, if selected, the **Cc** field.
- 3. To display the **Cc** address field in the Forward Email interaction view, click **Add Cc**. The **Cc** address field is displayed below the **To** address field. You add target email addresses to the **Cc** field in the same way that you add addresses to the **To** address field. Click **X** to remove the **Cc** address field.
- 4. To add a comment, information, or instructions to the forwarded email interaction for the target, type in the email body area, above the in-line forwarded email content.
- 5. To forward the inbound email interaction to the targets, click (Complete Forward. The interaction window closes on your desktop, the email is forwarded to the in-box of the external resource, and the inbound email interaction is removed from your In-Progress workbin. Click Cancel Forward if you want to close the Forward view without forwarding the email interaction.

End

Lesson: Initiating an email forward as an attachment

[**Modified:** 8.5.113.11]

[**Modified:** 8.5.104.15]

Purpose: To find an external resource, and then forward the email message as an attachment to the target — The typical use case is that you want someone else to write the response to the email.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction).

Important

Depending on how the Forward as an Attachment Business Process is designed by your administrator, either the Note tab or the instructions field might be used to contain instructions to generate the email interaction that is sent to the external resource.

Start

1. To forward the email message as an attachment to an external resource, click Forward as an Attachment () on the active inbound email window toolbar.

Depending on the set up your system, this action might:

- Open the Team Communicator
- Display the Forward Email as an Attachment interaction view.
- If Forwarding in-line is also enabled for you, a menu is displayed; choose **Forward as an Attachment**, not **Forward.**
- 2. If the Team Communicator opens, perform the following actions:
 - a. Enter the valid email address or find a contact to which the email message is to be forwarded
 - b. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the external resource to whom you want to forward the interaction, and then select Forward as an Attachment

The interaction window closes on your desktop and the email message is forwarded to the in-box of the external resource.

3. If the Forward Email as an Attachment interaction view is displayed.

lei Genesys + Workspace				C Kala Lawis -	1	- 0-	- O X
() 🚺 🗠 🕫 🖻 🖉 🖉							=
Case Information 4 4	0	Information High	lary				
Grige: Housteral Galltype Support	8	⊟ 0 A,					
Pladig 0 Research Tolken TV Regenerati, Cold	9	General Title First Name	(hand)		-		
- Antime C Internet Rg(2)	11	Last Name -	Mai			t.	
No. ABOL + Inter Tywari Inductions	J	Proce Number 183835 1836		(kern) Multin	- 14	* Piewy	
Internet Aways Fee Awards on my TK	CTROACE	E-mail Address A. Weigmail.dox		Personal		* Primary	
		nalgnal.don Adl t mail Aldres		Work address	- *	0	
Propositions Inclu							

Forward Email as an Attachment interaction view

The Forward Email as an Attachment interaction view enables you to perform the following actions:

- Add one or more targets by clicking **To** or by typing in the **To** field
- Add "carbon copy" targets by clicking Add Cc and then clicking Cc or by typing in the Cc field
- Add instructions for the target
- Add an interaction note in the Note tab
- Cancel the Forward action
- · Consult with other people about the email
- Complete the Forward action

Tip

Your system might not be set up for all the features of Forward email. For example, the Team Communicator might not open, or the Forward Email as an Attachment interaction view might not be displayed. You might be restricted to one **To** target, **Cc** might not be enabled, or the instructions field might not be available.

- 4. To add a target to the **To** address field, do one of two things:
 - Use Team Communicator to find and add a target or targets:
 - a. Start typing a name or other contact information in the **To** address field. The Team Communicator opens and enables you to choose a target.
 - b. Click Add Email Address to enter the email address of the target in the address field. If your environment is set up to enable you to enter multiple addresses, you can click in the address field and enter additional email addresses.
 - Use the Contact Search dialog box to find and add a target or targets:
 - a. Click the **To...** button beside the **To** address field. The Contact Search dialog box is displayed.

ontact Search				
Duick search				٩Θ
	No items			
i≪ ≪ Page 0 of 0 >		0 - 0 of 0	10 👻	per page
То				
Cc				
		ок		Cancel
	_			

Contact Search dialog box

You can use this view to perform a search of the Contact Directory for targets. The Contact Search dialog box can also be used to add **Cc** targets.

The Contact Search dialog box enables you to find contacts by using one of two modes: Quick Search and Advanced Search.

b. To perform a quick search, type the name, phone number, or email address of a contact in the Quick Search field. Quick search is a *begins with* search.

Quick s	ick search Q 🖸	
Contac	ntact Quick Search	
٦	Тір	
G	Genesys does not support wildcard characters in Contact Database searches	

c. Click the magnifying glass to search for the value that you have entered. The contact database is searched based on your criteria and the search results are displayed in the Contact Directory (see step h).

Click the **X** to clear the Quick Search field.

d. To perform an advanced search, click Advanced Search (🕤) to open the Advanced Search view.

Last Name 🛛 👻	Contains	*	×
Phone Number 🔻	Contains	•	×
Phone Number 👻	Contains	*	×
E-mail Address 👻	Contains	*	×
			Search

Contact Advanced Search

e. Click the **Add Condition** link to add more search criteria. Remove criteria from consideration by clicking the **X** next to the option.

f. Click the magnifying glass to search for the value(s) that you have entered. The contact database is searched based on your criteria and the search results are displayed in the Contact Directory (see step h).

Click the **X** to clear all search field.

g. Search results are displayed in a list or in a tabular grid.

Contact Search								×
mail.dom		_		_			×	Θ
 Mark Avram 	¢	*	ž	•	۵	•		
▼ Vanessa Wang	¢	*	×	*	۵	*		
▼ Avril Mai	ر	٠	ž	*	۵	*		
▼ Ravi Pache	¢	٠		٠	۵	*		
i≪ i≪ Page 1 of 1 ⇒				1 - 4	t of 4	10	• per p	age
Search Results list view								

Use the **Show Contacts** View (

Cont	act Search					
•mai	Ldom					× G
						:≡
	Last Name 🗠	First Name	Phon	e Nu	mber	E-mail Address
-	Avram	Mark	e,		+1.555.654.7890	MarkAv@mail.
*	Mai	Auril	e,		5555555	A_Mai@mail.dx
*	Pache	Ravi	e.		+91.11.200001	RaviP@mail.dc
*	Pache	R				RP@mail.dom
н	< Page 1 of 1	- -			1 - 5 of	5 10 💌 per page
	То					
	Cc					
					ок	Cancel

Search Results grid view

- h. If multiple pages are returned in the search results, page through the list of search results by doing any of the following:
 - Click the **Go to the Next Page** button (**b**) to view the next page
 - Click the **Go to the Previous Page** button (**4**) to view the previous page
 - Click the **Go to First Page** button (
 - Click the **Go to Last Page** button (**b**) to return to the start of the list of search results
 - Specify the number of items that are displayed on each page by using the **per page** dropdown list
- i. To display the Contact Directory List view, click the **Show Contacts in List View** button (E). The List view displays an unsorted list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.

The search is a "keyword" search that searches each field of the contact database for the word or words (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) that you provide in the search field. Each field of the database is searched by using a "starts-with" search for the keyword(s) that you provide.

Refer to the Contact Directory topic in the Workspace Desktop Edition Help for more information about search results.

Use the page controls, as described in step h.

mail.dom							× (
 Mark Avram 	و	•	\sim	•	۵	•	
 Vanessa Wang 	و	*	×	*		*	
 Avril Mai 	٩	*	\geq	*		*	
 Ravi Pache 	¢	*	2	*	۵	*	

Contact Directory in List View

j. To display the Contact Directory Grid view, click the **Show Contacts in Grid View** button (**III**). Grid mode performs a *begins-with* search that searches each field of the contact database for the phrase (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) that you provide in the search field.

Results are returned in tabular form and sorted according to the default search field, such as Last Name.

The Grid view can be used to help to refine your search by sorting the results.

Click a column head in the Grid view to sort the list based on that criterion. Click a column head a second time to switch between ascending and descending sort order.

Use the page controls, as described in step h.

nai	l.dom						>	¢
								1
	Last Name 🗠	First Name	Phor	ve Nu	mber	E-m	ail Address	
*	Avram	Mark	٩		+1.555.654.7890	\geq	MarkAv@m	a
	Mai	Auril	C		5555555	\geq	A_Mai@ma	a,
*	Pache	Ravi	e,		+91.11.200001	\sim	RaviP@ma	L
÷	Pache	R	_				RP@mail.d	or
	< Page 1 of 1				1 - 5 of	5 1	0 👻 per	pa
	То							
	Cc							
						_		

Contact Directory in Grid View

- k. To add a target from the search results to either the **To** field or the **Cc** field, select the target in either the list or grid view, then click either **To** or **Cc**.
- Click OK when you have finished selecting targets. The Contact Search dialog box closes and you are returned to the Forward Email interaction view. The targets that you selected are displayed in the To field and, if selected, the Cc field.

- 5. To display the Cc address field in the Forward Email interaction view, click Add Cc. The Cc address field is displayed below the To address field. You add target email addresses to the Cc field in the same way that you add addresses to the To address field. Click X to remove the Cc address field.
- 6. To add a comment, information, or instructions to the forwarded email interaction for the target, click in the text box below the **To** and **Cc** fields and enter your message.

10	Muu oc	
Enter Forward Instructions		
Original E-mail		
Forward Email interaction instructions field		



7. To forward the inbound email interaction to the targets, click () Complete Forward as an Attachment. The interaction window closes on your desktop and the email is forwarded to the in-box of the external resource. Click Cancel Forward as an Attachment if you want to close the Forward as an Attachment view without forwarding the email interaction.

End

Resending a Previously Sent E-mail Interaction

You can use the Contact History view (refer to Managing Contact History) to resend a previously sent outbound email to the original contact to follow-up with the contact about the interaction. The status of the outbound interaction must be Done. You can edit the contents of the email interaction before you send it.

Lesson: Resending a previously sent email interaction

Purpose: To resend an email interaction that has been marked Done to the same recipient.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- There is an outbound email interaction in the Contact History that has already been sent to the contact and is now marked as Done. The email interaction might be a new outbound email interaction, or it might be a reply email interaction.

Start

- 1. In the Main Window, or in the Contact Directory of an active interaction window, open the Contact History (refer to Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database).
- 2. Find the email interaction that you want to resend and select it.
- 3. Click Resend (). The E-mail Interaction window is displayed. The message text of the original outbound email interaction and any attachments are copied to the new interaction. The To, From, and CC fields are copied from the original outbound email interaction.
- 4. Add the new message text (your follow-up message) in the email text field. You can add content to the email in three ways:

- Enter your text at the insertion point.
- Paste text into the text field from another document.
- Insert a standard response (see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library). Refer to Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction and Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact for information about the options that are available in the outbound Email Interaction window.
- 5. You can check the spelling of the content of your follow-up message by using the Spelling Check functionality (see Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in an outbound email message).
- 6. When you have completed composing, formatting (optional), and checking the spelling of your email interaction, click the Send button to send the email interaction to the recipient(s).

End

Spelling Check

You might be enabled to use the Spelling Check functionality. The outbound Email Interaction window has automatic spelling-check capabilities that enable you to correct misspelled words or add words to your personal dictionary.

Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in an outbound

email message

Purpose: To verify the spelling of the content of an outbound email message.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active email interaction (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction or Creating and Handling a New or Reply Email Interaction).

Start

1. Begin entering text in the composition area of a new (Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact) or a reply (Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction) outbound email message.

You can enter text by typing at the insertion point, pasting content from another document, or inserting a standard response (Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).

2. The Spelling Check functionality is controlled by the Spell Check toolbar (you might have to expand the Email Interaction window to see the toolbar).



Spelling Check toolbar

• Click the Spell Check button to turn Spelling Check functionality on and off. **Note:** If your system is set up to warn you about incorrectly spelled words when you click Send, then the Spell Check button is not displayed as you are not permitted to turn off spelling check.

- From the Language drop-down list, select the spelling dictionary (language) that you want to use.
- 3. When the Spelling Check functionality is on, words in the text composition area that are not in the specified dictionary are underlined by a wavy, red line. The mail composition area displaying a misspelled word that is underlined in red figure shows an email message that contains two words that are not in the English (United States) dictionary. The first is the name of the contact and the second is the word order, which is misspelled as ordder.



Email composition area displaying a misspelled word that is underlined in red

- 4. You can correct the spelling by using one of two methods:
 - Edit the word(s) manually.
 - Right-click the word to display the Spelling Check menu.
- 5. If you right-clicked the misspelled word to display the Spelling Check menu, you can do one of the following:
 - Select the correct spelling from the list of suggestion (bold text).
 - Ignore—Select to ignore this instance of the word that is not in the specified language dictionary.
 - Ignore All—Select to ignore all instances of the word that is not in the specified language dictionary for this interaction only.
 - Add to My Dictionary—Select to add the spelling to your personal dictionary (not your corporate dictionary).
 - Spell Checking—Select to turn the Spelling Check functionality off or on.
- Languages—Select to open the list of available language dictionaries. You can select a different language dictionary.
- 6. If you try to send a message that contains misspelled world, your system might be set up to display a warning dialog box that asks you to confirm that you want to send the message without correcting the potential misspelled words. Click **Yes** to send the message anyway, or click **No** to return to the message and correct the misspelled words. [Added: 8.5.105.12]

End

Printing and Print Preview

You can use the Print Preview window to specify the format of email interactions before you print them.

Lesson: Formatting and printing email interactions

Purpose: To preview, format, and print an email interaction.

Start

- 1. From an active Email Interaction window, click Print. The Print Preview window is displayed.
- 2. The Print Preview window contains controls for designing your print layout, and it contains the Print Layout view. You can preview your printout in the Print Layout view. The Print Layout view contains the following controls:
 - Zoom in/out—Change the magnification of the view to see more or less detail.
 - View at 100%—View the layout at the full printed page size.
 - Fit the page into the view by page width—Make the view fit the of the layout fit the width of the window.
 - Fit the whole page into the view—Make the entire page fit the window.
 - View pages as front and back pairs side-by-side—For two-sided printing, view front and back pages side-by-side.

You can change these view settings at any time while you have the Print Preview window displayed.

- 3. From the Destination drop-down list, select a destination printer from the list of available printers on your network.
- 4. Specify which pages to print:
 - All—Click All to print the entire email interaction.
 - Page Range—Enter one or both of the following in the Page Range text field:
 - A range of page numbers, for example: 2-6
 - Individual page numbers that are separated by commas., for example: 1,3,4.
- 5. Specify the number of copies to print in the Copies field.
- 6. Specify a Portrait or Landscape layout.

- 7. Specify the page margins:
 - Select Uniform Margins to make all the margins match the value that you specify for the top margin.
 - To specify different margins for the top, left, right, and bottom margins, de-select Uniform Margins. Margin units are determined by your local settings.
- 8. Select Add Page Numbers to add page numbers to the printout.
- 9. Print the email interaction by applying the layout that you specify:
 - Click Print to print the specified layout.
 - Click Cancel to close the Print Preview window.

Otherwise, click Print using the System Print dialog box to open the System Print dialog box.

End

Email Quality Assurance (QA) Review

Your account might be set up to have your outbound email interactions sent to your team lead or supervisor for a QA review prior to sending the email interaction to your contact (refer to Receiving QA Feedback), or your account might be set up for you to be a QA reviewer (refer to the Lesson: QA Review of Email Interactions).

Receiving QA Feedback

Your QA reviewer might return the email interaction to you to be updated, or the reviewer might accept the email and allow it to be sent. The review process might require more than one iteration. E-mail interactions that are sent for review might be directed to the reviewer or it might be stored in a workbin that is specifically for reviews. The reviewed email interaction might be returned to you directly or it might be stored in a workbin that is specifically for reviews. The reviewed email interactions that are to be updated or reworked. The status of the review is displayed in the Case Information view for the interaction so that you know whether you have to update the email interaction content or not. If the status is Rejected (or some other disposition that is defined by your system administrator), then the email interaction was not sent to the contact. The reviewer might update the content of the email or the reviewer might add instructions for you in the Note view. After you have completed the updates to the email interaction, click Send to deliver the email interaction back to the reviewer for approval or rejection. Refer to Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction, Creating and Handling a New or Reply Email Interaction, and the *Workspace 8.5 Help* for information about using the Email Interaction window.

Providing Email QA Feedback

Your account might be set up to review outbound email interactions created by agents that you supervise, lead, or review, for Quality Assurance (QA) purposes. If you are a reviewer, outbound emails are directed to you prior to being sent to a contact. As a reviewer, your account might be set up to receive email interactions for review by an interaction preview or your account might be set up to retrieve outbound email interactions from a workbin (refer to Using Workbins).

Lesson: QA Review of Email Interactions

Purpose: To review outbound email interactions from an agent and provide feedback to the agent before sending the email interaction to the recipient.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the email-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the outbound interaction.

Start

- 1. When an email interaction for review is directed to you, an interaction preview is displayed on your desktop.
 - Click Accept to display the interaction
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue. The Interaction Preview window displays the Case Information view:
 - The Origin field specifies the sender of the interaction and indicates that it is for review.
 - The QA Review Status field is editable. It contains attached data that specifies the status of the review. When you first receive it, the status might be Unknown or For Review, depending on how your administrator has set up your system. There might be other information about the priority of the interaction or the business area to which it belongs.
- 2. If you accept the email interaction for review, the Review E-mail Interaction window is displayed on your desktop:
 - The Case Information view is displayed in the Interaction window.
 - The Origin field specifies the sender of the interaction and indicates that it is for review.
 - The QA Review Status field is editable. It contains attached data that specifies the status of the review.
 - The Party Action menu displays the email monitoring icon to indicate that the agent is under



• The Interim Send button is not available for review email interactions.

Review the interaction and provide feedback to the agent who originated the outbound email interaction. Depending on the policy at your company, you might provide feedback by directly editing the content of the email interaction, or you might add notes for the agent in the Note view, or you might discuss the content with the agent verbally.

- 3. In the Review E-mail Interaction window, you can do the following tasks:
 - Update the Review Status in the Case Information view
 - · Edit the content of the email interaction
 - Set a disposition
 - Add text to the Note tab
 - Use other standard E-mail Interaction window functions (refer to Receiving and Handling an Inbound

Email Interaction)

- 4. When your review is complete, set the status to one of the following states:
 - Accepted—The email interaction is sent to the contact when you click Send.
 - Rejected—The email interaction is sent back to the agent or to a workbin that contains reviewed interactions when you click Send. The QA Review Status in the Case Information is updated to Rejected.
 - Unknown—The email interaction is sent back to the review queue or to a review workbin when you click Send.
- 5. Click Send.

End

Related Information

- Email Tasks Overview
- Inbound Email
- Outbound Email
- QA Review of Email

Handle An SMS or MMS Interaction

[Modified: 8.5.110.13, 8.5.121.03]

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle inbound Short Message Service (SMS) interactions and how to check the spelling of your SMS messages before you send your message. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving and Handling an Inbound SMS or MMS Interaction
- Creating an Outbound SMS Interaction
- Spelling Check

SMS is a text-messaging component of voice and internet communication. SMS enables the exchange of text messages between you and a contact through your computer. Typically, a contact will send you SMS from a mobile device, a web interface, or an email client.

By definition, SMS are *short* messages. Workspace supports 160 characters per message. If you attempt to send a message that is longer than the character limit, additional messages, each up to 160 characters, will be sent so as to accommodate your entire message.

Multimedia Message Service (MMS) is a multi-media component of voice and Internet communication. In Workspace, MMS enables you to receive images sent to your contact center from a mobile device, a web interface, or an email client. Images are displayed to you as thumbnails. To view the image fullsize, double-click it or right-click it and select **Open** from the context menu. It will open in the default application specified in the Windows operating system. If you have the correct permissions, you can click the **Save** icon or right-click an image and select **Save** from the context menu to save it. [**Added:** 8.5.110.13]

Workspace supports two SMS modes:

- **Page**—You receive a single inbound SMS to which you can send a response or handle in other ways. You can also receive images from a contact.
- **Session**—You receive an inbound SMS that starts a chat session with a contact. SMS Session is non-real-time two-way communication between you and your contact through your computer.

Receiving and Handling an Inbound SMS or MMS Interaction

If you are the selected internal target of an inbound SMS interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it, the SMS Interaction window is displayed. The SMS Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Lesson: Handling an inbound SMS interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound SMS interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the SMS-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target of the inbound interaction.

Start

1. When you are the target of in inbound SMS interaction, a preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view (see the SMS Interaction interactive notification figure).

Bill Edwards - Workspace		
Case Information ^		
Origin: Inbound SMS Page Mode		
Here is my account number		
Accept	Reject	

SMS Interaction interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and type of interaction. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

The Interaction Preview informs you of whether the SMS was sent in Page Mode or in Session Mode:

- In Page Mode, you can reply to the message, transfer it, contact an internal target or contact to discuss it, or mark it as Done.
- In Session Mode, if you reply to the interaction, a chat session is started that uses the SMS channel to exchange non-real-time messages.

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the message is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:

• Click Accept to display the interaction.

- Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
- Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 2. If you accept the interaction, the inbound SMS Interaction window is displayed (see the SMS Page Mode Interaction window figure).



SMS Page Mode Interaction window

The Inbound SMS Interaction window provides the following functionality:

• Read messages from the contact in the message-transcript area of the SMS Interaction window.

Tip

Sometimes URLs (links to websites) are sent to you by a contact. URLs in the SMS transcript are always displayed as the actual address. Contacts cannot send you a disguised URL in an attempt to direct you to a malicious website. You will be able to read the URL before clicking on it. If you hover your mouse pointer over the URL, a tooltip is displayed that lets you see the address.

- Compose a message/response. The message-transcript area of the SMS Interaction window contains color-coded, time-stamped message lines from your company's system, as well as the messages that are sent by the contact (see the SMS Page Mode Interaction window figure). If the interaction is in Session Mode, your replies are also displayed. A different color is designated for each message type. The colors are defined by your system administrator.
- Check the spelling of your message/response (see Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in an SMS message).
- Send a message/response.
- Call or email the contact if the relevant information is available in the contact database.
- Transfer the interaction (see Step 7).
- Mark the interaction as Done.
- Set a disposition code for the interaction.
- Add a note to the interaction.
- View and edit Case Information for the current interaction.
- Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as

customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.

- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History.
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- 3. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix, displaying the number and type of interactions in progress figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix, displaying the number and type of interactions in progress

Your account might be configured to notify you if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day

4. To reply to your contact, enter a message in the message area, and then click Send.

Your message is displayed to the contact on the SMS device that the contact is using to communicate with you.

If the interaction is in **Page Mode**, after you click Send, the interaction window is closed and the interaction is automatically marked as Done, unless your account is configured for you to set a disposition code before you close an interaction window (see Assigning Disposition Codes)—go to Step 8.

If the interaction is in **Session Mode**, your message is also added to the transcript area of the SMS Interaction window. After you click Send, the SMS Interaction window is minimized. You can restore the window in two ways:

- By selecting the interaction from the Microsoft Windows taskbar
- By clicking it in the Interaction Bar at the bottom of the Main Window (refer to Lesson: Using The Interaction Bar for information about using the Interaction Bar)
- 5. In SMS Session Mode, messages that are sent by your contact are displayed together with your messages in the message-transcript area (see the SMS Session Interaction window Case Information, Contact Action area, toolbar, and message area figure). While you are interacting with your contact, you can use the following functionality in the SMS Interaction window:

- Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View and edit Case Information for the current interaction.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- View and use the Standard Response Library to insert a standard response into your reply message. See Inserting a Standard Response into an Email Interaction.
- Call the sender by clicking the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the contact name (see the New E-Mail option in the Action menu drop-down list that is displayed next to an active contact name figure).

🛞 🧧 Vanessa Wang 📵 00.00.36 📑 🕶 🗹 💆	
Case Information	+ •
Origin: Inbound SMS Session Mode	
- Vanessa Wang 📵 Connected	(1) (1)
2 message exchanges with this contact in the past 24 hours Show messages	
Vanessa Wang session Here is my account number: 123-456	12:43:04 PM
Kate Lewis Thank you. I will verify your order.	12:43:34 PM
Characters Remaining: 160	
	Send

SMS Session Interaction window Case Information, Contact Action area, toolbar, and message area

- 6. If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant-transfer the SMS to another internal target. See Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer).
 - Start a consultation with another party:
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Conference.
- 7. When you are finished interacting with your contact, click Done to stop the current SMS interaction.
 - The transcript is saved in the contact history and the SMS Interaction window is closed.
 - Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.

Warning

SMS sessions are configured to expire if no messages are sent or received within a certain interval that is defined by your administrator. Click Done to close the SMS Interaction window after time out occurs.

End

Lesson: Handling an inbound MMS interaction

[Added: 8.5.110.13]

Purpose: To handle an inbound MMS interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the SMS-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target of the inbound interaction.

Start

1. When you are the target of in inbound MMS interaction, a preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactive-notification view.

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and type of interaction. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

MMS are sent in Page Mode. You can reply to the message, transfer it, contact an internal target or contact to discuss it, or mark it as Done.

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the message is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:

- Click Accept to display the interaction.
- Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
- Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 2. If you accept the interaction, the inbound MMS Interaction window is displayed (see the MMS Interaction window figure).



MMS Interaction window

To view an image, double-click the image thumbnail or right-click the image thumbnail and select **Open** from the context menu to open the image in the default image viewing application on your workstation.



MMS can be opened full-size in your default image viewing application

The Inbound MMS Interaction window provides the following functionality:

Read messages from the contact in the message-transcript area of the SMS Interaction window.

Tip

Sometimes URLs (links to websites) are sent to you by a contact. URLs in the SMS transcript are always displayed as the actual address. Contacts cannot send you a disguised URL in an attempt to direct you to a malicious website. You will be able to read the URL before clicking on it. If you hover your mouse pointer over the URL, a tooltip is displayed that lets you see the address.

- Compose a message/response.
- Check the spelling of your message/response (see Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in an SMS message).
- Send a message/response. The message-transcript area of the MMS Interaction window contains color-coded, time-stamped message lines from your company's system, as well as the messages that are sent by the contact (see the SMS Page Mode Interaction window figure). A different color is designated for each message type. The colors are defined by your system administrator.
- Save the image file (if you have the correct permissions).

- Call or email the contact if the relevant information is available in the contact database.
- Transfer the interaction (see Step 6).
- Mark the interaction as Done.
- Set a disposition code for the interaction.
- Add a note to the interaction.
- View and edit Case Information for the current interaction.
- Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History.
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- 3. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix, displaying the number and type of interactions in progress figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix, displaying the number and type of interactions in progress

Your account might be configured to notify you if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day

To reply to your contact, enter a message in the message area, and then click Send.

Your message is displayed to the contact on the SMS device that the contact is using to communicate with you.

After you click Send, the interaction window is closed and the interaction is automatically marked as Done, unless your account is configured for you to set a disposition code before you close an interaction window (see Assigning Disposition Codes)—go to Step 7.

- 5. If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant-transfer the MMS to another internal target. See Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer). Transferring an MMS is the same as transferring an SMS.
 - Start a consultation with another party:
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Conference.
- 6. When you are finished interacting with your contact, click Done to stop the current SMS interaction.
 - The transcript is saved in the contact history and the MMS Interaction window is closed.
 - Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.

End

Creating an Outbound SMS Interaction

Workspace enables you to send an SMS to any device or system that is capable of receiving an interaction in this format. You can use the Contact Action menu of the Contact Directory or an active interaction to open the SMS Interaction window and create a new SMS interaction (see the Contact Action menu in an active-interaction window figure).



Contact Action menu in an active-interaction window

Unlike inbound SMS interactions, outbound SMS interactions support only Page Mode interactions. In Page Mode, you send a single outbound SMS to your contact. You cannot send outbound MMS interactions.

Lesson: Creating an outbound SMS interaction

Purpose: To create an outbound SMS interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your role enables you to send new SMS.

Start

1. From an active interaction, open the Contact Action menu (see the Contact Action menu in an activeinteraction window figure).



Alternately, from the Contact Directory, find a contact (Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact), and then open the Contact Action menu (see the Contact Action menu in the Contact Directory figure).



Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact

- 2. Select New SMS.
- If you started a new SMS from an active interaction, the SMS view is displayed in the interaction window that is displayed below the active interaction (see the An SMS interaction, blended into an active email interaction figure).



An SMS interaction, blended into an active email interaction

If you started a new SMS from the Contact Directory, a new SMS Interaction window is displayed (see the New SMS Interaction window figure).

🛞 🧧 Avril Mai 📵 0000-56 🔀 🐮 🤽 -	
Case Information	+ *
Origin: Outbound SMS Page Mode	
- Avril Mai @ Outbound	
From: 5551556 - Te: 3616	
Characters Remaining: 125	
Please send me your account number.	
	Send

New SMS Interaction window

4. To send an SMS interaction (Page Mode), in the SMS text area, enter your message and then click Send. The message is sent to your contact and the SMS view or SMS Interaction window is closed.

End

Spelling Check

You might be enabled to use the Spelling Check functionality. The SMS Interaction window has automatic spelling-check capabilities that enable you to correct misspelled words or add words to your personal dictionary.

Lesson: Using Spelling Check to find potentially misspelled words in an SMS

message

Purpose: To verify the spelling of the content of an outbound SMS message.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active SMS interaction (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound SMS Interaction or Creating an Outbound SMS Interaction).

Start

1. Begin to enter text in the message area of an SMS Interaction window (see Lesson: Handling an inbound SMS interaction or Lesson: Creating an outbound SMS interaction).

You can enter text by typing at the insertion point, pasting content from another document, or inserting a standard response (Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library).

2. When Spelling Check is on, words in the message area that are not in the specified dictionary are underlined by a red, wavy line. The SMS message composition area, displaying a misspelled word that is underlined in red figure shows an SMS message that contains a word that is not in the English (United States) dictionary (the default dictionary for this user). The behavior of Spelling Check is the same in all windows. The misspelled word is happening, which is misspelled as happpening.

* Avril Mai 😝 Outbound	R (5)
Free: Inbound Number - Te: 555555	
Characters Remaining: 135	
Okay, what is happpening?	
	Send
SMS message composition area, displaying a misspelled word underlined in red	I that is

3. You can correct the spelling by using one of two methods:

- Edit the word(s) manually.
- Right-click the word to display the Spelling Check menu.

Okay, what is happpening?		
	happening	
	appending	~
	appertaining	
	appealing	
	appeasing	
	Ignore	
	Ignore All	
	Add to My Dictio	nary
Dispositions	Cut	Ctrl+X
	Сору	Ctrl+C
	Paste	Ctrl+V
	Select All	Ctrl+A
	Check Spelling	
	Languages	•

SMS Interaction window Spelling Check menu

- 4. If you right-clicked the misspelled word to display the Spelling Check menu, you can do one of the following:
 - Select the correct spelling from the list of suggestion (bold text).
 - Ignore—Select to ignore this instance of the word that is not in the specified language dictionary.
 - Ignore All—Select to ignore all instances of the word that is not in the specified language dictionary for this interaction only.
 - Add to My Dictionary—Select to add the spelling to your personal dictionary (not your corporate dictionary).
 - Spell Checking—Select to turn the Spelling Check functionality off or on.
 - Languages—Select to open the list of available language dictionaries. You can select a different language dictionary.
- 5. If you try to send a message that contains misspelled world, your system might be configured to display a warning dialog box that asks you to confirm that you want to send the message without correcting the potential misspelled words. Click **Yes** to send the message anyway, or click **No** to return to the message and correct the misspelled words. [Added: 8.5.105.12]

End

Related Information

• SMS and MMS Interactions

Transfer An SMS or MMS Interaction

[Modified: 8.5.110.13]

In this lesson, you will learn how to transfer SMS or MMS interactions to an internal target. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Transferring an SMS Interaction
- Transferring an MMS Interaction

Transferring an SMS Interaction

The Workspace SMS Interaction window enables you to transfer your current SMS interaction to another party. In this section, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to transfer an SMS interaction to an internal target. This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer
- Lesson: Receiving a transferred SMS

Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue), and transfer the SMS to the internal target.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Lesson: Handling an inbound SMS interaction).

Start

1. In the active SMS Interaction window, click Transfer to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target of an SMS transfer in the active SMS Interaction window figure) to find the internal target to whom you want to transfer the current interaction (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).



Finding an internal target of an SMS transfer in the active SMS Interaction window

2. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target to whom you want to transfer the interaction and then select SMS Transfer.

An invitation is sent to the target to accept the SMS transfer. If the target accepts the interaction-transfer request, the interaction window closes on your desktop and opens on the desktop of the transfer target (see the Transferred SMS Interaction window displayed on the desktop of the transfer target figure).

🛞 🧧 Vanessa Wang 📵 00:00:13 🕞 - 🔽 🐑 🔽 -	
Case Information	+ •
Origin: Inbound SMS Session Mode	
 Vanessa Wang O Connected 	1 2(2) 1 2(2)
3 message exchanges with this contact in the past 24 hours Show messages	
Vanessa Wang session Here is my account number 123-456	1:23:14 PM
account for a my account manager the same	
Characters Remaining: 158	
	Send
Dispositions Note	
Transferred on 11/28/2017 1:25:44 by Kate Lewis	
Fransferred SMS Interaction window displayed on	the deskton of the

Transferred SMS Interaction window displayed on the desktop of the transfer target $% \left({{{\rm{T}}_{{\rm{S}}}}_{{\rm{S}}}} \right)$

If the target does not accept the interaction-transfer request, the SMS Interaction window remains displayed on your desktop and an error is displayed both at the top of the window and in the Workspace My Messages interactive notification.

End

Lesson: Receiving a transferred SMS

Purpose: To receive a transferred SMS interaction from another agent.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the SMS media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

Start

1. If another agent wants to transfer an SMS interaction to you, you are notified of the consultation request by the Workspace Interaction Preview interactive notification (see the Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a transfer request figure).

📵 Vanessa Wang - Workspace		
Case Information	•	
session Here is my acc		
Accept	Reject	

Interaction Preview interactive notification, informing you of a transfer request

Тір

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the contents of the window to you. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

Click Accept to accept the transfer. The interaction is transferred to you immediately.

🛞 🚺 Vanessa Wang 📵 00:00:13 📑 🗸 🔽 🔀 🛃		
Case Information		+ ^
Origin: Inbound SMS Session Mode		
▼ Vanessa Wang 📵 Connected	B _(2)	E (2)
3 message exchanges with this contact in the past 24 hours Show messages		
Vanessa Wang	1:23:14 PM	
Characters Remaining: 158		
		Send
Dispositions Note		
Transferred on 11/28/2017 1:25:44 by Kate Lewis		
MS Interaction window, displaying your status as	connected to	the

2. You are now the owner of the SMS interaction. Refer to Step 3 of the Lesson: Handling an inbound SMS interaction, for information about how to handle an SMS interaction.

End

Transferring an MMS Interaction

[Added: 8.5.110.13]

The Workspace MMS Interaction window enables you to transfer your current MMS interaction to another party. In this section, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to transfer an MMS interaction to an internal target.

This section contains the following procedure:

• Lesson: Starting an instant MMS transfer

Lesson: Starting an instant MMS transfer

Purpose: To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue), and transfer an MMS to the internal target.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Lesson: Handling an inbound MMS interaction).

Start

1. In the active MMS Interaction window, click Transfer to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target of an MMS transfer in the active MMS Interaction window figure) to find the internal target to whom you want to transfer the current interaction (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).



Finding an internal target of an MMS transfer in the active MMS Interaction window

2. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target to whom you want to transfer the interaction and then select SMS Transfer.

An invitation is sent to the target to accept the MMS transfer. If the target accepts the interaction-transfer request, the interaction window closes on your desktop and opens on the desktop of the transfer target.

If the target does not accept the interaction-transfer request, the MMS Interaction window remains displayed on your desktop and an error is displayed both at the top of the window and in the Workspace My Messages interactive notification.

End

Related Information

• SMS and MMS Interactions

Handle A Facebook Interaction

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle inbound Facebook interactions, how to check the spelling of your messages before you send, and other Facebook-specific functionality. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving and Handling an Inbound Facebook Interaction
- Facebook-Specific Functionality
- Workspace Functionality

About Facebook

Facebook is a social networking service and website. Users must register before using the site, after which they may create a personal profile, add other users as friends, and exchange messages, including automatic notifications, when they update their profile. Businesses can use Facebook to reach their target customers, and choose their audience by location, age and interests. Businesses can also promote their Facebook page or website, use Facebook's "Like" button to increase their advertising influence, and build a community around their business. A plug-in for Workspace enables it to handle Facebook social media interactions. This lesson contains information about how to handle Facebook interactions.

Receiving and Handling an Inbound Facebook Interaction

If you are the selected internal target of an inbound Facebook interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it, the Facebook Interaction window is displayed. The Facebook Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Lesson: Handling an inbound Facebook interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound Facebook interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the Facebook-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).

Note: You can log in and make Ready for the following:

- Facebook (Session Mode) for replying to facebooksession messages that have not expired
- Facebook Private Message for replying to all facebooksession messages, including those that have expired

- Facebook for all other Facebook functionality
- You are the internal target of the inbound interaction.

Procedure

1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view (see the Facebook Interaction interactive notification figure).

🕐 Nancy Dye - Workspace			
Case Information	\odot		
Origin: Inbound facebook			
These flowers really f			
Accept Reject			

Facebook Interaction interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and type of interaction. The Case Information area identifies the interaction as follows:

- Origin: Inbound Facebook Session Mode—A facebooksession message, to which you can reply
- Origin: Inbound Facebook—All other inbound Facebook interactions

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the message is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the inbound Facebook Interaction window is displayed. The Facebook Interaction window figure shows the window after clicking the information button to display a user

profile.

Important As Facebook posts and comments are not considered as live interactions, the interactions' status is always shown as Offline in the Facebook Interaction window.	
ල් Workspace	0
🛞 🥤 Sandy Sharma 🕜 00:03:09 🚰 🔽 🛍 🤽 -	
Case Information	
Origin: Inbound facebook	
Sandy Sharma () Offline	
Vibgyor Joptest · O	
Sandy Kumar Sharma October 31 at 10:16 PM · Total Comments : 0 hello, How are you? • Show History	

Facebook Interaction window

4. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed next to the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interactions in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix

You might be configured to be notified if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interaction(s) for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.

(20) (10)	NTACT	Filter 🔻 Quick search
10 Re	cent Interactions in last	day:
<mark>⊼ [2</mark>]	5/6/2014 11:48:56 AM	ok
	5/6/2014 11:37:32 AM	Media Server Inbound T
	5/6/2014 11:28:34 AM	Media Server Inbound T
⊼ f	5/6/2014 10:18:14 AM	Reply: Test message from Inbo
	5/5/2014 5:31:49 PM	test15
5 mc	ore	

Recent Interactions matrix

The original-routed post is on the left margin under the Facebook interaction toolbar. Subsequent comments are indented underneath the original post.

- 5. To reply to an original post, click Comment on the right of the post. A text box drops down.
- 6. Enter your comment. You can also copy and paste selected text.
- 7. Right-click and select Spellchecking. Correct any spelling errors.
- 8. When through, click Send. Workspace associates your comment with the post. Your message is displayed to the contact on Facebook.

Lesson: Handling an inbound Facebooksession interaction

You can reply to a facebooksession message from a user (you cannot send new facebooksession message). To do so, you must be logged in to either or both of the special channels Facebook (Session Mode) and Facebook Private Message (both are listed in **Prerequisites** above).

- If the interaction is in the **Connected** status, the reply area is active, enabling you to enter text. When you are done, you can click **Send** in the lower right corner. You can also select Facebook Private Message from the drop-down under the contact's name. You then have a new facebooksession messages area to enter text in.
- If the interaction is in the **Disconnected** status, you can reply only by selecting Facebook Private Message from the pulldown under the contact's name, as described in the previous section.
- If the interaction has been marked Done, you can reply by selecting the interaction in the History, then clicking the **Create a new Facebook Private Message** icon. A message area opens in which you can write your reply.

Channel Dependencies:

- If the message has not timed out, you can reply if you are logged in to either Facebook (Session Mode) or Facebook Private Message.
- If the message has timed out, you must be logged in to Facebook Private Message in order to reply.

Other Actions:

- You can send further facebooksession messages as replies to an inbound facebooksession message. They are threaded with the original inbound facebooksession message as their parent.
- You can move a facebooksession message that you are working on into a workbin. From there you can perform the standard workbin actions (open, move,)

• Agents can disconnect a Facebook chat session at any time using the disconnect session button 🔛.

Use Case

An agent can open a facebooksession interaction from the interaction queue while the session is kept active. The following use case explains how the interaction must be handled.

Important

The interaction must be in the **Facebook Agent Queue** instead of the **Facebook Inbound Queue**, **Facebook Classify Screen Queue**, or other intermediate queues. This indicates that all the related business processes have been processed and the interaction is ready to be handled by any available agent.

- 1. A customer sends a public comment to your business as a reply to an existing post or through a new post.
- 2. The system routes the customer's comment to you.
- 3. You review the comment and decide it is best handled through a Facebook Private Message so you request the customer connect with you in this way.
- 4. The system routes your comment to the customer.
- 5. The customer sends a Facebook Private Message to your business.
- 6. The system adds the customer's message to the interaction queue but has not yet routed it to any of the available agents.
- 7. You open the interaction from the interaction queue, and the system now enables you to access the Facebook private message menu (it looks similar to a disconnected chat session).
- 8. You send your private message as an answer to the customer's private message and then mark the interaction as done.

Next Steps

• You may wish to use some of the Facebook-Specific Functionality described below. For example, you may wish to update the Facebook classification. You may also wish to use some of the features in described in Workspace Functionality. When you are finished, click Done to stop the current interaction. The information is saved in the contact history and the Facebook Interaction window is closed.

Facebook-Specific Functionality

The Facebook Interaction window provides some Facebook-specific functionality.

Number of Likes Actionability Male/Female 44 1 7 · · · Sentiment

Icons for Facebook-Specific Functionality

You can:

- Display Facebook-user profile information. Click Show Info to open a user profile tab. You can also click the user name to open the Facebook page with user profile information. Prior to release 8.5.3 of the Social Media Plugin, the author's gender also appeared in the user profile and was displayed as an icon (see the Icons for Facebook-Specific Functionality figure).
- Display the number of Facebook *likes*. The number next to the thumbs-up icon indicates the number of likes.
- Expand or collapse the Comments view. You can expand the comments by clicking View. After clicking View, Hide appears so you can close up the comment. You can also select Expand All or Collapse All in the Comments view to view/hide all comments at once.
- View the total number of comments and show more comments. Click the Show Info button to open the
 user profile then click the Post tab to view the total comments count. Total comments also appears
 above the original post. Your administrator configures the number of comments to display per page. If
 the number of comments exceeds the configured number, Show more appears. Click Show more to view
 additional comments.
- Display the Actionability and Sentiment of the Facebook interaction. When a Facebook interaction arrives, you can view Actionability and Sentiment icons (see the Buttons and Icons for Facebook-Specific Functionality figure), which could have one of the following values or be undeclared:
 - Actionability—Can be actionable, not actionable, or undeclared
 - Sentiment—Can be Positive, Negative, Neutral or undeclared
- View the Facebook reactions and the reactions count for each post or comment in Facebook. The reactions count gets refreshed when receiving the interaction. You can also manually refresh the reaction count using the **Refresh** button.



• Hide a post or comment on the brand's Facebook page by clicking **Hide Post** or reveal a hidden post by clicking **Unhide Post**. This feature lets agents hide posts or comments on a brand's Facebook page instead of deleting them and later show the posts, if required. A hidden post or comment is not visible to viewers of the page. This feature is available for posts and comments created by the page administrators, and for comments created by visitors; it is unavailable for visitors' posts.

CT CABLE April 10 at 1:18 PM • Total Comments: 1 0 <th>✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓</th>	✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Sandy Kumar Sharma April 10 at 1:22 PM • Total Replies : 0	₹ - ⊙-
Fine ● · Hide	Comment Delete Like

Dark posts are colored dark blue and are indicated by the [Dark post] tag.



Actionable Facebook posts are colored yellow and non-actionable posts are colored gray. Facebook comments are automatically expanded and colored yellow if they are actionable, and collapsed and colored gray if they are non-actionable. Each Facebook comment has its own Actionability and Sentiment icon, which can be updated if necessary. Actionability and Sentiment are based on the classification and screening results obtained from Genesys Knowledge Management.

- Update the Actionability and Sentiment of the Facebook classification. While you are processing the interaction, you have the option to change the value of the corresponding Actionability and Sentiment key by clicking the related icon and then choosing the correct value.
- Change visibility of posts. The row of icons near the top of the interaction includes a visibility icon, which can be one of the following: Highlighted, Highlighted, Normal.Change the visibility by clicking the icon and selecting a different one from the dropdown.
- "Like" a post or comment by clicking the Like button; "unlike" a post or comment by clicking the Unlike button

- Reply to the original routed Facebook post including checking the spelling (see Lesson: Handling an inbound Facebook interaction).
- Reply to a Facebook comment. Subsequent comments are indented underneath the original post. Click the applicable comment, enter your reply (you can cut and paste text), have your reply spell-checked, and click Send.

Tip

Once the interaction is moved to a workbin or marked Done, it no longer appears under the interaction it is replying to (you can find it on the History tab, though). To make your replies to posts or comments appear under the original interaction, click **Show History** next to the **Show Info** button.

- · Create a new post: From the Agent Icon or Gadget drop-down list,
 - 1. Select Post Update, then Facebook. A new message window is displayed.
 - 2. Select an account from the drop-down list.
- Attach an image or a video to outbound public posts and comments. To attach a file, click the **Send File** icon **E**, then use the resulting dialog box to navigate to the desired file. This icon appears below the text box. The following file formats are supported (file size must be less than 20 MB) for inbound and outbound messages:
 - Video : MP4, AVI, 3GP
 - Image : JPG, JPEG, PNG, BMP, GIF, TIFF
- Attach an image, video, or document to outbound private messages. To attach a file, click the **Send File** icon **O**, then use the resulting dialog box to navigate to the desired file. This icon appears below the text box. The following file formats are supported (file size must be less than 25 MB) for inbound and outbound messages:
 - Audio : MP3, AMR
 - Video : MP4, AVI, 3GP
 - Image : JPG, JPEG, PNG, BMP, GIF, TIFF
 - Other : PDF, DOC, DOCX, XLS, XLSX, HTML, TXT

Important

Facebook Messenger no longer supports the file formats RAR and ZIP in inbound and outbound attachments.

• Edit an outbound post or comment: Open the item from the History and click the **Edit** button.

Notes:

• When the text box in the interaction window is active, the Done, Start a Consultation, and Transfer

buttons are enabled, and remain enabled until the session is over.

- Facebook Session Mode sessions are configured to expire if no messages are sent or received within a certain interval that is defined by your administrator. If Social Messaging Server exits, the agent receives a system message that the Facebook session has expired. After timeout occurs you can still do any of the following:
 - Place the interaction in a workbin.
 - Reply by sending a new outbound Facebook Private Message.
 - Click Done to close the Interaction window.
- To delete an outbound interaction, click the Delete button 😡 on the toolbar at the top of the interaction window.
- To delete a post or a comment, click the Delete button. The post or comment can be deleted if this action is allowed by the author of the post.

Workspace Functionality

While you are interacting with your contact, you can use the following general Workspace functionality in the Facebook Interaction window:

Tip

Some of the procedures and tasks below are media-specific, but you can apply the information when working with Facebook interactions.

- Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View Case Information for the current interaction.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- Use the Standard Response Library for pre-written text for replies and comments.Click the vertical Responses button in the middle of the window to open the library. You can search by keywords or open folders and view response text. When you click Comment, an additional icon with a plus sign is displayed. Click this icon to add the standard response content to the reply message. Also see Lesson: Using The Standard Response Library.
- Cross over into another media channel. If, as an agent, you learn other contact information (not Facebook-specific), such as a contact's phone number or email address, you can manually entered this on the Information tab. The corresponding choice for other media channels is then available when you click the Party Action menu that is next to the name of the contact. You can reply by using a voice call, an email, an SMS or any other supported media channel for a Facebook contact. If a channel is not configured or if the contact information for this channel is absent. No possible action is displayed.

- If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant-transfer the interaction to another internal target. See Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer), which is similar to the procedure for Facebook.
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Consultation.
 - Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.
- When you are finished interacting with your contact, click Done to stop the current interaction. The transcript is saved in the contact history and the Facebook Interaction window is closed.

Related Information

• Facebook Interactions

Handle A Twitter Interaction

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle inbound Twitter interactions (Tweets), how to check the spelling of your messages before you send, and other Twitter-specific functionality. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving and Handling an Inbound Twitter Interaction
- Twitter-Specific Functionality
- Workspace Functionality

About Twitter

Twitter is an online social networking service and micro-blogging service that enables its users to send and read text-based posts of up to 280 characters, known as Tweets. It has been described as "the SMS of the Internet." These messages are posted to the user's Twitter profile or their blog, sent to their followers, and are searchable on Twitter search. Twitter also has a suite of advertising products to help brands and businesses promote their content within the Twitter experience. Businesses can use Tweets to reach users while they search for their interests on Twitter.

Receiving and Handling an Inbound Twitter Interaction

If you are the selected internal target of an inbound Twitter interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it, the Twitter Interaction window is displayed. The Twitter Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Lesson: Handling an inbound Twitter interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound Twitter interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the Twitter-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target of the inbound interaction.

Start

1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view (see Figure—Twitter Interaction Notification).

笅 pam - Worksj	pace	
Case Information		^
Origin: Inbound twitter		
@one_huntergirl eu ach		
	Accept	Reject

Twitter Interaction Notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and type of interaction. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the message is answered automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the inbound Twitter Interaction window is displayed, as shown in the Figure—Twitter Interaction Window.

		workspace			_ L
3ill Butcher 🕐 (0	0:02:23)				
ase Information				+	•
Drigin: Inbound tv	vitter				
- Bill Butcher 🕻	Offline				
<u>)</u> . P	🗸 Done 🏄				
xboxbtb Bill	th Butcher) at 1:08 PM •	In Reply to ladva	aga ★ 🤽 16 🔿 11	<i>K</i> - <i>F</i> -	· ·
adygaga let's not	at 1.00 r m	in nepry to ladyg			
R	eply Reply T	o All Retweet	Retweet with Com	nments Unfa	vorite
Dispositions	Note	111			
Dispositions Disposition Code	<u>N</u> ote	III			
Dispositions Disposition Code	<u>N</u> ote				

4. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see Figure—Dynamic Contact History Matrix). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix

You might be configured to be notified if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see Figure—Recent Interactions Matrix). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



Recent Interactions Matrix

The original-routed Tweet appears in the left margin under the Twitter interaction toolbar.

- 5. To reply to the Tweet, just click Reply. A drop-down menu is displayed.
- 6. Select one of the following:
 - Reply--Reply to a Tweet by using the @username prefix, which is automatically inserted
 - Reply to All--Reply with a status Tweet that includes mentions. Reply to multiple persons by using @username prefix
 - Send Direct Message--When the Twitter message author is a follower, you can send a direct message to the author as a form of reply
 - Retweet--Re-post someone else's Tweet without comments
 - Retweet with Comments--Re-post someone else's Tweet with comments
- Select a Twitter handle from which you want to send your reply to the Twitter user. If you do not change the Twitter handle, the default handle that is configured in Hub channel configuration page is used to deliver your reply.



Twitter Reply Handle

Important

This feature is available for public Tweets only. Twitter does not allow this function for Twitter direct messages due to security reasons.

8. Enter your reply or retweet. You can copy and paste selected text.


If the original inbound Tweet contains a Twitter mention and the outbound Tweet puts the mention at the beginning of the message, the mention does not count against the 280-character limit. However, if Twitter mentions are present within the reply message, they contribute to the character count.

For example, if your outbound message is **@username Hi, please drop us a private message**, then **@username** is excluded from the character count. If you enter **Hi @username, please drop us a private message** in the reply text area, **@username** counts against the character limit.

9. When finished, click Send. Your message is displayed to the contact on Twitter. Your message is also added to the transcript area of the Twitter Interaction window.

End

Next Steps

• You may wish to use some of the Twitter-Specific Functionality described below. For example, you may wish to update the Twitter classification or follow/unfollow the Twitter-user. You may also wish to use some of the features in described in Workspace Functionality. When you are finished, click Done to stop the current interaction. The information is saved in the contact history and the Twitter Interaction window is closed.

New Unsolicited Tweets/Messages

Workspace enables you to create and send outbound unsolicited messages to a Twitter user. There are three types: new timeline tweet, tweet with mention, and direct message.

In addition to the actions described below for each type individually, the following actions are common to all three:

New Timeline Tweet

This message goes to all followers of the channel. From the Agent Icon drop-down or Gadget dropdown,

- 1. Select Post Update, then Twitter. A new message window is displayed.
- 2. Select a timeline from the drop-down list.

You can attach an image to the new tweet.

Tweet with Mention

This message goes to a selected contact.

1. Click the downward triangle/arrow to the left of the contact name, then select Twitter Message. You can

do this from the main Workspace window (see Figure—Send from Main Window below) or the interaction window (Figure—Send from Interaction Window below).

center Send from Main Window]	center Send from Interaction Window]
-------------------------------	---

- 2. In the resulting new message window, select a From account.
- 3. In the new message window, ensure that Mention displays as the title of the drop-down list directly above the message area, as shown in the Figure—Mention in Drop-down below (if the message recipient is a follower of your channel's account, the drop-down is titled Direct): frame|center|Mention in Drop-down The new message begins with an @<username> mention.

Twitter Direct Message

You can send and receive a direct message using Twitter Direct. The contact must be a follower of yours and your direct messages are between you and the selected contact only. No one else can see them.

Direct message interactions from Twitter are displayed on the interaction window via the Twitter Direct button:



Sending a Direct Message

You can send a direct message to a contact (this is distinct from the direct message that you can send as a reply). From the main Workspace window or the interaction window, click the downward triangle/arrow to the left of the contact name, then select **Twitter Direct Message**:

ල් Workspace	
shruti × Contact	
o 🖻 🔻 o o 🕞 👻 Shruti Mishra	ud Data Fetcher. versationDataInt ebook Data Fetch res result: false
Twitter Direct Message	d Data Fetcher.m 'rocessor.fetchBa 'rocessor.fetchBa
Add to Favorites	riverParams.checkConfigChanges result: false

Accepting an Incoming Direct Message

From the main Workspace window, click **Accept** on the Twitter Direct Message popup, and the interaction window opens:

Shruti Mishra - Workspace		
Origin: Inbound twitterdirect	\$	
Hi Good Morning!	🛞 Shruti Mishra 😰 00.00:19 💟 - 🎬 🔽 🛍 🖌	
	Case Information	~
	Origin: Inbound twitterdirect	
(Shruti Mishra (2) Offline 	L (1)
\searrow	March 6 at 12:10 AM · ﷺ to genefbtw01 DM Hi Good Morning!	≰ 3 0 943 A - <i>F</i> - ⊙ -
	0	Direct Message

Viewing your Direct Message History

You can view your message history, by clicking **My Workspace > My History** from the main Workspace window. From this window you can do a **Quick search**, **Filter** your results, or use the slider to search within a specific timeline.

y woi	rkspac	e		
My Cha	annels	My Campaigns My H	History My Statistics	Contact Center S
rch. All	1M 1W	1D Filter - Quick search		
	Status	Subject	Start Date 👻	End Date
× 😋	Status Done	Subject Reply: DM 3	Start Date - 9/14/2017 5:43:09 A	End Date 9/14/2017 5:43:12
™©	Status Done Done	Subject Reply: DM 3 DM 3	Start Date ~ 9/14/2017 5:43:09 A 9/14/2017 5:39:17 A	End Date 9/14/2017 5:43:12 9/14/2017 5:43:12

Attach an Image

You can attach an image to a new unsolicited Tweet, a reply, a Reply to All, a new Direct Message, or a Retweet with Comments. (You cannot attach an image to a retweet).

To attach an image, click the **Add Picture** icon **E**, then use the resulting dialog box to navigate to the desired file.

This icon appears below the text box in replies and Retweets with Comments; it appears below the text box in unsolicited Tweets.

The following image formats are supported:

- JPEG
- JPG
- PNG
- GIF

Twitter-Specific Functionality

The Twitter Interaction window provides some Twitter-specific functionality.



Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality

You can:

- Display Twitter-user profile information. Click Show Info to display the user profile information. You can also click the user name to open the Twitter page that contains user profile information (see the Figure—Buttons and Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality).
- Display the number of Twitter-user Tweets. The number after the Statuses Count icon indicates the number of user Tweets (see the Buttons and Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality figure).
- Display the Actionability and Sentiment of the Twitter interaction. When a Twitter interaction arrives, you can view Actionability and Sentiment icons (see the Buttons and Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality figure), which could have one of the following values or be undeclared:
 - Actionability—Can be actionable, not actionable, or undeclared.
 - Sentiment—Can be Positive, Negative, Neutral, or undeclared.

Actionable Tweets are colored yellow and non-actionable Tweets are colored gray. Actionability and Sentiment are based on the classification and screening results obtained from Genesys Knowledge Management.

- Update the Actionability and Sentiment of the Twitter interaction. While processing the interaction, you have the option to change the value of the corresponding Actionability and Sentiment key by clicking the related icon and then choosing the correct value.
- Display the Followers Count. The number after the Follower Count icon (see the Buttons and Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality figure) indicates the number of Twitter users following this account.
- Display the designation that the user is a Follower. The Follower icon (see the Buttons and Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality figure) indicates that the user is a Twitter follower.
- Display an attached image by clicking the preview of the image.
- Designate a tweet as Favorite by clicking the **Favorite** button. The tweet then appears with a star icon. You can also unfavorite a tweet.
- Follow/Unfollow a Twitter user. You can become or stop being a follower of an author of the Twitter message. Click the Followed button to unfollow this account (see the Buttons and Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality figure). A menu appears where you can select Unfollow. The button changes to Not Followed (see the Buttons and Icons for Twitter-Specific Functionality figure). Or, in case you change your mind, click the Not Followed button. The menu re-appears where you can select Follow.
- Automatic insertion of *mentions*. An @ sign and mention are automatically inserted into replies. The @ sign is used to call out usernames in Tweets, like this: Hello @JoeBelow! When a user name is preceded by the @ sign, it becomes a link to a Twitter-user profile.
- Reply to all participants in the current Tweet thread. Click Reply. A drop-down menu is displayed. Select Reply to All.
- Send a direct message to an author of a Tweet message. When the Twitter message author is a follower,

you can send a direct message to the author as a form of reply.

- Retweet. Click Reply, select Retweet from the menu, and enter your Retweet. Right-click, select Spell Checking from the menu, correct any spelling errors, and then click Send.
- Retweet with comments. You can make a new Tweet, including the text of current message, and add additional comments. A Retweet indicator (RT) is automatically inserted at the start of the message text. Click Reply, select Retweet with Comments, enter the comment text (you can copy and paste selected text), and click Send Retweet with Comments.
- Open a clickable shortened URL. Twitter messages are limited to 280 characters. All URLs, including short forms like goo.gl will be counted as a 23-character string. Workspace supports shortened URLs.
- Open a Twitter user profile page by using clickable mentions. The @ sign is used to call out user names in Tweets, like this: Hello @JoeBelow! Click a user name preceded by the @ sign to link to a Twitter user profile.
- Perform a search in Twitter by using a clickable *#hashtag*. Twitter uses the *#* symbol, called a hashtag, to mark keywords or topics in a Tweet. Hashtags help you to find Tweets of interest. You can use the hashtag symbol before relevant keywords in Tweets to categorize those Tweets to display more prominently in a Twitter Search. Clicking on a hashtagged word in any message shows you all other Tweets in that category. Hashtags can occur anywhere in the Tweet.
- Display In-Reply to Tweet. If the delivered Tweet interaction is a reply to another Tweet, Workspace enables you to view the original Tweet by clicking on the user name located after "In Reply to". A new browser window opens to display the parent Tweet in Twitter.
- Delete an outbound Tweet from your history by clicking **Delete.**

Notes

• Currently, Promoted Tweets for Twitter platform are not supported as they are not directly referenced to any @mention or mapped to any tracked keyword.

Workspace Functionality

While you are interacting with your Twitter contact, you can use the general Workspace functionality in the Twitter Interaction window.

Important

Some of the procedures and tasks below are media-specific, but you can apply the information when working with Twitter interactions.

- Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View Case Information for the current interaction.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.

- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- You can move an outbound interaction that you are working on into a workbin.
- Use the Standard Response Library for pre-written text for replies and comments. Click the vertical Responses button in the Using The Standard Response Library lesson.
- Cross over into another media channel. If, as an agent, you learn other contact information (not Twitterspecific), such as a contact's phone number or email address, you can manually enter this information on the Information tab. The corresponding choice for other media channels is then displayed when you click the Party Action menu that is next to the name of the contact. You can then reply by using a voice call, an email, an SMS message, or any other supported media channel for a Twitter contact. Workspace displays a drop-down list of available channels to access a contact.
- If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant-transfer the interaction to another internal target. See Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer, which is similar to the Twitter procedure.
 - Start a consultation with another party:
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Consultation.
- When you are finished interacting with your contact, click Done to stop the current interaction.
- The information is saved in the contact history and the Twitter Interaction window is closed.
- Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.

Related Information

• Twitter Interaction

Handle An RSS Interaction

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle inbound RSS interactions fed from the web, how to view the web feed source, headline, and content; how to display channel and item category information; and how to display/update Actionability and Sentiment. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving and Handling an Inbound RSS Interaction
- RSS-Specific Functionality
- Workspace Functionality

About RSS

RSS is a family of web feed formats used to publish frequently updated works—such as news headlines, content, and blog entries—in a standardized format. An RSS source or document, (which is called a "feed" or "channel") includes full or summarized text, plus metadata such as publishing dates and authorship.

Genesys software allows business users to avoid manually inspecting all of the web feeds they are interested in, and instead subscribe to websites such that all new content is sent to Workspace when it becomes available.

A plug-in for Workspace enables it to handle RSS social media interactions. This lesson contains information about how to RSS interactions.

Receiving and Handling an Inbound RSS Interaction

If you are the selected internal target of an inbound RSS interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it, the RSS Interaction window is displayed. The RSS Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Lesson: Handling an inbound RSS interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound RSS interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the RSS-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target of the inbound interaction.

Start

1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view (see the RSS Interaction interactive notification figure).

linidentified	- Workspace	
Case Information		\odot
Origin: Inbound rss		
	Accept	Reject

RSS Interaction interactive notification

The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and type of interaction. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the inbound RSS Interaction window is displayed. The RSS Interaction window figure shows an example interaction.

3 'Unidentified' (5) 00:04:32 (2), ▼ ✓ 2	<u>.</u>
Case Information	
Origin: Inbound rss	
✓ 'Unidentified' ③ Offline	1 . (39
The Lookout - Yahoo! News June 17 at 7:42 AM	<i>¥</i> - ⊙ -
Snowden: U.S. 'not going to be able to cover this up by	jailing or murdering me'
Edward Snowden, America's most-wanted whistle-blower government spying program he revealed will eventually co happens to him. "All I can say right now is the US Governm cover this up by jailing or murdering me," Snowden wrote	; says the truth about the ome out, regardless of what nent is not going to be able to in a live []
0	

RSS Interaction window

The original-routed RSS interaction appears in the left pane under the RSS interaction toolbar (see the RSS Interaction window figure).

4. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the figure - Dynamic Contact History Matrix).



Dynamic Contact History Matrix

Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact. You might be configured to be notified if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the figure - Recent Interactions Matrix). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



5. You can then view the source of the RSS interaction, the headline, and content (see the RSS Interaction window figure).

End

Next Steps

 You may wish to use some of the RSS-Specific Functionality described below. You may also wish to use some of the features in described in Workspace Functionality. When you are finished, click Done to stop the current interaction. The information is saved in the contact history and the RSS Interaction window is closed.

RSS-Specific Functionality

The RSS Interaction window provides some RSS-specific functionality. The following figure shows the relevant buttons and icons.



Buttons and Icons for RSS-Specific Functionality

You can:

- 1. View RSS Web Feed Source, Headline, and Content. The RSS interaction window lets you view the source of the web feed, the headline, and content. Click the headline to go directly to the associated page on the website.
- View Channel and Item Category information. Click the Show Info button (see the Buttons and Icons for RSS-Specific Functionality figure) to view the channel copyright, language, published date, and item category.
- 3. View the Actionability and Sentiment of the RSS interaction. When an RSS interaction arrives, you can view Actionability and Sentiment icons (see the Buttons and Icons for RSS-Specific Functionality figure), which could have one of the following values or be undeclared:
 - Actionability--Can be actionable, not actionable, or undeclared

· Sentiment--Can be Positive, Negative, Neutral, or undeclared

Actionable RSS interactions are colored yellow and non-actionable RSS interactions are colored in gray. Actionability and Sentiment are based on the classification and screening results that are described in the *eServices 8.1 User's Guide*.

4. Update the Actionability and Sentiment of the RSS Interaction. While processing the interaction, you have the option to change the value of the corresponding Actionability and Sentiment key by clicking the related icon and then choosing the correct value.

Workspace Functionality

While you are interacting with your RSS interaction, you can use the general Workspace functionality in the RSS Interaction window.

Tip

Some of the procedures and tasks below are media-specific, but you can apply the information when working with RSS interactions.

- Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View Case Information for the current interaction.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History
- View and manage contact (web feed source) information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant-transfer the interaction to another internal target. See Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer, which is similar to the RSS procedure.
 - Start a consultation with another party:
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Consultation.
- When you are finished interacting with the item, click Done to stop the current interaction.
- The information is saved in the contact history and the RSS Interaction window is closed.
- Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.

Related Information

• RSS Interactions

Handle A Workitem Interaction

In this lesson, you will learn how to handle inbound workitem interactions. Workitems are documents that might be directed to you for handling. They include numerous non-interactive media types, such as faxes, that you might have to view while you are handling interactions of another type, such as email. This lesson contains the following sections:

- Receiving and Handling an Inbound Workitem Interaction
- Transferring a Workitem Interaction

Receiving and Handling an Inbound Workitem Interaction

If you are the selected internal target for an inbound workitem interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction. If you accept it, the Workitem Interaction window is displayed. The Workitem Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction. This section contains the following procedure:

• Lesson: Handling an inbound workitem interaction

Lesson: Handling an inbound workitem interaction

• To handle an inbound workitem interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- Your status is Ready for the workitem-media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target for the inbound interaction.

Start

1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view (see the Workitem Interaction (in this case, a fax) interactive notification figure).

Avril Mai - Workspace							
Case Information		~					
Origin: Inbound fax							
	Accept	Reject					

Workitem Interaction (in this case, a fax) interactive notification

The Interaction Notification contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and

type of interaction. The Interaction Notification might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview. (Added: 8.5.101.14)

If your account is configured for auto-answer, the Interaction Preview is not displayed and the workitem is opened automatically unless your account is configured to enable you to preview the case information before the interaction is auto-answered. In this case, when you receive an auto-answer interaction, the Interaction Preview is displayed on your desktop. A timer that counts down the number of seconds until you are connected to the contact is displayed in the **Accept** button (refer to the following figure). You can click **Accept** before the timer runs out or wait for the timer to run out. The **Reject** button might also be displayed if your administrator wants you to have the option of rejecting an interaction before it is auto-answered.[**Added:** 8.5.105.12]

Accept (00:09)

- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the followings steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time-out and be redirected.
- 3. If you accept the interaction, the inbound Workitem Interaction window is displayed (see the Inbound Workitem Interaction window figure). The Inbound Workitem Interaction window provides the following functionality:
 - Transfer (forward) the workitem to another internal target. See Transferring a Workitem Interaction.
 - Save the workitem in a workbin and close the Workitem Interaction window. See Using Workbins to Access Stored Interactions.
 - Select Mark Done for the current interaction to save the workitem in the contact history and close the Workitem Interaction window. See Managing Contact History.
 - Stat a voice or IM consultation with an internal target or with a contact. See Starting a Voice Conference or Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Set a disposition code. See Assigning Disposition Codes.
 - View and edit Case Information for the current interaction
 - Initiate a voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Conference.
 - Link to a web-page from a hyperlink in the Case Information view. The case information might contain a hyperlink to enable you to view a web-page that is related to the interaction, such as customer records. Click the hyperlink in the Case Information view to open a new browser window and view the link. Place your mouse pointer over the hyperlink to preview the web page from the Case Information view. The hyperlink might be a URL or highlighted anchor text.
 - Call (or email) the sender by clicking the Action menu that is displayed next to the contact name. See Making a Voice Call.
 - View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History.

- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- View the Standard Response Library if you decide to call the sender. See Inserting a Standard Response into an Email Interaction.

liel Genesys + Workspace	O Adollaria -	٤.	۰ و	- 6	з×
🛞 🚺 ANTER 🕼 ANTER (] - 🔛 🗾 🤹 -					≣
Case Information				-	8
Dright, Housed for					2
- Anithi @ Connected			80	B (7)	
Meda Type So Maradan Type Mound Meanter Sub Type HouseMean					MONTH
Nyevilies No					28

Inbound Workitem Interaction window

4. If there are interactions in progress for the current contact, the number of interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Dynamic Contact History Matrix, displaying the number and type of interactions in progress figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of interaction(s) in progress (except voice interactions) for the current contact.



Dynamic Contact History Matrix displaying the number and type of interactions in progress for the current contact

You might be configured to be notified if there are recent interactions for the current contact; if so, the number of recent interactions is displayed beside the connection status of the interaction (see the Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day figure). Place your mouse pointer over the icon to display the number and type of recent interactions for the current contact. If you click the icon, the Contact view is opened and the History tab is displayed. Your system administrator defines the contents as interactions during the last-specified number of days.



Recent interactions matrix displaying the list of interactions with the current contact within the last day

End

Transferring a Workitem Interaction

The Workspace Workitem Interaction window enables you to transfer your current workitem interaction to another party. In this section, you will learn how to use the Team Communicator feature to transfer a workitem interaction to an internal target or to a contact. The Team Communicator enables you to find an internal target or a contact, send an Instant Message (IM) to an internal target, call a contact or an internal target, initiate a conference, or transfer a call. This section contains the following procedure:

• Lesson: Initiating a workitem transfer

Lesson: Initiating a workitem transfer

• To find an internal target (such as an agent, Routing Point, or queue), and then transfer the workitem to the internal target.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound Workitem Interaction).

Start

1. In the active Workitem Interaction window, click Transfer to open the Team Communicator (see the Finding an internal target for workitem transfer in the active Workitem Interaction window figure) to find the internal target to whom you want to transfer the current interaction (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find an internal target).



Finding an internal target for workitem transfer in the active Workitem Interaction window

2. Click the Action Menu drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the internal target to whom you want to transfer the interaction and select Workitem Transfer. An invitation is sent to the target to accept the workitem transfer. If the target accepts the interaction transfer request, the interaction window closes on your desktop and opens on the desktop of the transfer target. If the target does not accept the interaction transfer request, the Workitem Interaction window remains displayed on your desktop and an error is displayed both at the top of the window and in the Workspace My Messages interactive notification.

End

Related Information

• Workitems

Handle an Apple Messages for Business Interaction

This section describes using Workspace Desktop Edition to receive and handle interactions coming from the Apple Messages for Business channel of Genesys Messaging Apps.

Link to video

Receiving and Handling an Inbound Apple Messages for Business Interaction

If you are the selected internal target of an inbound Apple Messages for Business interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction.

🕜 Catherine Jones	- Workspa	ce
Case Information		^
Origin: Inbound applebcsession	on	
Hello		
	Accept	Reject

If you accept it, the Apple Messages for Business Interaction window is displayed. The Apple Messages for Business Interaction window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

Catherine does lession Cat	Works	space						⊙a1002 • ± • • •
and concerted and concerted Catherine Jones Catherine Jones Catherine Jones Catherine Jones 1011:10 AM Catherine Jones 1011:10 AM Jeined the session a1002 Joned the session 1012:21 AM Helio Catherine a1002 Io102	Car	therine Jones 🚯 60.02.17 🔹 🖕 - 🛛 🗶 -						
jeic stond spield cusses Catherine Jones Catherine Jones Catherine Jones Catherine Jones Catherine Jones Latit taget more information about upgrading to a new phone. Latit taget m	se Informat	tion	• •	Information His	tory			
Catherine Jones 1011:10 AM Catherine Jones 1011:10 AM 1002 1003 1011:21 AM 1002 1011:22 AM 1002 1002 1012:27 AM 1012:27 AM </td <td>igin: Inbou</td> <td>und applebcsession</td> <td></td> <td>8 8 0 4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	igin: Inbou	und applebcsession		8 8 0 4				
Fiddag, March 2, 2018 1011:10 AM Catherine Jones Joined the session 1002 Joined the session 1012 Joined the session 1012 Joined the session 1013 21 AM Helio Catherine 1002 1013 21 AM 10102 10102 10102 1013 21 AM 10102 1013 21 AM 10102 1013 21 AM 10102 1013 21 AM	Catherine	e Jones O Connected	2 (7	General		Phone Number		
Catherine Jones Joined the session Catherine Jones 1002 Joined the session 1002 Joined the session 101321AM Helio Catherine 1002 1002 101321AM 101321AM <th></th> <th>Friday, March 2, 2018 10:11:10 AM</th> <th></th> <th>Title</th> <th>Enter Title</th> <th>Enter Phone Number</th> <th>Description</th> <th></th>		Friday, March 2, 2018 10:11:10 AM		Title	Enter Title	Enter Phone Number	Description	
Joined the session ID11:0 AM Helio I would like to get more information about upgrading to a new phone. ID11:0 AM Joined the session ID11:0 AM Helio Catherine ID02		rine Jones	10:11:10 AM	Last Name	Enter Last Name			
Catherine Jones 10.11:10 AM Helio. I would like to get more information about upgrading to a new phone. Joined the session Joined the session a1002 Helio Catherine To 10.13:27 AM T	Joined	d the session		Nickname	Catherine Jones	«		
Add User M membed AddAdA/2002T0072em1007em0 K Add User M membed AddAdA/2002T0072em1007em0 K Add User M membed AddAdA/2002T0072em1007em0 K Add User M membed AddAdA/2002T0072em1007em0 K Fead Address for E-coal Address for E-coal Address for E-coal Address for E-coal Address for E-coal Address		rine lanes	10-11-10 AM	WeChat Contact ID	Enter WeChat Contact ID			
a1002 10.11.43 AA Joined the session 10.11.43 AA a1002 10.13.21 AA Hello Catherine 10.13.27 AA a1002 10.13.27 AA I would be happy to help you with this today. Image: Section Secti	Hello.	I would like to get more information about upgrading to a new phone.	10.11.10 /00	ABC User Id	ummbid AGAAV2CWITDi07emw0	×		
Joined the session a1002 Helio Cathenine a1002 I would be happy to help you with this today.		a1002	10:11:43 AM	E-mail Address	Description			
a 1002 ID 13 21 AM Helio Catherine ID 13 27 AM I would be happy to help you with this today.		Joined the session		Add E-mail Addres	15			
a 1002 1013 27 AM I would be happy to help you with this today.		a1002 Hello Catherine	10:13:21 AM					
State		a1002 I would be happy to help you with this today.	10.13.27 AM	MISPO				
C Ø Send				615				
			⊖ & tend	0				
	ante							

The message area appears similar to a smartphone-based messaging app client:

- Client messages are left-aligned.
- Agent messages are right-aligned.
- Errors are centered.
- The date for when the session started is centered.
- The customer sees a typing notification when the agent is writing a message, as shown below.

Pad 🕈					10:17 AM					8 62% III)
Edit		Ø					usiness			0
Maga	2000									
wess	ages		An age	nt will be wit	h you shortly					
B	usiness O	10:13 AM	An age	nt will be wit	h you shortly					
	th this today.				Hello, I would	like to get n	nore informatio	n about upg	rading to a n	w phone.
										Delivered
			Hello C	atherine						
			Lunde	he harry to	halo unu silth	this toolar.				
			Twould	toe nappy to	neip you wiel	this today.				
		5		\sim						
			0							0
5 ⊂	0									
	2		4		6		8	9		
Q	W	E	R	т	Y	U	1	0	Р	\propto
			1.1					1.1		_
		D.	E	G	Ĥ.	- L i	к	1.1	r	eturn
_			- L- 1							
	- 2			1.1	1		1.1	1	?	
•			<u> </u>	V	R	N	M			•
+	Z	X	6	¥			141			
•	Z	×	C	•			141			

If the customer's contact information matches an entry in your contact database, the customer's name appears in the message area. Otherwise, a default nickname appears.

Additionally, if the customer previously contacted your company using Apple Messages for Business, these previous interactions appear in the message area. Depending on your settings and the number of previous messages, you might need to click **see older messages...** to see previous Apple Messages for Business from the current contact. Records of previous Apple Messages for Business interactions, as well as records of other interaction types, also appear in the Contact History view in Workspace.

Important

- Administrators can configure colors and text size. See the configuration options page for more information.
- Administrators can configure the option applebcsession.transcript-interactions-count to specify how many messages from previous interactions appear in the chat message window.
- Administrators can configure the option applebcsession.max-text-message-size to set the maximum size of the outbound text message, specified in bytes by converting the message string to UTF-8 encoding. A notification appears below the message area if the maximum value is exceeded. Some symbols might require additional characters, such as emojis.

Lesson: Handling an inbound Apple Messages for Business interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound Apple Messages for Business interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the Apple Messages for Business media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target of the inbound interaction.

Start

- 1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view. The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and type of interaction. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.
- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the following steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. To reply to the message, just enter text in the message area. You can copy and paste selected text.
- 4. (Optional) If necessary, you can transfer the conversation to another agent, or invite another agent to join a conference.
 - 1. Click (transfer) or (conference), and select the type of target.
 - 2. Click the magnifying glass to search by name or phone number.

Important

- Before agents can request a conference, an administrator must:
 - Set the option intercommunication.applebcsession.queue before agents can request a conference via the Skill or Group option.
 - Create a Business Attribute of type Interaction Subtype with the name InternalConferenceInvite.
- For more information on transfers, refer to the Workspace documentation topic Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer, which is similar to the Apple Messages for Business procedure.

End

Next Steps

• You may wish to use some of the the features in described in Apple Messages for Business Functionality and Workspace Functionality below. When you are finished, click Done to stop the current

interaction. The information is saved in the contact history and the Apple Messages for Business Interaction window is closed. You can also set a disposition code.

Apple Messages for Business-Specific Functionality

While you are interacting with your Apple Messages for Business contact, you can use the general Workspace functionality in the Apple Messages for Business Interaction window.

Important

Some of the procedures and tasks below are media-specific, but you can apply the information when working with Apple Messages for Business interactions.

- Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View Case Information for the current interaction.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- Use the Standard Response Library for pre-written text for replies and comments. Click the vertical **Responses** button, as shown in the Using The Standard Response Library lesson.
- Cross over into another media channel. If, as an agent, you learn other contact information, such as a contact's phone number or email address, you can manually enter this information on the Information tab. The corresponding choice for other media channels is then displayed when you click the Party Action menu that is next to the name of the contact. You can then reply by using a voice call, an email, an SMS message, or any other supported media channel for a Apple Messages for Business contact. Workspace displays a drop-down list of available channels to access a contact.
- If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant-transfer the interaction to another internal target. See Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer, which is similar to the Apple Messages for Business procedure.
 - Start a consultation with another party:
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Consultation.

Handle a WhatsApp Interaction

This section describes using Workspace Desktop Edition to receive and handle interactions coming from the WhatsApp channel of Genesys Messaging Apps.

Receiving and handling an inbound interaction

If you are the selected internal target of an inbound WhatsApp interaction, you receive a notice on your workstation desktop. You can decide to accept or reject the interaction.

🔘 Catherine Jones - Workspa	ace
Case Information	^
Origin: Inbound whatsappsession	
Hello	
Accept	Reject

If you accept it, the WhatsApp Interaction window is displayed. This window contains information about the interaction and the controls that you need to complete the interaction.

°0°	Work	space								
0	Ca	atherine Jones 🕓) 00.01:04 🃲 🕵 🛼 🖬 🛍	<u>&</u> -						
Cas	e Informa	ation			^	0	Information	History		
Ori	igin: Inbo	ound whatsappsess	ion			8	801			
	Catheri	ne Jones 🕲 Conn	nected		L (2)	TACT	General			
			Wednesday, March 20, 2019 12:29:57 PM	1			Title	E	nter Title	
	Cathe	rine lones	3/20/	2010 12-20-57 DM			First Name	E	nter First Name	
	Hello	THE OVINES	-07 & M	2019 12:29:01 PM			Profile Nickn	ame Ca	atherine Jones	×
			Wednesday, March 20, 2019 12:32:16 PM Catherine Jones joined the session							
	Cathe Hello.	rine Jones I would like to ç	get more information about upgrading to	12:32:16 PM o a new phone.						
		system "Agent will be	shortly with you"	12:32:	18 PM					
			a1001 joined the session			-				
		a1001 Hello Catherin	e	12:32:	41 PM	RESPONS				
		a1001 I would be hap	ppy to help you with this today	12:33:	04 PM	ES				
Γ										
				0	Send					
N	ote									

The message area appears similar to a smartphone-based messaging app client:

- Client messages are left-aligned.
- Agent messages are right-aligned.
- Errors are centered.
- The date for when the session started is centered.

If the customer's contact information matches an entry in your contact database, the customer's name appears in the message area. Otherwise, a default nickname appears.

Additionally, if the customer previously contacted your company using WhatsApp, these previous interactions appear in the message area. Depending on your settings and the number of previous messages, you might need to click **see older messages...** to see previous WhatsApp messages from the current contact. Records of previous WhatsApp interactions, as well as records of other

interaction types, also appear in the Contact History view in Workspace.

Important

- Administrators can configure colors and text size. See the configuration options page for more information.
- Administrators can configure the option whatsappsession.transcript-interactions-count to specify how many messages from previous interactions appear in the chat message window.
- Administrators can configure the option whatsappsession.max-text-message-size to set the maximum size of the outbound text message, specified in bytes by converting the message string to UTF-8 encoding. A notification appears below the message area if the maximum value is exceeded. Some symbols might require additional characters, such as emojis.

Lesson: Handling an inbound WhatsApp interaction

Purpose: To handle an inbound WhatsApp interaction properly.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your status is Ready for the WhatsApp media channel (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You are the internal target of the inbound interaction.

Start

- 1. A preview of the inbound interaction is displayed on your workstation desktop in an interactivenotification view. The Interaction Preview contains a summary of information that pertains to the interaction, including contact information and type of interaction. The Interaction Preview might also contain Case Information, which is part of the case data about the interaction.
- 2. You can choose to accept or reject the interaction in the Interaction Preview by performing one of the following steps:
 - Click Accept to display the interaction.
 - Click Reject to return the interaction to the queue.
 - Do nothing. The interaction will time out and be redirected.
- 3. To reply to the message, just enter text in the message area. You can copy and paste selected text.
- 4. (Optional) If necessary, you can transfer the conversation to another agent, or invite another agent to join a conference.



2. Click the magnifying glass to search by name or phone number.

Important

- Before agents can request a conference, an administrator must:
 - Set the option intercommunication.whatsappsession.queue before agents can request a conference via the Skill or Group option.
 - Create a Business Attribute of type Interaction Subtype with the name InternalConferenceInvite.
- For more information on transfers, refer to the Workspace documentation topic Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer, which is similar to the WhatsApp procedure.

End

Next Steps

• You may wish to use some of the the features in described below. When you are finished, click Done to stop the current interaction. The information is saved in the contact history and the WhatsApp Interaction window is closed. You can also set a disposition code.

WhatsApp-Specific Functionality

While you are interacting with your WhatsApp contact, you can use the general Workspace functionality in the WhatsApp Interaction window.

Important

Some of the procedures and tasks below are media-specific, but you can apply the information when working with WhatsApp interactions.

- Use the Note to attach a note to the interaction history. See Managing Contact History.
- View Case Information for the current interaction.
- View and manage contact history. See Managing Contact History
- View and manage contact information. See Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.
- Your account might be configured to let you assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a known contact in the contact database by using the Manual Contact Assignment feature.
- Use the Standard Response Library for pre-written text for replies and comments. Click the vertical **Responses** button, as shown in the Using The Standard Response Library lesson.
- Cross over into another media channel. If, as an agent, you learn other contact information, such as a contact's phone number or email address, you can manually enter this information on the **Information** tab. The corresponding choice for other media channels is then displayed when you click the **Party**

Action menu that is next to the name of the contact. You can then reply by using a voice call, an email, an SMS message, or any other supported media channel for a WhatsApp contact. Workspace displays a drop-down list of available channels to access a contact.

- If you want to transfer the interaction to another internal target or consult with another internal target about the interaction, you can perform the following functions:
 - Instant-transfer the interaction to another internal target. See Lesson: Starting an instant SMS transfer, which is similar to the WhatsApp procedure.
 - Start a consultation with another party:
 - Start an Instant Messaging consultation. See Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session.
 - Start a Voice consultation. See Starting a Voice Consultation.

Blend Different Media Into A Single Conversation

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the Interaction window to manage a conversation with a contact or other party by using different media types simultaneously.

Workspace enables you to blend more than one media type into your conversation. You can chat with a contact online, while simultaneously speaking together on the phone and composing an email message to send information in writing. You can also manage a conference call with a contact and an internal party, while simultaneously conducting an IM session with the internal party. You can receive a phone number or email address in an email, chat, SMS, or Social Media interaction, and then click it to launch a new interaction.

Workspace provides many ways to blend interaction media simultaneously. The following sections provide some examples of what you can do:

- Media Blending Overview
- Blending One Media with Another
- Blending an E-Mail Interaction with a Voice Interaction
- Blending a Voice Interaction with a Chat Interaction
- Blending Internal Voice Interactions and Internal IM Interactions
- Click to Blend

Tip

The procedures in this lesson demonstrate the principles of media blending; they do not show all the possible media-blending combinations.

Media Blending Overview

Workspace enables you to handle multiple, related interactions in a single window, and transition from one media type to another within the same window.

For example, if you are handling a chat interaction with a contact, you can start an IM consultation in the same window, and then you can add an email interaction while you add a voice consultation.

When you are engaged in one or more consultations with another party, such as another agent or other internal target, Workspace displays a list of your active consultations (see the Team Communicator displaying active consultations figure) whenever you display the Team Communicator by clicking the Instant Transfer, Instant Conference, and Start Consultation buttons in the active interaction.

Senesys • Workspace						
🛞 🖌 Avril Mai 🖸 00:02:25 🛒	9 5- 1 4-					
Annu between these	Type name or number	٩				
Origin: Inbound chat	土 ★ 🖪 Agent	*				
[4:47:44 PM] Avril Mai: Lam having troub	Active Consultations					
[4:48:00 PM] John Davis: OK. What is ha	Kate Lewis Conditionally Ready	£				
	🔜 Instant Chat Transfer					
	★ Add to Favorites	Send				

Team Communicator displaying active consultations

The table **Some of the available media blending by type of interaction** lists *some* of the media blending combinations that are available from each media channel, including consultations. The table **Available consultation types and blending consultation types by interaction-type** lists the media blending combinations that are available for each consultation media-type.

Interaction	Media blending and consultation
	E-mail
	SMS
Voice (Contact)	Social Media
	Voice consultation
	IM consultation
	IM
Voice (Internal target)	Voice consultation
	IM consultation
IM (Internal target)	Voice (Internal target)
	Voice
	SMS
E-mail (inbound from contact)	Social Media
	Voice consultation
	IM consultation
	Voice
	SMS
E-mail (outbound to contact)	Social Media
	Voice consultation
	IM consultation
	Voice
	E-mail
Chat	SMS
	Social Media
	Voice consultation

Some of the available media blending by type of interaction

Interaction	Media blending and consultation
	IM consultation
	Chat consultation
SMC	Voice
21412	E-mail
Casial Madia	Voice
Social Media	E-mail
Workitem	SMS

Available consultation types and blending consultation types by interaction-type

Interaction	1st consult	1st transition consult	2nd transition consult
Voice	Voice consult	IM consult	Х
E mail	Voice consult	IM consult	Х
L-IIIdii	IM consult	Voice consult	Х
	Voico consult	IM consult	Chat consult
	voice consuit	Chat consult	IM consult
Chat	IM concult	Voice consult	Chat consult
Cliat		Chat consult	Х
	Chat concult	Voice consult	IM consult
	Chat consult	IM consult	Voice consult
Social Modia	Voice consult	IM consult	Х
SUCIDI MEUID	IM consult	Voice consult	Х

Blending One Media with Another

From an active interaction, to add a new media-type to a conversation, click the Action menu that is next to the name of the party (see the Active party Action menu displaying available media figure).

Senesys • Workspace								
🛞 🥤 Mark Avram 🕙 00:00:16 🕊 せ・せ・ 🏭 生								
Case Information								
Origin: Outbound call to Mark Avram								
- Mark Avram 🕲 Connected								
🔤 New E-mail to Work address (MarkAv@mail.dom)								
New SMS to Office (+1.555.65								

Active party Action menu displaying available media

The Action menu displays the media channels that are available for blending. The media that are

available depends on several factors, including which media are available in your environment, what contact information is available, and to which media channels you are logged in.

The Team Communicator also displays the Action menu for each party with whom you have an active consultation when you click the Start Consultation button.



Active Consultations Action menu in Team Communicator

Blending an E-Mail Interaction with a Voice Interaction

You can email a contact or other party with whom you are engaged in a voice interaction. The opposite scenario is also possible; you can call a contact from an active E-Mail Interaction window.

Lesson: Blending an E-Mail interaction with a current Voice interaction

Purpose: To add a different type of media to an existing interaction.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction).

Start

1. During a call with a contact you might want to send an email message to the contact. The Voice Interaction window (see the Voice Interaction Window figure) enables you to add an email interaction to the conversation in the same window.

liai Genesys + Workspace	0.intile - 1	:• ••	- 0 ×
◎ ● ビゼゼ・セー目 止・			=
Case Information			• 8
Dright Dubound out to Anti Mai			E.
- Antima @ Converted		197.0	0 00
Dispetitions Note			
			R.
			100M

Voice Interaction Window

To open the list of available media for the contact, in the interaction window, click the Party Action menu that is next to the name of the contact (see the Interaction window Party Action menu figure).



 Select the email address to which you want to send the email message (see the Interaction window Party Action menu figure). The E-Mail Interaction view is added to the Voice Interaction window (see the Voice interaction and email interaction blended in the same window figure). You can now compose an email message to the contact.

Widenesys • Workspace O Jinster • 2 •	• • •	- 0 ×
◎ ● ==== 単山山の (10 0 === 10 0 === 0 === 0 === 0 === 0 === 0 === 0 === 0 === 0 === 0 == 0		=
Care Information		- 8
eligits cubount out to kint total		6
 Anima @ Converted @ Cuthered 	10.0	a m
Num: "Striket Deter"-manifest des-		
No. religination,	ARC	
htpst		
Pille - There - I - I V / I I II		REPORTS

Voice interaction and email interaction blended in the same window

3. Complete the email (Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact) and voice (Lesson: Handling an inbound voice interaction) interactions.

End

Blending a Voice Interaction with a Chat Interaction

You can call a contact or other party with whom you are engaged in a chat interaction. The opposite scenario is not possible; you cannot start a chat interaction from an active Voice Interaction window.

Lesson: Blending a voice interaction with a current chat interaction

Purpose: To add different media-types to an existing interaction.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction).

Start

1. During a chat with a contact you might want to call the contact. The Chat Interaction window (see the

Chat Interaction Window figure) enables you to add an voice interaction to the conversation in the same window.

W Genesys • Workspace	Q Jin Miler v	± ·	• •	- 0	81
◎ ▲ Marcel ● Black ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●					=
Cara Information				• •	8
dage intered due					10MD
And Max O Connected				89.0	
(i) Bit Hind (Data Species, Aquin et all y and you have (Annual Course). Our Environment (Line) (Online
				and a	1 PUNA
Bigestions Note					
				are .	

Chat Interaction Window

To open the list of available media for the contact, in the interaction window, click the Party Action menu that is next to the name of the contact (see the Interaction window Party Action menu figure).

Senesys • Workspace						
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🔘 00:02:10 🕵 🛼 • 두 • 🔽 •						
Case Information						
Origin: Inbound chat						
✓ Avril Mai O Connected						
Call 5555555						
Call Mobile (3616)						
New E-mail to Personal (AMai@mail.dom)						
New E-mail to Work address (mail@mail.dom)						
New E-mail to client2@cust.dev						
New SMS to 5555555						
New SMS to Mobile (3616)						

- Interaction window Party Action menu
- Select the phone number that you want to call (see the Interaction window Party Action menu figure). The Voice Interaction view is added to the Chat Interaction window (see the Chat interaction and voice interaction blended in the same window figure). Both interactions have the Connected status. You can now speak with the contact.



3. Complete the chat (Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction) and voice (Lesson: Handling an inbound voice interaction) interactions.

End

Blending Internal Voice Interactions and Internal IM Interactions

Workspace enables you to blend media during internal interactions, whether you are calling agent-toagent, or are consulting with another party while you are handling an interaction with a contact, you can add different media to your internal interactions.

This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Blending an internal IM with an active internal voice interaction
- Lesson: Blending an internal IM consultation with an active internal voice consultation.
- Lesson: Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation.

Lesson: Blending an internal IM with an active internal voice interaction

Purpose: To add an internal IM interaction to an active internal voice interaction and handle both in the same window.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You have an active call with an internal target (see Lesson: Calling an internal target).

Start

 During a call with an internal target, you might want to blend an IM interaction into your conversation. The Voice Interaction window (see the Active voice interaction, with an internal target figure) enables you to add multiple conversations in the same window.



Active voice interaction, with an internal target

To add an IM interaction to your conversation, click the Party Action menu next to the name of your internal target and select Send Instant Message (see the Party menu in the active Voice Interaction window figure).

Senesys ⋅ Workspace							
🛞 🥻 Kate Lewis 🕒 00:00:22 🌿 안 단 - 얀 - 🏢 🙎 -							
Case Information							
Origin: Internal call from Kate Lewis							
✓ Kate Lewis							
🧩 Send Instant Message							
Dispositions Initiate an Instant Messaging invitation							

Party menu in the active Voice Interaction window

The IM interaction view is displayed in the active Voice Interaction window (see the Starting an IM interaction in the active interaction window figure).

 Enter a message to your target. The session starts in the interaction window (see the Starting an IM interaction in the active interaction window figure) when you send your first message. The target is presented with an interactive notification that enables the target to accept or reject your invitation to engage in an IM session.

You are notified if the target accepts, rejects, or lets your invitation time-out.

lai Genesys + Workspace	O Jintiler + 1	• •	- 0	н
Series O O BEET U U U · U · 田 止・			1	
Care information			•	5
(bigins, internal call from Kalestawise				Š.
- Karless @ Casered @ IsoConsol				ä
minan a mara mangng san a mangp ta an in ang				
1 I			-	
Begentine Begentine Lake * Anne Angled Sachered			I	

Starting an IM interaction in the active interaction window

3. If your target accepts your invitation, you can conduct an IM session by entering a text message to the internal target in the text field at the bottom of the view (see the Starting an IM interaction in the active interaction window figure). The transcript of your conversation is displayed in the message transcript area (see the Message-transcript area of the IM interaction view figure).

lai Genesys + Workspace	• 1	• •	- 0 1
🛞 🖥 ener 🛛 ener 🕿 🕲 ener ビ ゼ ゼ・ 🖽 🦛 -			≣
Case Information			- 5
dright internal call from Kale Lewis			- 3
- Katrianis @ Connected @ Connected			
Teleform in instant Monosping, Dan di a rensping to stati fin sension (2) 23 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24			
1			-
Experime			
Dispetition Code			1
Kose Acopial Republ Testimat			

Message-transcript area of the IM interaction view

4. Complete your voice interaction by following Lesson: Calling an internal target. Complete your IM interaction by following Lesson: Initiating an Instant Messaging session. You can end either of the interactions while keeping the other active.
End

Lesson: Blending an internal IM consultation with an active internal voice

consultation

Purpose: To add an internal IM consultation to an active internal voice consultation and handle both in the same window.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction).

Start

1. During a call with a contact you might want to start a voice consultation and then blend in an IM consultation. The Voice Interaction window (see the Voice Interaction Window figure) enables you to add multiple consultation conversations in the same window.

5	🗟 Genesys 🔸 Workspa	ce							
\odot	3) 🥤 3617 🕲 00:00:39 🕊	હ	U -	ي.	 ٥	•	હ	•	<u>\$</u> .
Car	Case Information								
0	Origin: Inbound call to 5320								
	- 3617 Connected								
Void	oice Interaction Window								

Start a consultation call with an internal target or other party by using the following Lesson: Starting a voice consultation. The consultation is added to the current interaction window (see the Voice Interaction window, with an added voice consultation figure).

Senesys	• Worksp	ace				
🛞 🧧 3617 🔇	00.01:15 🔇	: u u	· &·	÷ •	હ -	<u>*</u> -
Case Information						
Origin: Inbound ca	ill to 5320					
🝷 3617 🕲 On F	Hold					
Dispositions	Note					
Consultation: SIP	5321 🕒 (00:00):15)				
- SIP 5321 🕲	Connected					
۳ د د ۱۱	<u>ب</u>					
_esson: Starting	a voice cor	sultation				

- 2. To add an IM consultation an active voice consultation, click the Start Consultation button () on the main interaction toolbar. The Team Communicator is displayed. It displays a list of your active consultations (see the Team Communicator, displaying active consultations figure).
- 3. Click the Action menu that is next to the name of the party with whom you want to start an IM consultation (see the Active Consultation Action menu figure) to display a list of available media for the party.

See Genesys + Workspace See See State Consultation Segme Information Segme Informatio
Image: Construction Image: Construction Origin: Information Image: Construction Image: Construction Image: Construction
Case Information Topic name or number Origin: inbound call to 5220 ▲ ● ● ▲ Qent ● - 3617 ● On Hold — SPP 5321 Dispositions Note
Constant from the same set of the same se
Star Star Star Star Star Star Star S
Dispositions Note
Dispositions Note
+ Add to Faultities
K von to resource
Consultation: SIP 5321 🕲 (00:00:54)
SIP 5321 @ Connected
1 × 10 m 4
C G III + -
Active Consultation Action many

Workspace Desktop Edition User's Guide

4. Click Start Instant Message Consultation (see the Active Consultation Action menu figure). The IM interaction view is displayed in the active interaction window beneath your active voice consultation view (see the An Instant Messaging consultation added to the current voice consultation figure).

W Genesys • Workspace	0 == 1 = 0 = _ 0 = _ 0 =
◎	=
Care Information	• • 6
driges informed call to \$329	040
- 3617 💩 Germahl	
Dispetilizes Note	
	ter.
Cansolution: 597 1321 🚭 (30.01 22)	•
Consultation: SIP 1321 O	- <u>-</u>
· SP101 © NotExceeded	5
E2	
Behave in instal Beneging. Sold a receiver is stal for second	
Neb Kal	

An Instant Messaging consultation added to the current voice consultation $% \left({{{\rm{A}}_{{\rm{B}}}}_{{\rm{A}}}} \right)$

- 5. Enter a message to your target. The session starts in the Interaction window (see the An Instant Messaging consultation added to the current voice consultation figure) when you send your first message. The target is presented with an interactive notification that enables the target to accept or reject your invitation to engage in an IM session. You are notified if the target accepts, rejects, or lets your invitation time-out.
- 6. If your target accepts your invitation, you can conduct an IM session by entering a text message to the internal target in the text field at the bottom of the view (see the An Instant Messaging consultation added to a voice consultation in the Interaction window figure). See the Lesson: Starting a Consultation IM session from an active interaction, for information on how to handle an IM interaction. See the Lesson: Starting a voice consultation, for information on how to handle a voice consultation.

🗑 Genesys + Workspace	O 5P 5000 +	£٠	• •	- 0	s ×
◎ === @ ==== ℃ ℃ ℃ € · ℃ · 章 · ℃ · ₫ ·				1	=
Our Information				-	8
Origin Indoard sall is \$335					140
* 317 🗶 Gondi					1
Dispetitore Note					
Consolution 10 ⁴ 5011 (\$ 5011.04)					
Consultation, SPF SIGT () (SEGE 24)				•	S.
= SP-SET O Connected					ŝ
Todawa wa harde thereaging land a remease to the fife series Basis of the Section of Alexandry Section 1 Basis Proj De 1331 accessed for Instant Wessaging entration. Basis Proj De 1331 accessed					
			ŀ		

Lesson: Starting a voice consultation

End

Lesson: Blending a voice consultation with an IM consultation

Purpose: To add an internal voice interaction to an active internal IM interaction and handle both in the same window.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You have an active interaction with a contact (see Receiving a Voice Interaction).

Start

1. During a call with a contact you might want to start an IM consultation and then blend in a voice consultation. The Voice Interaction window (see the Voice Interaction Window figure) enables you to add multiple consultation conversations in the same window.

li# Genesys + Workspace	0 9F509 + 1 + 0 + _ D ×
◎ ● ==== - ビ ビ ビ ビ	1
Case Information	• • 8
dright, indexed call to \$320	040
- 307 @ Converted	2 00
Dependines Mr.	REPORTS
	lan.

Voice Interaction Window

Start a consultation IM with an internal target or other party by using the following Lesson: Starting a Consultation IM session from an active interaction. The consultation is added to the current interaction window (see the Voice Interaction window, with an added IM consultation figure).

liii Genesys + Workspace 🔅 sesse + 😦 + 😡		a x
		=
Care bitweeten		ŝ
drigin: Informed and to \$320		5
SIT & Converted	B (1)	
Digestiles Mr.		
	See	8
(analytics 597531 🔷 (01014)	-	INNO
- 1P 1121 O Connected		~
Both Both		

Lesson: Starting a Consultation IM session from an active interaction



- To add a voice consultation to an active voice consultation, click the Start Consultation button (on the main interaction toolbar. The Team Communicator is displayed. It displays a list of your active consultations (see the Team Communicator, displaying active consultations figure).
- Click the Action menu that is next to the name of the party with whom you want to start a voice consultation (see the Active Consultation Action menu figure) to display a list of available media for the party.

iii Genesys • Workspace		0 SP 550 + ± +	• - = = ×
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u>a.</u>		=
Gera Information Gergin: Information I to 3320	L · · · · ·	•	• • contact
+ 3017 @ Converted	A . MART		E (0)
Signalina No	Bart Inter-Considered		
Considerant 197 121 🔷 (1011 22)			1
- SP S21 O Converted			3
and where the second processing the start for second where the second processing the start for second bits 1 and of \$1250 bits to a for a second processing to start for second bits 1 and of \$1251 bits to a second of a start three second procession bits 1 and of \$1251 bits to a second of a start three second procession bits 1 and of \$1251 bits to a second of a start three second procession bits 1 and of \$1251 bits to a second of a start three second procession bits 1 and \$1251 bits to a second of a start three second procession bits 1 and \$1251 bits to a second of a start three second procession bits 1 and \$1251 bits to a second of a start three second procession			
			and a

Active Consultation Action menu

4. Click Start Voice Consultation (see the Active Consultation Action menu figure). The voice interaction view is displayed in the active interaction window beneath your active IM consultation view (see the A voice consultation added to the current IM consultation figure).



A voice consultation added to the current IM consultation

The target is presented with an interactive notification that enables the target to accept or reject your invitation to engage in a voice consultation.

You are notified if the target accepts, rejects, or lets your invitation time-out.

5. If your target accepts your invitation, you can speak with your voice consultation target. See the Lesson: Starting a voice consultation, for information on how to handle a voice consultation. See the Lesson: Starting a Consultation IM session from an active interaction, for information on how to handle an IM interaction.

End

Click to Blend

Workspace can recognize phone numbers and email addresses in email, chat, and SMS interactions. When Workspace recognizes an email address or phone number in an interaction, it converts the information into a link. When you click a link, it can launch a new interaction.

Lesson: Creating a new email interaction by clicking an email address link in a

chat interaction

Purpose: To create a new email interaction by clicking an email address link in another interaction. The principles of this procedure are applicable to email links in chat, email, and SMS interactions.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You have an active chat, email, or SMS interaction.

Start

1. If you are handling a chat interaction (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction), and your contact sends you an email address in their message, Workspace will convert the email address to an address link (see the Chat interaction with a clickable email link from the contact figure). The link is underlined and highlighted in a color that is distinct from the other text.

liii Genesys + Workspace	O Jackber v	ŧ٠	۰ •	- 0	3 ×
S Avere (P Hotel W) W: Ve Ve (2.1					=
Case Information				-	8
drige informational chart					DMD
- Anima O Connected			860	a 00	
(1) E1 High Quark [passises, Approved of the section providence]. Our denses (Description Quark)					NOASH
				nd. K	SIS
Expections too					

Chat interaction with a clickable email link from the contact

2. To create an email interaction, click the link. [4:16:52 PM] Avril Mai: A. Maigmail.dom



Click E-Mail links in the Chat transcript to start a new E-Mail Interaction.

The E-Mail Interaction view is displayed within the Chat Interaction window (see the Chat Interaction window containing an E-Mail Interaction view that was added by clicking an email address link in the chat transcript figure).

Bill Genesys + Workspace	0.intile - 2 -	• • ×
🛞 🔤 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉		=
Constitutionation Bright Information		• • CONTRA
- Antitate Conversed Conterned		1400 BO
PE 18 MM2 Non-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has participle annuals PE 18 MM2 NON-party Tao (1 Mu) has partited annuals PE 18 MM2 NON		
		-
Rem: "Sortact Center" «naniĝino de»		
St. A Magnal date.		ARIO: -
renta + _ Univers		Emonets
Poperties tot		
		Save

Chat Interaction window containing an E-Mail Interaction view that was added by clicking an email address link in the chat transcript

- 3. Compose an email message to the recipient (Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact). The controls for the email interaction are displayed next to the chat controls (see the Chat Interaction window containing an E-Mail Interaction view that was added by clicking an email address link in the chat transcript figure).
- Click Send to send the email interaction to the address that you clicked. You can also click Save, Save In Draft workbin, Add Attachment, or Delete — see Creating and Handling a New or Reply Email Interaction.
- 5. Complete the chat interaction (see Lesson: Handling an inbound chat interaction).

End

Lesson: Creating a new voice interaction by clicking an phone number link in an SMS interaction

Purpose: To create a new voice interaction by clicking a phone number link in another interaction.

The principles of this procedure are applicable to phone number links in chat and SMS interactions.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Going Ready in the Workspace Main window).
- You have an active chat or SMS interaction.

Start

1. If you are handling an SMS interaction (see Lesson: Handling an inbound SMS interaction), and your contact sends you a phone number in their message, Workspace will convert the phone number to a link (see the SMS interaction with a clickable phone number link from the contact figure). The link is underlined and highlighted in a color that is distinct from the other text.

⊗ 🚺 Bill Edwards 📵 00.00.27 🕞 - 🔽 🛃 -
Case Information
Origin: Inbound SMS Page Mode
▪ Bill Edwards ⊕ Inbound
12 message exchanges with this contact in the past 24 hours Show.messages [18:30:05] Bill Edwards: Please call me at <u>5555555</u>

SMS interaction with a clickable phone number link from the contact

 To create a voice interaction, click the link. The Voice Interaction controls are displayed within the SMS Interaction window and the connection status is added to the interaction-status view (see the SMS Interaction window containing Voice Interaction controls that were added by clicking a phone number link in the SMS body figure).



 $^{\rm SMS}$ Interaction window containing Voice Interaction controls that were added by clicking a phone number link in the SMS body

- 3. Complete the voice interaction (see Lesson: Calling a contact).
- 4. Complete the SMS interaction (see Lesson: Handling an inbound SMS interaction).

End

Related Information

- Voice Interaction
- Internal Voice Interaction
- Voice Consultation
- Chat Interaction
- Inbound Email
- Outbound Email
- SMS and MMS Interactions
- Internal IM
- Facebook Interaction
- Twitter Interaction
- RSS Interaction

Edit Case Information And Record Information

[Modified: 8.5.117.18, 8.5.118.10, 8.5.121.03]

In this lesson, you will learn how to edit the Case Information of your interactions and the Record Information of your outbound campaign voice interactions.

Sometimes when you receive an interaction, there might be errors in the Case Information. For example, a contact might have given erroneous or incomplete information to the IVR, or selected the wrong language preference. Workspace enables agents who are configured to edit Case Information to make changes to specified fields in the Case Information and Record Information views (refer to the *Workspace Help* for more information on these views).

You can correct fields while you manage the interaction, or you can update fields to reroute the interaction to a different agent or queue.

Tip

Sometimes URLs (links to websites) are included in Case Data. URLs in the Case Data might be plain text or they might be hyperlinked text. For hyperlink text, you will be able to read the URL before clicking it by hovering your mouse pointer over the URL to display a tooltip that lets you see the address.

This lesson contains the following section:

• Editing Case Information

Editing Case Information

You can edit the case information of active interactions if you are configured with this privilege. There are four types of Case Data that you can update:

- Text (word or string of words)
- Check boxes (Boolean: yes/no)
- Dates (date and time)
- Numbers (integer and decimal)
- Specific text or numbers selected from a drop-down list or folder tree

Lesson: Modifying case information

Purpose: To specify a different value for a Case-Information field that is configured to be editable.

Tip

You can also use this procedure to edit the Record Information of your outbound campaign voice interactions.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to edit case information.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have accepted an interaction that contains case data.

Start

1. When the interaction is displayed on your desktop, view the Case Information view. Move your mouse pointer over the view to see which fields are editable. Editable fields are indicated by a small pencil icon (see the Case Information view, with both editable and non-editable fields figure).

Case Informati	ion	+	^
Origin:	Internal call from Kate Lewis		
Queue:	123		
Call Quality:	0 - Good 🖍		
Call Type:	Support 🖌		
International:	×		
Priority:	15		
Reason:	Broken TV 🖌		
Segment:	Gold 🖍		
Start Date:	Friday, April 04, 2014 2:05:17 PM 🖋		
Updated:			

Case Information view, with both editable and non-editable fields

Editable check boxes appear as active, while non-editable check boxes appear as inactive (that is, dimmed—see the Case Information, with both editable and non-editable check boxes figure).

International	✓
Priority:	15
Reason:	Broken TV 🖍
Segment:	Gold 🖍
Start Date:	Friday, April 04, 2014 2:05:17 PM 🖍
Updated:	<i>M</i> ²

Case Information, with both editable and non-editable check boxes



Sometimes, not all of the case data is available. There might be fields missing. If you are configured to add missing fields, the Add Field button (1) is displayed in the Case Information toolbar.

- a. Click Add Field to display a drop-down list of fields.
- b. Select a missing field to display the field in the Case Information view.
- c. Click X to remove the field.
- d. Enter the missing Case Data. For certain types of data, what you enter might be restricted to a certain number of characters or certain types and combinations of characters. For example, if you have to enter a credit card number, then the field might only allow certain numbers for a particular type of credit card.

If one of the characters that you type is invalid or the maximum number of characters that is allowed is reached, then nothing will be entered in the text field.

If what you have typed does not match what Workspace is expecting you to enter, an error icon appears to warn you that you must check what you have entered and correct it.

International:	~
Priority:	15
Reason:	Wrong Value
Segment:	Gold 🖋
Start Date:	Friday, April 04, 2014 2:05:17 PM 🖍
Updated:	1

Case data field turns red if invalid characters are entered.

Im	nn	rta	nt
	υU	'i ta	ΠU

Incorrect format: If you do not correct incorrectly formatted entries before you attempt to mark done, transfer, move the interaction to a workbin, or any other action that transfers ownership of the interaction, a warning message is displayed asking you to either discard your changes or proceed with the action. If you cancel your action, you can correct the entry. If the entry is mandatory, you must set the correct value before you can close the interaction.

- e. If what you have entered is correct, press Enter to add the Case Data to the case information for the interaction.
- Click an editable check box to select it (see the Case Information with an editable check box selected figure); click it again to de-select it (see the Case Information, with both editable and non-editable check boxes figure).

International	✓
Priority:	15
Reason:	Broken TV 🖍
Segment:	Gold 🖋
Start Date:	Friday, April 04, 2014 2:05:17 PM 🖋
Updated:	 ✓

Case Information with an editable check box selected

3. Click an editable data-time field to edit it. A calendar and time-picker view is displayed (see the Case Information date and time editor figure).

Frida	у, Ар	ril O	4, 20	14 :	2:05	:17 PM	*
•		A	pril, 2	2014		•	11 12 1
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Тh	Fr	Sa	10 2
30	31	1	2	3	4	5	2 2
6	7	8	9	10	11	12	
13	14	15	16	17	18	19	1 1
20	21	22	23	24	25	26	2 6 5
27	28	29	30	1	2	3	
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
							02:05:17 PM 🗘
	Friday, April 04, 2014 2:05:17 PM						

Case Information date and time editor

To set a new date, use the arrows to move the month and year forward and backward, respectively. Click a day to select it.

To set a new time, click an hour, minute, or second, and then use the up and down arrows to increase or decrease the value respectively, or use your keyboard to enter a new value.

4. Click an editable drop-down list to change its value (see the Case Information drop-down list editor figure).

Segment:	Gold		*
Start Date:	Bronze		
Updated:	Gold	6	
▼ Kate Lewis	Silver	3	

Case Information drop-down list editor

Some drop-down lists might contain a tree structure of folders. The tree structure allows your adminstrator to group different related selections in folders to make it easier for you to find the correct choice. You can either click through the folder structure to find the selection or, if you know the name of the selection you want, just type it in the Quick Search box. To open or close a folder, click it. To select an entry, click it. [Added: 8.5.118.10]

Case Informa	tion	+ •
Origin:	Outbound call to	
Priority.	12 /	
Category Id:	CRMCaseClosed	* ×
	Selected: CRMCaseClosed X	
	Quick Search	Q,
Dispositio	Attachment	
Dispositio	Auto Response	
	AutoBot	
	BIB	
	 Chat Transcript 	
	Field Code	
	 Financial service 	
	 ForAutomatedTreatment 	
	Forwarding	
	HIM.	
	 MISC E OES Samples 	
	CIM/Constituted CIM/Case Bed EmailAbandonedApology	

Case Information drop-down list editor showing a tree structure

5. To edit a text value, click the value to open the text-edit field. Modify the value and press Enter (see the Case Information editable text field figure).

	Phoney.	10 🖉
	Reason:	Broken TV
1	Case Information	editable text field

End

Related Information

Case Data

Using The Standard Response Library

[**Modified:** 8.5.118.10]

In this lesson, you will learn how to access a database of prewritten standard responses for your interactions.

Tip

You can insert responses as replies into any email message, chat message, or SMS message, or you can read them to the contact during a voice interaction or Outbound Campaign call.

This lesson contains the following section:

• Inserting a Standard Response into an Email Interaction

Inserting a Standard Response into an Email Interaction

Your contact center might have a database of standard responses that you can access to compose prewritten replies to the email, chat, and SMS interactions of a contact. You can find and insert standard responses manually, or use suggested responses that are based on how relevant they are to the incoming message from the contact. Your administrator defines the standard responses to which you have access. The responses to which you have access might be restricted by business area, language, or other criteria that are specific to your business or role.

This section contains the following procedures:

- Finding and inserting a standard response into an email interaction
- Using a shortcut to insert a standard response into an email interaction
- Searching the Standard Response Library for a standard response
- Searching the Standard Response Library for a suggested response

Lesson: Finding and inserting a standard response into an email interaction

Purpose: To send a pre-written response to a customer interaction (email, chat, or SMS).

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have accepted the inbound or transferred email interaction or created a new interaction (see

Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction or Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact).

• If you are handling an inbound email interaction, you have clicked Reply or Reply All in the inbound Email Interaction window (see Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction).

Start

1. If your account is configured to use standard responses, all Workspace interaction windows, such as the Email Interaction window (see the Blank outbound Email Interaction window figure), enable you to access the Standard Responses Library.

liii Genesys + Workspace	0 SP 500 + 2 + 0 + _ D ×
8 🖕 8	=
fee kforeter	
Digit Extransi	10
Call type: Support	1
Platy 0	
Ressex: Broken TV	
Segnent Cold	
 Antithi	tyn Bri
Ram: "Web Contact Center' - webgins: dev-	
Th. A Maginal duri,	AM D: +
Subject: An Worg amount charged	
There is a second secon	ALC: N
a (pair second ray mostly, and i follow that i have been sharped for enough ensuring a positione in New	405
Objections Inde	
	face

Blank outbound Email Interaction window

To open the Responses view in *any* interaction window, including email, chat, and voice, click the Responses button, which is located on the left-hand side of the interaction window and below the Contact button.



2. The Responses view is displayed. The Responses view has two view modes: tree mode (see the Responses tree-mode view of an interaction window figure) and list mode (see the Responses list-mode view of an interaction window figure).



Responses tree-mode view of an interaction window

Similar to the tree view of Microsoft Windows Explorer, the tree view enables you to explore folders of responses by category. The list mode enables you to view the response documents in a table view that is sortable by document name or folder name.



Responses list-mode view of an interaction window

Click folders in the tree view to open them and view sub-folders and documents.

You can also search for a specific response by title or content by using the search functionality (see Lesson: Searching the Standard Response Library for a standard response).

3. To view or use a standard response, click the document in either mode (see the Responses view, with a selected standard response figure).



Responses view, with a selected standard response

When a document is highlighted, you can perform the following actions:

• Preview the contents of the response by clicking Show Detail (see the Responses view, displaying the details of the selected response figure).



Responses view, displaying the details of the selected response

- Insert the response into your interaction at the insertion point by one of the following methods:
 - Press Enter on your keyboard.
 - Click Insert Standard Response Text (岸).
 - Right-click the response and select Insert Standard Response Text from the context menu.
 - Double-click a response to automatically insert the content at the insertion point in the text field. [Added: 8.5.105.12]
- Add the document to your list of favorite responses by clicking Add Standard Response into Favorite Responses. You can then filter the tree mode or list mode to show only your favorites by clicking the View drop-down list and then selecting Favorite Responses instead of All Responses. The standard response inserted into an outbound email interaction figure shows a selected response in the tree-mode view, the associated Details view, and inserted into the email interaction text composition area. You can add multiple responses in the same interaction.

iii Genesys • Workspace		0 BP 500 + ± + Ø + _ D >
⊗ 🚺 후 ==== 월 · 日 할 중 팩 금 셨 -		=
Constructions and Construction of Constructions of Constr	O CONTACT	Ang Regress Seech * Seech C.
The A forginaria dam, A dol (b = 6 Analysis Na Wang manach danged If the management of the point (b and of the point (b		Provide Provide Provide the transmission Provide the transmission
GR 2012014121 PM And Mile HVM. - Joint Analogies Protocol And State PM And State States (Anywell for enough enough for my partners). - A Mail - A Mail - States	10001	Receipt annual See

A standard response inserted into an outbound email interaction

4. Complete and send or transfer the interaction (see Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction or Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact).

End

Lesson: Using a shortcut to insert a standard response into an email interaction

[**Added:** 8.5.118.10]

Purpose: To use a shortcut to insert a pre-written response to a customer interaction (email, chat, SMS, MMS, Twitter, Facebook, and so on).

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have accepted the inbound or transferred email interaction or created a new interaction (see Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction or Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact).
- If you are handling an inbound email interaction, you have clicked Reply or Reply All in the inbound Email Interaction window (see Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction).

Start

1. If your account is set up to use standard responses, all Workspace interaction windows, such as the Email Interaction window (see the Blank outbound Email Interaction window figure), enable you to access the Standard Responses Library.

iii Genesys • Workspace	os≠sso - ± -	• •	- 0	
8 🔤 🚥 🖉 - 日 🖥 🖉 리 문 🗶 -			3	
Conclusion Configue Configurational Configue Propert Printing 0 Researce Environment Properties Configuration * Institute Configuration		tex (ODWIACT
Hann: "Noti-Contract Sector" - endpoint door Thom: A A Anglowed Anny. A A Anglowed Anny. The Anglowed Anglowed Anglowed The Anglowed A		AMO		
1 (a) 1331-0214 P.21 PML And Melenon: 4 MML 4 Just matching works, and listen that have been sharped for more amount for my portions. 4 A Mai				SPINOADIN 1
Dispedies not				
		54	•	

Blank outbound Email Interaction window

You can choose to manually select a response, or your system might be set up to let you enter a shortcut keyword into a text field to automatically add a response. Ask your administrator or supervisor what the shortcut keywords and the shortcut prefix are for your company.

2. To use a shortcut, type the prefix specified by your company (for example, "#") followed by the keyword for the response you want to insert, followed by Ctrl+Space. If your prefix is "#" and the keyword is "sale", then you type: #sale+Ctrl+Space.

The body of the standard response is added to your interaction.

3. To open the Responses view in any interaction window, including email, chat, and voice, click the Responses button, which is located on the left-hand side of the interaction window and below the Contact button.



4. To learn what the shortcut keywords are, navigate the responses tree in the Responses or the Responses with predefined Shortcut view and select the response you are interested in. The shortcut keyword is displayed above the preview and in the Shortcut column of the responses tree.



End

Lesson: Searching the Standard Response Library for a standard response

Purpose: To use search tools to find a response in the Standard Response Library.

Tip

If you are configured to use responses, the Responses view is available for the Email, Chat, SMS, and Voice Interaction windows.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have accepted the inbound or transferred interaction or created a new interaction.

Start

- 1. You can use either the tree mode or list mode to search manually through the list of standard responses (see Lesson: Finding and inserting a standard response into an email interaction), or you can use keyword searches to identify quickly the responses that contain the information that you want to send to your contact. In the responses view, type a word or words into the search field and then click the magnifying glass or press Enter to return all documents that meet the criteria that you specify (see the Responses All Keyword Search figure and the Responses Exact Text Search figure). The Responses search function enables you to perform three standard searches:
 - Any Keyword Search--Find all responses that contain at least one of the specified keywords
 - All Keyword Search--Find all responses that contain all of the specified keywords
 - Exact Text Search--Find all responses that contain the specified keywords in the order in which they are specified.



0	Exac	t Text Search 👻 transaction amount	×O
8	View:	All Responses	*
NTA		大	
Ч	Resp	onse	
	•	Financial service	
		 Errors in transactions 	
		Wrong amount	
R			
Resp	onse	s Exact Text Search	

2. Use the View menu to search through All Responses or your Favorite Responses (see the Favorite Responses filter figure).



- Favorite Responses filter
- 3. Click the Show Advanced Search Options button (two downward pointing chevrons) to display the advanced filtering options. The advanced filtering options enable you to specify whether to search in Responses Names, Responses Body Text, or both (see the Advanced response filtering options figure).

0	Exac	t Text Search 🔻	amount	×	0
CONT	Sear	ch for Text In:	Responses Names Responses Body Text		
CT	View:	All Responses	· 0		٣

Advanced response filtering options

4. When you have found the responses for which you are searching, you can insert it into your interaction at the insertion point (go to Step 3 of Lesson: Finding and inserting a standard response into an email interaction) or you can read it to a contact on a voice call.

End

Lesson: Searching the Standard Response Library for a suggested response

Purpose: To use a suggested response from the Standard Response Library.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

• You have accepted the inbound or transferred email interaction.

Start

1. In the Responses view, from the View menu, select Suggested Responses (see the Tree view of Suggested Responses in the Responses view of a reply email interaction window figure).

8	View:	Suggested Responses		*
NTAC		*		
H	Resp	onse	Relevancy	
	- 1	 Politesse Hello Signature OES_Samples CRMCaseClosed CRMCaseOpened EmailAbandonedApology 	84 % 60 %	
	•	Misc	50 %	

Tree view of Suggested Responses in the Responses view of a reply email interaction window

Suggested responses are displayed in either list view or tree view. In list view (see the List view of the Suggested Responses view figure), you can sort by column. Click a column heading to sort by that field; click the same column head to reverse the sort order.

In tree view (see the Tree view of Suggested Responses in the Responses view of a reply email interaction window figure), the responses are sorted by relevancy to the inbound interaction to which you are replying.

8	View:	Suggested Responses			*
NTAC		*			۵ 🗆
Ч	Resp	onse	Relevancy -	Parent Category	
	CRM	CaseClosed	60 %	OES_Samples	
	Ema	ilAbandonedApology	60 %	OES_Samples	
	8886	aaaaaaaaa - 3 lines	50 %	Misc	
	Not	closed field code	50 %	Misc	
	With	special HTML characters	50 %	Misc	
	Carr	iage return test	50 %	Misc	
	This	does not work	50 %	Misc	

List view of the Suggested Responses view

- 2. To search through the Suggested Responses list, you can use either the tree mode or list mode to search manually through the list of standard responses (see Lesson: Finding and inserting a standard response into an email interaction), or you can use keyword searches to identify quickly the responses that contain the information that you want to send to your contact (see Lesson: Finding and inserting a standard response into an email interaction).
- 3. When you have found the response for which you are searching, you can insert it into your interaction at the insertion point (go to Step 3 of Lesson: Finding and inserting a standard response into an email interaction) or you can read it to a contact on a voice call.

End

Related Information

- Responses
- Voice Interaction
- Chat Interaction
- Inbound Email
- Outbound Email
- SMS and MMS Interactions

Apply Disposition Codes

[Modified: 8.5.108.11, 8.5.146.06]

The Workspace Disposition Code view enables you to assign to an ongoing or terminated interaction a code that qualifies or specifies the outcome of the interaction.

The Disposition Code view is part of the Interaction window. It contains either a checklist of options, or a hierarchy of folders containing options that you can click to specify the outcome of the interaction.

Your system might be configured so that you cannot click Mark Done until you have selected a disposition code, or you might be able to mark an interaction as Done without specifying a disposition. Your system might be configured so that the Disposition Code view is not displayed.

This lesson contains the following section:

• Assigning Disposition Codes

This lesson demonstrates assigning a disposition to a voice interaction; however, this procedure is applicable to any type of interaction for which you have been enabled to specify a disposition.

Tip

Minimizing and Restoring the Disposition Code and Note views. If you need more space in the Interaction view you can minimize or restore the Disposition tab and Note tab area by clicking the chevron. [Added: 8.5.146.06]

Case Informat	ion + A	0	Any	Keyword Search · Search	9 0
Origin: Out	bound email	8	View	All Responses	
- 4-144	O Colored	NILV	R	*	= -
· Avril Ma	Duttound	9	Resp	sonse	Shortcut
nom: "Co	•		1	Chat Transcript	
To A.N	Add Cc +		1.	Field Code	- 11 A.
ubject.				Financial service	
HTML +	Tahoma • 9 • B i U ■ = = ⊡ ⊡ = = = □			Errors in transactions	Fileiner I
Dear Auril Ma	х.				
We think that	t the transaction is correct. The confusion here is due to the fact that the merchant used its		Ι.	 Indepted transaction 	
transaction is	s correct. The confusion here is due to the fact that the merchant used its corporate name a local retailer name in the transition description			Alternative merchant name	
We think that	t the transaction is correct. The confusion here is due to the fact that the merchant used its me instead of the local satisfier name in the transaction description.		-	First contact	
corporate na		8		ForAutomatedTreatment	
Dispositio	ns Note S	NO.		Forwarding	
Dispositio	n Code	8	• •	HTM.	
Selected	t Read X		-		
Quick S	earch Q		Altern	native merchant name	
× 🖬	Enal		Dea We t	r <\$ Contact FirstName+" "+Contact.L think that the transaction is correct. TI	astName S>. he confusion here is
	Forward to AS		due	to the fact that the merchant used its ead of the local retailer name in the tra	corporate name insaction
	Read		des	cription .	
	Outbound				
- B					

Important

The **Dispositions** tab and the **Note** tab do not become available until the call is established.

Assigning Disposition Codes

Many contact centers attach data to interactions that specifies the outcome of each interaction. The outcomes are defined by the administrators of the contact center. Each outcome, or disposition, is assigned a disposition code that enables contact center personnel or systems to determine whether an interaction was successful, transferred, or whether a follow-up interaction is required. If you apply a new disposition code to an interaction that already has a disposition code, the old disposition code is overwritten.

Workspace employs one of two interfaces that enable you to assign a disposition code to your interaction quickly and easily:

- A simple radio-button interface
- A hierarchy of folders that contain codes



Interaction views that show the two different types of dispostion code tabs, Radio Buttons and Folders

Important

In some Outbound Campaign interactions, the Disposition Code view has additional features. See Lesson: Handle Outbound-Campaign Voice Interactions.

Lesson: Applying a disposition code to an interaction

Purpose: To attach information about the outcome of the current or selected interaction.

A disposition code can be set at different times depending on the configuration of your system. Your system might require you to set the disposition code before you click Mark Done to complete an interaction. Your system might require you to set the disposition code before you transfer or conference the interaction.

The following procedure assumes that you must set the disposition code before you click Mark Done.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Getting Started).
- You have an open Voice interaction (see Receiving a Voice Interaction).
- Your assigned role requires you to assign disposition codes to interactions.

Start

1. If the customer has not ended the call, but you are ready to hang up, in the active Interaction window (see Receiving a Voice Interaction), click End Call (the phone-set button that has a red X; see the Inbound Voice Interaction window, with no disposition code set figure).

(<u>;</u>)		Ravi Pac	he C)	00:00:32	<u>د</u>
Cas	e Info	rmation				
Ori Qu	igin: ieue:	Inbound of 4001	call to 4	4001		
•	Rav	i Pache	Co	nne	cted	1
G	ispo	sitions) No	ote		
	Dispo	sition Cod	le			\ \
	Sele	cted:				
	Qui	ck Search				
	•	🖿 Emai				
		Forwar	d to A	S		/
		Read				/
	-	b Voice	е			1
		Accept	ed			{
		Rejecte	ed			ļ
		Transf	erred			
	~					١

2. Click the Dispositions tab (see the Dispositions view figure) to display the Disposition Code selector. You will see either a checklist with radio buttons or a hierarchy of folders.



Interaction views that show the two different types of dispostion code tabs, Radio Buttons and Folders

- 3. To choose a disposition, do one of the following actions:
 - If you have the checklist interface, click the Disposition Code radio button to specify the outcome of the call. (The available options are configured by your system administrator, and might not be the same values that are shown in the figures in this lesson.)



Voice Interaction window, with disposition code set

- If you have the folder hierarchy interface, perform these steps:
 - In the Disposition Code Quick Search field, enter the name of the code that you want to find. Quick search works as a "start typing" search. Results are returned as you type. All folders are opened and the view is filtered to show only codes that match what you entered.

Alternatively, you can just browse through the folder hierarchy to find the disposition code that you want to use.

2. In the folder hierarchy view, when you select a disposition, its name is displayed next to the **Selected** label. You can deselect the disposition by clicking the **X** next to it.



Use the Quick Search to find a disposition. Click it to select it.

- 4. Click Mark Done.
- 5. If the Interaction window does not close automatically, close the Interaction window after you have clicked Mark Done for each of the active interactions.
- 6. Complete your after-call work.

End

Related Information

- Disposition Code
- Voice Interaction
- Chat Interaction
- Inbound Email
- Outbound Email
- SMS and MMS Interactions

• Internal IM

Contact and Interaction Management

These lessons introduce you to Workspace contact management and interaction search. The Workspace Contact History view enables you to view and manage previous interactions with a contact. The My History view and the Interaction Search view enable you to find interactions in your interaction database by using a variety of criteria.

This topic contains the following sub-topics:

- Manage Contact History
- Manage Your History
- Manage Contacts and Contact Information
- Find Interactions

Related Information

- Contact History
- Contact Directory
- Contact Search
- Interaction Search
- My History

Manage Contact History

[**Modified:** 8.5.113.11, 8.5.110.13, 8.5.117.18, 8.5.136.07]

The Workspace Contact History view enables you to view and manage previous interactions with a contact.

Managing Contact History

The Contact History view enables you to view and manage previous interactions with a contact. You can find and select previous interactions by using the following views:

- Contact Directory (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database)
- Information view of the current interaction (for an example see Lesson: Handle A Voice Call). **Note:** The current interaction is highlighted in the Contact History view if your administrator has enabled this feature. [Added: 8.5.117.18]

Interactions are stored with various attributes. You can use these attributes to find specific interactions. Search results are shown in the interactions table. You can sort, filter, and perform actions on the interactions that you select. Use the Contact History view to do the following:

- Find interactions for the current contact or the currently selected contact.
- Perform the following actions on selected interactions:
 - Mark In-Progress voice and email [Added: 8.5.110.13] interactions as Done
 - Delete an outbound email interaction [Added: 8.5.110.13]
 - Reply or Reply All to inbound email interaction
 - Open outbound email interaction
 - Forward inbound and outbound email interactions that are marked as Done [Added: 8.5.113.11]
 - Resend outbound email interaction
 - Print an email interaction
- View information about selected interactions

This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database
- Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact view of the Interaction window
- Lesson: Using the History tab Quick Search to find an interaction
- Lesson: Using the History tab Advanced Search to find an interaction

Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database

Purpose: To find and view or modify existing interactions for a contact in the contact database.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. In the Main Window, click the **Access and use Workspace supporting views** button (=) to display the **Supporting Views** menu, then select **Contact Directory**.

Mail.dom						×	0
💄 🚉 More Actions 👻					≣		÷
 Mark Avram 	e,	*	2	*		*	
 Avril Mai 	e,	*	2	*		*	
 Ravi Pache 	e.	*	\geq	*		*	
 Vanessa Wang 	e.	*	\geq	*		*	
I< < Page 1 of 1 >			1 - 4 of 4	10	* p	er pa	ge
Contact Directory tab							

- 2. Click in the Quick Search field and enter the name of the contact for whom you are searching to find the contact in the contact database.
- 3. Click the magnifying-glass icon, or press Enter, to begin the search.
- 4. Click the name of the contact in the search-results table or list. The Grid view in newer environments displays a sortable list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.
- 5. In the Show Details Panel drop-down list, display the Details panel (see the Contact Details view, displaying the Contact Information tab figure).

nformation H	istory			
💾 💿 Reset				
General				
Title	Mr.	*	×	
First Name •	Mark		×	
Last Name •	Avram		×	
Phone Number +1.555.654.7890	Office	*	×	Primary
3317	Mobile	*	×	
Add Phone Num	ber 👻			
E-mail Address				
E-mail Address MarkAv@mail.dc	Work address	*	×	

Contact Details view, displaying the Contact Information tab

6. Click the History tab to display the contact History view (see the Contact Details view, displaying the Contact History tab figure).


Contact Details view, displaying the Contact History tab

7. If the contact history contains more than one interaction, specify the time interval that is to be used to filter your search results by using the Chronology slider.

Arch. All 1M 1W 1D

The slider has five positions that represent different time intervals:

- **Arch.**—Search the database for messages that have been archived (available only in older environments).
- All—Search the entire database from the most recent interaction, back to the earliest interaction.
- 1M—Search the database from the most recent interaction, back to one month ago.
- **1W**—Search the database from the most recent interaction, back to one week ago.
- **1D**—Search the database from the most recent interaction, back to one day ago.
- 8. If complete or filtered contact history contains more than one interaction, use the Type filters to search only for interactions of a specific type. Select the filter type from the drop-down list to turn the filters on and off. When a filter is on, a check mark appears beside its name in the menu.

Informa	tion	Hi	istory	
Arch. All	ım ıw	10	Filter 👻 Quick search	
× 8	8		Show All Interactions	
	Status	SL	Show voice Interactions	
κ.	Done	R	Show email Interactions	
× ×	Done	W	Show chat Interactions	
× C.	Done		Show SMS Interactions	_
			Show Other Media Interactions	

The interaction filters might include the following types:

- Show All Interactions
- Show Voice Interactions
- Show E-mail Interactions
- Show Chat/Instant Message Interactions
- Show SMS Interactions
- Show Other Media Interactions—Includes workitems and social-media interactions

Your administrator might also include filter types that are related to your specific role in the company, such as the type of customer that your deal with or the business area for which you are responsible.

- If complete or filtered contact history contains more than one interaction, you can sort the contents of the search-results table by an attribute. The attributes are defined by your system administrator. To sort the interactions by one of the attributes, click the column headings that match the attribute that you wan to use to sort the results (see the History View for the current or selected contact figure). Your available search criteria might include one of the following:
 - **Status**—The disposition code that was assigned to the interaction, if any
 - Subject—For email interactions only
 - Start Date—The date and timestamp when the interaction was first received
 - End Date—The date and timestamp when the interaction was marked Done.
- Find the interaction that you want to view by using one of the following search types:
 - **Quick Search**—Enables you to search for any attribute that begins with the value that you enter. For example, you could find all interactions that are related to the subject of billing. See Lesson: Using the History tab Quick Search to find an interaction. See also Finding Interactions to learn about the expanded search capabilities introduced in Workspace 8.5.104.15.
 - Advanced Search—Enables you to use multiple criteria to refine your search. The Advanced Search pane contains drop-down lists of search criteria, such as Status, Start Date, and Subject. It also contains drop-down lists with modifiers that determine how the criteria will affect the search. See Lesson: Using the History tab Advanced Search to find an interaction. See also Finding Interactions to learn about the expanded search capabilities introduced in Workspace 8.5.104.15.

Note: The table view is not sortable when it is displaying search results. The sort order of search results is predefined.

- Workspace enables you to view contact interactions either by attributes or as threads. Click the Show Interactions in Grid View/Show Interactions in Tree View button () to specify how the Contact History panel is displayed.
 Grid View displays interactions by attribute and Tree View displays interactions chronologically by thread. A thread is a group of two or more interactions with a single contact that were created in the same context (email replies, multichannel conversations, social-media threads, and so on).
- Click an interaction to select it. The Details panel displays information about interactions on the Details tab, the Note tab, and the Case Data tab (see the History View for the current or selected contact figure).
 - If your account is configured to enable you to see the detailed status of the in-progress interaction, the status of the interaction is displayed in the Details tab. If the status of an email interaction in the Contact History view is in one of the in-progress states, when you select the interaction, the Open button (a) is displayed (if the email is in a queue, a workbin, or in routing—including outbound in-progress emails).
 - a. Click Open to open the email interaction in the current active interaction window, or in a new E-mail Interaction window if you are opening the email from the Main Window Contact History view.
 - b. After you open the in-progress email interaction, you can read or handle it as an inbound email interaction or an outbound email interaction (refer to Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction and Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact). You can also click Put back in original location (a) to return the email interaction back to the In-Progress workbin or into a queue.
 - If you have the correct permissions you can print an email interaction. Click **Print** (中) to open the Print Preview window. [**Added:** 8.5.101.14]
 - If you have the correct permissions to enable you to manage contact data, choose one of the following actions:
 - **Mark Done**—Displayed only if an interaction is still in progress. If you complete an interaction, select it in the interactions table, and then click Mark Done. The status of the interaction will be changed to Done.
 - **Reply/Reply All**—Reply to the sender of the email message and other recipients. See Lesson: Replying to a inbound -mail interaction.
- If you have the correct permissions and you select an In-Progress outbound email interaction, you can delete it (➡). [Added: 8.5.110.13]
- If you have the correct permissions, for email interactions that have been marked as Done, you can click the Forward button (
) to create a new outbound email interaction that includes the selected interaction in the Forward Email interaction window. [Added: 8.5.113.11]
- When you have finished working on the selected interaction in the Main Window, clear the search results by clicking the X button beside the search field.
 When you have finished working on the selected interaction in the Interaction window, close the Information view by clicking the Contact button on the right-hand side of the current interaction.

End

Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact view of the Interaction

window

Purpose: To find and view or modify existing interactions for a contact in the contact database from an active interaction.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have an active interaction.

Start

1. In the active interaction window, click Contact to display the Contact tab (see the Contact Details view, displaying the Contact Information tab figure).

Information	History				
💾 💿 Reset					
General					
Title		Mr.	*	×	
First Name •		Mark		×	
Last Name •		Avram		×	
Phone Number +1.555.654.78	89C Off	ice	*	×	Primary
3317	Mo	bile	*	×	0
Add Phone N	iumber 👻				
E-mail Address					
MarkAv@mail	l.dc Wo	rk address	*	×	

Contact Details view displaying the Contact Information tab

The Information tab displays information about the current contact.

2. Click the History tab to display the list of interactions for the current contact (see the History View for the current or selected contact figure).

-0-	in in i	Filter •	Quick sea	rch		٩
	Status	Subject		Start Date 👻	End Da	™ C
K 🔤	In Pro	Re: Inform	ation about.	3/31/2014 5:05:28 P	M	
×	In Pro	Informatio	n about ne	3/31/2014 5:03:57 P	M	
st.	Done	N		3/31/2014 4:57:03 P	M 3/31/2	014 5:00:05 PM
Phone Date:	call from A	wril Mai (361 3/31/2014 4:5	6). 57:03 PM			
Phone Date:	call from A	wril Mai (361 3/31/2014 4:5	6). 57:03 PM			
Phone Duratio	Number: 3	3616 1m59s				

History View for the current or selected contact

 If the contact history contains more than one interaction, specify the time interval that is to be used to filter your search results by using the Chronology slider.
 Arch. All 1M 1W 1D

The slider has five positions that represent different time intervals:

- **Arch.**—Search the database for messages that have been archived (available only in older environments).
- All—Search the entire database from the most recent interaction back to the earliest interaction.
- 1M—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one month ago.
- **1W**—Search the database from the most recent interaction, back to one week ago.
- **1D**—Search the database from the most recent interaction, back to one day ago.
- 4. If complete or filtered contact history contains more than one interaction, use the Type filters to search only for interactions of a specific type. Select the filter type from the drop-down list to turn the filters on and off. When a filter is on, a check mark appears beside its name in the menu.



The interaction filters might include the following types:

- Show All Interactions
- Show Voice Interactions
- Show E-mail Interactions
- Show Chat/Instant Message Interactions
- Show SMS Interactions
- · Show Other Media Interactions—Includes workitems and social-media interactions

Your administrator might also include filter types that are related to your specific role in the company, such as the type of customer that your deal with or the business area for which you are responsible.

- 5. If complete or filtered contact history contains more than one interaction, you can sort the contents of the search-results table by an attribute. The attributes are defined by your system administrator. To sort the interactions by one of the attributes, click the column headings that match the attribute that you wan to use to sort the results (see the History View for the current or selected contact figure). Your available search criteria might include one of the following:
 - Status—The disposition code that was assigned to the interaction, if any.
 - **Subject**—For email interactions only.
 - Start Date—The date and timestamp when the interaction was first received.
 - **End Date**—The date and timestamp when the interaction was marked Done.
- 6. Find the interaction that you want to view by using one of the following search types:
 - **Quick Search**—Enables you to search for any attribute that begins with the value that you enter. For example, you could find all interactions that are related to the subject of billing. See Lesson: Using the History tab Quick Search to find an interaction. See also Finding Interactions to learn about the expanded search capabilities introduced in Workspace 8.5.104.15.
 - Advanced Search—Enables you to use multiple criteria to refine your search. The Advanced Search pane contains drop-down lists of search criteria, such as Status, Start Date, and Subject. It also contains drop-down lists with modifiers that determine how the criteria will affect the search. See Lesson: Using the History tab Advanced Search to find an interaction. See also Finding Interactions to learn about the expanded search capabilities introduced in Workspace 8.5.104.15.
- 7. Workspace enables you to view contact interactions either by attributes or as threads. Click the Show Interactions in Grid View/Show Interactions in Tree View button () to specify how the Contact History panel is displayed. Grid View displays interactions by attribute, and Tree View displays interactions chronologically by thread. A thread is a group of two or more interactions with a single contact that were created in the same context (email replies, multichannel conversations, social-media threads, and so on).
- 8. Click an interaction to select it. The Details panel displays information about interactions on the Details tab, the Note tab, and the Case Data tab (see the History View for the current or selected contact figure).
 - If you are configured to see the detailed status of the in-progress interaction, the status of the interaction is displayed in the Details tab. If the status of an email interaction in the Contact History view is in one of the in-progress states, when you select the interaction, the Pull button (
) is displayed (if the email is in a queue, a workbin, or in routing—including outbound in-progress emails).
 - a. Click Pull to open the email interaction in the current active interaction window, or in a new Email Interaction window if you are opening the email from the Main Window Contact History

view.

- b. After you pull the in-progress email interaction, you can read or handle it as an inbound email interaction or an outbound email interaction (refer to Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction and Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact). You can also click Put back in original location () to return the email interaction back to the In-Progress workbin or into a queue.
- If an interaction is still in progress, you can click Mark Done (
 Mark Done (
 The status of the interaction will be changed to Done.
- If you have the correct permissions you can print an email interaction. Click **Print** (中) to open the Print Preview window. [**Added:** 8.5.101.14]
- If you have the correct permissions and you select an In-Progress outbound email interaction, you can delete it (\swarrow). [Added: 8.5.110.13]
- If you have the correct permissions, for email interactions that have been marked as Done, you can click the **Forward** button (➡) to create a new outbound email interaction that includes the selected interaction in the Forward Email interaction window. [Added: 8.5.113.11]
- If you have the correct permissions to enable you to manage contact data, you can use the **Change Contact** button to assign a different contact for the selected interaction.
- 9. When you have finished working on the selected interaction in the Main Window, clear the search results by clicking the X button beside the search field. When you have finished working on the selected interaction in the Interaction window, close the Information view by clicking the Contact button on the right side of the current interaction.

End

Lesson: Using the History tab Quick Search to find an interaction

Purpose: To search for any interaction by status, end date, and start date.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have completed Step 1 of Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.

9 0

Start

1. To search the contact history, in the History tab, type in the Quick Search field (see the Contact History view Quick Search tool figure) the attribute value for which you are searching.

þuick search 👔

Contact History view Quick Search tool

Important

It typically applies a "starts with" for each word of the criteria in any of the attributes selected by your administrator.

- 2. Click the magnifying-glass icon, or press Enter, to search for the criteria that you have entered. Your search results are displayed in the Search Results table (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database).
- 3. Click the X to clear the Quick Search field.

End

Lesson: Using the History tab Advanced Search to find an interaction

Purpose: To enter multiple interaction criteria to refine your search of the contact database. The Advanced Search pane contains drop-down lists of search criteria, such as Status, Start Date, End Date, and Subject. It also contains drop-down lists with modifiers that determine how the criteria will affect the search.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You have completed Step 1 of Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database.

Start

1. To search the contact history, in the History tab, enter in the Advanced Search view (see the Contact History view Advanced Search tool figure) the attribute value or values that you want to find. You can use the standard Windows wildcard characters to expand your search.

nformation	H	story				
n ni ili ili	1p	Filter +				Q
Match All 0	Conditi	ons 🔿	Match Any Condition			
Status	٠	All		*	×	
Start Date	٠	On	*	10	×	
End Date	٠	On	*	10	×	
Add Condition	n .					Search

Contact History view Advanced Search tool

- From the column of search attributes on the left, choose the attribute within which you want to search from the drop-down lists.
- From the column of search modifiers to the right of the attribute column, choose how the search string should be considered.
 Menus for predefined fields, such as Status, contain the predefined field names from the database—for example: All, Done, and In progress.

Menus for date fields contain the following choices:

- **On**—The exact date.
- On or after—The specified date or any date after.
- Before—Before the specified date.
- Between—Between the specified dates.

Menus for text fields contain the following choices:

- Matches—The specified text string exactly matches the criterion.
- **Note:** Workspace typically applies a "starts with" search for each word of the criteria.

Enter the search value in the text field on the right-hand side. If your criterion is a start date or end date, use the calendar pop-up window to specify the date, then select a Match Conditions option to specify whether All or Any of the search conditions that you have specified are applied.

- 2. Click the magnifying-glass icon, or press Enter, to search for the values that you have entered. Your search results are displayed in the Search Results table (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database).
- 3. Click the X to clear the Advanced Search fields and the Search Results table.

End

Related Information

- Contact History
- Contact Directory
- Contact Search
- Interaction Search
- My History

Manage Your History

[Modified: 8.5.113.11, 8.5.110.13, 8.5.136.07]

The Workspace My History view enables you to view and manage previous interactions with a contact.

Managing Your History

The My History view enables you to view and manage previous interactions between you and a contact. You can find and select your previous interactions by using the following views:

- My History tab in the Main Window
- My History window

Interactions are stored with various attributes. You can use these attributes to find specific interactions. Search results are shown in the interactions table. You can sort, filter, and perform actions on the interactions that you select. Use the My History view to do the following:

- Find interactions for contacts whom you have handled
- Perform the following actions on selected interactions:
 - Mark In-Progress voice and email [Added: 8.5.110.13] interactions as Done
 - Delete an outbound email interaction [Added: 8.5.110.13]
 - Reply or Reply All to inbound email interaction
 - Open outbound email interaction
 - Forward inbound and outbound email interactions that are marked as Done [Added: 8.5.113.11]
 - Resend outbound email interaction
 - Print an email interaction
- · View information about selected interactions

This section contains the following procedure:

• Lesson: Finding and viewing your interactions in the contact database

Lesson: Finding and viewing your interactions in the contact database

Purpose: To find and view or modify your interactions for a contact in the contact database by using the My History view.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

- 1. Do one of the following:
 - On the Workspace Main Window (see the Main Window, displaying the My History tab in Workspace view figure):
 - a. Click Workspace to display your workspace.
 - b. Click the My History tab to display all of your interactions.

🗑 Genesys + Workspace	0 BP 500 + 2 + 0 + _ D)
Type name in number	=
My Workspace	
My Channels My Campaigns My History My Distintion Cantact Conter Distintion	
No. 6 19 19 19 Alter a doct such	۹. ۲ ت
Balance Balance Balance Balance Value Source Source(So	
H + Pap 1 with #	N Hiday My Bulines Contart Control Hudinics Control Control Hudinics Control Control Hudinics Control
Note: Case Data Phase softwar Set1. Base: Philosystel 4 all (PM) Generation: Philosystel 4 all (PM) Philosystel 4 all (PM) Generation: Billion: Philosystel 4 all (PM) Device: Billion: Billion: Philosystel 4 all (PM)	

Main Window, displaying the My History tab in Workspace view

2. To filter your history by date, specify the time interval that is to be used to filter your search results by using the Chronology slider.



The Chronology slider has five positions that represent different time intervals:

- **Arch.**—Search the database for messages that have been archived (available only in older environments).
- All—Search the entire database from the most recent interaction back to the earliest interaction.
- 1M—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one month ago.
- **1W**—Search the database from the most recent interaction, back to one week ago.
- **1D**—Search the database from the most recent interaction, back to one day ago.
- 3. To filter your history by type of interaction, use the Type filters to search only for interactions of a specific type (see the My History view Filter menu figure). The interaction types are: Voice, E-mail, and Chat/Instant Message. Select the types to display from the Filter drop-down menu. The Filter menu options turn the filters on and off. When a filter is on, a check mark is displayed next to its name in the menu. Your administrator might include filter types that are related to your specific role in the company, such as the type of customer that your deal with or the business area for which you are responsible.

My Channels			/ly Campa	igns	My History			
Arch. All	ım ıw	10	Filter 👻	Quick	search	_		
			Show	All Inte	ractions			
	Status	Su	Show	voice l	nteractions			
× و.	Done		Show	r email I	nteractions			
ي لا	Done		Show	r chat In	teractions			
ي ل	Done		Show	/ SMS In	teractions			
14 4	Page 1		Show	Other M	Media Interactions			

My History view Filter menu.

4. If your history contains more than one interaction, you can sort the contents of the search-results table by an attribute (see the Search results displaying the My History tab figure). The attributes are defined by your system administrator.

My Channels My Campaigns My 10	havy My Statistics Contact Center Sta	dation
10 2 2 2 2 2 mile + Table and		٩. (
¥ ö		N D
Batus Bulget Blat Date -	End Date	
64, Done 4/4/2014 1/25/20 AM	4/4/2014 1/20-43 AM	
12 I.N. In No. 220203 (2281).		
•4. Done 0/08/2014/451/18/P.	1/28/2014 4:08/15 P.	
< < Page 1 of 1+ #		1-10.0110+ 10 + perpage
Details Note Case Data		
Re No picture an ey TV Franz "Web Contert Center" - and giver devi- Tes RestPipmant dan State: Assigned to SP 5211 - My Sraft C-mails o	wikhin	3635,0804 12 0x 12 PM
On 315-2014 3.25-PM, April Pache under - When I fam on my TV there is no picture. How	do i return it for a regliacement?	

Search results displaying the My History tab

To sort the interactions by one of the attributes, click the column headings that match the attribute that you want to use to sort the results (see the Search results displaying the My History tab figure). Your available search criteria might include one of the following:

- Status—Done or In Progress
- Subject—For email interactions only
- Start Date—The date and timestamp when the interaction was first received
- End Date—The date and timestamp when the interaction was marked Done
- 5. The Quick Search enables you to search for any interaction by an attribute value.
 - a. To search your history, type in the Quick Search field (see the My History view Quick Search tool figure) the attribute value for which you are searching.

þuick search 🚶	٩	0
My History view Quick Search tool		
Important		
It typically applies a "starts wit administrator.	" for each word of the	e criteria in any of the attributes selected by your
administrator.		

b. Click the magnifying-glass icon, or press Enter, to search for the criteria that you have entered. Your search results are displayed in the Search Results table (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an

interaction in the contact database).

- c. Click the X to clear the Quick Search field.
- 6. The Advanced Search enables you to use multiple criteria to refine your search. The Advanced Search pane contains drop-down lists of search criteria, such as Status, Start Date, and Subject (see the Advanced Search view displaying the My History tab figure). It also contains drop-down lists with modifiers that determine how the criteria will affect the search. See Lesson: Using the History tab Advanced Search to find an interaction.

My Channels		Ay Cam	prigra	Mylifiatory	My Statisti			Contact Cant	e Stat	inter				
****	7	riber -	1.11											4.0
 March All Co. 	-		Mach	kry Condition										
Datus	٠	Al.					×	Shel Date		On.		75	ж	
Start Date	•	0n				iπ.	×							
Add Candition														Seath

Advanced Search view displaying the My History tab

- 7. Workspace enables you to view contact interactions either by attributes or as threads. Click the Show Interactions in Grid View/Show Interactions in Tree View button () to specify how the Contact History panel is displayed. Grid View displays interactions by attribute and Tree View displays interactions chronologically by thread. A thread is a group of two or more interactions with a single contact that were created in the same context (email replies, multichannel conversations, social-media threads, and so on). The Grid view in newer environments displays a sortable list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.
- 8. Click an interaction to select it. The Details panel displays information about interactions on the Details tab, the Note tab, and the Case Data tab (see the Main Window, displaying the My History tab in Workspace view figure).
 - If you are configured to see the detailed status of the in-progress interaction, the status of the interaction is displayed in the Details tab. If the status of an email interaction in the Contact History view is in one of the in-progress states, when you select the interaction, the Open button (
) is displayed (if the email is in a queue, a workbin, or in routing—including outbound in-progress emails).
 - a. Click Open to open the email interaction in the current active interaction window, or in a new Email Interaction window if you are opening the email from the Main Window Contact History view.
 - b. After you open the in-progress email interaction, you can read or handle it as an inbound email interaction or an outbound email interaction (refer to Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction and Lesson: Creating and sending a new email interaction to a contact).
 You can also click Put back in original location () to return the email interaction back to the In-Progress workbin or into a queue.
 - If an interaction is still in progress, you can click **Mark Done** (✓). The status of the interaction will be changed to Done.
 - If you have the correct permissions you can print an email interaction. Click **Print** (中) to open the Print Preview window. [**Added:** 8.5.101.14]
 - If you have the correct permissions and you select an In-Progress outbound email interaction, you can delete it (\mathbb{N}). [Added: 8.5.110.13]
 - If you have the correct permissions, for email interactions that have been marked as Done, you can click the **Forward** button (➡) to create a new outbound email interaction that includes the selected interaction in the Forward Email interaction window. [Added: 8.5.113.11]
 - If you have the correct permissions to enable you to manage contact data, you can use the **Change Contact** button to assign a different contact for the selected interaction.
- 9. When you have finished working on the selected interaction in the My History tab, clear the search

field by clicking the X button beside the search field.

End

Related Information

- My History
- Interaction Search
- Contact History
- Contact Directory
- Contact Search

Manage Contacts and Contact Information

[Modified: 8.5.113.11, 8.5.110.13]

The Workspace Contact History view enables you to view and manage previous interactions with a contact.

Managing Contacts and Contact Information

The Contact Directory view enables you to view and manage contacts and contact information. You can manage contacts by using the following views:

- Contact Directory (see Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the contact database)
- Information view of the current voice interaction (see Lesson: Handle A Voice Call)

Interactions are stored with various attributes. You can use these attributes to find specific interactions. Search results are shown in the interactions table. You can sort, filter, and perform actions on the interactions that you select. Use the Contact Directory view to do the following:

- Find interactions for the current contact or the currently selected contact
- If you have the correct permissions, you can perform the following Contact actions:
 - Add a Contact
 - Delete a Contact
 - Update Contact information
 - Merge contacts
 - Unmerge contacts
 - Assign an interaction to a contact
- View information about selected interactions in the Contact History and perform the following actions:
 - Open a selected interaction
 - · Resend a selected email interaction
 - Reply or Reply All to a selected email interaction
 - Forward inbound and outbound email interactions that are marked as Done [Added: 8.5.113.11]
 - Print a selected interaction
 - Mark open voice and email [Added: 8.5.110.13] interactions as done that have the In-Progress state
 - Delete outbound email interactions that have the In-Progress state [Added: 8.5.110.13]

This section contains the following procedures:

- Lesson: Adding a contact
- Lesson: Deleting a contact
- Lesson: Updating contact information
- Lesson: Merging contacts
- Lesson: Manually assigning an interaction to a contact
- Lesson: Unmerging contacts

Lesson: Adding a contact

Purpose: To add a contact to the contact database.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

- 1. If you are configured to do so, you can add new contacts to the contact database by using one of the following Contact Information views:
 - The Contact Directory in the Contact Information tab. Click Create New Contact (2+) to launch the Add Contact view.
 - The Contact Information tab of the current Interaction window.

The Contact Information view enables you to view and edit contact information (see the Contact Information tab figure). If the contact is already in the contact database, their information will be displayed in this view. Use the fields to add or modify contact information.

Information	History				
💾 💿 Reset					
General					
Title		Mr.	*	×	
First Name •		Mark		×	
Last Name •		Avram		×	
1.555.654.7	890 Offi	Office Mobile		× ×	Primary
Add Phone I	Number 👻				
E-mail Address	8				
E-mail Address TrkAv@mail.d	s om Wo	rk address	*	×	

Contact Information tab

- 2. Enter the contact information in the fields. A small red triangle appears in the top left hand corner of the text field to indicate that the information is not saved.
- 3. Do one of the following:
 - Click the Save icon (\square) to save the information in the contact database.
 - Click the Reset icon (O) to clear any unsaved changes from the Add Contact view.

			_
ITTI	ากเ	та	пт
TITE		LCI	

(Added: 8.5.101.14) Your system might be configured to prevent you from editing some or all contact information after you have created a new contact; therefore, you might not be able to modify some or all contact information fields after you click **Save**. In this scenario, a message box is displayed asking you to confirm that you want to save the information. Review the content carefully before clicking **Save**.

- 4. If you want to add additional phone numbers and email addresses for the new contact, click the Add Phone Number or Add E-mail Address link. A new set of fields is added into which you can enter this information.
- 5. To specify a phone number or email address as the primary contact number or address, click the Primary radio button beside the phone number or email address that you want to specify as the primary number or address (respectively) for the contact.

End

Lesson: Deleting a contact

Purpose: To remove or delete a contact from the contact database.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

- 1. To delete a contact, you first must find the contact in the contact database and then select it in the Contact Directory (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact).
- 2. With one or more contacts that you want to delete selected, click the Delete icon ($\overline{A_{x}}$).
- 3. A confirmation dialog box is displayed.
 - Click 0K to remove the contact permanently from the contact database.
 - Click Cancel to cancel the delete-contact function; this leaves the contact in the contact database.
- 4. When you have finished working on the selected interaction in the My History tab, clear the search results by clicking the X button that is displayed next to the search field.

End

Next Steps

- Manage contact records. See Manage Contacts.
- Send or receive an internal Instant Message (IM). See Handle Internal Instant Messaging.

Lesson: Updating contact information

Purpose: To update contact information in the contact database.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

 If you are configured to do so, you can edit contacts in the contact database by using the Contact Directory in the Contact Information tab. The Contact Information view enables you to view and edit contact information (see the Contact Information tab figure). If the contact is already in the contact database, their information will be displayed in this view. Use the fields to add or modify contact information.

Information	History				
💾 💿 Reset					
General					
Title		Mr.	*	×	
First Name •		Mark		×	
Last Name •	P	Avram		×	
Phone Number	r B90 Offi Mol	ce	•	×	Primary
Add Phone	Number 👻				
E-mail Addres	5				
E-mail Addres	s Iom Wor	k address	*	×	

Contact Information tab

- 2. Enter the contact information in the fields. A small red triangle appears in the top left-hand corner of the text field to indicate that the information is not saved.
- 3. Do one of the following:
 - Click the Save icon (\square) to save the information in the contact database.
 - Click the Reset icon (O) to clear any unsaved changes from the Add Contact view.

			_
ITTI	ากเ	та	пт
TITE		LCI	

(Added: 8.5.101.14) Your system might be configured to prevent you from editing some or all contact information after you have created a new contact; therefore, you might not be able to modify some or all contact information fields after you click **Save**. In this scenario, a message box is displayed asking you to confirm that you want to save the information. Review the content carefully before clicking **Save**.

- 4. If you want to add additional phone numbers and email addresses for the new contact, click the Add Phone Number or Add E-mail Address link. A new set of fields is added, into which you can enter this information.
- 5. To specify a phone number or email address as the primary contact number or address, click the Primary radio button beside the phone number or email address that you want to specify as the primary number or address (respectively) for the contact.

End

Lesson: Merging contacts

Purpose: To combine two contacts in the contact database.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. If there are two contact entries in the contact database for the same contact, you can merge the two entries into a single entry. To merge a contact, you first must find the contact in the contact database (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact) and then select it in the Contact Directory (see the Two contact entries for the same contact in the Contact Directory figure).

5	⊖ Genesys • Workspace								
Туре	name or number	٩							
Con	ntact								
Avri	I								
2,	2× More Act	ions 👻							
	Last Name 🔺	First Name	Phone	Nur	sber	E-ma	il Address		
-	Mai	Avril	۰.	۵			A_Mai@mail.dom		
*	Mai	Avril	e.		+33.325974686				
-	Mai	Avril			R		client2@cust.dev		

Two contact entries for the same contact in the Contact Directory

2. Click the More Actions menu and select Merge (see the Contact Directory More Actions menu figure).



3. The Merge Contact dialog box is displayed (see the Merge Contact <name> With dialog box figure).

Merge Avril Mai with ×				
Avril			× 0	
0111				
Leet Name	First Name	Dhone Number		
Last Name 4	First Name	Phone Number	E-mail Address	
Mai	Avril	5555555	A_Mai@mail.dom	
Mai	Avril		client2@cust.dev	
Mai	Avril	+33.325974686		
		111		
I 🚽 Page	1 of 1 ⊳	1 - 3 of 3	10 👻 per page	
Description: 0	Customer called	from two separate	numbers	
Reason: io	mer gave differ	ent contact inform	ation on second call	
		Merge	Cancel	

Merge Contact <name> With dialog box

Use the search tools to find the duplicate contact.

- 4. Select the duplicate contact.
- 5. If you are required to enter a description and/or reasons for the merge, use the fields after selecting the duplicate contact.
- 6. Do one of the following:
 - Click Merge to complete the merge of the two selected contact entries.
 - Click Cancel to cancel the merge and return to the Main Window.

End

Lesson: Unmerging contacts

Purpose: To unmerge into their original contact entries two contact entries in the contact database that previously have been merged.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

- 1. First, find the contact in the contact database (see the Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact).
- 2. In the Contact Directory, select the contact who is to be unmerged.

- 3. In the More Actions menu, select Undo Merge.
- 4. A confirmation dialog box is displayed.
 - Click Yes to unmerge into the original two contact entries.
 - Click No to keep the contact merged.

End

Lesson: Manually assigning an interaction to a contact

Purpose: To assign an interaction with an unknown contact to a contact that is in your contact database.

Sometimes a known contact might connect anonymously to your contact center by using a phone, email account, or other media that is not part of the information that is stored about that contact in the contact database.

If your system is not configured to create a new contact automatically for an unknown contact, the Contact Information view for the current interaction window will be blank.

Tip

You can also use the Assign Another Contact to This Interaction button to create a new contact or to manually reassign an interaction that has been assigned to the wrong contact. You can also use the Change Contact view.

Start

1. If you are handling an interaction that has an unknown contact, there will not be a contact name displayed in the party display area (see the Interaction window with an unknown contact figure).



Interaction window with an unknown contact

2. If you identify the contact as being one of your known contacts, you can add the interaction to the history of the contact. Click Contact to display the Contact Directory (see the Information tab of the Contact Directory figure).

0	Information His	tory		
CONT	🖰 🛈 Reset 💄			
S .	General			
	Title	(None)	*	
	First Name •	Enter First Nam	e	
	Last Name •	Enter Last Nam	e	
	Phone Number	(None)	*	×
	Add Phone Numbe	(ront)		^
RESPON	E-mail Address			
ISE	Enter E-mail Addre	ss (None)	*	
	Add E-mail Addres	15 -		

Information tab of the Contact Directory

3. Click Assign Another Contact to this Interaction (see the Assign another contact to this interaction button figure).

0	Information	History			
CONTACT	🖆 👶 Reset	Assion an	other contact to	this inter	action Ctrl+A
-				- one merce	active and the
	Title	(N	one)	*	
	First Name •	En	ter First Name		
	Last Name •	Er	iter Last Name		
Assig	n another cont	act to this i	nteraction b	utton	

The Contact Search view is displayed (see the The Contact Search view and Quick Search field figure).

0	Quick search					۹ 0
8	2,					
TACT			No items			
	I I Page 0	of 0 >		0 - 0 of 0	10 -	per page
	Information	History				
RE	💾 🛈 Reset					
SPONSE		Select cont	tact to view inf	formation		
ŝ						

The Contact Search view and Quick Search field

- 4. In the Quick Search field, enter the name or other identifying information of the contact.
- 5. Click the magnifying-glass icon to begin the search of the contact database (see the Quick Search results figure).

0	Wang	×O
8	2.	
NTA	Wen Wang	
4	Xin Wang	
	Vanessa Wang	
	I≪ ≪ Page 1 of 1 >	1 - 4 of 4 10 💌 per page

Quick Search results

6. In the Search Results list or grid, select the correct contact (see the Search Results list figure).

0	Wang		× O
8	2.		
NTA	Wen Wang		
4	Xin Wang		
	Vanessa Wang		=
	i e e Page 1 of 1	» ► 1-	- 4 of 4 10 👻 per page
	Information Hist	ory	
RE	💾 💿 Reset		
SPO	General		
NSE	Title	(None) -	
5	First Name •	Vanessa	×
	Last Name •	Wang	×
	Phone Number		
		Ast	sign Cancel

Search Results list

7. Click Assign to assign this interaction to the selected contact. The interaction is added to the Contact History (see the Assign button figure). Click Cancel to return to the blank Contact Information view.

nformation His	story		
🗄 🛈 Reset			
General			
Title	(None)	*	
First Name •	Vanessa	×	
Last Name •	Wang	×	
Phone Number			

Assign button

The title bar, tab, and party action area of the interaction window is updated to display the name of the contact (see the Interaction window displaying the name of the contact figure).



End

Related Information

- Contact History
- Contact Directory
- Contact Search
- Interaction Search
- My History

Find Interactions

[Modified: 8.5.116.10]

[Added: 8.5.104.15]

The Interaction Search view enables you to find interactions based on multiple criteria.

Workspace provides you with multiple ways to find interactions in your contact center interaction database. Refer to the Contact and Interaction Management topic for more information about finding contacts and interactions under the following conditions:

- You know which contact you are searching for (use the Contact Directory to find the interactions exchanged with that contact)
- You were the agent who handled the interaction (use the My History view to find the interactions that you have handled)

However, sometimes you must find an interaction, but you no longer remember who the contact was, or whether it was handled by yourself or another agent. The Workspace Interaction Search feature enables you to use the **Interaction Search** view to look for interactions based on one or more criteria, including words in the body or transcript of the interaction.

Lesson: Finding and viewing an interaction in the interaction database

Purpose: To find and view or modify existing interactions in the interaction database.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view or manage the contact database.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. To display the Interaction Search view, click the **Access and use Workspace supporting views** button (=) to display the **Supporting Views** menu, then select **Interaction Search**.

button (m) to display	the supporting views in
liii Genesys + Workspace	€ Kalinan • ± • • - □ H
Type name in number	
Interaction Search	х
TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT	×
AREO	
Subject Start Sales End Sales	
ix ≺Popr1af1 >	1-1aft 10 = perpage
Details Note Cave Data	
TV out working Prame: And Mai (9, Maighmal davi) Tar: weldgener dwe Marke: Colongy is proposed	12/10/2014 013 NO PM
T cannot change the channels on my TV	

Interaction Search view

The Interaction Search view enables you to find interactions using one of two modes:

- Quick Search—Quick Search combines a subset of search criteria selected by your administrator. It
 typically applies a "starts with" for each word of the criteria in any of the attributes selected by your
 administrator.
- Advanced Search—The Advanced Search feature enables you to enter multiple criteria to refine your search. The Advanced Search pane contains drop-down lists of search criteria that enable you to build a complex search based on multiple criteria such as Status, Subject, processing agent, date or date range, and interaction text. Text field searches are based on a "Matches" search, where the request returns interactions that contain, for each typed word, at least one word starting with the specified word.
- 2. To perform a quick search of the Interaction Database, perform the following steps:
 - a. If you know when the interaction for which you are searching was received, use the chronology slider to search the interaction history by time interval.

The slider has four positions that represent different time intervals:

- All—Search the entire database from the most recent interaction back to the earliest interaction
- 1M—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one month ago
- 1W—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one week ago
- **1D**—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one day ago
- b. If you know the type of interaction, such as email, chat, or SMS, for which you are searching, you can refine your search by using the Interaction Type filter. Select and deselect the types of interactions that are to be searched. The items that are displayed depend on the interaction types that you are configured to handle.

Click the **Filter** menu to select the interaction types that you want to search. You can select multiple items in the **Filter** menu. The following types are available, by default:

- Show all Interactions
- · Show voice Interactions
- Show email Interactions
- Show chat Interactions
- Show SMS Interactions
- Show Other Media Interactions

When a filter is on, a check mark appears next to it in the **Filter** menu and the button remains highlighted if the "All" filter is not applied.

Tip

Your administrator might have configured additional customized options for the **Filter** menu, such as business area/department (for example: accounts, sales, and service) or customer level (for example: Silver, Gold, and Platinum). Custom filters enable you to refine your search. For example, if you are looking for email interactions about a service request, you can make two selections in the **Filter** menu to refine your search: **Show email Interactions** and **Show Interactions with Service Department**.

c. Type the text that you want to search for in the Quick Search field.

```
Interaction Search view Ouick Search field
```

d. Click the magnifying glass to search for the criteria that you have entered, or click the \mathbf{X} to clear the Quick Search field.

If multiple pages are returned in the search results, page through the list of search results by doing any of the following:

- Click the **Go to the Next Page** button (**b**) to view the next page
- Click the **Go to the Previous Page** button (**4**) to view the previous page
- Click the **Go to First Page** button (
- Click the **Go to Last Page** button (**b**) to return to the start of the list of search results
- Specify the number of items that are displayed on each page by using the **per page** drop-down list
- 3. To perform an advanced search of the Interaction Database, perform the following steps:
 - a. Click **Show Advanced Search** (오). The Advanced Search pane is displayed.

W Genesys • Workspace	C Rate Canala +	٤.	••	- 0 ×
Type springer to subset (≡
Interaction Search				×
AdDCandition • 🗰 Match 40 Canditions 🔅 Wetch Ang Candition				Jan h

The Advanced Search feature enables you to use multiple criteria to refine your search. The Advanced Search pane contains drop-down lists of search criteria, such as Status, Subject, Start Date, and End Date.

Тір

The contents of the Advanced Search Pane are set up by your system administrator. There are many possibilities for how this view will appear to you and what criteria will be available. Your administrator might have created logical groups of criteria for you. In this case, the groups will be displayed in the **Add Condition** drop-down menu and in the main Advanced Search pane.

- b. Workspace enables you to view contact interactions either by attributes or as threads. Click the Show Interactions in Grid View/Show Interactions in Tree View button (*****/**-**) to specify how the Interaction History panel is displayed. Grid View displays interactions by attribute and Tree View displays interactions chronologically by thread. A thread is a group of two or more interactions with a single contact that were created in the same context (email replies, multichannel conversations, social-media threads, and so on). [**Added:** 8.5.116.10] The Grid view in newer environments displays a sortable list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.
- c. If you know the type of interaction, such as email, chat, or SMS, for which you are searching, you can refine your search by using the Interaction Type filter. Select and deselect the types of interactions that are to be searched. The items that are displayed depend on the interaction types that you are configured to handle.

Click the **Filter** menu to select the interaction types that you want to search. You can select multiple items in the **Filter** menu. The following types are available, by default:

- Show all Interactions
- Show voice Interactions

Interaction Search view Advanced Search pane

- · Show email Interactions
- · Show chat Interactions
- Show SMS Interactions
- Show Other Media Interactions

When a filter is on, a check mark appears next to it in the **Filter** menu and the button remains highlighted if the "All" filter is not applied.

Тір

Your administrator might have configured additional customized options for the **Filter** menu, such as business area/department (for example: accounts, sales, and service) or customer level (for example: Silver, Gold, and Platinum). Custom filters enable you to refine your search. For example, if you are looking for email interactions about a service request, you can make two selections in the **Filter** menu to refine your search: **Show email Interactions** and **Show Interactions with Service Department**.

d. Use the **Add Condition** drop-down menu to add search criteria to the Advanced Search Pane. Remove criteria from consideration by clicking the **X** next to the option.

$\pm 2\pi \sigma$										9.0
ARCO	ndion +	uen al Co	addisors	C WART-Ary Condition						
- 8	labort	mathes	-		k	Stat Date	-	On	= ×	
- 1	Ind Date	ća –			i) ×					
										depends -

Interaction Search view Advanced Search pane showing three conditions

If your administrator has created groups for this view, you can add criteria by group to make it easier to manage the criteria. For example, your administrator might create the following groups and specified the following search criteria for each group:

- Agent: Processed By
- **Contact**: Bcc Address, Cc Address, Contact, From Address, From Personal Part, Phone Number, Reply-To Address, Sent Date, To Address
- Dates: Chat Established Date, Chat Released Date, Sent Date, Start Date, End Date
- Interaction: Subject, Contact, Interaction Id, Processed By, Interaction Sub-Type, Interaction Type
- Other: A group that is created automatically when your administrator creates one or more criteria groups. It contains all available search criteria that are not specified as members of other groups.

Next to the name of the group in the Advanced Search Pane is a +. Click the + to add more criteria from this group.

To add other search criteria or to display additional available groups, select them from the **Add Condition** menu. Remove criteria from consideration by clicking the **X** next to the option.

If you have date specific criteria available to you, you can use a calendar picker to specify a date. You can also type in a date manually. For example, to search based on the Start Date, use the calendar icon () to select a date, or enter the date in the format that conforms to your local day and time display preferences.

Menus for date fields might contain the following choices:

- **On**—The exact date
- On or after—The specified date or any date after
- Before—Before the specified date

• **Between**—Between the specified dates

Menus for pre-defined fields, such as Status, contain the pre-defined field names from the database—for example: **All**, **Done**, and **In Progress**.

Text field searches are based on a **Matches** search where the request returns interactions that contain the at least one word starting with the specified typed text.

Business Attribute searches use a drop-down menu that enables you to select the exact value to match.

- e. Use the **Match Conditions** options to specify whether **All** or **Any** of the search conditions that you have specified are applied.
- f. Build up your search by adding criteria, then click **Search** to start your search based on the criteria that you have specified.

If multiple pages are returned in the search results, page through the list of search results by doing any of the following:

- Click the **Go to the Next Page** button (>) to view the next page
- Click the **Go to the Previous Page** button (<) to view the previous page
- Click the **Go to First Page** button (II) to return to the start of the list of search results
- Click the **Go to Last Page** button (**>**) to return to the start of the list of search results
- Specify the number of items that are displayed on each page by using the **per page** drop-down list
- Select a search result item to view information about it in the Details Panel, which includes the Details, Note, and Case Data tabs.

W Genesys • Workspace	C Alle Center +	x -	•••	- 0
Texture encoder				
Interaction Search				
1 7 7 7 1 Here (deprived				ж
2 T E O				-
Sulpert Bartiels End Sela				
N Structure (1) 10 10 10 10 10				
is a high light a		-141	10 -	(see page
Extualis Node Case Statu				
Ye and working Human Andre in (2, Mediginal Anni) Bu weliginese der Bade Salesses der		12/14	2214.8	0.50 PM
Cosend sharpe the diversels as my Ye				

Interaction Search view showing results and a selection in the $\ensuremath{\textbf{Details}}$ tab

If the Details Panel is not displayed, you can display it by clicking the **Show Details Panel on Bottom/Hide Details Panel** toggle button:



The **Details** tab displays interaction specific information. For example, if you have selected an email interaction, the Subject, From, To, State, and body of the email interactions are displayed.

The **Note** tab enables you to view notes that are associated with the selected interaction.

The Case Data tab enables you to view the case information for the selected interaction.

5. Different actions are available for a selected interaction in the Search Results pane, depending on the type of interaction that you have selected. For example, you might be able to reply to the interaction, open the interaction, print the interaction, mark in-progress voice and email [Added: 8.5.110.13] interactions as Done, and delete In-Progress outbound email interactions [Added: 8.5.110.13]. Click an

action button to perform an action on the selected interaction.

END

Related Information

- Interaction Search
- My History
- Contact History
- Contact Directory
- Contact Search

Using Workbins

[Modified: 8.5.110.13]

In this lesson, you will learn how to access interactions that are stored in a workbin and belong to you, your place, your agent group, or your place group.

A workbin is like a personal queue, in which you can store email messages and other interactions that are to be handled later; however, unlike a queue, interactions that are stored in a workbin can be accessed in any order; they can be assigned to agents, places, agent groups, or place groups. Items that are stored in a workbin are owned by the owner of the workbin.

Open interactions can be saved to a workbin for future processing or collaborative processing by the agent, place, agent group, or place group. Interactions can also be distributed to workbins by Universal Routing Server.

This lesson contains the following section:

• Using Workbins to Access Stored Interactions

Using Workbins to Access Stored Interactions

Interactions can be routed to you, your place, your place group, or your agent group and stored in a workbin to be handled at any time.

Lesson: Accessing and handling interactions that are stored in a workbin

Purpose: To use a workbin to open an interaction.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You are the owner of the workbin in which the interaction is stored.

Start

1. In the Main Window, click the **Access and use Workspace supporting views** button (=) to display the **Supporting Views** menu, then select **My Workbins**.

iiii Genesys + Workspace		.en Miler - 1 - 0 0
Type name or number		=
My Workbins		1
Personal Workbins Montechnique	My tobound E-mails in Programs	
My Mound Emails in Property [7]	/	
	From Bolject Received	
	 A Mailwald, Threader about new, 10102014 	LILLY PM
	Defaults Note Cases Data	
	Tehenation alood see products Assay, Askagintal dan Ne. sebginta da Water Assayed to as Miller - My relevand E mails in Progress o	2/31/2014 5-01:57 PM
Wy Wolfdate	Gat you please send me all the information about this year's re-	er jesekeris?
Wy Team Worldrine	A. Mari	

Workbins view in the Workspace Main Window

The Workbins view comprises three areas:

- Workbins Explorer—Enables you to select workbin folders from your personal workbins and your shared workbins. For agents who are configured as Team Leads (supervisors), you can change the explorer view to the following views:
 - **My Workbins**—For all agents, a view of your personal workbins or the shared workbins to which you have access.
 - **My Team Workbins**—For Team Leads, a view of all of the workbins that belong to agents that you supervise.
 - **My Interaction Queues**—For a business process supervisor, a filtered view of your queues and workbins.
- Workbin view—Lists all the interactions that are stored in the selected workbins, and includes information about the status of the interaction; enables you to sort, search, and perform actions on interactions
- Workbin interaction information—Enables you to view the Details tab, the Notes tab, and the Case Data tab for the selected interaction (see the Workbins view in the Workspace Main Window with a selected draft interaction figure)
- 2. In the Workbins Explorer, select the workbin that contains the interaction that you want to open.
- 3. In the Workbin view, scroll through the list of interactions to find the specific interaction that you want to open (see the Workbin view in the Workbins view figure).

a- a-	/ 5			
From		Subject	Received	
N A.M	ai@mail.d	Information about new	3/31/2014 5:03:57 PM	
Details	Note	Case Data		
Details Information	Note about new	Case Data		
Details Information From: A_M	Note about new tai@mail.do	Case Data products		3/31/2014 5:03:57 PM
Details Information From: A_M To: web State: Assis	Note about new fai@mail.do @mcr.dev gned to Jim	Case Data products m Miller - My Inbound E-mail	s in Progress workbin	3/31/2014 5:03:57 PM
Details Information From: A,M To: web State: Assi Can you p	Note about new dai@mail.do @mcr.dev gned to Jim lease send	Case Data products m Miller - My Inbound E-mail me all the information about	s in Progress workbin this year's new products?	3/31/2014 5.03.57 PM

Workbin view in the Workbins view

4. To change the sorting order of the interactions, click the column headings in the table of interactions. Clicking the same column heading again reverses the sort order for that heading (see the Changed

sorting ora	er in the wo	rkbin view figure).	
From A	Subject	Received	
A_Mai@mail.d	Information about new	3/31/2014 5:03:57 PM	

. *	A_Mai@mail.d	Wrong amount charged	4/1/2014 9:15:23 PM
	#UWana@mail	Part mission	4/1/2014 0-25-34 PM

MarkAv@mail... Shipment arrived broken 4/1/2014 9:23:19 PM

RaviPiBmail.d. Discount not applied 4/1/2014 9:21:16 PM

Changed sorting order in the Workbin view

- 5. To refresh the list of interactions in the workbin, click **Refresh** (\Im)—if the workbin is configured to be manually refreshed. [**Added:** 8.5.110.13]
- 6. If the Workbin search feature is enabled for you, you can limit the interactions that are displayed in the Workbin to those that coontain a value that you enter into the Quick Search field. Ask your supervisor what values you are allowed to use. [Added: 8.5.110.13]
 - a. In this example, interactions are assigned a priority value in the Case Data. Agents have been enabled to filter the list of interactions in the Workbin by the priority value.

W Genesys • Workspace				🤤 Kale Lowis -	2.0.	- O X
Type name in number						=
My Workbins						×
- Personal Worklass	-	and thematic in	Program			
With the set of the se	Card In	anti-	-			- 4
Yes belowed Backberry in Property 1			0	I starting in propulse	takes at 12,00,54	00
 Pending External Resource (-) 		From	Daljet	Rectored	missily	
Twitter Workle Durt (-)	1.00	Reitignal L.	order-update	11/5/2015 11:01:32	19	
· Dard Wolkins	100	A Malphald.	Cancel Order	10/5/2015 11:00/16.	10	- 11
🖿 email agent group whi()	100	wate-peal	Add items to my order	11/5/2015 11:05:40.	10	
	10	Liferajiral.	Change account	11/5/2018 11 (07/21)	10	
		koringinal L.	Close account	11/5/2015 11:27:05.	10	
	Desid	Note:	Case Data			
			Select as interaction	tion to view details.		
By Wolfdon						
My Toam Workbins						
Wy Interaction Queues						

Use Quick Search to limit the list of interactions

b. Enter a search/filter value into the **Quick Search** field. In this example, Priority 20 is entered.

Genesys • Workspace				🤤 Kate Lewis 📼
("gennene or number				/
My Workbins				
Personal Buckbins Ly Shaft (-mails (1) My Inbound E-mails (1) My Undound E-mails in Contract (10) My Undound Worksheems on Contract (1)	му 14 28	wand E-mails in	Program	Literaction in magnitut, to
Pending External Resource (-)		Fram	Subject	Rectived
Twitter Workbin Draft (-)	10	ReviP@mail.d.	Order update	11/6/2015 11:01:02
Shared Workbins	-	A.Maigmaild.	Cancel Order	11/5/2015 11:00:10
	NB.		taxes to my order	11/5/2015 11:05:40

Enter a valid search value in the Quick Search field.

c. <u>Press **Enter** or click the magnifying glass to find</u> all the interactions that contain the specified value.

and the second second				-		1
une e norder : Q						
Workbins						
lannal Wolfing		round E-mails in	Progress			
by but I man (I)			~	_		
Ny sebound Worksons in Property			0	internation in suspected,	West at 12:07:07	0
 Pending External Resource (-) 		Fran	Deliet	Received	Printy	
Twitter Workbin (harts)-)	-	A.Maigmaild.	New account	11/5/2019 11/28-65	20	
Testine Worklow Information 1						
Twitter Workbin InProgress () hand Workbins	10	ArWang@mail.	Change my email addre .	11/5/2019 11:32:38.	20	

The list of items in the Workbin are limited to those that contain the search value in Case Data.

7. Click the interaction that you want to handle when you find it in the Workbin view (see the Workbin view with a selected email interaction figure).

9II * 6	- / 3			
	From	Subject	Received	
	RP@mail.dom	Account update	2/25/2014 4:52:18 PM	
- 21	MarkAv@mail			
Detail	Note	Case Data		

Workbin view with a selected email interaction

When you select an interaction, the following functionality becomes available for the interaction, depending on the interaction type:

- **Open**—Opens the interaction in an Interaction window (see Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction)
- **Reply** (for email only)—Creates a reply and opens the interaction in an outbound Email Interaction window (see Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction)
- **Reply All** (for email only)—Creates a reply and opens the interaction in an outbound Email Interaction window and addresses the email to the sender and all other recipients of the original email (see Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction)
- **Mark Done**—Complete the interaction and close the interaction window; you might be configured to specify a disposition code before you can click Mark Done (see Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction and Assigning Disposition Codes)
- **Move to Queue**—(if you have the correct permissions) Opens the Team Communicator to enable you to select a queue to which you want to move the selected interaction(s). Enter the name of the queue into the Team Communicator search field, then from the Queue item Action menu, select Move to Queue.
- **Move to Workbin**—(if you have the correct permissions) Opens the Team Communicator to enable you to find an agent or agent group to which you want to move the selected interaction(s).
- Edit Case Information—(if you have the correct permissions) Opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content of the Case Data tab for the selected interaction(s).
- **Print** (for email only)—(if you have the correct permissions) Opens the Print Preview window to enable you to print the selected interaction. [**Added:** 8.5.101.14]

End

Lesson: Storing an interaction in your Draft workbin

Purpose: To use your Drafts workbin to store an outbound email interaction to be completed at a later time by you or another agent.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
• You have accepted an inbound or transferred email interaction (see Receiving and Handling an Inbound Email Interaction) or you want to create a new outbound email interaction (see Creating and Handling a New or Reply Email Interaction).

Start

1. You can save a new outbound email message or a reply outbound email message (see Lesson: Replying to a inbound email interaction) to your Draft workbin. To create new outbound email, use the Team Communicator to find the contact, and select New Email (see the New Email option in the Team Communicator Action menu figure and Lesson: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact).

Senesys • Workspace				
Wang	×			
👱 \star 🗉	Contact		-	
📞 🚽 Frank Wa	ang		<u>*</u> =	
📞 🚽 Vanessa	Wang		2=	
📞 Call			1 =	
- 🔛 New E-mail				
New SMS	N		<u>*</u> =	
🗚 Add to Favor	ites			

Procedure: Using the Team Communicator feature to find a contact

2. Compose your new or reply email interaction in the Email Interaction window (see the New outbound Email Interaction window figure).

liii Genesys • Workspace	in table - 1 - 0	ο×
⊗ 🚺 Чанны 🗢 Ж. 84 🖬 🗗 🖉 🖉 루는 🛃 -		≣
Case Information + + 0	Argiterend bash = bash	4 0
Brigin Cultouriteruil 2	Yes Athepres	٠
Manne, Total and Deline's interactions does • Manne, Markenginera does MARCE × Markenginer, Norman ophise following MARCE × Parken, * Markenginera does Parken, * Markenginera does Parken, * Markenginera does Parken, * Markenginera does Parkenginera does * Parkenginera does *	A	•
Negatives not	Adding additional Issues/Is Gene 4 constructions in Gene 4 constructions in Gene 4 constructions in Gene 4 constructions of the initial issues of the initial gene and additional initial issues of the initial gene in gene gene	A.

New outbound Email Interaction window

3. To save the outbound email interaction in your Draft workbin folder, click Save in Draft Workbin (

). The interaction window closes, and the interaction is stored in your Draft workbin.

4. If you want to open the interaction later to continue to work on it, click the Workbins button on the Workspace Main Window (see the Workbins view in the Workspace Main Window with a selected draft interaction figure). The Workbins Explorer displays the number of interactions in each workbin, and your saved interaction is displayed in the Draft workbin. The Draft Workbin enables you to use the

following functionality:

- Find an interaction by scrolling through the list of interactions.
- Change the sort order of interactions by clicking the interaction list column heads.
- Open—Open the interaction in an inbound Email Interaction window (see Lesson: Handling an inbound email interaction).
- Delete—Delete the interaction permanently from the Interaction Server database (if you have the correct permissions).
- Details—View the sender and recipient information, subject, and contents of the selected interaction.
- Note—View the note attached to the interaction. See Managing Contact History
- Case Data—View Case Information and Disposition Code for the current interaction



Workbins view in the Workspace $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Main}}$ Window with a selected draft interaction

5. If you want to hide or show column headings in the interaction list, right-click in the list and select the headings that you want to hide or show respectively (see the Interaction list column-heading contextual menu figure).



Interaction list column-heading contextual menu

6. To show or hide the interaction information area, click the Show/Hide Details Panel button. The Draft workbin with the interaction information area hidden figure shows the Draft workbin in which the interaction-information area is hidden.

Sidemon Wedness	A function of	
W Genesys • Workspace	O terms a	T. O 0.
Type name in number		=
My Workbins		×
- Personal WorkCons	My Draft E-maile	
 My tours (-main (2)) My toloand (-main in Program (3)) 	9-8-288.0	
	To Edget Edgeted	-14
	 Armophesis Accounting to Manager ACCOUNTERSTORM 	
	A,Maigheald. Relationationation. 3/21/2014.9.05/2014	
By Burtley		
Wy Team Worldone		
Wy Interaction Common		

Draft workbin with the interaction information area hidden

7. When you have finished handling all the interactions in the Draft workbin, the Draft folder in the Workbins Explorer shows 0 entries and the Draft workbin shows *No items* (see the Empty Draft workbin figure).



End

Related Information

- Workbins
- Team Lead

Team Lead Functionality

In this lesson, you will learn how a Team Lead (Supervisor) can monitor, coach, and barge-in on agents who are handling voice and chat interactions.

This topic contains the following sub-topics:

- Monitor, Coach, and Barge-in Interactions
- Workbin and Queue Management
- Change agent state and log off agents

Related Information

• Team Lead

Monitor Coach And Barge-in Interactions

Important

This tutorial describes the most common monitoring configuration. Your administrator might have set up monitoring differently in your environment. If you are unsure about whether you can monitor the currently active interaction or the next interaction of an agent you are monitoring, ask your administrator.

In this lesson, you will learn how a Team Supervisor can monitor, coach, and barge-in on agents who are handling voice and chat interactions:

- Monitoring an agent enables you to hear the interaction between an agent and a contact without either
 party being able to hear you; or read the chat transcript between an agent and a contact without either
 party knowing that you are reading the transcript. Agents might be configured to know when they are
 being monitored (an icon is displayed in the interaction window), or they might be configured to be
 monitored without their knowledge (silent monitoring).
- You can barge-in to an active voice interaction that you are monitoring between an agent and a contact so that both parties can hear you. You can also barge-in to a chat session that you are monitoring.
- Coaching an agent enables you to hear the interaction between an agent and a contact without the contact being able to hear you coach the agent; or read the transcript of the interaction between an agent and a contact and send chat messages to the agent without the contact being aware that you are reading the transcript and communicating with the agent.
- You can barge-in to an active voice interaction that you are coaching between an agent and a contact so that both parties can hear you. You can also barge-in to a chat session that you are coaching.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Monitoring a Voice Interaction
- Coaching a Voice Interaction
- Monitoring a Chat Interaction
- Coaching a Chat Interaction
- Switching Team Supervisor Modes

Important

To use the Team Supervisor functionality, you must be configured as a Supervisor for an agent group. A Team Supervisor can monitor or coach as many chat agents as he or she want to, but he or she can monitor or coach only one voice agent at a time.

Monitoring a Voice Interaction

Monitoring an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can listen to a voice interaction between an agent and a contact without the agent or contact being aware that you are listening. Agents can be configured to be notified when they are being monitored. You can monitor the current or next interaction of an agent.

Tip

- You can monitor only one voice agent at a time.
- You can monitor only one interaction from the same agent at the same time.
- You can monitor the next interaction of only one agent at the same time.
- Multiple supervisors cannot monitor the next interactions of the same agent.

Lesson: Monitoring an agent who is handling a voice interaction

Purpose: To listen to an agent and a contact in a voice interaction without the agent or contact being able to hear you.

Prerequisites

- You are configured as a Supervisor for an agent group.
- You are logged in to a Voice channel in Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent (see the Main Window Team <u>Communicator figure</u>) in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.



2. Open the Action Menu for the agent whom you want to monitor and select Monitor Next

Interactions (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure). If there is a currently active interaction, it is displayed in the Monitor menu; to monitor the current interaction, select it from the Monitor menu. To monitor continuously the interactions handled by an agent (starting from the current one or the next one depending on how your administrator has set up your environment), select Next Interactions.

Senesys • Workspace					
Jim	×				
1	★ 🕒 Agent			•	*
≉	Jim Miller O Logged Off				Q
فر	Jim Miller Ready				Q
6	Call				_
	Send Instant Message				
\odot	Monitor Next Interactions				
*	Coach Next Interactions	К			
丼	Add to Favorites				

Internal Target Action Menu

A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are monitoring changes to the Stop Monitoring button.



3. When the monitored agent accepts a voice interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click Accept to begin monitoring the interaction. The Voice Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the call. Neither the contact nor the agent can hear you, but

you can hear both parties. If you do not click Accept, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to monitor the interaction unless you stop monitoring and start monitoring the same agent. If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start monitoring, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click Accept, you will begin monitoring the call that is already in progress. If the monitored agent is configured to be notified when he or she is being monitored, an eye icon is displayed next to the party-interaction icon in the Voice Interaction window on the agent's desktop.

Genesys • Workspace			
🛞 🧧 Ravi Pache 🕓 00.01:13 🔮	66.6.	🏢 🌲 - 🕲 -	<u>*</u> -
Case Information			
Origin: Inbound call to 4001 Queue: 4001			
🕶 Ravi Pache 👩 Connected			

The same icon is displayed in the Voice Interaction Monitoring window on your desktop next to the party Action menu.

Senesys ⁻	• Workspace
🔅 Ravi Pact	re 🕓 00.00.35 🌷 - 😢 - 💋 🕣
Case Information	
Origin: Monitoring	g of call between 3615 and 5320
👻 Ravi Pache	© Connected
	© Connected

- 4. During a monitoring session, you can perform the following actions from the Voice Interaction Monitoring window:
 - End Monitoring—Click End Monitoring () in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to end the monitoring session.
 - Barge-in—Click Barge-in () in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to join the monitored call. Both parties will be able to hear you. You can switch back to monitoring by clicking

End the Call (
) in the Call Actions toolbar.

- Coach via Instant Messaging—Select Coach via Instant Messaging from the agent party Action menu. An Instant Messaging session is added to the Voice Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by sending instant messages to them (see Handle Internal Instant Messaging).
- Coach via voice—Select Coach via voice from the agent party Action menu, or use Unmute (Coach)
 (2) in the Interaction toolbar to return to coaching.

For more information, see Lesson: Coaching an agent who is handling a voice interaction.

If you stopped monitoring, you are disconnected from the call. The monitoring-indicator icon is removed from the Voice Interaction window of the agent. If the agent ends the call while you are still monitoring the agent, your monitoring session ends automatically.

- 5. Click Done to close the Voice Interaction Monitoring window and mark the interaction as Done.
- 6. To stop monitoring the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are monitoring.

7. Open the Action Menu for the agent ,and select Stop Monitoring (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).



Internal Target Action Menu

A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

End

Coaching a Voice Interaction

Coaching an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can listen to a voice interaction between an agent and a contact and speak to that agent without the contact being aware that you are listening and speaking to the agent. You can coach the current or next interaction of an agent.

Lesson: Coaching an agent who is handling a voice interaction

Purpose: To listen and speak to an agent who is handling a voice interaction without the contact being able to hear you.

Prerequisites

- You are configured as a Supervisor for an agent group.
- You are logged in to a Voice channel in Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent (see the Main Window Team Communicator figure) in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.

Senesys • Workspace				
Jim	×			
👱 ★	L Agent	- 2		
r≭ - Sin	n Miller Logged Off	Ω		
s - Jin	n Miller Ready 😽	Ω		
2 Matching	Internal Target(s)			
Main Window Team	Communicator			

2. Open the Action Menu for the agent whom you want to coach and select Coach Next Interactions (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure). If there is a currently active interaction, it is displayed in the Coach menu; to coach the current interaction, select it from the Coach menu. To coach the next interactions, select Next Interactions.

Senesys • Workspace				
Jim	×			
	★ 🕒 Agent		•	*
*	Jim Miller S Logged Off			Q
فر	Jim Miller			Q
15	Call			
	Send Instant Message			
۲	Monitor Next Interactions			
	Coach Next Interactions			
*	Add to Favorites			
Internal	Target Action Menu			

A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are coaching changes to the Stop Coaching button.



3. When the coached agent accepts a voice interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click Accept to begin coaching the interaction. The Voice Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the call. You can hear the agent and the agent can hear you, but the contact can hear only the agent. If you do not click Accept, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to coach the interaction unless you stop coaching and start coaching the same agent. If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start coaching, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click Accept, you will begin coaching the call that is already in progress.

The eye icon is displayed in the Voice Interaction Coaching window on your desktop next to the party Action menu.



- 4. During a coaching session, you can perform the following actions from the Voice Interaction Coaching window:
 - End Monitoring—Click End Monitoring (22) in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to end the coaching session.
 - Barge-in—Click Barge-in () in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to join the monitored call. Both parties will be able to hear you. You can switch back to monitoring by clicking End the Call () in the Call Actions toolbar.

- Mute (Monitor)—You can switch to monitoring the call by clicking Mute (Monitor) () in the Call Actions toolbar.
- Coach via Instant Messaging—Select Coach via Instant Messaging from the agent party Action menu. An Instant Messaging session is added to the Voice Interaction window. You can coach the agent that you are coaching by voice by sending instant messages to that agent (see Handle Internal Instant Messaging).
 If you stopped coaching, you are disconnected from the call.
 If the agent ends the call while you are still coaching the agent, your coaching session ends automatically.
- 5. Click Done to close the Voice Interaction Coaching window and mark the interaction as Done.
- 6. To stop coaching the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are coaching.
- 7. Open the Action Menu for the agent and select Stop Coaching (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).



Internal Target Action Menu

A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

End

Monitoring a Chat Interaction

Monitoring an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can read a chat interaction between an agent and a contact without the agent or contact being aware that you are reading the interaction. Agents can be configured to be notified when they are being monitored. You can monitor the current or next interaction of an agent.

Tip

- You can monitor multiple chat agents at the same time.
- You can monitor multiple interactions from the same agent at the same time.
- You can monitor the next interaction of several agents at the same time.
- Multiple supervisors can monitor the next interactions of the same agent.
- Workspace does not limit the number of concurrent chat iterations that a supervisor may monitor. The maximum number should be determined by the policies of your company.

Lesson: Monitoring an agent who is handling a chat interaction

Purpose: To read the live transcript between an agent and a contact in a chat interaction without the agent or contact being aware of you.

Prerequisites

- You are configured as a Supervisor for an agent group.
- You are logged in to a Chat channel in Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent (see the Main Window Team <u>Communicator figure) in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.</u>



Main Window Team Communicator

2. Open the Action Menu for the agent whom you want to monitor and select Monitor Next Interactions (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure). If there is a currently active interaction, it is displayed in the Monitor menu; to monitor the current interaction, select it from the Monitor menu. To monitor continuously the interactions handled by an agent (starting from the current one or the next one depending on how your administrator has set up your environment), select Next Interactions.



A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent. In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are monitoring changes to the Stop Monitoring button.

Senesys • Workspace			
Jim	×		
1	★ 🕒 Agent	- 2	
*	Jim Miller O Logged Off	<u> </u>	
ø	Jim Miller Beady	Ω	
Ø	Stop Monitoring		
ار (Call		
۶ 🗭	Send Instant Message		
*	Add to Favorites		

3. When the monitored agent accepts a chat interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click Accept to begin monitoring the interaction. The Chat Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the chat session. You can read the chat transcript, but you cannot send any text to the contact or the agent. If you do not click Accept, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to monitor the interaction unless you stop monitoring and start monitoring the same agent. If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start monitoring, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click Accept, you will begin monitoring the chat that is already in progress. If the monitored agent is configured to be notified when he or she is

being monitored, an eye icon is displayed next to the party-interaction icon in the Chat Interaction window on the agent's desktop.



The same icon is displayed in the Chat Interaction Monitoring window on your desktop next to the party Action menu.

Senesys • Workspace			
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🖸 00:00:35 💋 ➔			
Case Information			
Origin: Monitoring of chat between Avril Mai and Jim Miller			
🕶 Avril Mai 🔹 Connected			
✓ Jim Miller			
[7:20:28 PM] New party 'Avril Mai' has joined the session [7:20:30 PM] Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (throu [7:20:34 PM] New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session [7:20:49 PM] Jim Miller: Hello. How can I help you today? [7:20:54 PM] 'Kate Lewis' is monitoring the session			

- 4. During a monitoring session, you can perform the following actions from the Chat Interaction Monitoring window:
 - End Monitoring—Click End Monitoring () in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to end the monitoring session.
 - Barge-in—Click Barge-in () in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to join the monitored chat session. Both parties will be able to see your messages. You can switch back to

monitoring by clicking End Chat (

- Coach via Instant Messaging—Select Coach via Instant Messaging from the agent party Action menu. An Instant Messaging session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by sending instant messages to the agent (see Handle Internal Instant Messaging).
- Coach via voice—Select Coach via Voice from the agent party Action menu. An voice session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by

speaking directly to the agent (see Making a Voice Call).

- Coach via chat—Select Coach via Chat from the agent party Action menu. A chat session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by sending chat messages to the agent (see Starting or Receiving a Chat Consultation). If you stopped monitoring, you are disconnected from the chat session. The monitoring indicator icon is removed from the Chat Interaction window of the agent. If the agent ends the chat session while you are still monitoring the agent, your monitoring session ends automatically.
- 5. Click Done to close the Chat Interaction Monitoring window and mark the interaction as Done.
- 6. To stop monitoring the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are monitoring.
- 7. Open the Action Menu for the agent and select Stop Monitoring (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).

Senesys • Workspace			
Jim	×		
<u> </u>	L Agent	- 😃	
r ≭ - Sin	n Miller Logged Off	<u> </u>	
Ø - Ö	n Miller Ready	Ω	
💋 Stop M	lonitoring		
📞 Call	Ŷ		
Send Ir	nstant Message		
🗲 Add to	Favorites		

Internal Target Action Menu

A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

End

Coaching a Chat Interaction

Coaching an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can read the transcript of the interaction between an agent and a contact and send chat messages to the agent without the contact being aware that you are reading the transcript and communicating with the agent. You can coach the current or next interaction of an agent.

Lesson: Coaching an agent who is handling a chat interaction

Purpose: To read the chat transcript and send messages to an agent who is handling a chat

interaction without the contact knowing that you are reading the transcript and communicating with the agent.

Prerequisites

- You are configured as a Supervisor for an agent group.
- You are logged in to a Chat channel in Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent (see the Main Window Team <u>Communicator figure) in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.</u>



2. Open the Action Menu for the agent whom you want to coach and select Coach next interactions (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure). If there is a currently active interaction, it is displayed in the Coach menu; to coach the current interaction, select it from the Coach menu. To coach the next interaction, select Next Interactions.

Senesys • Workspace			
Jim	×		
1	🗙 🕒 Agent		- 2
*	Jim Miller S Logged Off		<u> </u>
فر	Jim Miller		Ω
1	Call		
	Send Instant Message		
۲	Monitor Next Interactions		
	Coach Next Interactions		
*	Add to Favorites		
Internal [·]	Target Action Menu		

A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are coaching changes to the Stop Coaching button.

Senesys • Workspace						
Jim	×					
1	🗙 🕒 Agent	-	*			
≉	Jim Miller S Logged Off		<u> </u>			
x	Jim Miller Ready		Ω			
X	Stop Coaching					
ا ر	Call					
•	Send Instant Message					
*	Add to Favorites					

3. When the coached agent accepts a chat interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click Accept to begin coaching the interaction. The Chat Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the chat session. You can read the chat transcript and send private chat messages to the agent without the contact seeing your messages. If you do not click Accept, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to coach the interaction unless you stop coaching and start coaching the same agent. If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start coaching, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click Accept, you will begin coaching

the chat session that is already in progress. The eye icon is displayed in the Chat Interaction Coaching window on your desktop next to the party Action menu.

Senesys • Workspace					
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🖸 00:00:35 💋 ➔					
Case Information					
Origin: Monitoring of chat between Avril Mai and Jim Miller					
🝷 Avril Mai 🛛 😋 Connected					
✓ Jim Miller					
[7:20:28 PM] New party 'Avril Mai' has joined the session [7:20:30 PM] Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (throu [7:20:34 PM] New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session [7:20:49 PM] Jim Miller: Hello. How can I help you today? [7:20:54 PM] 'Kate Lewis' is monitoring the session					

- 4. During a coaching session, you can perform the following actions from the Chat Interaction Coaching window:
 - End Monitoring—Click End Monitoring () in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to end the coaching session.
 - Barge-in—Click Barge-in () in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to join the monitored chat session. Both parties will be able to see your messages. Your coaching session ends when you barge-in to the chat.

Click Done to close the coaching session in the window and mark the coaching interaction as Done. You can switch to monitoring the chat session (see Monitoring a Chat Interaction) by clicking End Chat (



🖄) in the Call Actions toolbar.

- Coach via voice—Select Coach via Voice from the agent party Action menu. An voice session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by speaking directly to the agent (see Making a Voice Call).
- Coach via Instant Messaging—Select Coach via Instant Messaging from the agent party Action menu. An Instant Messaging session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are coaching by chat by sending instant messages to that agent (see Handle Internal Instant Messaging).
 If you stopped coaching, you are disconnected from the chat session.
 If the agent ends the chat session while you are still coaching the agent, your coaching session ends automatically.
- 5. Click Done to close the Chat Interaction Coaching window and mark the interaction as Done.
- 6. To end coaching the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are coaching.
- 7. Open the Action Menu for the agent and select Stop Coaching (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).



Internal Target Action Menu

A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

End

Switching Team Supervisor Modes

Workspace enables you to switch from certain team-supervision modes to others. During the monitoring or coaching of an active interaction, you can switch from one supervision mode to another. The following transitions are supported:

- Monitoring to coaching—Use the party Action menu that is associated with the agent, or Use Unmute (Coach) in the Interaction toolbar to return to coaching.
- Monitoring to barge-in—Click Barge-in in the Supervision bar.
- Coaching to barge-in—Click Barge-in in the Supervision bar.
- Coaching to monitoring—Click End Chat, End Call, or End IM in the Interaction toolbar of the coaching interaction to return to monitoring, or Mute (Monitor) in the Interaction toolbar to return to monitoring.
- Barge-in to monitoring—Click End Call or End Chat in the Interaction toolbar to return to monitoring.
- Barge-in to coaching—Use the party Action menu that is associated with the agent.

Tip

All switching modes are available for the Chat channel; however, depending on the technical environment of your voice channel, the following voice specific supervisor switch-modes might not be available:

- Switching from coaching to barge-in
- Switching from monitoring to barge-in
- Switching from monitoring to coaching
- · Switching from coaching to monitoring
- Switching from barge-in to coaching

If you are an administrator and require technical details about these limitations, see Monitoring SIP, Cisco UCM, or Skype for Business voice interactions in the *Workspace Desktop Edition Deployment Guide*.

Related Information

• Team Lead

If you want to monitor the status of your agents you can use Genesys Pulse:

• Dashboards and Wallboards in the Genesys Pulse Help

Workbin and Queue Management

In this lesson, you will learn how a Team Lead (supervisor) can view and manage the contents of the workbins of the agents or agent groups that he or she supervises. You will also learn how to view and manage the contents of queues by viewing "snapshots" of the interactions in the interaction database.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Using the My Team Workbins Explorer
- My Interaction Queues Management

My Team Workbin Management

Interactions can be routed to the agents that you lead and can be stored in their workbins to be handled at any time. Also, your agents might choose to store draft and in-progress interactions in their workbins. Sometimes it might be necessary to move the interactions from an agent's personal workbin to the workbin of another agent, to your own workbin, or to a queue. Use the following procedure to move an interaction from the workbin of one agent to the workbin of another agent.

Lesson: Using the My Team Workbins Explorer

Purpose: To view and manage the contents of the workbins of agents that you lead.

Prerequisites

- Your account is configured as a Team Lead/supervisor of a group of agents.
- Your account is configured to manage the workbins of the agents that you lead.
- Your account is configured to move interactions to a queue.

Start

- 1. In the Main Window, click the Access and use Workspace supporting views button (=) to display the Supporting Views menu, then select My Team Workbins. The My Team Workbins view contains a list of all of the agents that you lead.
- 2. In the Workbins Explorer view, click the name of the agent whose workbins you want to view and manage. The list of workbins is displayed under the agent name.
- 3. Click a workbin to display its contents in the Workbin view to the right.

iii Genesys • Workspace			😑 Kale Cavis +	1 · Ø ·	- 0 ×
Jan H					=
My Team Workbins					×
+ 10 ⁴ ,5120	SPEECH - My D	alt t-mails			
Stylical Lonate (1)	4.6.1	4 m			•
Wy interard E-mails in Propress [0] are part of the state	79	Mpst	Indenified		
. 5P.5373	 Nacipro 	ald. The Net policy	MAY STUDIA LOUID M		_
Ny Washina Ny Jean-Dura David	Outsile 19 Re No picture of Ream: York Con To Read Optimizer Accepted State Accepted State Accepted State Accepted State Accepted St	the Case Data any TV Tach Gener' webgine widden to SP 5311 - My South 1 20, PM, Naci Packe web	1. dirin. 1. dirini sontiden was Neiro di Lindens et for a naplacement	3/11/2014/5.2	LUPH I
Wy Interaction Comuni					

Workbins view in the My Team Workbins view of the Workspace $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Main}}$ Window

4. Click an interaction to select it. The contents of the interaction are displayed in the Details tab. You can also view the Notes and Case Data tabs by clicking them.



Selecting multiple interactions.

To select more than one interaction, use **Shift-click** to select a range or **Ctrl-click** to select multiple items.

- 5. Depending on the permissions that are granted to you, you can choose to move the selected interaction to the workbin of a target agent or to a queue:
 - To move the selected interaction to a workbin, click Move to Workbin (🚔). The Team Communicator is displayed.
 - a. In the Team Communicator search field, enter the name of the target agent or agent group.
 - b. From the list of targets that is displayed, click the Move to Workbin action menu that is beside the name of the target in the list to view the list of workbins that belong to the target.
 - c. From the list of workbins, click the name of the target workbin.

SIP532	1 - My Draft E-mails
-311	
ĸ	Jim × id ▲ ★ □ Agent × 4 14.5:26
	≝ Jim Miller ⊙ Logged Off
	≝ - Jim Miller 💇
	🚔 Move to 'My Draft E-mails' workbin 💦
Detai	Move to 'My Inbound E-mails in Progress' workbin
	🛧 Add to Favorites

Selecting a target workbin from the Team Communicator

- d. In the confirmation dialog box, click Yes to move the interaction to the target workbin or click No to cancel the action.
- e. If you clicked Yes, the interaction is moved to the target workbin.
- To move the selected interaction to a queue, click Move to Queue (→). The Team Communicator is displayed.
 - a. In the Team Communicator search field, enter the name of the target queue.
 - b. From the list of targets that is displayed, click the Move to Queue action menu that is beside the name of the target in the list.
 - c. From the list of queues, click Move to Queue.



Selecting a target queue from the Team Communicator

- d. In the confirmation dialog box, click Yes to move the interaction to the target queue or click No to cancel the action.
- e. If you clicked Yes, the interaction is moved to the target queue.

End

My Interaction Queues Management

Interactions are routed to queues for processing. Sometimes interactions might remain in a queue for a longer period of time than your business requirements want. The My Interaction Queues view enables you to view the contents of your Interaction Database by criteria that are specified by your administrator.

Sometimes it might be necessary to move the interactions from a queue to the workbin of another agent, to your own workbin, or to a different queue. Use the following procedure to move an interaction from a queue to a workbin or another queue.

Lesson: Using the My Interaction Queues Explorer

Purpose: To view and manage the contents of the Interaction Database by using a filtered view.

Prerequisites

- Your account is configured to manage interaction queues.
- Your account is configured to move interactions to a queue.

Start

- 1. In the Main Window, click the **Access and use Workspace supporting views** button (=) to display the **Supporting Views** menu, then select **My Interaction Queues**. The My Interaction Queues view contains a list of all of the interaction filters that are configured by your administrator.
- 2. In the Workbins Explorer view, click the Interaction Queue that you want to view and manage. The list of queues is displayed under the filter name.
- 3. Click a queue to display its contents in the Workbin view to the right.



Workbins view in the My Interaction Queues view of the Workspace $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Main}}$ Window

4. Click an interaction to select it. The contents of the interaction are displayed in the Details tab. You can also view the Notes and Case Data tabs by clicking them.

영 Workspace		0 - ± - 10	O X
Type have an owned and the			=
My Interaction Queues			×
Bendas Companya and Companya Compa	El Coults dit - 24 + 2 Miget To +20 Confuser per wells Alteriped A 20 Non per wire Coperations +2 42 No typics assurts A. Sudgeted A.	Mi interactions is enapoled, takes at 15.38 f Pacety Anxiepted fix 0 1000 11 1241 1201 1261 0 1001	0 1
To surge plottered (to the first of layer) R start in string-quark internet D	In c Pape 2 B Balance May allow Cases Botte Patients of an allow Pase: Cases 1 (almost joint) Pase: Cases 1 (almost joint) Pase: A service of a solitory by control 1 and I placed as order two savels ago, 1 am wor- number 14 (2004).	to the Propess contain and the dispect. My order	1 m m

Selecting multiple interactions.

To select more than one interaction, use **Shift-click** to select a range or **Ctrl-click** to select multiple items.

- 5. Depending on the permissions that are granted to you, you can choose to move the selected interaction to the workbin of a target agent or to a queue:
 - To move the selected interaction to a workbin, click Move to Workbin (🚔). The Team Communicator is displayed.
 - a. In the Team Communicator search field, enter the name of the target agent or agent group.
 - b. From the list of targets that is displayed, click the Move to Workbin action menu that is beside the name of the target in the list to view the list of workbins that belong to the target.
 - c. From the list of workbins, click the name of the target workbin.



Selecting a target workbin from the Team Communicator

- d. In the confirmation dialog box, click Yes to move the interaction to the target workbin or click No to cancel the action.
- e. If you clicked Yes, the interaction is moved to the target workbin.
- To move the selected interaction to a queue, click Move to Queue (→). The Team Communicator is displayed.
 - a. In the Team Communicator search field, enter the name of the target queue.
 - b. From the list of targets that is displayed, click the Move to Queue action menu that is beside the name of the target in the list.
 - c. From the list of queues, click Move to Queue.

form the list of queue	5, CHEK HOVE LO	Queue.			
- Move to Queue	e-error-processing	->			
Add to Favorites	e-redirect	→			
-3II → email-auto-queu	e-result-checking	→			

Selecting a target queue from the Team Communicator

- d. In the confirmation dialog box, click Yes to move the interaction to the target queue or click No to cancel the action.
- e. If you clicked Yes, the interaction is moved to the target queue.
- 6. If you want to update the "snapshot" view of the Interaction Queues, click Refresh (\mathfrak{O}).

End

Related Information

- Workbins
- Team Lead

Change agent state and log off agents

[Added: 8.5.126.07]

In this lesson, you will learn how to change the status of the agents that you supervise.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Changing the status of an agent
- Log off an agent

Changing the status of an agent

The Change Agent State feature is useful if you discover that an agent is in the wrong state. You can use the Team Communicator Action menu to set an agent to Ready or Not Ready (Not Ready Reasons are not supported) on all channels, which means all the channels that are listed in the menu, or on specific channels.

Important

- If an agent has set their status to After Call Work, Not Ready <with the reason>, or Do Not Disturb, these are displayed as Not Ready in Team Communicator.
- Since Team Communicator does not support these statuses, you cannot set an agent status from Ready to After Call Work, Not Ready <with the reason>, or Do Not Disturb, only to Not Ready.

Lesson: Changing the status of an agent

Purpose: To change the status of an agent who is currently in the wrong status.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You are the Team Lead or Supervisor for an agent or agent group.
- Your account is set up to allow you to change the state of an agent that you supervise.

Start

1. When you identify that an agent is in an incorrect state, search for that agent in Team Communicator by

entering their name in the search field. You can filter by Agent, recents, and favorites.



 If the agent's status is Not Ready and you want to change it to Ready, click the Action menu, then select Set Ready and then either All Channels, which means all the channels that are listed in the menu, or the specific channel that you want to set to Ready. The agent's state will be set to the new state.

ප් Workspace								
Jim	×							
1	🗙 🛄 Agent		•					
٩	Jim Miller		£					
10	Call							
	Send Instant Message		Qu					
10	Monitor Next Interactions							
1	Coach Next Interactions							
Ø	Set Ready	•	All Channels					
0	Log Off Channels		voice					
*	Add to Favorites		instant messaging 😽					
-			chat					
			email					
			webcallback					

3. If the agent's status is **Ready** and you want to change it to **Not Ready**, click the Action menu, then select **Set Not Ready** and then either **All Channels**, which means all the channels that are listed in the menu, or the specific channel that you want to set to **Not Ready**. The agent's state will be set to the new state.

ő N	/orkspace				
Jim	×				
1	★ 🕒 Agent		*		
L.	Jim Miller Conditionally Ready				<u> </u>
10	Call				
	Send Instant Message				Qu
1 2	Coach Next Interactions				
۲	Monitor Next Interactions				
0	Set Ready	,			
•	Set Not Ready	•	All Ch	annels	
0	Log Off Channels		voice	N	
*	Add to Favorites		chat	15	

End

Log off an agent

The Log off Agent feature is useful if you discover that an agent has forgotten to log off after their shift. You can use the Team Communicator Action menu to log off the agent on all channels; this is beneficial because it ensures that your company is not unnecessarily consuming seat/concurrent media licenses, and it also prevents interactions from being routed to an agent who is not present but is configured for auto-answer!

Important

The Log Off feature is not available for agents who are currently handling an interaction.

Lesson: Log off an agent

Purpose: To log off an agent who is currently logged on.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- You are the Team Lead or Supervisor for an agent or agent group.
- Your account is set up to allow you to log offan agent that you supervise.

Start

1. When you identify that an agent is logged on but should be logged off, search for that agent in Team Communicator by entering their name in the search field. You can filter by Agent, recents, and favorites.



If the agent is status is Ready, Conditionally Ready, or Not Ready (or anything other than Logged Off) and you want to log them off, click the Action menu, then select Log Off Channels. The agent will be logged off all channels.



End

Related Information

- Team Lead
- Team Communicator

Contact Center Tasks

In this lesson, you will learn how to use the KPI, Statistics, receive business and system messages, and personalize your workspace.

This topic contains the following sub-topics:

- View KPIs And Statistics
- Receive Business And System Messages
- Connect to your voicemail messages
- Personalize Your Workspace

View KPIs And Statistics

Workspace provides two views of performance: My Statistics and Contact Center Statistics. The My Statistics view lists your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The Contact Center Statistics view displays statistics about the Switches, Routing Points, queues, and other objects.

This lesson contains the following sections:

- Viewing Your KPIs
- Viewing Contact Center Statistics
- Viewing Statistics by Using the Statistics Gadget

Viewing Your KPIs

There are two ways to view the My Statistics view:

- From the My Statistics tab of the Main Window Workspace (see Lesson: Viewing your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs))
- From the Statistics Gadget (see Viewing Statistics by Using the Statistics Gadget)

The My Statistics view displays your KPIs. Your system administrator configures the KPIs that are displayed to you. The following columns of information are available for each KPI:

- Error/Warning Level—The error or warning level, if either is exceeded
- Key Performance Indicator—A description of the statistic
- Personal—Your value for the statistic
- <Agent Group Name>—The value for the statistic for the agent groups to which you belong.

Lesson: Viewing your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Purpose: To determine if you are meeting the performance targets that have been set for you by your contact center.

The My Statistics tab displays your current KPIs and agent group KPIs. The My Statistics tab enables you to compare your performance with other members of your team. Warning and error icons are displayed to indicate which KPIs require your attention.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view your KPIs.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. Click the Access and use Workspace supporting views button () to display the Supporting Views menu, then select My Statistics. The list of your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) is displayed (see the The My Statistics tab in the Main Window Workspace view figure). This view is updated constantly so that you can view your current statistics.

50	enesys	Workspace					o Jan Miller + 🚊 +	• •	- O X
Type re	era o ruri	- 4							=
My W	lorkspac	e							×
my .	Channels	My Campaigns	My History	My Datistics	Contact Center Stat	intica			
	Key Parks	narea indicator	Personal App	et long 12 April	imp BIRT April Im	ptrayboly mitcalback	datibution for processing		1
	Current he	id-bration	00.00.00						
	Total num	be interest rate (Voice	0.05						- L.
	Tytal Num	territourc'Out	- 0%						_
	Total Num	berinbourd Enails	- 65						- L.
	Total man	ber internal calls	- 15						
	Total hepit	time .	00:00:13						- L.
	Total num	be subcord calls	15.	0					
	Total Num	ber Dubourd Unade	15						
	Ourset Re	rady-duration	00.00.00						

The My Statistics tab in the Main Window Workspace view

- 2. You can perform the following functions in the My Statistics tab:
 - Click column heads to change the sort order of the KPIs.
 - Right-click the My Statistics tab to access the shortcut menu that enables you to do the following:
 - Show or hide columns
 - Show or hide KPIs
 - Turn KPI filtering on or off to show only items that have warnings
- 3. To close the Workspace view, click Workspace.

End

Viewing Contact Center Statistics

There are two ways to view the Contact Center Statistics view:

- From the Contact Center Statistics tab of the Main Window Workspace (see Lesson: Viewing statistics about contact center resources)
- From the Statistics Gadget (see Viewing Statistics by Using the Statistics Gadget)

The contact center Statistics view displays statistics that summarize the state of various conditions that are monitored by your contact center, such as the percentage of abandoned calls, the average call-waiting time, and the number of interactions in a queue. Your system administrator defines which statistics and objects are displayed to you. The following columns of information are available for each monitored object:

- Error/Warning Level—The error or warning level if either is exceeded
- Contact Center Resource—A description of the type of object, such as a queue or a Routing Point
- Description—A description of the statistic
- Value—The value of the statistic

Lesson: Viewing statistics about contact center resources

Purpose: To view statistics that summarize the states of various conditions that are monitored by your contact center, such as the percentage of abandoned calls, the average call-waiting time, and the number of interactions that are in a queue.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view statistics for your contact center.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. Click the Access and use Workspace supporting views button () to display the Supporting Views menu, then select Contact Center Statistics. The list of statistics about objects in your contact center is displayed (see the Main Window Workspace view Contact Center Statistics tab figure). This view is updated constantly so that you can view statistics from minute to minute.

iii Genesys • Workspace		Canadar - 🚊 -	• • ×
Type rame as marries			=
My Workspace			×
My Channels My Campaigns	By History By Datistics Contact Center Statistics		
Cartact Carter Resource Desc	ipter take		
Voice Dance 10001 No.	the of agents logged in the queue 2		
Voice Comun KODT Num	der of eteractions abandonmed in the spece 0		
Vision Guese 10001 Aven	age time interactions wait in the guesse 0010100		
Voice Danae 20001 Num	der of atteractions distributed in the parker 0		
Veice Dama KODDI Mun	der of streactions waiting is the queue 0		

Main Window Workspace view Contact Center Statistics tab

Statistics about switches, Routing Points, queues, and other objects, are displayed in the Contact Center Statistics tab. You can drag column headings to change the order or the columns. Also, you can click a column heading to sort the objects based on the value of the column.

- 2. You can perform the following functions in the Contact Center Statistics tab:
 - Click column heads to change the sort order of the statistics.
 - Right-click the Contact Center Statistics tab to access the shortcut menu that enables you to do the following:
 - Show or hide columns
 - Show or hide statistics
 - Turn statistics filtering on or off to show only items that have warnings
- 3. To close the Workspace view, click Workspace.

End

Viewing Statistics by Using the Statistics Gadget

Statistics can be viewed either in the Main Window by selecting the My Statistics tab or the Contact Center Statistics tab in your Workspace, or by using the Statistics Gadget. The Statistics

Gadget is a view of statistics that you can leave open all the time.

The Statistics Gadget displays statistics in two ways:

- In a statistics ticker
- In a Tagged Statistics view

The advantage of the Statistics Gadget is that you can view your KPIs and Contact Center Statistics continuously, without opening your Workspace and clicking back and forth between tabs.

Lesson: Viewing your KPIs and Contact Center Statistics continuously by using the Statistics Gadget

Purpose: To view your KPIs and Contact Center Statistics continuously without opening your Workspace and clicking back and forth between tabs.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to view your KPIs and/or you are configured to view statistics for your contact center.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. To show the Statistics Gadget, select Show Statistics Gadget from the Main Menu in the Main Window. The Statistics Gadget is displayed (see the Workspace Statistics Gadget figure).



Workspace Statistics Gadget

The Statistics Gadget displays configured statistics in a ticking region. Each statistic is displayed for a specified period, then the next statistics is displayed.

- 2. Use the buttons at the bottom of the Statistics Gadget to control the view (see the Workspace Statistics Gadget figure):
 - To stop the ticker at a specific statistic, click the Stop button.
 - To start the ticker, click the Play button.
 - To view the next statistic, click the Forward button.
 - To view the previous statistic; click the Back button.
- 3. Warning and error icons are displayed if one or more statistics exceed or drop below threshold values that are configured by your administrator.
 - Click a warning or error icon to scroll immediately to the next statistics that is in a warning or error state.
- 4. The Statistics Gadget enables you to tag specific statistics in a static view that is displayed below the ticker.
 - When a statistic is displayed in the ticker that you want to tag, click the Tag button: 4. The Tagged Statistics view is displayed below the Statistics Gadget ticker view (see the Workspace Statistics Gadget Tagged Statistic view figure).



5. You can tag more than one statistic at a time. The Tagged Statistics view expands to accommodate several statistics in a single view (see the Workspace Tagged Statistic View stack figure).

My Statistic
KPI III Constraints of the second sec
≪∎ ⊮ 0
SIP Voice Queue Number of interactions distri 0
SIP Voice Queue Number of agents logged in t 2
Workspace Tagged Statistic View stack

The default maximum size of the Tagged Statistics view is five statistics; however, this value might be set to a different size by your administrator. If you have tagged more than the maximum number of stacked statistics, click the Up and Down arrow buttons at the bottom of the Tagged Statistics view stack to scroll up and down through your tagged statistics.

- 6. To untag a statistic, click the Untag button: 🥷
- 7. You can view your KPIs either as a graph or as text.
 - Click the Graph View button to view the statistic as a graph: 💷
 - Click the Text View button to view the statistic as text:

End

Related Information

- My Statistics
- Contact Center Statistics

Receive Business And System Messages

Workspace provides functionality that enables you to receive, preview, and view messages that are directed to you, your group, or your role. This lesson contains the following section:

• Receiving and Viewing Messages

Receiving and Viewing Messages

Messages are displayed to you in three interfaces:

- The My Messages interactive notification
- The My Messages window
- The My Messages area in the Main Window

Lesson: Receiving and viewing messages on your desktop by using the Main

Window

Purpose: To receive messages of varying importance that are directed to you, your group, or your role by your supervisor or administrator.

Prerequisites

- You are configured to receive broadcast messages.
- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. In the Main Window, click the **Access and use Workspace supporting views** button () to display the **Supporting Views** menu, then select **My Messages**. You can view any system or business messages that you might already have received. The messages are displayed in a scrolling list with the most recent message at the top. Messages that are displayed in bold have not been read (see the Workspace Main Window showing the Message Area open and displaying current messages figure).

1,04	une o norbe	۹.					=
My	Messages						×
	far.	Sender .	Induct.	Privily	Date .	Autor	
	lyvien	System	The Universal Electric Server 1021 to back in service.	ange.	4/5/2014 10:00 10 PM	.811	
	System	Springer	The Universal Contact Server UDS is not of service.	ange.	4/5/2014 8:57:58 PM	Are .	
	System	System	The channel woos is not of service	ange.	4/5/2014 1/36 40 PM	.84	
	System	System	The charted notation assumption back to service	ange.	4/1/2014 108:26/94	.84	
	System .	Real and	The channel restard messaging is not of service	ange.	ACCOUNT & NUMBER OF STREET, NO. 10, NO	.811	
L							
					Unwal 0 1	avesd inportant	D field h
We dis	orkspac splaying	e Main g currer	Window showing the Internet the Internet Manual Manua Manual Manual Manu	lessag	e Area open	and	

- 2. To read a message that is displayed in the Message Area, do one of the following:
 - Hover your mouse pointer over the message to view a pop-up that displays the content of the message.
 - Double-click the message to open the My Messages window.

Depending on the configuration if your system, you might be able to mark some or all messages as read/unread or delete messages. To perform an action on a message do one of the following:

- Right click an unread message in the message view and select **Mark as Read** from the context menu.
- Right click a read message in the message view and select **Mark as Unread** from the context menu.
- Right click a message in the message view and select **Delete** from the context menu.
- 3. If a new message is directed to you, the My Message interactive notification is displayed on your desktop (see the Workspace My Messages interactive notification figure).

Information						
0	Supervisor Important Advice					
	Show	Dismiss				
Works	space My Messages interactive notification					

Do one of the following:

- Click Show—Displays the Message window. The message is also displayed in the Messages Area of the Main Window. The message is marked as Read.
- Click Dismiss—Closes the interactive notification. The message is displayed in the Messages Area of the Main Window. The message is marked as Unread (displayed in bold in the Message Area).
- Do nothing—The interactive notification is dismissed automatically after a time interval that is defined by your system administrator; the message is displayed in the Messages Area of the Main Window. The message is marked as Unread (appears in boldface in the Message Area).
- 4. If you clicked Show, the Message window is displayed (see the Workspace Business Message window figure).



Workspace Business Message window

The Message window contains the full content of a message that has been directed to you, your group, or your role. As well as displaying the content of the message, the Message window might contain the following information:

- **Message Type**—This information might be conveyed by text, the title bar, and/or an icon.
- **Subject**—Information about the content of the message.
- **Sender**—The identity of the sender of the message.
- **Priority**—This information might be conveyed by text and/or by the color of the border that surrounds the information about the message.
- **Date**—The date and time that the message was sent.
- Audience—The target audience of the message.
- Other data that is defined by your administrator.

Click OK to close the Message window.

5. If you clicked Dismiss, or if you allowed the interactive notification to time-out by not clicking either button, the Message window is not displayed. To view the contents of the message, you must open the Message Area in the Main Window (see the Workspace Main Window showing the Message Area open and displaying current messages figure).

End

Related Information

• My Messages

Connect to your Voicemail Messages

[Added: 8.5.100.05]

In this lesson, you will learn how to determine whether you have waiting voicemail messages and how to connect to your voicemail box.

Tip

Workspace might be configured by your administrator to enable you to view your voicemail boxes and connect to your voicemail boxes by using the Workspace main view.

Lesson: Connecting to your Voicemail Messages

Purpose: To determine whether or not you have unplayed voicemail messages and to connect to your voicemail boxes.

Prerequisites

- Your account is enabled to view the status of your voicemail box in the Workspace main view.
- You are logged into Workspace (see Getting Started).
- You have unplayed voicemail messages.

Start

1. If you have unplayed voicemail messages, a "messages waiting indicator" (⁶) is displayed on the **Access and use Workspace supporting views** button (\blacksquare).

Tip

The message waiting indicator displays the number of unplayed messages in your voicemail box(es) and the number of unread system messages. Your system administrator can configure Workspace to display the sum of the number of messages in your personal voicemail box, group voicemail boxes, and/or your **My Messages** view.

- 2. To view the status of your voicemail boxes, hover your mouse pointer over the message waiting indicator. A tooltip is displayed that lists the number of messages in each of your voicemail boxes and the **My Messages** view.
- 3. To access your voicemail box(es), click = to display the **Supporting Views** menu.

Your voicemail boxes are displayed in the menu.

If you have voicemail messages that you have not played, a "messages waiting indicator" (6) is displayed beside the name of each of the voicemail boxes that your administrator has granted you access.

4. To call your voicemail box, select it from the **Supporting Views** menu.

A new internal interaction is launched.

5. Use the keypad to enter your authentication.

End

See also: View and Connect to Your Voicemail Messages in the Workspace 8.5.1 Help.

Related Information

• View and connect to your Voicemail messages

Personalize Your Workspace

[Modified: 8.5.109.16, 8.5.100.05]

You can change the appearance of the Workspace interface by choosing a predefined appearance from the Change Theme submenu. This lesson contains the following section:

- Changing the Appearance of Workspace
- Changing the Zoom of Text Fields

Changing the Appearance of Workspace

You can change the way that Workspace looks by using a menu selection. Workspace provides the default 8.5 theme, the classic 8.1 Blue theme, and two alternate 8.1 themes: Royale and Fancy.

Tip

Your system administrator might also have created additional themes for you to use.

Lesson: Changing the appearance of the agent interface

Purpose: To alter the appearance of the Workspace interface.

Prerequisites

• You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).

Start

1. The flat grey appearance of Workspace is the default color scheme; it is called the Default theme (see the Main Window, displaying the Default theme figure).

III Genesys •	workspace				()	± •	•••	- 0 *
Type name to number	4							=
My Workspace								×
My Channels	My Campaigna	My History	Wy Durbelies	Contact Center Statistics				
Moda	Balan		mund 1	sharmation				
O min	O heads	040110	e Active Forward					
O instant messa	ging C Ready	(00.09.54)						
O due	O Realy	(96 29 25)						
O enal	O Realy	(002935)						
8 to 5	O Ready	(0010.01)						
Ø setcalhect	O Ready	(10.19.55)						

Main Window, displaying the Default theme

To change the color scheme of Workspace, in the Main Window, open the Main Menu (see the Main Window Main menu figure).

🥑 Jim Miller 👻	× = - • •		
	Show Statistics Gadget		
	Main Window Always on Top		
	Refine Place / Channel Information		
	Change Theme	•	Default
	Exit		Blue
			Royale
			Fancy
Main Window M	ain menu		

2. Select a different theme from the Change Theme submenu (see the Main Window Main Menu, displaying Change Theme to Blue option figure).

🧭 Jim Miller 👻	± - 0 - ⊥ ×	
	Show Statistics Gadget	
	Main Window Always on Top	
	Refine Place / Channel Information	
	Change Theme	🗹 Default
	Exit	Blue
		□ Royale
		Fancy

Main Window Main Menu, displaying Change Theme to Blue option

Workspace provides three additional themes that are based on the 8.1 interface, which are called Blue, Royale, and Fancy.

Important

- Your system administrator might have configured additional theme options from which you can choose.
- For visually impaired agents, your administrator can configure the system to make the Workspace High Contrast theme available to you in the **Change Theme** menu. This theme is designed to meet the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0, with some limitations. This theme might already be available to you.
- 3. A Workspace message is displayed to inform you that the new theme will be applied the next time that you start the Workspace application (see the Workspace message figure).



Click 0K to dismiss the message.

4. Exit and then restart Workspace.

The Main Window and all the other windows of Workspace are displayed with the new theme (see the Main Window displaying the Blue theme figure).

lui Genesys + Workspace						🧟 Jin Mile 🔻	11	•• _ = ×
Repriserie or sumber								
My Workspace								×
No Dannels My Co	managen [Mythatary	My Tarlation	Contact Device Multishop				
10180	Status		Forward	Information .				
Series .	Resty	08/0110	No.Active Forward					
🔾 instant mensaging	Resty	010145						
Q mat	Investigation	04/0110						
Q eral	Resty	01010						
Q 145	heaty	01010						
G anteritari	heaty	(14/3110)						

Main Window displaying the Blue theme

End

Changing the Zoom of Text Fields

[Added: 8.5.109.16]

Your environment might be set up to allow you to use the Zoom slider control in the **Main Menu** to set the size of the text in various Workspace windows, including:

- IM (text entry, transcript, and interaction data tooltip)
- Chat (text entry, transcript, and interaction data tooltip)
- Email (text entry and inbound email view)
- SMS (text entry, transcript, and interaction data tooltip)
- Interaction history (IM, Chat, Email, and SMS)
- Standard responses
- Social media (text entry only)

Lesson: Changing the zoom of text fields in the agent interface

Purpose: To alter the appearance of the Workspace interface.

Prerequisites

- You are logged in to Workspace (see Lesson: Logging in to Workspace).
- Your adminstrator has enabled the zoom feature for text fields in your environment.

Start

1. Open the Main Menu.



2. Choose **Zoom** to display the Text Zoom slider control.



3. <u>Slide the zoom control to the right to increase the size of text in text composition and transcript fields</u>.

🌔 Kate Lewis 👻	2 - 0 ×		
	Show Statistics Gadget		
	Main Window Always on Top		
	Refine Place / Channel Information		
	Change Theme	,	
	Zoom	•	G A 150%
	Exit	Ctrl+Alt+X	14 M
Text • I have sen On 3/28/2 > Please s	t you information. 2014 12:34 PM, Mark Avenue of the information about the information a	ram wrote: out opening a	new account.
> M Avrar	n		

4. <u>Slide the zoom control to the left to decrease the size of text in text composition and transcript fields.</u>



5. Slide the zoom control back to **100%** or click the Zoom Percent button to set the zoom level back to normal view.





End

Related Information

• Manage your settings and preferences

What's New in Workspace?

New in Workspace 8.5.128.07

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.128.07:

• Chat interactions might now automatically close and be marked done, either immediately or after a certain time interval, when the contact disconnects. This feature is set up by your administrator.

New in Workspace 8.5.127.06

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.127.06:

• Agents can change the reading direction of the text when using a mix of right-to-left or left-to-right scripts when replying to an inbound email interaction.

New in Workspace 8.5.126.07

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.126.07:

• Team Leads and Supervisors can now remotely change the state of an agent or log off an agent.

New in Workspace 8.5.122.08

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.122.08:

- The Chat interface has been improved in several ways:
 - Instead of plain text, the chat transcript now displays the conversation in colored blocks to make it easier to distinguish messages from different participants.
 - A message not read indicator lets you know if your message was seen or not.
 - Messages from older chat interactions with the same contact are now included in the chat transcript to make it easier for you to find historical content from your current contact.
- The SMS and IM interfaces have been improved. Instead of plain text, the message transcript now

displays the conversation in colored blocks to make it easier to distinguish messages from different participants.

New in Workspace 8.5.118.10

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.118.10:

- You can now call or transfer calls to voicemail if this feature is available in your environment.
- You can now create and manage hyperlinks in outgoing email and other text based interactions.
- You can now use shortcut keywords to add responses to your outgoing text based interactions.
- You can now use a folder tree to search for and add or change case information in the Case Information area of interactions.

New in Workspace 8.5.117.18

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.117.18:

- Your administrator might have enabled the feature that highlights your current interaction in the Contact History view of the current interaction. If the current interaction is not on the first page of the view, the view is scrolled to the position of the current interaction.
- Your administrator might have enabled the feature that requires you to specify a call result or disposition before you transfer an Outbound campaign call to another agent.
- Your administrator might have enabled the feature that makes editable case information fields mandatory. If so, a red asterisk is displayed next to the field in the Case Information view, and you will not be able to close the interaction without editing the field.

New in Workspace 8.5.116.10

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.116.10:

- You can now view the search results in the Interaction Search view in either Grid view or Tree view. This brings this view in parity with the My History and Contact History views.
- If you are allowed to work on more than one interaction at the same time, your administrator can now specify whether or not new interactions that you accept have the focus, or appear in the background.

New in Workspace 8.5.115.17

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.115.17:

- You can now send and receive files and images during chat interactions. See updates to the lesson, *Handling an inbound chat interaction*.
- You can now send and receive emojis (emoticons or 'smileys') during chat interactions. See updates to the lesson, *Handling an inbound chat interaction*.
- In Outbound Campaigns, rescheduling a callback has been modified. Your account might be set up so that you cannot schedule personal callbacks.
- In Outbound Preview Campaigns, your account might be set up to enable you to manually enter a phone number to call your contact.

New in Workspace 8.5.114.08

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.114.08:

• Your contact center might use Place Group pools instead of Places for login. Refer to Logging in to a Place Group for more information.

New in Workspace 8.5.113.11

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.113.11:

- Workspace enables you to insert images into outgoing email interactions and to view and save images that your contacts have inserted into inbound email interactions.
- Workspace enables you to insert TAB characters into outgoing email interactions unless your account is configured for Accessibility.
- Workspace enables you to Forward emails in-line as well as forwarding emails as attachments. This feature is available from the following views:
 - Inbound email interaction
 - My History
 - Contact History
 - Interaction History
- The Chat Interaction bar now flashes to warn you about different changes to the status of a Chat interaction. Infomration about this has been added to a tip in the Handling a Chat interaction lesson.

New in Workspace 8.5.112.08

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.112.08:

• The login dialog box was modified to make it easier for agents who sit at different workstations to notify the system that they are using a different Place (phone set and workstation).

New in Workspace 8.5.111.21

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.111.21:

- Your administrator might have added new call timers to your Workspace. For a demonstration of the various call timers, including Total Duration, Hold Duration, and After Work Duration that might be available for you to use, see the Call Timers section in the *Workspace 8.5 Help*.
- Workspace now supports Genesys Mobile Server (GMS) Callback interactions. You can handle Callback interactions directed to you by the system, or create Callback interactions for a contact.

New in Workspace 8.5.110.13

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.110.13:

- You can now search/filter the list of interactions in a Workbin or Interaction Queue.
- You can now manually refresh the list of interactions in a Workbin.
- You can now receive, handle, and view Multimedia Message Service (MMS) images sent from your contacts and transfer them to internal targets.
- You can now mark interactions that are in the "in-progress" state as Done and delete outbound email interactions in the Contact Interaction History, My History, and Interaction Search views. Refer to the following lessons:
 - Manage Contact History
 - Manage Your History
 - Manage Contacts and Contact Information
 - Find Interactions

New in Workspace 8.5.109.16

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.109.16:

- If your administrator has enabled the feature, you can now adjust the size of text in text composition and transcript fields.
- You can now suspend and reinstate a party in a conference call to temporarily prevent a party from listening to the call and talking in the conference.
- Your administrator might have set up your account to automatically dial Preview and Push preview campaign interactions.
- Information has been added for agents working in Remote and Virtual Desktop Environments regarding trouble shooting the Workspace SIP Endpoint during login and disconnection.

New in Workspace 8.5.108.11

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.108.11:

- When you Log In, you can uncheck media that you are not going to use in your session.
- You can Manage Your Status to logoff media channels during your session.
- When you Handle A Chat Interaction you might be allowed to see what your contact is typing before they send their message to you.
- You might now be able to use a folder hierarchy to choose Disposition Codes.

New in Workspace 8.5.106.19

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.106.19:

• A note about auto-collapsed interaction control bars in the Interaction Toolbar has been added.

New in Workspace 8.5.105.12

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.105.12:

- Your administrator can now configure your system to display a message any time that you try to send a Chat, Email, or SMS interaction that contains misspelled words.
- You can now double-click a Standard Response to insert the content into your interaction.
- If your account is configured for auto-answering inbound interactions, you might be able to preview the inbound interaction before it is auto-answered. the following lessons have been updated for this feature:
 - Handling an inbound voice interaction
 - Handling a web callback interaction

- Handling a push-preview Outbound-Campaign voice interaction
- Handling an inbound chat interaction
- Handling an inbound email interaction
- Handling an inbound SMS interaction
- Handling an inbound workitem interaction

New in Workspace 8.5.104.15

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.104.15:

- The Forward to an External Resource feature has been expanded to enable you to forward an email interaction to multiple targets, including carbon copying targets, and to add instructions about the email to the target(s).
- The Interaction Search feature enables you to find interactions based on multiple criteria, including words in the body or transcript of the interaction.
- The Manage Contact History topic was modified and divided into subtopics:
 - Manage Contact History
 - Manage Your History
 - Manage Contacts and Contact Information
 - Find Interactions

New in Workspace 8.5.103.10

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.103.10:

- A note has been added to the Lesson: Starting a voice consultation about automatic or manual hold release during a consultation call.
- In some environments you might be required to set a disposition code before you can transfer or forward an email interaction.

New in Workspace 8.5.102.06

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.102.06:

• A note has been added to the Lesson: Logging in the Workspace about Single-sign on login.

New in Workspace 8.5.101.14

The following content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.101.14:

- When a Workspace application update is pushed out by your administrator, your system might be configured to prevent you from rejecting the update. A note about rejecting updates has been added to the following topic:
 - Getting Started
- You can now print email interactions from the following views:
 - Workbin
 - Contact History
 - My History
- Some agents might not have permission to edit some or all of the fields in a contact record. Notes have been added to the following topics:
 - Lesson: Adding a Contact
 - Lesson: Updating Contact Information
- The following note was added to each lesson that includes information about accepting/rejecting interaction notifications:

Tip

If you are using a screen reader, your system might be configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window. In this scenario, your screen reader will automatically read the window title to you. Navigate to the content area to have your screen reader read the Interaction Preview content. However, if your system is not configured to give the focus to the Interaction Preview window, to have your screen reader read the contents of the Interaction Preview window, you must use screen navigation to give the focus to the Interaction Preview.

New in Workspace 8.5.100.05

The following new content has been added to the Workspace 8.5.1 User's Guide for Workspace Desktop Edition 8.5.100.05:

- The voicemail feature has been added.
- A note about using the Workspace High Contrast theme has been added to the Personalize Your Workspace lesson.